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Maturity 
(Se12tember 1} 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 

$15,340,000 
COUNTY OF STANISLAUS 
Certificates of Participation 

(2004 Capital Improvement Projects) 
Series 2004A 

Maturity Schedule 

$10,625,000 Serial Certificates 

Principal Interest Yield/ Maturity Principal Interest 
Amount Rate Price CUSIPt (Se12tem)2er 1) Amount Rate 
$580,000 1.625% 1.27% 854450GB3 2014 $700,000 3.500% 

590,000 2.125 l.55 854450GCI 2015 720,000 3.600 
595,000 2.125 1.95 854450GD9 2016 750,000 3.700 
610,000 2.250 100.00 854450GE7 2017 775,000 3.800 
620,000 2.625 2.53 854450GF4 
640,000 3.000 2.73 854450GG2 2020 870,000 4.100 
655,000 3.000 100.00 854450GHO 2021 905,000 4.125 
675,000 3.250 3.15 854450GJ6 2022 940,000 4.200 

$1,635,000 4.000% Tenn Certificate due September 1, 2019: Price 100.000% CUSIPt: 854450GP2 
$3,080,000 4.375% Tenn Certificate due September 1, 2025: Price 100.000% CUSIPt: 854450GT4 

C- Priced to call on September 1, 2012@101% 

Yield/ 
Price CUSIPt 

3.40%C 854450GK3 
100.00 854450GLl 
100.00 854450GM9 
100.00 854450GN7 

100.00 854450GQO 
4.15 854450GR8 
4.30 854450GS6 

t Copyright 2003, American Bankers Association. CUSIP date herein is provided by Standard & Poor's CUSIP Service Bureau, a 
Division of the McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., and is set forth herein for convenience of reference only. Neither the County nor the 
Underwriter assumes responsibility for the accuracy of such numbers. 

Maturity 
(Se12tember 1) 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 

$27,455,000 
COUNTY OF STANISLAUS 
Certificates of Participation 

(2004 Capital Improvement Projects) 
Series 2004B 

Maturity Schedule 

$19,025,000 Serial Certificates 

Principal Interest Yield/ Maturity Principal Interest 
Amount Rate Price CUSIPt (Se12tember 1) Amount Rate 
$1,040,000 1.625% 1.27% 854450GU1 2014 $1,245,000 3.500% 

1,055,000 2.125 1.55 854450GV9 2015 1,295,000 3.600 
l,o70,000 2.125 1.95 854450GW7 2016 1,340,000 3.700 
1,090,000 2.250 100.00 854450GX5 2017 1,390,000 3.800 
1,115,000 2.625 2.53 854450GY3 
1,140,000 3.000 2.73 854450GZO 2020 1,555,000 4.100 
1,175,000 3.000 100.00 854450HA4 2021 1,620,000 4.125 
1,205,000 3.250 3.15 854450HB2 2022 1,690,000 4.200 

$2,925,000 4.000% Term Certificate due September 1, 2019: Price 100.000% CUSIPt: 854450HGI 
$5,505,000 4.375% Tenn Certificate due September 1, 2025: Price 100.000% CUSIPt: 854450HLO 

C- Priced to call on September 1, 2012 @101 % 

Yield/ 
Price 

3.40%C 
100.00 
100.00 
100.00 

100.00 
4.15 
4.30 

t Copyright 2003, American Bankers Association. CUSIP date herein is provided by Standard & Poor's CUSIP Service Bureau, a 
Division of the McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., and is set forth herein for convenience of reference only. Neither the County nor the 
Underwriter assumes responsibility for the accuracy of such numbers. 

CUSIPt 
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854450HD8 
854450HE6 
854450HF3 

854450HH9 
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This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy nor 
shall there be any sale of the Certificates by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such 
person to make such an offer, solicitation or sale. No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been 
authorized to give any information or to make any representations other than those contained in this 
Official Statement. If given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon as 
having been authorized by the County, the Authority or the Underwriter. 

This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract with the purchasers of the Certificates. 
Statements contained in this Official Statement which involve estimates, projections, forecasts or matters 
of opinion, whether or not expressly so described herein, are intended solely as such and are not to be 
construed as representations of facts. 

The information set forth herein has been provided by the County and other sources that are 
believed by the County to be reliable. The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to 
change without notice and neither delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, 
under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the County 
or the Authority since the date hereof. This Official Statement is submitted with respect to the sale of the 
Certificates referred to herein and may not be reproduced or used, in whole or in part, for any other 
purpose, unless authorized in writing by the County. All summaries of the documents and laws are made 
subject to the provisions thereof and do not purport to be complete statements of any or all such 
provisions. Preparation of this Official Statement and its distribution have been duly authorized and 
approved by the County and the Authority. 

The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement. The 
Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, its 
responsibility to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of 
this transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such 
information. 

In connection with the offering of the Certificates, the Underwriter may over-allot or effect 
transactions that stabilize or maintain the market price of the Certificates at a level above that which 
might otherwise prevail in the open market. Such stabilizing, if commenced, may be discontinued at any 
time. The Underwriter may offer and sell the Certificates to certain dealers, institutional investors and 
others at prices lower than the public offering prices stated on the cover page hereof and such public 
offering prices may be changed from time to time by the Underwriter. 
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INTRODUCTION 

This introduction contains only a brief summary of certain of the terms of the Certificates being 
offered, and a brief description of the Official Statement. All statements contained in this introduction are 
qualified in their entirety by reference to the entire Official Statement. References to, and summaries of, 
provisions of the Constitution and laws of the State of California (the "State") and any documents referred 
to herein do not purport to be complete and such references are qualified in their entirety by reference to 
the complete provisions. Capitalized terms used in this Official Statement and not defmed elsewhere 
herein have the meanings given such terms in Appendix C - "Summary of Principal Legal Documents. 11 

This Official Statement speaks only as of its date, and the information contained herein is subject to 
change. 

General 

This Official Statement, including the cover and the Appendices attached hereto (the "Official 
Statement"), provides certain information concerning the execution and delivery of the County of 
Stanislaus Certificates of Participation (2004 Capital Improvement Projects) Series 2004A 
(the "Series 2004A Certificates") in the aggregate principal amount of $15,340,000 and the County of 
Stanislaus Certificates of Participation (2004 Capital Improvement Projects) Series 2004 B (the "Series 
2004B Certificates) in the aggregate principal amount of $27,455,000. The Series 2004A Certificates and 
the Series 2004B Certificates are collectively referred to as the "Certificates" and separately as a "Series." 
The Series 2004A Certificates are being executed and delivered to (i) finance a portion of the costs of the 
acquisition, construction and installation of the Series 2004A Project (as defined herein), (ii) fund a 
reserve fund for the Series 2004A Certificates, (iii) pay capitalized interest on the Series 2004A 
Certificates through September 1, 2006 and (iv) pay the costs of execution and delivery for the Series 
2004A Certificates. The Series 2004B Certificates are being executed and delivered to (i) finance a 
portion of the costs of the acquisition, construction and installation of the Series 2004B Project (as 
defined herein), (ii) fund a reserve fund for the Series 2004B Certificates, (iii) pay capitalized interest on 
the Series 2004B Certificates through September I, 2006 and (iv) pay the costs of execution and delivery 
for the Series 2004B Certificates. See "Plan of Finance" and "The Project and the Property" herein. 

The Series 2004A Certificates will be executed and delivered pursuant to a Trust Agreement, 
dated as of April 1, 2004 (the "Series 2004A Trust Agreement") by and among the County of Stanislaus 
(the "County"), the Stanislaus County Capital Improvements Financing Authority (the "Authority"), and 
BNY Western Trust Company, as trustee (the "Trustee"). The Series 2004B Certificates will be executed 
and delivered pursuant to a Trust Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2004 (the "Series 20048 Trust 
Agreement") by and among the County, the Authority and the Trustee (the "Series 2004B Trust 
Agreement" and, together with the Series 2004A Trust Agreement, the "Trust Agreements"). The County 
will lease the Series 2004A Property (as defined herein) to the Authority pursuant to a Site Lease, dated 
as of April 1, 2004 (the "Series 2004A Site Lease") and the County will lease the Series 20048 Property 
(as defined herein) to the Authority pursuant to a Site Lease, dated as of April 1, 2004 (the "Series 20048 
Site Lease" and, together with the Series 2004A Site Lease, the "Site Leases"). See "The Project and the 
Property" herein. 



The Series 2004A Certificates represent undivided proportionate interests in certain lease 
payments (the "Series 2004A Lease Payments") to be paid under a Lease/Purchase Agreement under 
which the County will lease the Series 2004A Property from the Authority, dated as of April 1, 2004 (the 
"Series 2004A Lease Agreement"). The Series 2004B Certificates represent undivided proportionate 
interests in certain lease payments (the "Series 2004B Lease Payments") to be paid under a 
Lease/Purchase Agreement under which the County will lease the Series 2004B Property from the 
Authority, dated as of April 1, 2004 (the "Series 2004B Lease Agreement" and, together with the Series 
2004A Lease Agreement, the "Lease Agreements"). 

See "Security and Sources of Payment for the Certificates - Lease Payments" herein. 

Security and Source of Payment for the Certificates 

Each Series of the Certificates is separately issued and secured by its related Lease 
Payments and under its related Trust Agreement and Lease Agreement. The Owners of one Series 
of Certificates will have no claim on the revenues or funds securing the other Series of Certificates 
or on other amounts held under the Trust Agreement for the other Series. For purposes of this 
Official Statement, "Lease Agreement" and "Trust Agreement" refer to the respective "Lease 
Agreements" and "Trust Agreements" entered into by the County and "Project" refers to the respective 
Projects of each Lease Agreement, unless specifically stated to the contrary. Singular references to 
accounts refer to the respective accounts established for each Trust Agreement, as appropriate. 

Under the Lease Agreements, in consideration for the use and occupancy of the Property, the 
County is to make certain payments designated as Lease Payments and certain other payments designated 
as Additional Payments, in the amounts, at the times and in the manner set forth in the Lease Agreements. 

Pursuant to an Assignment Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2004, between the Trustee and the 
Authority (the "Series 2004A Assignment Agreement"), the Authority will assign to the Trustee, for the 
benefit of the Owners of the Series 2004A Certificates, all of its right, title and interest in and to the Series 
2004A Site Lease and the Series 2004A Lease Agreement ( other than its rights to indemnification and 
payment or reimbursement of its costs or expenses thereunder), including the right to receive Series 
2004A Lease Payments from the County under the Series 2004A Lease Agreement. Pursuant to the 
Series 2004A Trust Agreement, the Trustee is to distribute Series 2004A Lease Payments received from 
the County as principal and interest represented by the Series 2004A Certificates. 

Pursuant to an Assignment Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2004, between the Trustee and the 
Authority (the "Series 2004B Assignment Agreement" and, together with the Series 2004A Assignment 
Agreement, the "Assignment Agreements"), the Authority will assign to the Trustee, for the benefit of the 
Owners of the Series 2004B Certificates, all of its right, title and interest in and to the Series 2004B Site 
Lease and the Series 2004B Lease Agreement (other than its rights to indemnification and payment or 
reimbursement of its costs or expenses thereunder), including the right to receive Series 2004B Lease 
Payments from the County under the Series 20004B Lease Agreement. Pursuant to the Series 2004B 
Trust Agreement, the Trustee is to distribute Series 2004B Lease Payments received from the County as 
principal and interest represented by the Series 2004B Certificates. 

The County covenants in the Lease Agreements that it will take such action as may be necessary 
to include all Lease Payments and Additional Payments in its annual budget, and to make the necessary 
appropriations for such Lease Payments and Additional Payments. See "Security and Sources of Payment 
for the Certificates - Lease Payments." The County's obligation to pay Lease Payments related to a 
Series of Certificates is subject to abatement in the event of damage, destruction or loss such that there is 
a substantial interference with the County's right to the use or occupancy of the Property related to such 
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Series, except to the extent that moneys are available to pay the Lease Payments related to such Series in 
any of the funds and accounts established under the Trust Agreement for such Series. See "Security and 
Sources of Payment for the Certificates - Abatement." 

Pursuant to each Trust Agreement, a Reserve Fund will be funded from the proceeds of the sale 
of the related Series of Certificates in the amount of the Reserve Requirement for such Series. Amounts in 
the Reserve Fund for a Series are available only to pay principal of and interest with respect to the 
Certificates for such Series and are not pledged to or available to pay any amounts due with respect to the 
other Series of Certificates. See "Security and Sources of Payment for the Certificates-Reserve Fund." 

THE OBLIGATION OF THE COUNTY TO PAY LEASE PAYMENTS AND ADDITIONAL 
PAYMENTS UNDER THE LEASE AGREEMENTS CONSTITUTES A CURRENT EXPENSE OF 
THE COUNTY AND SHOULD NOT IN ANY WAY BE CONSTRUED TO BE A DEBT OF THE 
COUNTY, OR THE STATE, OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF, IN 
CONTRAVENTION OF ANY APPLICABLE CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY LIMITATION 
OR REQIBREMENTS CONCERNING THE CREATION OF INDEBTEDNESS BY THE COUNTY, 
THE STATE, OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF. NEITHER THE CERTIFICATES 
NOR THE OBLIGATION OF THE COUNTY TO MAKE PAYMENTS UNDER THE LEASE 
AGREEMENTS CONSTITUTES A PLEDGE OF GENERAL REVENUES, FUNDS OR MONEYS OF 
THE COUNTY OR AN OBLIGATION OF THE COUNTY FOR WHICH THE COUNTY IS 
OBLIGATED TO LEVY OR PLEDGE ANY FORM OF TAXATION OR FOR WIDCH THE COUNTY 
HAS LEVIED OR PLEDGED ANY FORM OF TAXATION. 

The Certificates 

The Certificates will be executed and delivered in book-entry form only and, when delivered, will 
be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New 
York ("OTC"), which will act as securities depository for the Certificates. Individual purchases of the 
Certificates will be made in book-entry form only. Purchasers of the Certificates will not receive 
Certificates representing their ownership interests in the Certificates purchased. The Certificates will be 
executed and delivered in the principal amount of $5,000 and any integral multiple thereof. Interest 
represented by the Certificates is payable semiannually on March 1 and September 1 of each year, 
commencing on September 1, 2004. Principal and interest payments (and prepayment price) due with 
respect to the Certificates are payable directly to DTC by BNY Western Trust Company, as Trustee. 
Upon receipt of payments of principal and interest ( and prepayment price), OTC will, in tum, distribute 
such payments to the beneficial owners of the Certificates. See "Certificates-General" herein and 
Appendix G- "OTC and the Book-Entry System" attached hereto. 

Prepayment 

The Certificates are subject to extraordinary, optional and mandatory sinking account prepayment 
prior to maturity, as described herein. See "The Certificates-Prepayment" herein 

The Insurance Policy 

Payment of principal of and interest on each Series of the Certificates when due will be insured 
by an insurance policy for each Series of the Certificates (collectively, the "Insurance Policy") to be 
issued concurrently with the delivery of the Certificates by Ambac Assurance Corporation (the "Insurer"). 
See "The Insurance Policy and the Insurer" herein and Appendix E - "Form oflnsurance Policy" attached 
hereto. 
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Tax Matters 

For a description of the tax status of interest due with respect to the Certificates, see "Tax 
Matters" herein and see the complete copy of Special Counsel opinion set forth in Appendix D hereto. 

Continuing Disclosure Obligation 

The County has agreed to provide, or cause to be provided, to each nationally recognized 
municipal securities information repository and any public or private repository or entity designated by 
the State as a state repository for purposes of Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission ( each, a "Repository") certain annual financial information and operating data and, in a 
timely manner, notice of certain material events. These covenants have been made in order to assist the 
Underwriter in complying with SEC Rule 15c2-12(b)(5). See "Continuing Disclosure11 herein and 
Appendix F - "Form of Continuing Disclosure Agreement." 

Forward-Looking Statements 

Certain statements included or incorporated by reference in this Official Statement constitute 
"forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the United States Private Securities Litigation 
Reform Act of 1995, Section 21E of the United States Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 
Such statements are generally identifiable by the terminology used such as "plan," "expect," "estimate," 
"budget" or other similar words. 

The achievement of certain results or other expectations contained in such forward-looking 
statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause actual 
results, performance or achievements described to be materially different from any future results, 
performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. No assurance is 
given that actual results will meet the County's forecasts in any way. Except as set forth in the Continuing 
Disclosure Agreement, the County does not plan to issue any updates or revisions to those forward­
looking statements if or when its expectations, or events, conditions or circumstances on which such 
statements are based occur or do not occur. 

Miscellaneous 

The description herein of the Trust Agreements, the Lease Agreements, the Site Leases, the 
Assignment Agreements, the Continuing Disclosure Agreement and any other agreements relating to the 
Certificates are qualified in their entirety by reference to such documents, and the descriptions herein of 
the Certificates are qualified in their entirety by the form thereof and the information with respect thereto 
included in the aforementioned documents. See Appendix C - "Summary of Principal Legal 
Documents." Copies of the documents are on file and available for inspection at the offices of the County 
and the Trustee at 550 Kearny Street, Suite 600, San Francisco, CA 94108, Attention: Corporate Trust 
Department. 

All capitalized terms used in this Official Statement and not otherwise defined herein have the 
meanings given such terms in Appendix C - "Summary of Principal Legal Documents" attached hereto. 

The information and expressions of opinion herein speak only as of their date and are subject to 
change without notice. Neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder nor 
any future use of this Official Statement shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there 
has been no change in the affairs of the County since the date hereof. 
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The presentation of information, including tables of receipt of revenues, is intended to show 
recent historical information and is not intended to indicate future or continuing trends in the financial 
position or other affairs of the County. No representation is made that past experience, as it might be 
shown by such financial and other information, will necessarily continue or be repeated in the future. 

PLAN OF FINANCE 

The Series 2004A Certificates are being executed and delivered to (i) finance a portion of the 
costs of the acquisition, construction and installation of the Series 2004A Project (as defined herein), (ii) 
fund a reserve fund for the Series 2004A Certificates, (iii) pay capitalized interest on the Series 2004A 
Certificates through September 1, 2006 and (iv) pay the costs of execution and delivery for the Series 
2004A Certificates. The Series 2004B Certificates are being executed and delivered to (i) fmance a 
portion of the costs of the acquisition, construction and installation of the Series 2004B Project (as 
defined herein), (ii) fund a reserve fund for the Series 2004B Certificates, (iii) pay capitalized interest on 
the Series 2004B Certificates through September 1, 2006 and (iv) pay the costs of execution and delivery 
for the Series 2004B Certificates. 

The table below sets forth the estimated sources and uses of the proceeds of the Certificates and 
other amounts. 

Estimated Sources and Uses of Proceeds of the Certificates and other Amounts 

Sources 

Certificate Proceeds 
Net Premium 
Total 

Reserve Fund 
Costs of Issuance(!) 
Bond Insurance Premium 
Construction Fund 
Capitalized Interest Account<2

) 

Total 

Series 2004A Certificates 

$15,340,000.00 
31,662.45 

$15,371,662.45 

$ 1,126,220.00 
306,800.00 
224,378.50 

12,403,200.27 
1,311,063.68 

$15,371,662.45 

Series 2004B Certificates 

$27 ,455,000.00 
56,450.85 

$27,511,450.85 

$ 2,018,710.00 
615,153.00 
401,556.85 

22,129,811.58 
2,346,219.42 

$27,511,450.85 

<
1
> Includes underwriter's discount, rating agency fees, financial advisory fees, legal fees, printing costs 

and other costs of execution and delivery of the related Certificates. 
<
2
> Funds deposited in the respective Capitalized Interest Account will be sufficient to pay interest with 

respect to the Series 2004A Certificates and the Series 20048 Certificates, as applicable, through 
September 1, 2006. 
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THE PROJECT AND THE PROPERTY 

The Project 

The proceeds of the Series 2004A Certificates will finance the acquisition, construction and 
installation of the Gallo Center for the Arts (the "Series 2004A Project") and the proceeds of the Series 
2004B Certificates will finance the acquisition, construction and installation of the 12th Street Office and 
Parking Garage and the reimbursement of costs previously incurred for the acquisition and renovation of 
the Nick W. Blom Salida Regional Library (the "Series 2004B Project" and, collectively with Series 
2004A Project, the "Project"). The Project is described below. 

Gallo Center for the Arts. The Gallo Center for the Arts will consist of two performance halls, 
the Mary Stuart Rogers Theater, which will seat 1,200, and the Foster Family Theater, which will seat 
400. Parking for the Gallo Center for the Arts will be available within the 12th Street Parking Garage and 
at other existing downtown parking structures. Construction of the Gallo Center for the Arts is expected 
to begin Spring 2004 and is expected to be completed in Spring 2006. The Gallo Center for the Arts site 
occupies approximately three-quarters of the city block bounded by 10th and 11th Streets, 'H' and 'I' 
Streets in downtown Modesto, California, with the remainder of the block occupied by the 801 11th 
Street Building, which is occupied by County personnel and constitutes a portion of the Series 2004B 
Property leased under the Series 2004B Lease Agreement. The County acquired the Gallo Center for the 
Arts site, and the entire city-block on which it is located, in the late 1990's. 

The total cost of the Gallo Center for the Arts is estimated to be approximately $34.9 million, 
which is expected to be financed as follows: approximately $12.5 million to be funded from the proceeds 
of the Series 2004A Certificates; approximately $2.5 million to be funded by the County through land 
contribution; approximately $200,000 to be funded by the City of Modesto and approximately 
$19.7 million to be funded by the Central Valley Center for the Arts, Inc., a 501(c)(3) nonprofit 
corporation organized to support the arts in the County and Gallo Center for the Arts, LLC, a single 
member LLC that is wholly-owned by CVCA (collectively "CVCA"), through the issuance of conduit 
revenue bonds and a cash contribution, which will be deposited with the County prior to the delivery of 
the Certificates. 

The Gallo Center for the Arts will be constructed and owned by the County and will be operated 
by CVCA under a separate operating agreement, dated February 17, 2004, by and between the County 
and CVCA. CVCA has hired an executive director and staff to manage the programming and operations 
of the Gallo Center for the Arts. 

11th Street Office and Parking Garage. The 12th Street Office and Parking Garage will include 
a six-story office building of approximately 89,000 square feet and an adjoining 711-space parking garage 
structure. Construction of the 12th Street Office and Parking Garage is expected to begin in April 2004 
and to be completed in April 2005. The total cost of the 12th Street Office and Parking Garage is 
estimated to be approximately $22 million which is expected to be financed as follows: $17 million to be 
funded from the proceeds of the Series 2004B Certificates and approximately $5 million to be funded by 
the Stanislaus County Employees' Retirement Association ("StanCERA") and Westland Development 
Company, LLC ("Westland"}, which will be deposited with the County prior to the delivery of the 
Certificates. 

The 12th Street Office building will be owned by the County, StanCERA and Westland. A 
condominium agreement between the three parties identifies the ownership as follows: the ground level 
and second floor of the 12th Street Office will be owned by Westland and will be occupied by retail 
tenants; the third, fourth and fifth stories of the 12th Street Office will be owned and occupied by the 
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County and will be used primarily as new office space for the District Attorney's Office and the sixth 
floor of the 12th Street Office will be owned and occupied by StanCERA for its offices. The 12th Street 
Office is not a component of the Series 2004B Lease Agreement. 

The 12th Street Parking Garage will consist of a seven-level, 711-space parking structure 
immediately adjacent to the 12th Street Office building. The 12th Street Parking Garage will provide 
weekday, daytime parking for 508 County employee and official vehicles and, through parking license 
agreement, 103 spaces for use by the retail space tenants and customers and 56 spaces for use by 
StanCERA for its employees, tenants and customers. Forty-four spaces will be available for daytime 
public parking. The 12th Street Parking Garage will be available during evenings and weekends for 
public use to support the Gallo Center for the Arts and other downtown businesses as the gate-controlled 
area will be opened. The County will manage the 12th Street Parking Garage operations. 

Nick W. Blom Salida Regional Library. In 2001, the County purchased a 56,000 square foot 
retail building at 4835 Sisk Road in Salida (at Highway 99 near Broadway Avenue) for $4.3 million. The 
building formerly housed a furniture store and was constructed in 1979. The building was renovated into 
a regional library, community room and office space through a design and remodel at a cost of $2.35 
million, financed by the County and completed in spring of 2003. The Nick W. Blom Salida Regional 
Library (the "Library") opened to the public on April 29, 2003. A portion of the Series 2004B 
Certificates will be used to reimburse the County for the costs of the acquisition and renovation of the 
Library. 

The Library provides roughly 25,000 square feet of public space, another 15,000 square feet of 
library material preparation and distribution facilities, 5,000 square feet within a multipurpose community 
room and kitchenette, and another 6,000 square feet reserved for future expansion and includes a public 
lobby, public restrooms and a small storage mezzanine. In addition to the purchase and renovation cost, 
the County plans to spend an aggregate of $1.8 million to acquire library shelving and furnishings, 
computers, new circulation materials, signage and other enhancements. This amount will include a 
secondary project to upgrade and renovate the remaining portions of the property at an approximate cost 
of $770,000, which is to be considered by the County's Board of Supervisors in early 2004. 

The Property 

The County will lease the Gallo Center for the Arts under the Series 2004A Lease Agreement 
(the "Series 2004A Property") and the 12th Street Parking Garage, the Nick W. Blom Salida Regional 
Library, the Stanislaus County Men's Jail and the 801 11th Street Building under the Series 2004B Lease 
(collectively, the "Series 2004B Property", and together with the Series 2004A Property, the "Property") 
from the Authority. The 12th Street Office is not a component of the Series 2004B Lease Agreement. 
The County may amend each Lease Agreement to release any portion of the respective Property or to 
substitute other property for the respective Property leased thereunder or any portion thereof leased 
thereunder upon compliance with all of the terms set forth in the respective Lease Agreement. See 
Appendix C - "Summary of Principal Legal Documents." 

The Series 2004A Property consists of the Gallo Center for the Arts. For a description of the 
Series 2004A Property, see "The Project- Gallo Center for the Arts" above. The Series 2004B Property 
consists of the 12th Street Parking Garage, the Nick W. Blom Salida Regional Library, the Stanislaus 
County Men's Jail and the 801 11th Street Building. For a description of the 12th Street Parking Garage 
and the Nick W. Blom Salida Regional Library, see "The Project- 12th Street Office and Parking Garage 
and the Nick W. Blom Salida Regional Library" above. The Stanislaus County Men's Jail and the 801 
11th Street Building are described below. The 12th Street Office is not a component of the Series 
2004B Lease Agreement. 
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Stanislaus County Men's Jail. The Stanislaus County Men's Jail (the "Jail"), consisting of three 
stories and a basement with a total aggregate area of 51,000 square feet, was originally constructed in 
1953. In 1970, the northwest wing of the third floor of the Jail was added and numerous repairs and 
upgrades to the Jail (such as HV AC, security systems, and alarms) have been made over the past several 
years, including, but not limited to, the installation of an exercise yard on the roof of the Jail. The Jail's 
construction is basically reinforced concrete, and is classified as Type 1 fire resistant construction. 

The Jail has a Board of Corrections rating for 333 beds, of which 296 are classified as 
medium/maximum security, and 37 are for minimum security inmate workers. The Jail is part of the 
County's detention system, with the majority of the County's detention capacity located at the Public 
Safety Center approximately four miles away from the Jail. The Jail is used primarily to accommodate 
pre-sentenced males due to its proximity to the Modesto Main Courthouse (the "Courthouse"), and acts as 
the security drive-in carport for transportation and holding of persons in custody between other jail 
facilities and the courts. The Courthouse itself does not contain holding facilities for persons in custody; 
thus making the Jail a necessary component of the system. 

The basement of the Jail includes a drive-in carport, laundry, general storage, and a main kitchen 
and the inmate workers' dining facility. The Jail and the Courthouse are connected by a basement-level 
tunnel passageway for the secured movement of persons in custody to and from court. The first floor of 
the Jail contains the booking and central control area, a medical treatment room, the main lobby, offices 
for the jail division and 14 non-contact visiting booths. Two detention areas are located on the first floor, 
as well as a large dormitory for inmate workers (which houses approximately 37 people), a second area 
with two holding cells, two safety cells, detoxification cell, ten single cells and three cells. The second 
floor of the Jail has approximately ten multi-person cells housing 12 people each, 25 single person cells, 
two attorney visiting rooms, the inmate library, the barber shop, clothing storage and an officers' station 
while the third floor has 29 single cells, two cells that can accommodate four people each, nine cells that 
hold six people each, one ten person cell, and three 12 person cells, and a law library. While there is no 
public parking on the Jail site, 32 secured parking spaces are available in a courtyard between the Jail and 
the Courthouse. 

801 11th Street Building. The 801 11th Street Building (the "Building") was originally 
developed by the City of Modesto between 1960 and 1961 and consisted of three floors and a basement. 
A fourth floor was added in the 1977, providing a total of 47,560 gross square feet (42,312 net usable 
square feet). The Building's construction consists of a steel frame with concrete walls and decking. A 
majority of the Building's exterior walls are glass window panels, and the 10th and 11th Street facing 
walls have concrete block panels up to the third level. The Building's basement has concrete wall 
exterior, and the roof mounted mechanical room is basically brick face construction. The Building is 
class A-B, mostly fire resistant. 

The County acquired the Building, and the entire city-block on which it is located in the late 
1990's. The Building occupies approximately one quarter of the block, with the remainder of the property 
designated as the site of the Gallo Center for the Arts (see "The Project- Gallo Center for the Arts" 
above). In 2003, the County extensively remodeled the Building's interior, removing the majority of 
interior walls to provide for greater open-office environment and greater space utilization. The Building 
underwent maintenance and upgrade, which included the replacement of the heating, ventilation and 
cooling (HV AC) systems, data and telecommunications systems and fire protection (sprinkler system). 
The Building's restrooms were enlarged to provide greater accessibility, and new flooring, ceilings and 
lighting were added corresponding to the new tenant needs. 

The County's Family Court (Superior Court Department 16) andjudge's chambers are located on 
the basement level of the Building while the County Probation Department's Adult Division is now 
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located in the basement and first and second floors of the Building. The basement also houses staff for 
the Sheriffs Civil Division and the Guardian ad Litem Division. Family Court staff from the Department 
of Child Support Services and the District Attorney, plus the Sheriffs Alternative Work Program are now 
located on the third floor of the Building while the County's Strategic Business Technology functions 
(Management Information Systems) are located on the fourth floor, along with various meeting and 
training rooms. 

THE CERTIFICATES 

General 

The Certificates will be executed and delivered in book-entry form only and, when delivered, will 
be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New 
York ("DTC"), which will act as securities depository for the Certificates. Individual purchases of the 
Certificates will be made in book-entry form only. Purchasers of the Certificates will not receive 
Certificates representing their ownership interests in the Certificates purchased. The Certificates will be 
executed and delivered in the principal amount of $5,000 and any integral multiple thereof. Interest 
represented by the Certificates is payable semiannually on March 1 and September 1 of each year, 
commencing on September 1, 2004. Principal and interest payments (and prepayment price) due with 
respect to the Certificates are payable directly to OTC by BNY Western Trust Company, as Trustee. 
Upon receipt of payments of principal and interest (and prepayment price), OTC will in turn distribute 
such payments to the beneficial owners of the Certificates. See "Appendix G- "OTC and the Book-Entry 
System." 

Prepayment 

Extraordinarv Preoavment. The Certificates of each Series are subject to prepayment prior to 
their respective maturity dates on any date, in whole or in part, from Net Proceeds related to such Series 
which the Trustee shall deposit in the Prepayment Fund as provided in the related Lease Agreement at 
least 45 days prior to the date fixed for prepayment and credited towards the prepayment made by the 
County pursuant to the related Lease Agreement, at a prepayment price equal to the principal amount 
thereof together with accrued interest to the date fixed for prepayment, without premium. 

Optional Prepayment. The Series 2004A Certificates maturing on or after September 1, 2013 are 
subject to prepayment prior to maturity in whole or in part on any date on or after September 1, 2012, at 
the option of the County, in the event the County exercises its option under the Series 2004A Lease 
Agreement to prepay all or a portion of the principal component of the Series 2004A Lease Payments (in 
integral multiples of $5,000), at a prepayment price equal to the principal component to be prepaid, plus 
accrued interest to the date fixed for prepayment: 

Prepayment Period 

September 1, 2012 to August 31, 2013 
September 1, 2013 and thereafter 

Prepayment Price 

101% 
100 

In the event the County gives notice to the Trustee of its intention to exercise such option, but 
fails to deposit with the Trustee on or prior to the prepayment date an amount equal to the prepayment 
price, the County will continue to pay the Series 2004A Lease Payments as if no such notice had been 
given. 
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The Series 2004B Certificates maturing on or after September 1, 2013 are subject to prepayment 
prior to maturity in whole or in part on any date on or after September 1, 2012, at the option of the 
County, in the event the County exercises its option under the Series 2004B Lease Agreement to prepay 
all or a portion of the principal component of the Series 2004B Lease Payments (in integral multiples of 
$5,000), at a prepayment price equal to the principal component to be prepaid, plus accrued interest to the 
date fixed for prepayment: 

Prepayment Period 

September 1, 2012 to August 31, 2013 
September 1, 2013 and thereafter 

Prepayment Price 

101% 
100 

In the event the County gives notice to the Trustee of its intention to exercise such option, but 
fails to deposit with the Trustee on or prior to the prepayment date an amount equal to the prepayment 
price, the County will continue to pay the Series 2004B Lease Payments as if no such notice had been 
given. 

Mandatory Sinking Account Prepayment. The Series 2004A Certificates maturing 
September 1, 2019 (the "Series 2004A 2019 Term Certificates") are subject to prepayment in part by lot, 
on September 1 in each of the following years from sinking account payments as set forth below at a 
prepayment price equal to the principal amount thereof to be prepaid, without premium; provided, 
however, that if some but not all of the Series 2004A 2019 Term Certificates have been prepaid pursuant 
to an optional or extraordinary prepayment, the total amount of all future sinking account payments will 
be reduced as nearly as practicable on a pro rata basis in integral multiples of $5,000 by the aggregate 
principal amount of the Series 2004A 2019 Term Certificates so prepaid. In addition, in lieu of 
prepayment thereof, the Series 2004A 2019 Term Certificates may be purchased by the County and 
tendered to the Trustee pursuant to the provisions of the Series 2004A Trust Agreement. 

Prepayment Date 
(September 1) 

2018 
2019t 

t Final Maturity 

10 

Mandatory Sinking 
Account 

Prepayment 

$800,000 
835,000 



The Series 2004A Certificates maturing September 1, 2025 (the "Series 2004A 2025 Term 
Certificates") are subject to prepayment in part by lot, on September 1 in each of the following years from 
sinking account payments as set forth below at a prepayment price equal to the principal amount thereof 
to be prepaid, without premium; provided, however, that if some but not all of the Series 2004A 2025 
Term Certificates have been prepaid pursuant to an optional or extraordinary prepayment, the total 
amount of all future sinking account payments will be reduced as nearly as practicable on a pro rata basis 
in integral multiples of $5,000 by the aggregate principal amount of the Series 2004A 2025 Term 
Certificates so prepaid. In addition, in lieu of prepayment thereof, the Series 2004A 2025 Term 
Certificates may be purchased by the County and tendered to the Trustee pursuant to the provisions of the 
Series 2004A Trust Agreement. 

Prepayment Date 
{September 1) 

2023 
2024 
2025t 

t Final Maturity 

Mandatory Sinking 
Account 

Prepayment 

$ 985,000 
1,025,000 
1,070,000 

The Series 2004B Certificates maturing September 1, 2019 (the "Series 2004B 2019 Term 
Certificates") are subject to prepayment in part by lot, on September 1 in each of the following years from 
sinking account payments as set forth below at a prepayment price equal to the principal amount thereof 
to be prepaid, without premium; provided, however, that if some but not all of the Series 2004B 2019 
Term Certificates have been prepaid pursuant to an optional or extraordinary prepayment, the total 
amount of all future sinking account payments will be reduced as nearly as practicable on a pro rata basis 
in integral multiples of $5,000 by the aggregate principal amount of the Series 2004B 2019 Term 
Certificates so prepaid. In addition, in lieu of prepayment thereof, the Series 2004B 2019 Term 
Certificates may be purchased by the County and tendered to the Trustee pursuant to the provisions of the 
Series 20048 Trust Agreement. 

Prepayment Date 
(September 1) 

2018 
2019t 

t Final Maturity 

11 

Mandatory Sinking 
Account 

Prepayment 

$1,440,000 
1,485,000 



The Series 2004B Certificates maturing September 1, 2025 (the "Series 2004B 2025 Term 
Certificates") are subject to prepayment in part by lot, on September 1 in each of the following years from 
sinking account payments as set forth below at a prepayment price equal to the principal amount thereof 
to be prepaid, without premium; provided, however, that if some but not all of the Series 2004B 2025 
Term Certificates have been prepaid pursuant to an optional or extraordinary prepayment, the total 
amount of all future sinking account payments will be reduced as nearly as practicable on a pro rata basis 
in integral multiples of $5,000 by the aggregate principal amount of the Series 2004B 2025 Term 
Certificates so prepaid. In addition, in lieu of prepayment thereof, the Series 20048 2025 Term 
Certificates may be purchased by the County and tendered to the Trustee pursuant to the provisions of the 
Series 2004B Trust Agreement. 

Prepayment Date 
(September 1) 

2023 
2024 
2025t 

t Final Maturity 

Mandatory Sinking 
Account 

Prepayment 

$1,755,000 
1,835,000 
1,915,000 

Selection of Certificates for Prepayment. Whenever provision is made in the Trust Agreements 
for the optional prepayment of Certificates and less than all Outstanding Certificates are called for 
optional prepayment, the Trustee shall select Certificates for optional prepayment from among maturities 
selected by the County and by lot within any maturity. For extraordinary prepayment of Certificates 
pursuant to the Trust Agreements, the Trustee shall select Certificates for prepayment pro rata among 
maturities and by lot within any maturity. The Trustee shall promptly notify the County and the 
Authority in writing of the Certificates so selected for prepayment by mailing to the County and the 
Authority copies of the notice of prepayment provided for in the Trust Agreements. 

Notice of Preoavment. When prepayment is authorized or required pursuant to the Trust 
Agreements, the Trustee shall give notice of the prepayment of the applicable Certificates. Such notice 
shall specify: (a) the prepayment date, (b) the prepayment price, (c) if less than all of the Outstanding 
Certificates of a maturity are to be prepaid, the Certificate numbers ( and in the case of partial prepayment, 
the respective principal amounts), (d) the CUSIP numbers of the Certificates to be prepaid, (e) the place 
or places where the prepayment will be made, (f) the original date of execution and delivery of the 
Certificates, and (g) any other descriptive information regarding the Certificates needed to identify 
accurately the Certificates being prepaid. Such notice shall further state that on the specified date there 
shall become due and payable upon each Certificate to be prepaid, the portion of the principal amount of 
such Certificate to be prepaid, together with interest accrued to said date, and that from and after such 
date, provided that moneys therefor have been deposited with the Trustee, interest with respect thereto 
shall cease to accrue and be payable. 

Notice of such prepayment shall be sent by first class mail or delivery service postage prepaid, or 
by telecopy or by such other method acceptable to such institutions, to the municipal Securities 
Depository (as defined in the Trust Agreements) on the date of mailing of notice to the Owners by first 
class mail and to the Information Services (as defined below) that disseminate securities redemption 
notices, on the date notice is mailed to the Owners and by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the 
Authority and the respective Owners of any Certificates designated for prepayment at their addresses 
appearing on the Certificate registration books, at least thirty (30) days, but not more than sixty (60) days, 
prior to the prepayment date; provided that neither failure to receive such notice nor any defect in any 
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notice so mailed shall affect the sufficiency of the proceedings for the prepayment of such Certificates. 
Under no circumstances shall the Trustee have any liability to any party for any inaccurate CUSIP 
number. 

In addition, notice of such prepayment shall also be sent by certified mail, overnight delivery 
service, facsimile transmission or other secure means, postage prepaid, to all municipal registered 
Securities Depositories and to at least two of the national information services (the "Information 
Services") that disseminate securities prepayment notices, when possible, at least two (2) days prior to the 
mailing of notices required by the first paragraph above, and in any event no later than simultaneously 
with the mailing of notices required by the frrst paragraph above; provided, that neither failure to receive 
such notice nor any defect in any notice so mailed shall affect the sufficiency of the proceedings for the 
prepayment of such Certificates. 

Partial Prepayment of Certificates. Upon surrender by the Owner of a Certificate for partial 
prepayment at the Principal Office, payment of such partial prepayment of the principal amount of a 
Certificate will be paid to such Owner. Upon surrender of any Certificate prepaid in part only, the 
Trustee shall execute and deliver to the registered Owner thereof, at the expense of the County, a new 
Certificate or Certificates which shall be of authorized denominations equal in principal amount to the 
unprepaid portion of the Certificate surrendered and of the same tenor and maturity. Such partial 
prepayment shall be valid upon payment of the amount thereby required to be paid to such Owner, and 
the County, the Authority and the Trustee shall be released and discharged from all liability to the extent 
of such payment. 

Effect of Prepayment. Notice having been given to the Owners of the Certificates as required 
under the Trust Agreement, and the moneys for the prepayment (including, the interest to the applicable 
date of prepayment), having, been set aside in the applicable Prepayment Fund, the Certificates shall 
become due and payable on said date of prepayment, and, upon presentation and surrender thereof at the 
Principal Office, said Certificates shall be paid at the prepayment price with respect thereto, plus interest 
accrued and unpaid to said date of prepayment. 

If, on said date of prepayment, moneys for the prepayment of all the Certificates to be prepaid, 
together with interest to said date of prepayment, shall be held by the Trustee so as to be available 
therefor on such date of prepayment, and, if notice of prepayment thereof shall have been given as 
aforesaid, then, from and after said date of prepayment, interest with respect to the Certificates to be 
prepaid shall cease to accrue and become payable. All moneys held by or on behalf of the Trustee for the 
prepayment of Certificates shall be held in trust for the account of the Owners of the Certificates so to be 
prepaid, without liability for interest thereon. 

All Certificates paid at maturity or prepaid prior to maturity pursuant to the Trust Agreements 
shall be cancelled upon surrender thereof and destroyed. 

SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE CERTIFICATES 

General 

Each Series of the Certificates is separately secured by its related Lease Payments and 
under its related Trust Agreement and Lease Agreement. The Owners of one Series of Certificates 
will have no claim on the revenues or funds securing the other Series of Certificates or on other 
amounts held under the Trust Agreement for the other Series. Nothing within this Official 
Statement is intended to imply that there exists any cross-application or cross-collateralization 
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between Series, including, but not limited to, any cross-defaults between the respective Trust 
Agreements. 

Under each Lease Agreement, the obligation of the County to make Lease Payments is 
subject to and dependent upon its beneficial use and occupancy of the related Property. Each 
Series of Certificates will be obligations payable solely from certain pledged revenues under the 
related Trust Agreement, including Lease Payments made pursuant to the related Lease 
Agreement. 

Lease Payments 

The Certificates of a Series evidence a direct, :fractional undivided interest in the Lease Payments 
to be made by the County under the Lease Agreement related to such Series. The County is required 
under the Lease Agreements to make Lease Payments from legally available funds. The County has 
covenanted in the Lease Agreements to take such action as may be necessary to include all Lease 
Payments and Additional Payments with respect to the Property in its annual budget and to make the 
necessary annual appropriations therefor ( except to the extent such payments are abated). Lease 
Payments are scheduled to be paid as set forth below. See "-Lease Payment Schedule" herein. 

The Trustee, pursuant to the Lease Agreement, the Assignment Agreement and the Trust 
Agreement for a Series, will receive Lease Payments related to such Series for the benefit of the Owners 
of such Series. Lease Payments are scheduled to be sufficient to pay, when due, amounts designated as 
principal and interest with respect to the Certificates. The Trustee will not have any obligation or liability 
to the Owners to make payment of principal, premium, if any, or interest with respect to a Series of 
Certificates except from Lease Payments paid by the County under the related Lease Agreement or other 
amounts available to it under the related Trust Agreement for such purposes; and the amounts of such 
payments shall be limited to amounts designated as principal and interest with respect to the Certificates. 
Additional Payments payable by the County under the Lease Agreements include amounts sufficient to 
pay certain taxes and assessments, insurance premiums, and certain administrative costs. Lease Payments 
and Additional Payments are subject to abatement in the event of material damage to, or destruction or 
condemnation of, or title defect with respect to, the Property. See "-Abatement" herein. The County is 
also responsible for the repair and maintenance of the Property to the extent provided in the Lease 
Agreements. See Appendix C - "Summary of Principal Legal Documents - Definitions and Summary of 
Certain Provisions of the Lease - Covenants with Respect to the Property- Maintenance, Utilities, Taxes 
and Assessments." 

Subject to the provisions of the Lease Agreements relating to abatement more particularly 
described herein, the Lease Agreements provide that the obligation of the County to pay Lease Payments 
and Additional Payments shall be absolute and unconditional, free and clear of any expenses, charges or 
set-offs whatsoever and notwithstanding any dispute between the County and the Authority. 

There is no remedy of acceleration of Lease Payments and Additional Payments over the term of 
the Lease Agreements. See "Risk Factors- Default; No Acceleration" herein. 

THE OBLIGATION OF THE COUNTY TO MAKE THE LEASE PAYMENTS DOES NOT 
CONSTITUTE A DEBT OF THE COUNTY OR OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA OR OF ANY 
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL OR 
STATUTORY DEBT LIMIT OR RESTRICTION, AND DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN 
OBLIGATION FOR WIDCH THE COUNTY OR THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA IS OBLIGATED TO 
LEVY OR PLEDGE ANY FORM OF TAXATION OR FOR WHICH THE COUNTY OR THE STATE 
OF CALIFORNIA HAS LEVIED OR PLEDGED ANY FORM OF TAXATION. 
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Lease Payment Schedule 

The Lease Agreements require semi-annual payments to the Trustee, as assignee of the Authority, 
each February 15 and August 15, commencing August 15, 2004 (or if such day is not a Business Day, the 
next succeeding Business Day). Pursuant to the Trust Agreements and the Lease Agreements, the Lease 
Payments will be deposited in the Lease Payment Fund and applied to principal and interest payments 
with respect to the Certificates. Pursuant to the Lease Agreements, any amount held in the Lease 
Payment Fund for a Series of Certificates on any Lease Payment Date ( other than as provided in the Trust 
Agreements) shall be credited towards the Lease Payment then due and payable with respect to such 
Series. No Lease Payment shall be made on any Lease Payment Date if the amounts then held in the 
related Lease Payment Fund ( other than those amounts excluded under the related Trust Agreement) are 
at least equal to the Lease Payment then required to be paid. A table of aggregate semi-annual Lease 
Payments due under the Lease Agreements and payable with respect to the Certificates is set forth on the 
following page. 
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LEASE PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

Payment Series 2004A Series 2004A Series 20048 Series 20048 
Dates Principal Interest(!) Principal Interesf1

) Total 

8/15/04 $219,773.68 $393,296.90 $613,070.58 
2/15/05 272,822.50 488,230.63 761,053.13 
8/15/05 272,822.50 488,230.63 761,053.13 
2/15/06 272,822.50 488,230.63 761,053.13 
8/15/06 $580,000.00 272,822.50 $1,040,000.00 488,230.63 2,381,053.13 
2/15/07 268,110.00 479,780.64 747,890.64 
8/15/07 590,000.00 268,110.00 1,055,000.00 479,780.64 2,392,890.64 
2/15/08 261,841.25 468,571.26 730,412.51 
8/15/08 595,000.00 261,841.25 1,070,000.00 468,571.26 2,395,412.51 
2/15/09 255,519.38 457,202.51 712,721.89 
8/15/09 610,000.00 255,519.37 1,090,000.00 457,202.51 2,412,721.88 
2/15/10 248,656.88 444,940.01 693,596.89 
8/15/10 620,000.00 248,656.87 1,115,000.00 444,940.01 2,428,596.88 
2/15/11 240,519.38 430,305.63 670,825.01 
8/15/11 640,000.00 240,519.37 1,140,000.00 430,305.63 2,450,825.00 
2/15/12 230,919.38 413,205.63 644,125.01 
8/15/12 655,000.00 230,919.37 1,175,000.00 413,205.63 2,474,125.00 
2115/13 221,094.38 395,580.63 616,675.01 
8/15/13 675,000.00 221,094.37 1,205,000.00 395,580.63 2,496,675.00 
2/15/14 210,125.63 375,999.38 586,125.01 
8/15/14 700,000.00 210,125.62 1,245,000.00 375,999.38 2,531,125.00 
2/15/15 197,875.63 354,211.88 552,087.51 
8/15/15 720,000.00 197,875.62 1,295,000.00 354,211.88 2,567,087.50 
2/15/16 184,915.63 330,901.88 515,817.51 
8/15/16 750,000.00 184,915.62 1,340,000.00 330,901.88 2,605,817.50 
2/15/17 171,040.63 306,111.88 477,152.51 
8/15/17 775,000.00 171,040.62 1,390,000.00 306,111.88 2,642,152.50 
2/15/18 156,315.63 279,701.88 436,017.51 
8/15/18 800,000.00(2) 156,315.62 1,440,000.00(2) 279,701.88 2,676,017.50 
2/15/19 140,315.63 250,901.88 391,217.51 
8/15/19 835,000.00(2) 140,315.62 1,485,000.00(2

) 250,901.88 2,711,217.50 
2/15/20 123,615.63 221,201.88 344,817.51 
8/15/20 870,000.00 123,615.62 1,555,000.00 221,201.88 2,769,817.50 
2/15/21 105,780.63 189,324.38 295,105.01 
8/15/21 905,000.00 105,780.62 1,620,000.00 189,324.38 2,820,105.00 
2/15/22 87,115.00 155,911.88 243,026.88 
8/15/22 940,000.00 87,115.00 1,690,000.00 155,911.88 2,873,026.88 
2/15/23 67,375.00 120,421.88 187,796.88 
8/15/23 985,000.oo<2

) 67,375.00 1,755,000.00(2) 120,421.88 2,927,796.88 
2/15/24 45,828.13 82,031.26 127,859.39 
8/15/24 1,025,000.00(2) 45,828.12 1,835,000.00(2

) 82,031.26 2,987,859.38 
2/15/25 23,406.25 41,890.64 65,296.89 
8/15/25 1,070,000.00(2

) 23,406.25 1,915,000.00(2) 41,890.64 3,050,296.89 
Total $15,340,000.00 $7,791,803.68 $27,455,000.00 $13,942,613.44 $64,529,417.12 

(J) Interest with respect to the Series 2004A Lease Payments and the Series 20048 Lease Payments will be paid from 
cafitalized interest held under the related Trust Agreement through September I, 2006. 
<
2 These payments represent mandatory sinking fund payments of the Certificates as described herein. See The Certificates -

Prepayment - Mandatory Sinking Account Prepayment." 
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Insurance 

The Lease Agreements require the County to maintain or cause to be maintained, throughout the 
term of the Lease Agreements, a standard comprehensive general liability insurance policy or policies in 
protection of the County and its respective officers, agents and employees. Said policy or policies shall 
provide for indemnification of said parties against direct or contingent loss or liability for damages for 
bodily and personal injury, death or property damage occasioned by reason of the use or ownership of the 
Property as provided in the Lease Agreements. 

The Lease Agreements require the County to maintain or cause to be maintained, throughout the 
term of the Lease Agreements, workers' compensation insurance as provided in the Lease Agreements. 

The Lease Agreements also require the County to maintain or cause to be maintained casualty 
insurance insuring the Property against fire, lightning and all other risks covered by an extended coverage 
endorsement (excluding earthquake and flood) to the full replacement value of the Property, subject to a 
not to exceed $250,000 deductible provision, unless a higher deductible is acceptable to the Insurer. The 
Lease Agreements defme full replacement value as the actual replacement cost of the improvements 
constituting the Property. 

The Lease Agreements require the County to maintain rental interruption insurance in an amount 
not less than the maximum remaining scheduled Lease Payments in any future 24-month period to cover 
the Authority's loss, total or partial, of Lease Payments resulting from the loss, total or partial, of the use 
of any part of the Property as a result of any of the hazards required to be covered pursuant to pursuant to 
the Lease Agreements. The County may not self-insure its rental interruption obligation. 

Finally, the County must provide, at its own expense, one or more ALTA title insurance policies 
for the Property in the an amount equal to the aggregate amount of principal evidenced by the Certificates 
and Additional Certificates Outstanding as required by the Lease Agreements. See Appendix C­
"Summary of Principal Legal Documents- Defmitions and Summary of Certain Provisions of the Lease­
Insurance." 

Abatement 

In the Event of Non-completion. To the extent described below, the amount of Lease Payments 
and Additional Payments due under a Lease Agreement shall be abated during any period in which by 
reason of delay in the completion of the Project described in such Lease Agreement beyond the 
completion date set forth therein there is substantial interference with the County's use and occupancy of 
the Project. The amount of such abatement shall be such that the resulting Lease Payments and 
Additional Payments do not exceed the fair rental value ( as determined by an independent real estate 
appraiser selected by the County, who may not be an employee of the County) for the use and occupancy 
of the Property and the completed portions of the improvements constituting the Project leased therein. 
Such abatement shall continue until the substantial completion of the related Project. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, the County shall remain obligated to make Lease Payments and Additional Payments under the 
related Lease Agreement to the extent there are proceeds of any completion or performance bonds or 
moneys patd to the County by the contractors or any other person as liquidated damages as a result of any 
defect or delay in completion of the related Project or to the extent that amounts in the Reserve Fund for 
the related Series of Certificates are available to pay Lease Payments and Additional Payments which 
would otherwise be abated. Any amounts received by the County as liquidated damages for a delay in the 
completion of the Project shall be deposited by the County immediately upon receipt in the applicable 
Lease Payment Fund. 
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In the Event of Damage, Destruction, Condemnation or Title Defect. Except to the extent that 
proceeds of the type described in the following paragraph are available, the amount of Lease Payments 
and Additional Payments related to a Series shall be abated during any period in which by reason of 
damage, destruction or taking by eminent domain or condemnation of the Property related to a Series or 
defects in the title with respect to such Property there is substantial interference with the use and 
possession of all or a portion of such Property by the County. The amount of such abatement shall be 
such that the resulting Lease Payments, exclusive of the amounts described in the following paragraph, do 
not exceed the fair rental value (as determined by an independent real estate appraiser selected by the 
County, who is not an employee of the County) for the use and possession of the portion of the Property 
not damaged, destroyed, interfered with or taken. Such abatement shall continue for the period 
commencing with such damage, destruction, interference or taking and ending with the substantial 
completion of the replacement or work of repair or the removal of the title defect causing such 
interference with use. Except as provided in the Lease Agreement, in the event of any such damage, 
destruction, interference or taking, the related Lease Agreement shall continue in full force and effect and 
the County waives any right to terminate the related Lease Agreement by virtue of any such damage, 
destruction, interference or taking. 

Notwithstanding a substantial interference with the use and possession of all or a portion of the 
Property, the County shall remain obligated to make Lease Payments which would otherwise be abated (i) 
to the extent that moneys derived from any person as a result of any delay in the reconstruction, 
replacement or repair of the Property, or any portion thereof, are available to pay the amount which would 
otherwise be abated; and (ii) to the extent that moneys are available in the Reserve Fund or the Lease 
Payment Fund for the related Series of Certificates to pay the amount which would otherwise be abated. 
The Lease Payments shall be payable from such amounts paid under (i) and (ii) above as an obligation of 
the County payable from a special fund. See Appendix C- "Summary of Principal Legal Documents­
Definitions and Summary of Certain Provisions of the Lease - Abatement of Lease Payments in Event of 
Loss ofUse." 

An event of abatement under one Lease Agreement will not cause an abatement under the other 
Lease Agreement. 

Reserve Funds 

Pursuant to the Trust Agreements, the Trustee must establish and maintain a Reserve Fund under 
each Trust Agreement until all related Lease Payments are paid in full pursuant to the respective Lease 
Agreement and until the first date upon which the related Series of Certificates are no longer Outstanding. 
The moneys in the respective Reserve Fund and any respective Reserve Facility must be held in trust by 
the Trustee for the benefit of the Owners of the Series of Certificates with respect to which such Reserve 
Fund was established and used and disbursed only for the purposes and uses authorized in the respective 
Trust Agreement. See Appendix C- "Summary of Principal Legal Documents- Definitions and Summary 
of Certain Provisions of the Trust Agreements - Reserve Fund." 

Substitution or Release of Property 

Under the Lease Agreements, the County shall have the right to substitute alternate real property 
for any portion of the Property described in the Lease Agreements or to release a portion of the Property 
from the lien of the Lease Agreements by satisfying the conditions set forth in the Lease Agreements, 
including prior written notice to the Insurer and a certificate from an independent California Certified 
General or equivalent certified real estate appraiser that the substituted property or the Property remaining 
after the release has a fair rental value greater than or equal to the Lease Payments thereafter becoming 
due and payable under the related Lease Agreement. All costs and expenses incurred in connection with 
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such substitution or release shall be borne by the County. Notwithstanding any substitution pursuant to a 
Lease Agreement, there shall be no reduction in or abatement of the Lease Payments due from the County 
under such Lease Agreement as a result of such substitution. See Appendix C- "Summary of Principal 
Legal Documents- Defmitions and Summary of Certain Provisions of the Lease - Substitution or Release 
of the Property." 

Additional Certificates 

Subsequent to the execution and delivery by the Trustee of the Certificates, the Trustee shall, 
upon written request or requests of the County Representative and of the Authority Representative, 
execute and deliver from time to time one or more series of Additional Certificates pursuant to a Trust 
Agreement in such aggregate principal amount as may be set forth in such written request or requests, 
provided that there shall have been compliance with all of the following conditions pursuant to the related 
Trust Agreement: 

(a) The parties to the Trust Agreement shall have executed a supplemental agreement which 
(i) sets forth the terms and provisions of such Additional Certificates, including the establishment of such 
funds and accounts, which may be separate and apart from the funds and accounts established under the 
related Trust Agreement for the Certificates, as shall be necessary or appropriate, and (ii) requires that 
prior to the delivery of such Additional Certificates the Reserve Requirement with respect to such 
Additional Certificates shall be on deposit in the Reserve Fund established under the related Trust 
Agreement or in a reserve fund established under such supplemental agreement; 

(b) The scheduled principal and interest payable with respect to such Additional Certificates 
shall be payable only on Interest Payment Dates applicable to the Certificates; 

(c) The related Lease Agreement shall have been amended, if necessary, to (i) increase or 
adjust the Lease Payments due and payable on each Lease Payment Date to an amount sufficient to pay 
the principal, premium (if any) and interest payable with respect to all Outstanding Certificates under the 
related Trust Agreement, including all Additional Certificates as and when the same mature or become 
due and payable ( except to the extent such principal, premium and interest may be payable out of moneys 
then in the Reserve Fund or otherwise on deposit with the Trustee in accordance with the related Trust 
Agreement), (ii) if appropriate, amend the defmition of "Property" to include as part of the Property all or 
any portion of additions, betterments, extensions, improvements or replacements, or such other real or 
personal property (whether or not located upon the Property as such Property is constituted as of the date 
of such Trust Agreement), to be fmanced, acquired or constructed by the preparation, execution and 
delivery of such Additional Certificates, and (iii) make such other revisions to the Lease Agreement as are 
necessitated by the execution and delivery of such Additional Certificates (provided, however, that such 
other revisions shall not prejudice the rights of the Owners of Outstanding Certificates under the related 
Trust Agreement as granted them under the terms of such Trust Agreement); 

( d) There shall have been delivered to the Trustee a counterpart of the amendments required 
by the related Trust Agreement; 

( e) The Trustee shall have received a certificate of the Authority Representative that there 
exists on the part of the Authority no Event of Default ( or any event which, once all notice or grace 
periods have passed, would constitute an Event of Default); 

(f) The Trustee shall have received a certificate of the County Representative that (i) there 
exists on the part of the County no Event of Default ( or any event which, once all notice or grace periods 
have passed, would constitute an Event of Default) and (ii) the Lease Payments as increased or adjusted 
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do not exceed in any year the fair rental value of the Property (as such term is defined in the amended 
Lease Agreement); 

(g) The Trustee shall have received an opinion of Special Counsel substantially to the effect 
that (i) said supplemental agreement and said amendments to the Lease Agreement comply in all respects 
with the requirements of the related Trust Agreement, (ii) said supplemental agreement and said 
amendments to the Lease Agreement have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by each of the 

· respective parties thereto (provided that said opinion of Special Counsel, in rendering the opinions set 
forth in this clause (ii), shall be entitled to rely upon one or more other opinions of counsel, including 
counsel to any of the respective parties to said supplemental agreement or said amendments to the Lease 
Agreement), (iii) assuming that no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, the related Trust 
Agreement, as amended by said supplemental agreement, and the related Lease Agreement, as amended 
by the respective amendments thereto, constitute the legal, valid and binding obligations of the respective 
parties thereto, enforceable against said parties in accordance with their respective terms ( except to the 
extent that enforcement thereof may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, debt adjustment 
or other laws affecting creditors' rights generally, and except to the extent that enforcement thereof may 
be limited by general principles of equity, regardless of whether enforcement is sought in a legal or 
equitable proceeding) and (iv) the execution of such supplemental agreement and said amendments to the 
related Lease Agreement, and performance by the parties thereunder, will not result in the inclusion of the 
interest portion of any Lease Payments payable with respect to the related Series of Certificates, including 
Additional Certificates, theretofore prepared, executed and delivered, in the gross income of such Owners 
of the Certificates for purposes of federal income taxation; 

(h) The County shall have provided the Insurer written notice of the proposed execution and 
delivery of such Additional Certificates at the addresses indicated in the related Trust Agreement and 
shall have received prior written consent of the Insurer with respect to such Additional Certificates; 
provided that any Additional Certificates being delivered to refund any outstanding Certificates shall not 
require the prior written consent of the Insurer if the aggregate maximum annual debt service with respect 
to the related Certificates and the Additional Certificates during any remaining year that such Certificates 
will be outstanding does not exceed maximum annual debt service with respect to such Certificates prior 
to such refunding. 

(i) There shall have been delivered to the Trustee an endorsement to or re issuance of the title 
insurance policy delivered under the related Lease Agreement providing that the insured amount is at 
least equal to the aggregate principal amount of all of the related Certificates and Additional Certificates 
outstanding upon the execution and delivery of such Additional Certificates; 

G) Upon the execution and delivery of such Additional Certificates, the amount on deposit in 
the related Reserve Fund shall be equal to the Reserve Requirement, ta1cing into account the execution of 
the Additional Certificates; and 

(k) Such other conditions shall have been satisfied, and such other instruments shall have 
been duly executed and delivered to the Trustee (with a copy to the Insurer), as the County or the 
Authority shall have reasonably requested. 

Upon delivery to the Trustee of the foregoing instruments, the Trustee shall cause to be executed and 
delivered Additional Certificates representing the aggregate principal amount specified in such 
supplemental agreement, and such Additional Certificates shall be equally and ratably secured with all 
Certificates, including any Additional Certificates, theretofore prepared, executed and delivered, all 
without preference, priority or distinction ( other than with respect to maturity, payment, prepayment or 
sinking fund payment (if any)) of any one Certificate, including Additional Certificates, over any other; 
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provided, however, that no provision of the Trust Agreements shall require the County to consent to or 
otherwise permit the preparation, execution and delivery of Additional Certificates, it being understood 
and agreed that any such consent or other action of the County to permit the preparation, execution and 
delivery of Additional Certificates, or lack thereof, shall be in the sole discretion of the County. See 
Appendix C- "Summary of Principal Legal Documents- Definitions and Summary of Certain Provisions 
of the Trust Agreements - Additional Certificates." 

THE INSURANCE POLICY AND THE INSURER 

The following information has been furnished by the Insurer for use in this Official Statement. 
Reference is made to Appendix E for a specimen of the Insurance Policy. 

Payment Pursuant to Insurance Policy 

Ambac Assurance has made a commitment to issue a financial guaranty insurance policy relating 
to each Series of Certificates (collectively, the 11Insurance Policy") effective as of the date of issuance of 
the Certificates. Under the terms of the Insurance Policy, Ambac Assurance will pay to The Bank of New 
York, in New York, New York or any successor thereto (the "Insurance Trustee") that portion of the 
principal of and interest on the obligations which shall become Due for Payment but shall be unpaid by 
reason of Nonpayment by the Obligor (as such terms are defined in the Insurance Policy). Ambac 
Assurance will make such payments to the Insurance Trustee on the later of the date on which such 
principal and interest becomes Due for Payment or within one business day following the date on which 
Ambac Assurance shall have received notice of Nonpayment from the Trustee/Paying Agent/Bond 
Registrar. The insurance will extend for the term of the Certificates and, once issued, cannot be canceled 
by Ambac Assurance. 

The Insurance Policy will insure payment only on stated maturity dates and on mandatory sinking 
fund installment dates, in the case of principal, and on stated dates for payment, in the case of interest. If 
the Certificates become subject to mandatory redemption and insufficient funds are available for 
redemption of all outstanding Certificates, Ambac Assurance will remain obligated to pay principal of 
and interest on outstanding Certificates on the originally scheduled interest and principal payment dates 
including mandatory sinking fund redemption dates. In the event of any acceleration of the principal of 
the Certificates, the insured payments will be made at such times and in such amounts as would have been 
made had there not been an acceleration. 

In the event the Trustee has notice that any payment of principal of or interest on an Certificate 
which has become Due for Payment and which is made to a Holder by or on behalf of the Obligor has 
been deemed a preferential transfer and theretofore recovered from its registered owner pursuant to the 
United States Bankruptcy Code in accordance with a final, nonappealable order of a court of competent 
jurisdiction, such registered owner will be entitled to payment from Ambac Assurance to the extent of 
such recovery if sufficient funds are not otherwise available. 

The Insurance Policy does not insure any risk other than Nonpayment, as defined in the Policy. 
Specifically, the Insurance Policy does not cover: 

1. payment on acceleration, as a result of a call for redemption ( other than mandatory 
sinking fund redemption) or as a result of any other advancement of maturity. 

2. payment of any redemption, prepayment or acceleration premium. 

3. nonpayment of principal or interest caused by the insolvency or negligence of any 
Trustee, Paying Agent or Bond Registrar, if any. 
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If it becomes necessary to call upon the Insurance Policy, payment of principal requires surrender 
of Certificates to the Insurance Trustee together with an appropriate instrument of assignment so as to 
permit ownership of such Certificates to be registered in the name of Ambac Assurance to the extent of 
the payment under the Insurance Policy. Payment of interest pursuant to the Insurance Policy requires 
proof of Holder entitlement to interest payments and an appropriate assignment of the Holder's right to 
payment to Ambac Assurance. 

Upon payment of the insurance benefits, Ambac Assurance will become the owner of the 
Certificate, appurtenant coupon, if any, or right to payment of principal or interest on such Certificate and 
will be fully subrogated to the surrendering Holder's rights to payment. 

In the event that Ambac Assurance were to become insolvent, any claims arising under the Policy 
would be excluded from coverage by the California Insurance Guaranty Association, established pursuant 
to the laws of the State of California. 

Ambac Assurance Corporation 

Ambac Assurance Corporation ("Ambac Assurance") is a Wisconsin-domiciled stock insurance 
corporation regulated by the Office of the Commissioner of Insurance of the State of Wisconsin and 
licensed to do business in 50 states, the District of Columbia, the Territory of Guam, the Commonwealth 
of Puerto Rico and the U.S. Virgin Islands, with admitted assets of approximately $7,728,000,000 
(audited) and statutory capital of approximately $4,490,000,000 (audited) as of December 31, 2003. 
Statutory capital consists of Ambac Assurance's policyholders' surplus and statutory contingency reserve. 
Standard & Poor's Credit Markets Services, a Division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Moody's 
Investors Service and Fitch Ratings have each assigned a triple-A :financial strength rating to Ambac 
Assurance. 

Ambac Assurance has obtained a ruling from the Internal Revenue Service to the effect that the 
insuring of an obligation by Ambac Assurance will not affect the treatment for federal income tax 
purposes of interest on such obligation and that insurance proceeds representing maturing interest paid by 
Ambac Assurance under policy provisions substantially identical to those contained in its fmancial 
guaranty insurance policy shall be treated for federal income tax purposes in the same manner as if such 
payments were made by the Obligor of the Certificates. No representation is made by Ambac 
Assurance regarding the federal income tax treatment of payments that are made by Ambac 
Assurance under the terms of the Insurance Policy due to nonappropriation of funds by the Lessee. 

Ambac Assurance makes no representation regarding the Certificates or the advisability of 
investing in the Certificates and makes no representation regarding, nor has it participated in the 
preparation of, the Official Statement other than the information supplied by Ambac Assurance and 
presented under the heading "THE INSURANCE POLICY AND THE INSURER". 

Available Information 

The parent company of Ambac Assurance, Ambac Financial Group, Inc. (the "Company"), is 
subject to the informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the 
"Exchange Act"), and in accordance therewith files reports, proxy statements and other information with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"). These reports, proxy statements and other 
information can be read and copied at the SECs public reference room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., 
Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public 
reference room. The SEC maintains an internet site at http://www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy and 
information statements and other information regarding companies that file electronically with the SEC, 
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including the Company. These reports, proxy statements and other information can also be read at the 
offices of the New York Stock Exchange, Inc. (the "NYSE"), 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 
10005. 

Copies of Ambac Assurance's fmancial statements prepared in accordance with statutory 
accounting standards are available from Ambac Assurance. The address of Ambac Assurance's 
administrative offices and its telephone number are One State Street Plaza, 19th Floor, New York, New 
York 10004 and (212) 668-0340. 

Incorporation of Certain Documents by Reference 

The following documents filed by the Company with the SEC (File No. 1-10777) are 
incorporated by reference in this Official Statement: 

1. The Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003 
and filed on March 15, 2004. 

All documents subsequently filed by the Company pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange 
Act after the date of this Official Statement will be available for inspection in the same manner as 
described above in ° Available Information". 

COUNTY FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The following is a description of the County's budget process, current budget, historical budget 
information, changes in fund balance, its major revenues and expenditures, indebtedness, investments and 
certain other financial information relating to the County. 

Budget Procedure, Current Budget and Historical Budget Information 

The County's Board of Supervisors (the "Board of Supervisors") adopted the final 2003-04 
budget on June 18, 2003 (the "2003-04 Budget"). The 2003-04 Budget assumes the timely receipt of 
certain funds from the State. The County believes that it was reasonable in formulating these 
assumptions, based on historical information and available information regarding the proposed State 
budget at the time of the County's budget adoption. While the County's 2003-04 Budget was balanced 
when adopted, as a result of the 2003-04 State Budget adoption in August 2003, the County projected a 
$7.8 million shortfall in fiscal year 2003-04. This projected shortfall was due to various factors, including, 
but not limited to, state program and services reductions, the recall election and health insurance 
increases. This shortfall was addressed through reducing departmental expenditures and increasing 
revenue, including the use of an additional $3 million in one-time funding to bring the County's revenue 
and expenditures back into balance. Further changes to the State budget could occur during the current 
fiscal year which affect the County's adopted budget, including its appropriations and expenditures. If the 
State decreases the amount of revenues to be allocated to the County, the County will make 
commensurate adjustments to its projected revenues and to its appropriations. Notwithstanding the 
actions taken by the County to provide for contingencies, unforeseen events could cause the County to 
experience General Fund decreases which would adversely affect the willingness and ability of the 
County to pay the Lease Payments when due. 
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The following table presents the County's fmal adopted budgets for fiscal years 2001-02 through 
2003-04, excluding enterprise funds, internal service funds and capital project funds of the County. 

COUNTY OF STANISLAUS 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BUDGETS 

Final Adopted Final Adopted Final Adopted 
2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 

REQUIREMENTS: 
General Government $ 66,071,657 $ 66,988, 785 $71,230,781 
Public Protection 132,316,969 143,877,879 150,558,173 
Public Ways and Facilities 11,482,465 11,973,292 11,990,669 
Health and Sanitation 111,866,739 118,646,991 114,292,125 
Public Assistance 221,215,370 224,069,899 219,635,415 
Education 9,243,459 10,495,433 11,325,259 
Recreation and Cultural 4,376,441 6,695,549 6,510,949 
Debt Service 10,801,918 9,755,438 10,126,804 
Contingencies 3,850.381 2,199,000 3,952,292 

Total Requirements $571 225.399 $594.702 266 $599. 622.467 

AVAILABLE FUNDS: 
Fund Balance Available $20,547,522 $ 22,950,521 $25,397 ,620 
Taxes 51,585,998 53,835,596 57,386,900 
Licenses, Permits & Franchises 3,459,603 3,346,733 3,877,633 
Fines, Forfeits, and Penalties 3,823,380 4,015,277 3,488,435 
Use of Money & Property 7,325,961 5,747,262 3,899,560 
Intergovernmental Revenue 348,431,866 373,026,068 383,028,756 
Charges for Services 73,436,880 71,500,627 73,417,512 
Miscellaneous Revenue 5,748,217 4,229,626 4,768,942 
Other Financing Sources 56,865,972 56,050,556 44,357,109 

Total Available Funds $571.225.399 $594 702 266 $599 622 467 

Source: Stanislaus County Auditor-Controller's Office. 

Comparative Change in Fund Balance of the County General Fund 

The following table provides a five-year comparison of changes in the County General Fund. 
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COUNTY OF STANISLAUS GENERAL FUND STATEMENT OF 
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

FIVE YEAR COMPARISON 
(Fiscal Year Ending June 30) 

1999 2000 2001 2002<2> 

REVENUES: 
Taxes $ 34,222,018 $ 38,811,885 $ 41,132,858 $ 44,492,505 
Licenses, permits and franchises 2,913,834 2,576,174 2,809,828 1,908,253 
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 4,125,705 5,798,020 3,302,993 4,849,220 
Revenue from use of money and 6,753,484 4,699,407 7,134,699 5,347,723 

property 
Intergovernmental revenues 63,510,883 72,941,422 78,488,915 84,850,425 
Charges for services 27,220,294 28,439,163 29,338,926 36,709,290 
Miscellaneous 906,478 6,994,203 5,110,357 6,857,275 

Total revenues $132 652 626 $16012@ 2Z4 $16Z 318 5Z6 $185 Q14,621 
EXPENDITURES: 

Current: 
General $24,599,316 $32,292,949 $28,341,629 $31,595,607 
Public protection 77,272,265 80,470,001 85,029,279 91,905,961 
Public ways and facilities 365,714 
Health and sanitation 3,418,283 3,677,421 
Public Assistance 385,770 382,412 249,223 297,681 
Education 348,953 334,178 360,299 333,391 
Recreation and cultural services 3,666,991 

Debt Service<1> 

3,915,225 4,083,646 4,394,982 

Principal 
Interest and fiscal charges (207,551} (249,997} 

Total Expenditures $106 065 744 $] 12144168 $121482352 $ l 3 2 520 151 
Excess revenue over expenditures $33,586,952 $43,115,506 $45,836,217 $52,443,934 
Other financing sources (uses): 

Sale of fixed assets 8,220,337 4,348,749 2,205 
Payment to the County 
Retirement Association 
Operating transfers in 8,145,786 1,564,557 5,163,000 2,177,891 
Operating transfers out (43,526,494) (42,008,080) ( 44,531,525) (53,105,735) 
Loan Proceeds 
Capital Lease Proceeds 80,909 53,697 
Total other financing sources (uses) (35,299, 799) (32,169,489) (35,019,176) (50,925,639) 

Excess revenues and other sources over 
(under) expenditures and other uses (1,712,847) 10,946,017 10,817,041 1,518,295 

FUND BALANCE: Beginning of Year 
as reported at end of prior year $23,749,726 $21,914,879 $32,507,262 $42,838,591 
Prior period adjustment 11,478,360(3

) 

Residual equity transfer out (122,000) (353,634) (492,550) 
Change in accounting principal 
Fund balance - End of Year $212148Z2 $ 32 5QZ 262 $ 42 831 z53 $ 55 8351246 

2003<2> 

$ 49,002,479 
1,689,813 
6,266,245 
2,921,212 

89,133,714 
33,482,876 

7,753,913 
$]2Q 25Q 252 

$30,938,008 
96,980,176 

3,939,628 
306,900 
330,482 

5,374,777 

$132 862 221 
$52,380,281 

1,989 

2,614,410 
(50,942,182) 

51,026 
(48,274,757) 

4,105,524 

$55,835,246 

$ 52,240 zzo 

<
1> Debt service payments are made from the County's debt service funds. Such funds are not part of the County's General 

Fund and, thus, are not reflected in this table. 
<
2> Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Statement No. 34 made changes in the annual financial statements 

for all governmental agencies in the United States, especially in recording of fixed assets and their depreciation, and in the 
way the report itself is formatted. The financial statements for fiscal year 2001-02 and fiscal year 2002-03 reflect the 
County's adoption of the provisions ofGASB Statement No. 34 as of July I, 2001. Thus, revenues for fiscal year 2001-02 
and fiscal year 2002-03 are recognized in the period in which they become both measurable and available to finance 
expenditures of the current fiscal period and expenditures for fiscal year 2001-02 and fiscal year 2002-03 are recognized in 
the period in which the liability is incurred. 

<
3
> Increase due to fund reclassification resulting from GASB 34. 

Source: Stanislaus County Auditor-Controller's Office. 
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Comparative Balance Sheets of the County 

The County's unreserved General Fund balance as of June 30, 2003 was approximately 
$36.0 million, of which approximately $14.6 million is budgeted to be expended in the 2003-04 fiscal 
year, $9.8 million is designated for internal debt service reserve for all outstanding fmancings and 
approximately $11. 6 million is designated for contingencies. The following table presents the County's 
General Fund Balance Sheets for the past five fiscal years. 
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COUNTY OF STANISLAUS 
GENERAL FUND BALANCE SHEETS 

FIVE YEAR COMPARISON 
(Fiscal Year Ending June 30) 

1999 2000 2001 2002<2> 2003<2> 

ASSETS 
Pooled cash and investments $ 199,777 $ 1,241,791 $ l l,441,738(l) $12,747,660 $ 8,228,524 
Cash with fiscal agent 18,795,980(l) 30,000,000(l) 
Accounts receivable (net of allowance for 5,198,286 5,776,351 6,877,081 13,887,101(3) 14,488,377 

uncollectables) 
Taxes receivable 135,290 135,290 135,290 93,934 105,364 
Interest and other receivables 6,216,745 6,878,298 7,331,113 8,107,627 333,786(3) 

Due from other funds 50,588 
Advances to other funds 501,350 501,350 501,350 501,350 501,350 
Cash held by others 8,645 8,645 8,645 8,645 8,645 
Advances to other Governments 11,701,237(3) 

Due from other Governments 1,729,037 
Interfund Receivable 14,833,845 23,499,754 30,974,559 26,866,338 30,267,672 
Intergovernmental Receivable 783,313 
Prepaid items 1,086,168 543,534 I 240,166 

Total assets $ 28 18Q JQ6 $ 38 635 6Q] $ 16 Q6S 156 $ 62 225 268 $286!24158 

LIABILITIES, EQIDTY AND OTHER 
CREDITS 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable $3,404,330 $2,544,604 $2,146,192 $2,793,762 $3,296,069 
Salaries and benefits payable 2,054,607 2,750,310 3,332,443 3,214,645 3,735,224 
Deposits from others 
Due to other funds 369,674 
Due to other governments 31,800 17,628 
Current portion ofliability for 588,784 584,118 537,861 

compensated absences 
Deferred revenues 217,507 217,507 217,507 1,134,687 1,262,421 
Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes 27,000,000 30,000,000 

Total liabilities $ 6265 228 $ 6128 3:32 $ 33 234 003 $ 1160122 $ 38 663 388 

Equity and Other Credits: 
Fund balances: 
Reserved for encumbrances $ 3,795,617 $ 4,315,517 $ 8,328,986 $ 6,995,416 $ 8,604,598 
Reserved - Other 2,385,805 2,930,539 2,393,105 9,915,419<3

> 15,336, 708(3
) 

Unreserved: 
Undesignated 5,932,654 7,425,113 8,961,412 8,874,048(3) 14,597,408(3

) 

Designated subsequent year expenditure 
Designated for debt service 9,413,386 9,413,386 9,757,589 9,757,589 9,757,589 
Designated for contingencies 387,416 8,422,707 13,390,661 20,292,774 11,644,467(3) 

Total equity and other credits $ 21,914,878 $ 32,507,262 $ 42,831,753 $ 55,835,246 $ 59,940,770 

Total liabilities, equity and credits $ 2818Q 106 $ 38 635 601 $ 16. 065 156. $ 62 225 26.8 $ 28 604158 

0 > Increase due to funds received by issuance of Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes. 
<
2
> GASB Statement No. 34 made changes in the annual financial statements for all governmental agencies in the United States, 

especially in recording of fixed assets and their depreciation, and in the way the report itself is formatted. The financial 
statements for fiscal year 2001-02 and fiscal year 2002-03 reflect the County's adoption of the provisions of GASB 
Statement No. 34 as of July 1, 2001. Thus, revenues for fiscal year 2001-02 and fiscal year 2002-03 are recognized in the 
period in which they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current fiscal period and 
expenditures for fiscal year 2001-02 and fiscal year 2002-03 are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred. 

<
3
> Increase or decrease due to reclassification resulting from GASB 34. 

Source: Stanislaus County Auditor-Controller's Office. 
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Major Revenues 

The County derives its revenues from a variety of sources including ad valorem property taxes, 
sales and use taxes, licenses, permits and franchises issued by the County, use of County property and 
money, aid from other governmental agencies, charges for services provided by the County and other 
miscellaneous revenues. The approximate percentages of the County's total revenues for general 
governmental functions, which include the general, special revenue, capital project, debt service and 
expendable trust funds, as based on the County's actual audited financial statements for fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2003, were allocated as follows: 

Source Percentage<1> 
Taxes 
License, Permits and Franchises 
Fines, Forfeitures and Penalties 
Use of Money and Property 
Intergovernmental Revenues 
Charges for Current Services 
Miscellaneous Revenues 

Total 

OJTotals may not add due to rounding. 
Source: Stanislaus County Auditor-Controller. 

Ad Valorem Property Taxes 

10.97% 
0.61 
1.44 
1.42 

68.35 
15.10 
2.10 

100.00% 

Set forth below is certain information regarding assessed valuation and property tax collections. 
Under California law, for fiscal year 2002-03 these tax collections (allocation percentages for 1 % only) 
were allocated approximately 11.5% to the County, 6.5% to cities, 9.2% to special districts, and 72.8% to 
school districts within the County. 

Fiscal Year 

1999-00 
2000-01 
2001-02 
2002-03 
2003-04 

COUNTY OF STANISLAUS 
NET ASSESSED VALUATION* 

FISCAL YEARS 1999-00 THROUGH 2003-04 

Secured Unsecured Total 

$18,138,511,886 $1,145,681,145 $19,284,192,981 
19,269,396,995 1,206,395,885 20,475,792,880 
20, 778, 158,097 1,360,582,907 22,138, 741,004 
22,814,392,776 1,315,257,382 24,129,650,158 
24,525,756,888 1,448, 702,323 25,974,459,211 

* Last equalized roll including aircraft. Adjustments and cancellations after publications of the roll are not included. 
Source: Stanislaus County Auditor-Controller's Office. 
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COUNTY OF STANISLAUS 
SECURED PROPERTY TAX LEVIESt COLLECTIONS, AND DELINQUENCIES 

FISCAL YEARS 1998-99 THROUGH 2002-03 

Total Secured Total Secured 
Fiscal Year ~ Collections* 

1998-99 $180,848,612 $177,586,775 
1999-00 194,753,889 191,313,706 
2000-01 204,487,493 200,647,912 
2001-02 219,509,435 215,671,967 
2002-03 228,550,924 223,942,564 

* Total does not include redemptions of delinquencies and penalties. 
Source: Stanislaus County Auditor-Controller's Office. 

Principal Taxpayers 

Total Secured 
Collections As 

Percent of 
Tax Len: 

98.20% 
98.23 
98.12 
98.25 
97.98 

The ten largest taxpayers in the County as shown on the 2003-04 secured tax roll, the amounts of 
taxes paid by each and the percentage of the County's total property tax revenues attributable to each are 
shown on the table that follows: 

Company 

1. Diab lo Grande, LTD 
2. Gallo Glass, Co. 
3. SBC California 
4. Gallo Winery 
5. Doctors Medical Center 

COUNTY OF STANISLAUS 
TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS 

Fiscal Year 
2003-04 

Type of Business Property Taxes 

6. Macerich Vintage Faire, LTD 

Commercial 
Manufacturing 
Utility 
Manufacturing 
Medical 
Commercial 
Manufacturing 
Utility 
Manufacturing 
Manufacturing 

$ 2,288,161 
1,623,961 
1,484,973 
1,264,179 
1,236,029 
1,207,723 
1,183,577 
1,128,178 

7. Hunt Wesson Foods, Inc. 
8. Pacific Gas and Electric 
9. Foster Dairy Farms 
IO.Del Monte Corporation 

0
> Totals may not add due to rounding. 

Source: Stanislaus County Auditor-Controller. 

Intergovernmental Revenues 

TOTAL 

994,186 
989 669 

$13 400 636(!) 

Percentage 
of Total 

Property Taxes 

0.8780% 
0.6232 
0.5698 
0.4851 
0.4743 
0.4634 
0.4542 
0.4329 
0.3815 
0.3798 

Intergovernmental revenues, mostly in the form of State and federal grants and subventions, are 
the County's largest revenue source, representing about 68.35% of all County revenues in fiscal year 
2002-03. A large amount of this revenue source also comes from the State of California in the form of 
payment for services provided by the County for the State. 

29 



County Employees 

A summary of the total number of persons employed by the County in each of the last five years 
follows. Some employees are hired under various federally funded programs. 

Labor Relations 

COUNTY OF STANISLAUS 
TOTAL EMPLOYEES 

1999 through 2003 

June 30 Total 

1999 4,290 
2000 4,541 
2001 4,972 
2002 4,710 
2003 4,536 

Source: Stanislaus County Auditor-Controller's Office. 

The County continues to enjoy positive employer-employee relations. Over 3,750 of the County's 
employees are represented by eleven different employee organizations, including Operating Engineers 
Local 3, California Nurses Association, Stanislaus County Employees Association, AFSCME Local 10, 
Service Employees International Union, Local 535, Scenic Resident Physicians Association, the County 
Attorneys' Association, and the Deputy Sheriffs Association. The County's labor contracts terminate on 
various dates between 2004 and 2006 as identified below. One newly formed employee organization, the 
Stanislaus Sheriff's Management Association, has just begun negotiations with the County and does not 
yet have a contract. 

COUNTY OF STANISLAUS 
LABOR CONTRACTS 

Employee Organization 

Committee of Interns & Residents 
California Nurses Association 
AFSCME SCEA, Local 10 
Deputy Sheriff Association 
SEID, Local 535 
District Attorney Investigators 
Emergency Dispatchers 
Deputy Probation Officers 
California Attorneys Association 

Source: County of Stanislaus. 
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Expiration 

March 31, 2004 
August 31, 2004 
May 31, 2005 
June 1, 2005 
June 30, 2005 
February 28, 2005 
June 30, 2006 
July 31, 2006 
December 31, 2006 



Retirement Program 

General. The County is the major participant in the Stanislaus County Employees Retirement 
Association ("StanCERA"), a retirement system organized under the 1937 Retirement Act StanCERA is 
a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system. StanCERA provides retirement and 
disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustment, death benefits and health and welfare insurance for 
certain retirees and their dependants. One actuarial valuation is performed for the system as a whole and 
the contribution rate is determined for each participating entity. In addition to the County, the other 
participating entities in StanCERA are the City of Ceres, and six special districts located in the County 
that are not governed by the County's Board of Supervisors. The following table sets forth StanCERA's 
membership as of June 30, 2002 and June 30, 2003. 

StanCERA Membership 

2002 2003 
Active Members: 

Vested 4.507 4,263 
Total Active 4,507 4,263 

Inactive Members: 
Deferred and Inter-System Members 648 753 
Unclaimed Contributions 97 88 
Total Inactive 745 841 

Retired Members: 
Service Retirements 1,615 1,701 
Disability Retirements 314 331 
Survivor Payments 34 -----12 
Total Retired 1,963 2,067 

Total Membership 7,215 7,171 

Source: Stanislaus County Employees' Retirement Association Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal 
Years Ended June 30, 2003 and 2002. 

Determination of Retirement Benefits. StanCERA has five tiers of retirement benefits. The 
benefits known as Tier 1, Tier 2, Tier 4 and Tier 5 vest after five years of credited service, while the 
benefit known as Tier 3 vest after ten years of credited service. Vested general members with Tier 1, Tier 
2, Tier 4 or Tier 5 benefits may retire at age fifty or older with ten or more years of qualifying service or 
at any age with thirty or more years of qualifying service. Vested safety members with Tier 1, Tier 2, 
Tier 4 or Tier 5 benefits may retire at age fifty or older with ten years of qualifying service or at any age 
with twenty or more years of service. All Tier 3 members may retire at age fifty-five with ten or more 
years of qualifying service. 

The final average salary for members with Tier 1, Tier 4 or Tier 5 benefits is the average monthly 
salary based on the highest twelve consecutive months of earnings. For members with Tier 2 or Tier 3 
benefits, final average salary is the average monthly salary based on the highest thirty-six consecutive 
months of earnings. The retirement benefit for Tier 1, Tier 2, Tier 4 and Tier 5 members includes a post­
retirement cost-of-living ("COL") adjustment based upon the Consumer Price Index. COL 
increases/decreases are limited to a maximum of 3% annually. Total COL decreases cannot exceed the 
cumulative amount of previous COL increases. Tier 1, Tier 2 Tier 4 and Tier 5 benefit levels also provide 
death and disability benefits. 
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As of June 30, 2001, the actuarial valuation of the system reflected increased contributions in 
retirement benefits for general and safety members within Tier 4 and Tier 5. These increased 
contributions generally provide a 2% at age 55 retirement benefit for general members and a 3% at age 50 
retirement benefit for safety members within these tiers. 

Retirement Contributions. StanCERA members participating in Tier 1, Tier 2, Tier 4 and Tier 5 
are required by statute to contribute to the pension plan. Members' contribution rates are determined on 
the basis of the age of the employee at date of entry and the actuarially calculated future benefits. The 
County is required by statute to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to finance the estimated 
benefits accrued to its members. Benefits and contribution provisions are established by state law subject 
to amendment only by a legislative act of the State of California. Alternative benefit and contribution 
schedules are permissive with approval of the Board of Supervisors. 

StanCERA's policies for employer contributions are actuarially determined rates that, expressed 
as percentages of annual covered payroll, are sufficient to accumulate enough assets to pay benefits when 
due. Level percentage of payroll employer contribution rates are determined using the entry age actuarial 
cost method. StanCERA also uses the level entry age normal cost method with an Unfunded Actuarial 
Accrued Liability ("UAAL") to amortize the unfunded liability. As of June 30, 2002, the amortization 
period for the UAAL was 20 years. 

The following table sets forth the schedule of annual employer contributions and percentage 
contributed for the entire system for Fiscal Years ended June 30, 1998 through June 30, 2003. These 
contributions include payment of normal cost and UAAL contributions. 

STANISLAUS COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Schedule of Annual Employer Contributions and Percentage Contributed 

Fiscal Years 1998-2003 

Fiscal Year Ended 
June30 

1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 

Annual 
Required Contributions 

{in thousands)<•> 

$7,438 
5,338 
5,899 
7,509 

11,341 
16,208 

Percentage 
Contributed 

100% 
100 
100 
100 
100 
100 

(1) For the Fiscal Years 1998-99, 1999-00 and 2000-01, the County's Actuarial Accrued Liability 
("AAL") was overfunded. A portion of these excess amounts were used to partially offset normal cost. 
Source: Stanislaus County Employees' Retirement Association Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report for the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2003 and 2002. 

Historical Funding Progress. In September 1995, the County issued pension obligation bonds to 
satisfy the UAAL for the County, calculated as of September 1995. See "County Financial Information­
Indebtedness" herein. The County's funding ratio has been at least 100% since Fiscal Year 1996-97 
through Fiscal Year 2001-02. The following table sets forth the funded status of the plan as of the 
actuarial valuation dates July 1, 1997 through July 1, 2002. 
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STANISLAUS COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Funded Status of Plan 

(in thousands) 

((UAAL)as a 
Actuarial Unfunded Percentage of 

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued (Overfunded) Funded Covered 
Valuation Value of Liability AAL Ratio Covered Payroll 

Date Assets (A~ (AAL} (ID {B}-(A} £Allifil Pal'.roll(C} ({B-A}/g 
7/1/97 $667,248() $512,349 ($154,899) 130.2% $121,275 (127.7)% 
7/1/98 590,598 558,462 (32,136) 105.8 120,172 (26.7) 
7/1/99 638,180 610,280 (27,900) 104.6 141,799 (19.7) 
7/1/00 679,421 666,114 (13,307) 102.0 157,010 (8.5) 
7/1/01 784,114 781,495 (2,619) 100.3 174,595 (1.5) 
7/1/02 878,821 870,768 (8,053) 100.9 196,471 (4.1) 

(I) Includes "Other Designated Reserves" and the liabilities associated with these reserves. 
Source: Stanislaus County Employees' Retirement Association Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Years 

Ended June 30, 2003 and 2002. 

The actuarial valuation for the period ending as of June 30, 2003 has not been completed by the 
independent actuary engaged by StanCERA (the "Actuary"). Accordingly, the actuarial accrued liability 
and UAAL as of June 30, 2003 are not reflected in the table above. The Actuary does not expect a 
significant decrease in the funding ratio to result from increased retirement benefit contributions or 
changes in economic assumptions. No guarantee can be made that such expectation will be fulfilled. 

Actuarial Assumptions. The Actuary performs an actuarial valuation of the system on an annual 
basis. Economic assumptions are reviewed annually. Additionally, an experience study is conducted 
every three years, at which time non-economic assumptions are also reviewed. The most recent triennial 
experience study was conducted as of June 30, 2000. The most recent actuarial valuation was conducted 
as of June 30, 2002. Effective as of June 30, 2002, the Board of Retirement adopted an actuarial value of 
assets method that recognizes the difference between the actual investment return achieved by the 
investment portfolio of StanCERA and the expected investment return, net of expenses, over a five-year 
period. The new method is being phased in over a five-year period which started June 30, 2001. As of 
June 30, 2002, the total deferred asset loss not yet recognized under this method was $102,378,576. The 
following table sets forth the certain economic actuarial assumptions for fiscal year ended June 30, 2002. 

STANISLAUS COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Actuarial Assumptions 

Actuarial 
Assumption 

Investment Rate of Return 
Inflation 
Projected Salary Increases 
Retirees' Cost-of-Living Adjustments 

8.00% 
4.50 
5.50 
3.00 

Source: Stanislaus County Employees' Retirement Association Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report for the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2003 and 2002. 

Litigation. In the case of Ventura County Deputy Sheriffs Association v. Board of Retirement of 
Ventura County Employees' Retirement Association (the "Ventura Case11

), the California Supreme Court 
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held that certain payments made by a county in excess of basic salary payments to employees are 
included in the definition of compensation within the meaning of the Retirement Law. The California 
Supreme Court did not determine whether its holding in the Ventura Case was to be applied retroactively. 
Thereafter, additional cases were subsequently filed in many counties, which sought to make the Ventura 
Case retroactive and to add additional payments made by a county to the definition of compensation 
(the "Ventura II cases"). All of the Ventura II cases were coordinated statewide and assigned to the San 
Francisco Superior Court. That court ruled against adding the additional payments to the defmition of 
compensation and determined that the holding in the Ventura Case must be given retroactive effect going 
back three years. The County estimates that it will have to contribute another $5 to $7 million to the 
retirement system, but does not expect any adverse effects on the County's ability to pay principal and 
interest on any of its outstanding obligations as and when due. 

Investment Policy. The Board of Retirement has exclusive control of the investment of the 
employees' retirement fund. Except as otherwise expressly restricted by the State Constitution and by 
law, the Board of Retirement may in its discretion invest or delegate StanCERA to invest the assets of the 
fund through the purchase, holding, or sale of any form or type of investment financial instrument, or 
financial transaction when prudent in the informed opinion of the Board of Retirement. StanCERA has 
established a series of investment procedures and guidelines. The procedures, grouped together as the 
"Investment Policy," serve to guide StanCERA's investment program. The Board of Retirement reviews 
the Investment Policy annually. StanCERA does not currently anticipate any changes in the Investment 
Policy. The following table sets forth the asset allocations for the investment portfolio for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2003. 

STANISLAUS COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Investment Asset Allocation 

Association's Portfolio 

Domestic Equities 
International Equities 
Fixed Income 
Cash<1> 

Total 

Target Allocations 

48.6% 
15.0 
36.4 
0.0 

100.0% 

<1> Excludes Pooled Cash in County Treaswy of$5,004,019. 

Actual Allocations 

48.5% 
15.3 
33.2 

3.0 
100.0% 

Source: Stanislaus County Employees' Retirement Association Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Years 
Ended June 30, 2003 and 2002. 

StanCERA's assets are managed by external professional investment management firms. The 
Board of Retirement monitors the performance of the managers with the assistance of an external 
investment consultant. The following table sets forth the total return on investments in the portfolio for 
the fiscal years ending June 30, 1998 through June 30, 2003. 
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STANISLAUS COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Investment Results Based on Fair Value 

Year Ended 
June30 

1998 
1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 

Annualized Rate of Return 

12.66% 
8.34 
6.34 
7.09 

(4.23) 
4.80 

Source: Stanislaus County Employees' Retirement Association Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report for the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2003 and 2002. 

Post-Employment Healthcare Benefits. In addition to providing pension benefits, StanCERA 
sponsors health insurance for certain retirees and their dependents. Substantially all of the active 
members may become eligible for those benefits if they reach normal retirement age. Currently, 1,360 
retirees are active participants in the health care plans, and they received post-retirement health care 
benefits in the amount of $6,454,071 for the year ending June 30, 2003. StanCERA sponsored health 
insurance benefits are not vested and may be discontinued with 90 days notice. 

Post-employment health care benefits are funded from excess earnings of StanCERA. The 
actuarial study dated June 30, 1998 projected the liability level for health care premium to be $93,346,000 
based on current utilization. As of June 30, 2003, the funding for post-retiree's health premium reserve is 
$110,698, 145. The County does not contribute towards post-employment other than retirement. 

Current financial reporting practices related to postemployment benefits other than pension 
benefits ("OPEB") for state and local governmental employers generally are based on pay-as-you-go 
financing approaches. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has recently proposed to require 
state and local governments to recognize the cost of OPEB during the periods when employees render the 
services or to provide relevant information about OPEB obligations and the extent to which progress is 
being made in funding those obligations. StanCERA is currently reviewing this matter, but does not 
anticipate a material adverse impact on its :fmances. 

Insurance 

The County is self-insured for public liability claims on the first $250,000 per occurrence and 
also is self-insured for the first $500,000 per claim for workers' compensation claims. The County carries 
liability insurance in excess of the amounts self-insured, up to a maximum of $19,750,000 per occurrence. 
The County is subject to unlimited liability for workers' compensation claims pursuant to State statutes. 
Based upon prior claims experience, the County believes that the recorded reserves for recorded liabilities 
are adequate. 

The County carries property insurance in the amount of approximately $385,403,787 subject to 
adjustment from time to time to reflect additions, deletions and changed valuations with respect to County 
property, with a $10,000 deductible. This policy is scheduled to expire on March 31, 2005, with the 
option of annual renewal at competitive market rates. The County has not experienced any material 
impact on its Budget as a result of recent commercial insurance costs increases. 
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The County maintains a Healthcare Professional Liability program which consists of a $500,000 
self-insured retention per occurrence and excess insurance coverage of $10,000,000 per occurrence. In 
addition to the self-insured retention, the County is also required to pay all legal defense costs. Coverage 
and deductibles are subject to change from year to year. 

With respect to each of the County's self-insurance programs, the County's policy is to 
appropriate amounts sufficient to cover actual expenditures and maintain reserves recommended by 
actuaries. 

Indebtedness 

General Obligation Debt. The County currently has no general obligation debt outstanding. 

Pension Obligation Bonds. On September 25, 1995, the County issued its Taxable Pension 
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 1995 (the "Pension Obligation Bonds") in the aggregate principal 
amount of $108,970,000 to refund the obligation of the County to StanCERA evidenced by a debenture in 
favor of StanCERA (the "Debenture"). The Debenture evidenced the County's then-existing obligation 
with respect to $107,500,000 of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability it owed to StanCERA. The 
proceeds of the Pension Obligation Bonds were applied to refund the Debenture. The Pension Obligation 
Bonds are payable from any County funds legally available therefor. Any transfer by the County Auditor 
of moneys from any fund to pay the principal of and interest on the Pension Obligation Bonds will have 
the same force and effect as an appropriation by the Board of Supervisors. 

The County is required to deposit with the Trustee for the Pension Obligation Bonds an amount 
equal to debt service on the Pension Obligation Bonds due in each fiscal year by July 31 of such fiscal 
year. Annual debt service payments on the Pension Obligation Bonds until their maturity in 2013 are 
approximately $11.4 million per year. 

Certificates of Participation. The County currently has outstanding seven certificates of 
participation fmancings representing an aggregate principal amount of $91,100,000 as of June 30, 2003. 
Total debt service with respect to the County's outstanding certificates of participation is $10,269,620 for 
fiscal year 2002-03. 

Capital Leases. The County leases data processing and hospital equipment under certain lease 
obligations accounted for as capital leases. Included in general fixed assets and property and equipment 
as of June 30, 2003 were the following amounts applicable to capital leases: 

Building 
Equipment 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 

General Fixed Assets 
Account Group 

$ 216,441 
2,009,164 
(542,752) 

$1,682,853 
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Enterprise 
Funds 

$1,905,318 
(797,296) 

$1,108,022 

Internal Service 
Funds 

$711,140 
(298,374) 
$412,766 



The following is a yearly schedule of future minimum lease payments under capital leases with 
original terms of one year or more, together with the present value of the future minimum lease payments 
as of June 30, 2003. 

Year Ending June 30 

2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 

Total minimum lease payments 
Less: amount representing interest 

Present value of minimum lease 
payments 

Less: current portion of capital lease 
Capital lease obligation 

General Long-Term 
Debts Account Group 

$407,652 
248,839 
105,657 
56,067 

5 553 
823,768 
(58,898) 
764,870 

(372,081) 
$392,789 

Source: County of Stanislaus Auditor-Controller's Office. 

Enterprise 
Funds 

$ 431,447 
318,436 
160,834 
160,834 
40.209 

1,111,760 
(81.500) 

1,030,260 

(388,713) 
$ 641,547 

Internal 
Service Funds 

$ 134,800 
134,800 

36,765 

$ 306,365 
(16,925) 
289,440 

(121,896) 
$ 167,544 

Operating Leases. The County is committed under various operating leases for building and 
office space and business and data processing equipment. Operating leases do not give rise to property 
rights or lease obligations and, therefore, the results of the lease agreements are not reflected in the 
County's account groups or proprietary funds. 

Aggregate rental expense for all operating leases was approximately $3,879,231 for all fund types 
for the year ended June 30, 2003. The following is a schedule by years of future minimum rental 
payments required under operating leases entered into by the County that have initial or remaining non­
cancelable lease terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2003: 

Year Ending June 30 

2004 ........................................................................................... . 
2005 ........................................................................................... . 
2006 ........................................................................................... . 
2007 ........................................................................................... . 
2008 ........................................................................................... . 

2009-2013 ························································································· 
Total minimum lease payments ........................................... . 

Source: County of Stanislaus Auditor-Controller's Office. 

Amount 

$3,388,438 
2,856,112 
2,093,668 
1,551,512 
1,330,577 
7,630.674 

$18.850 981 

Short-Term Debt: The County currently has outstanding an aggregate principal amount of 
$45,000,000 2003-04 Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes, which are due on October 14, 2004. All 
amounts required to be set-aside as security for these notes have been made to date. 

Estimated Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt. The estimated direct and overlapping bonded 
debt of the County as of December 19, 2003 is as follows: 
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Estimated Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt 
(as of December 19, 2003) 

STANISLAUS COUNTY 

2003-04 Assessed Valuation: 
Redevelopment Incremental Valuation: 

$26,882,716,933 (includes unitary utility valuation) 
1 699 658,877 

Adjusted Assessed Valuation: $25,183,058,056 

OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT: 
Modesto High School District 
Turlock Joint Union High School District 
Ceres Unified School District 
Newman-Crows Landing Unified School District 
Patterson Joint Unified School District 
Modesto City School District 
Sylvan School District 
Other School Districts 
Modesto Irrigation District 
Turlock Irrigation District 
Newman Drainage District 
Empire Union School District Community Facilities District No. 87-1 
City Community Facilities Districts 
Salida Area Community Facilities District No. 1988-1 
Western Hills Water District Community Facilities District No. 1 
City 1915 Act Bonds 
TOTAL GROSS OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT 
Less: Modesto Irrigation District ( I 00% self-supporting) 

Turlock Irrigation District (100% self-supporting) 
TOTAL NET OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND OBLIGATION DEBT: 
Stanislaus County Certificates of Participation 
Stanislaus County Pension Obligations 

Stanislaus County Office of Education Certificates of Participation 
Yosemite Community College District Certificates of Participation 
Modesto High School and City School District Certificates of Participation 
Salida Union School District Certificates of Participation 
Other School District Certificates of Participation 
City of Modesto General Fund Obligations 
City of Newman Certificates of Participation 
Other City Certificates of Participation 
Oakdale Irrigation District Certificates of Participation 
Keyes Fire Protection District Certificates of Participation 
TOTAL GROSS DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND OBLIGATION DEBT 

% Applicable Ol 

100. % 
98.211 

100. 
100. 
98.736 

100. 
100. 
Various 

100. 
88.411 

100. 
100. 
100. 
100. 
100. 
100. 

100. % 
100. 

100. 
72.686 

100. 
100. 
100. 
100. 
100. 
100. 
95.080 

100. 

Less: Salida Union School District self-supporting obligations from AIG investment agreement 
City of Newman Wastewater Certificates of Participation (100% self-supporting) 
Oakdale Irrigation District Certificates of Participation (100% self-supporting) 

TOTAL NET DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND OBLIGATION DEBT 

GROSS COMBINED TOTAL DEBT 
NET COMBINED TOTAL DEBT 

Based on 2002-03 ratios. 

Debt 12/1/03 
$ 82,841,180 

31,204,812 
24,999,806 
11,329,890 
18,332,218 
28,873,337 
10,640,000 
36,487,888 

1,930,000 
2,581,601 

415,000 
20,784,661 
40,070,000 
36,600,000 
27,650,000 
16 652 063 

$391,392,456 
1,930,000 
2 581,601 

$386,880,855 

$ 90,220,000 
81,685,000 

6,030,000 
11,971,384 
19,940,000 
9,370,000 

19,835,940 
92,905,000 
3,090,000 
2,347,456 

946,046 
293 000 

$338,633,826 
2,000,000 
2,905,000 

946046 
$332,782,780 

$730,026,282'2> 

$719,663,635 

(I) 

(2) Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revenue and tax allocation bonds and non-bonded capital 
lease obligations. 
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Ratios to 2003-04 Assessed Valuation: 
Total Gross Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt .... 1.46% 
Total Net Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt ........ 1.44% 

Ratios to Adjusted Assessed Valuation: 
Combined Direct Debt ($171,905,000)0.68% 

Gross Combined Total Debt ......................................... 2.90% 
Net Combined Total Debt ............................................. 2.86% 

STA TE SCHOOL BUILDING AID REPAY ABLE AS OF 6/30/03: $0 

Source: California Municipal Statistics, Inc. 

Stanislaus County Investment Pool 

The Stanislaus County Treasurer-Tax Collector is responsible for the investment of all moneys 
deposited into the County treasury. Amounts held in the County treasury are invested in the Pooled 
Investment Fund of the County (the "County Pool"), which invests in securities according to the 
Investment Policy of the County Treasurer-Tax Collector (the "County Investment Policy") as authorized 
by various sections of the Government Code of California (the "California Government Code"). From 
time to time bills which would modify the currently authorized investments and place restrictions on the 
ability of local agencies to invest in various securities are proposed in the State Legislature. Therefore, 
there can be no assurances that the current investments in the County Pool will not vary significantly from 
the investments described herein or as may be authorized in the future by the California Government 
Code. 

Investments of the County Pool are placed in those securities authorized by various sections of 
the California Government Code, which, subject to the restrictions below, include obligations of the 
United States Treasury, Agencies of the United States Government, local and State bond issues, bankers 
acceptances, commercial paper of prime quality, certificates of deposit (both collateralized and 
negotiable), repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements, medium term corporate notes, shares of 
beneficial interest in diversified management companies (mutual funds), and asset backed (including 
mortgage related) and pass-through securities. California Government Code Section 53601 sets forth the 
authorized investments that may be made with funds in a county treasury and restricts investments in 
repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements and prohibits investments in inverse floaters, range notes, 
interest only strips, or any security that could result in a negative yield if held to maturity. Also, the 
Treasurer may not invest the proceeds of a short-term borrowing for a term that exceeds the repayment 
date of the borrowing. Generally, investments in repurchase agreements cannot exceed a term of one year 
and the security underlying the agreement shall be valued at 102% or greater of the funds borrowed 
against the security and the value of the repurchase agreement shall be adjusted no less than quarterly. In 
addition, reverse repurchase agreements generally may not exceed 20% of the base value of the portfolio 
and the term of the agreement may not exceed 92 days. Securities lending transactions are considered 
reverse repurchase agreements for purposes of this limitation. Base value is defined in the California 
Government Code as the total cash balance excluding any amounts borrowed (i.e., amounts obtained 
through selling securities by way of reverse repurchase agreements or other similar borrowing methods). 
Section 53601 also requires that any investment security be purchased in book-entry form or, if in 
certificated form, be delivered to the county treasurer or a third party custodian. 
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The County Investment Policy sets forth the manner in which funds in the County Pool are to be 
invested. The duty of the Stanislaus County Treasurer is to safeguard all public funds which by law are 
managed by the Treasurer. The County Pool must maintain sufficient cash to meet the disbursement 
needs of all participating agency depositors. Prudence must be used in obtaining a competitive yield 
while maintaining the value and availability of the cash involved. Under the County Investment Policy, 
investments may be made only in securities with maturity dates which are 5 years or less from the trade 
date. No more than 40% of the County Pool may be invested in bankers acceptances and no more than 
20% of the portfolio may be invested in any one commercial bank. No more than 15% of the County 
Pool may be invested in commercial paper unless the dollar weighted average maturity is 31 days or less, 
in which case the total invested may be 30% of the County Pool. No more than 30% of the County Pool 
may be invested in negotiable certificates of deposit with no more than 5% invested with any one bank. 
Repurchase agreements may not be made for a period longer than 90 days. No more than 30% of the 
County Pool may be invested in medium term notes with no more than 5% invested in any one 
corporation. No more than 15% of the County Pool may be invested in mutual funds with no more than 
5% invested with any single mutual fund. The Treasurer is also authorized to invest in securities issued 
by the United States Treasury and various federal agencies, as well as local bank certificates of deposit 
which are 110% collateralized by government securities with no more than 5% invested with any one 
bank. Notwithstanding the authority granted by the California Government Code, no other type of 
investment by the Treasurer is currently authorized by the County Investment Policy. The County does 
not own, and has never invested in, reverse repurchase agreements, collateralized mortgage obligations or 
"inverse floaters." In addition, the County has not borrowed any funds or pledged any securities in the 
County Pool for the purpose of borrowing funds to invest the proceeds thereof into the County Pool. The 
County Investment Policy prohibits the County from engaging in lending of securities and investing in 
reverse repurchase agreements, collateralized mortgage obligations or "inverse floaters." 

The County Investment Policy may be changed with the consent of the Treasurer-Tax 
Collector and the Board of Supervisors (subject to the State law provisions relating to authorized 
investments). There can be no assurance that State law and/or the County Investment Policy will 
not be amended in the future to allow for investments which are currently not permitted under 
such State law or the County Investment Policy, or that the objectives of the County with respect to 
investments will not change. All changes to the County Investment Policy must be reviewed and 
approved by the Board of Supervisors during a regularly scheduled public meeting. 

The County Investment Policy allows for purchase of a variety of securities with limitations as to 
exposure, maturity and rating, varying with each security type. The composition of the portfolio will 
change over time as old investments mature, or are sold, and as new investments are made. As reflected 
in the table below, the market value of certain types of investments may be less than the County's net 
book value for those investments. The County, in accordance with GASB regulations, will realize market 
value fluctuations for the investments in the County Pool on its income statements. However, the County 
does not anticipate that it will ultimately realize any losses with respect to such investments since the 
County intends to hold such investments until their maturity. 

The County Pool represents moneys entrusted to the County Treasurer-Tax Collector which are 
funded by the County of Stanislaus, schools and special districts within the County. State law requires 
that all moneys of the County, school districts, and certain special districts be held by the County 
Treasurer-Tax Collector. For fiscal year 2002-03, approximately 45.9% of the amounts in the County 
Pool at any time, exclusive of the amounts resulting from County short-term borrowing, were attributable 
to the County Funds. The remaining balance of the County Pool was attributable to depositors such as 
school districts and certain special districts, which are required by law to make deposits in the County 
Pool. School districts made up approximately 51.8% and special districts made up approximately 2.2% 
of the amounts on deposit in the County Pool. Less than 4.0% of the amounts deposited in the County 
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Pool were attributable to depositors who are not required to but choose to invest in the County Pool. 
Moneys deposited in the County Pool by the participants represent an individual interest in all assets and 
investments in the County Pool based upon the amount deposited. Unexpected withdrawals are 
considered unlikely by the County based upon the historical withdrawal patterns of the mandatory 
participants which comprise the entire County Pool. All interest income, gains and losses are distributed 
quarterly to the participants based upon their average daily balance. As of December 31, 2003, the 
market value of the County Pool was 100.39% of the book value of the investments held therein. 
Liquidity in the portfolio, consisting of next business day maturities, was $182.5 million or 28.9% of the 
portfolio, as of December 31, 2003. 

Generally, it is the view of the County Treasurer that losses on investments held in the County 
Pool are acceptable on a sale of securities prior to maturity and should be taken if the reinvestment of sale 
proceeds will enhance the over-all yield of the County Pool over the life of the new security, or there is a 
potential or imminent risk of principal loss due to a change in the credit-worthiness of the issuer of the 
security or other factor jeopardizing the propriety or safety and liquidity of public funds. 

The County believes that the County Pool is prudently invested and that participants' investments 
therein are scheduled to mature at the times and in the amounts that are necessary to meet expenditures 
and other scheduled withdrawals. As of December 31, 2003, the County Pool's portfolio was comprised 
of securities with a weighted average maturity of 233 days. The following table reflects various 
information with respect to maturities of investments in the County Pool as of December 31, 2003. As 
described above, a wide range of investments are authorized under State law. Although moneys in the 
County Pool are invested only in securities authorized by the County Investment Policy, moneys of the 
County deposited into State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (L.A.I.F.) and mutual funds are 
invested in accordance with their respective investment policies, which investment policies may provide 
for investment in securities not authorized for investment under the County Investment Policy. For 
additional information concerning the County's financial information and the County Pool, see 
AppendixB - "COUNTY OF STANISLAUS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2003." 
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STANISLAUS COUNTY 
INVESTMENT MATURITIES SUMMARY 

(as of December 31, 2003) 

Percent Avg.Days 
Type of Investment Dollar Cost MarketValue of Portfolio to Maturity 

Certificates of Deposit $ 28,300,000.00 $ 28,300,000.00 4.48% 200 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 25,001, 749.96 25,000,000.00 3.96 167 
Commercial Paper 54,926,318.05 54,977 ,600.00 8.70 15 
Bankers Acceptances 4,975,311.11 4,988,350.00 0.79 78 
Managed Funds 88,193,427.41 88,211,171.78 13.97 1 
Agencies - Coupon 63,317,704.13 64,284,848.28 10.03 597 
Agencies - Discount 39,621,267.21 39, 785,000.00 6.27 172 
Treasuries - Coupon 111,070,749.52 111,174,806.47 17.59 299 
Treasuries - Discount 14,924, 798.62 14,974,850.00 2.36 68 
Repurchase Agreements 132,361,964.18 132,361,964.18 20.96 2 
Medium Term Notes 68,770,280.06 69,941,508.44 10.89 830 
Total Investments $ 631 463 5ZQ,25 $634,QOO 022 15 1!2Q.00% 233 
Cash/Bank Balances 16,126,745.03 16,126,745.03 

TOTAL $ 641520 315.28 $65Q 126 844 18 

Source: Stanislaus County Treasurer-Tax Collector. 

Teeter Plan 

The County has adopted the Teeter Plan which is an alternate procedure authorized in Chapter 3, 
Part 8, Division 1 of the Revenue and Taxation Code of the State of California (comprising Sections 4701 
through 4717, inclusive) (the "Law"), commonly referred to as the "Teeter Plan", for distribution of 
certain property tax levies on the secured roll. The Law has authorized the use of the Teeter Plan for 
over 40 years; however, until fiscal year 1993-94, it had been implemented in only five counties in the 
State. 

Pursuant to the Law, the County adopted Resolution No. 93-987 on October 5, 1993 adopting the 
Teeter Plan. Generally, the Teeter Plan provides for a tax distribution procedure by which secured roll 
taxes are distributed to taxing agencies within the County included in the Teeter Plan on the basis of the 
tax levy, rather than on the basis of actual tax collections. The County then receives all future delinquent 
tax payments, penalties and interest, and a complex tax redemption distribution system for all 
participating taxing agencies is avoided. Although assessments may also be made subject to the Teeter 
Plan, the County elected to advance only the property tax portion of the levy. The amounts advanced to 
the participating agencies for prior years' delinquent secured property taxes were internally funded. 
Within the County, all of the taxing agencies are participating in the Teeter Plan. 

In addition, pursuant to the Law, the County is required to establish a tax losses reserve fund to 
cover losses which may occur in the amount of tax liens as a result of special sales of tax-defaulted 
property. Once the tax losses reserve fund reaches a level of twenty-five percent of the total delinquent 
taxes, any additional penalties and interest that otherwise would be credited to the tax losses reserve fund 
are credited to the County General Fund. 

The County has covenanted that, except for the purpose of securing borrowings, the proceeds of 
which would be deposited to the General Fund, the County will take no action to sell, assign or otherwise 
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encumber the future delinquent tax payments, penalties and interest receivable by the County under the 
Teeter Plan. 

Impact of State Budget on County 

The County was required to adopt its budget for fiscal year 2003-04 by June 30, 2003. The 
2003-04 Budget, adopted on June 18, 2003, was balanced based upon information available as of that 
date. The 2003-04 Budget was intended to maintain essential County services and avoid reductions-in­
force where possible. The budgeted expenditures in the 2003-04 Budget are $751,363,985, which is a 1% 
increase over last fiscal year's budget. The 2003-04 Budget budgeted expenditures are slightly higher than 
the previous fiscal year due to increased employee-related costs and some one-time costs. These cost 
increases were projected to be offset by new revenue. 

While the County's 2003-04 Budget was balanced when adopted in June 2003, as a result of the 
2003-04 State Budget adoption in August 2003, the County projected a $7.8 million shortfall in fiscal 
year 2003-04. This projected shortfall was due to various factors, including, but not limited to, state 
program and services reductions, the recall election and health insurance increases. This shortfall was 
addressed through reducing departmental expenditures and increasing revenue, including the use of an 
additional $3 million in one-time funding to bring the County's revenue and expenditures back into 
balance. 

Further, the County has identified the following significant impacts to the County's projected 
fiscal status based on the 2004-05 Proposed Governor's Budget (see "Supplemental Financial Information 
-Proposed Governor's Budget for Fiscal Year 2004-05" herein): 

1. The County presently anticipates the receipt of approximately $33 million in Vehicle 
License Fee ("VLF") payments in Fiscal Year 2004-05 in connection with the proposed full 
reimbursement to local governments for the VLF offset program. 

2. The County anticipates a reduction in revenues of approximately $8.3 million in 
connection with the proposed shift of local government property taxes to the Educational Revenue 
Augmentation Fund (the "ERAF"). 

3. The County presently anticipates a reduction in revenues of approximately $670,000 in 
Fiscal Year 2004-05 as of October 1, 2004 and approximately $890,000 annually thereafter in connection 
with the proposed elimination of Temporary Assistance to Needy Families ("TANF") funds. 

4. The County anticipates an annual reduction in revenues of approximately $733,000 
relating the elimination of State reimbursement of jail booking fees to counties. 

The County continues to review the impact of the 2004-05 Proposed Governor's Budget on the 
County. The County cannot predict the ultimate impact of the 2004-05 Proposed Governor's Budget on 
its finances and operations, particularly with respect to health and human social services. 

SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The following information concerning the State of California budgets has been obtained from 
publicly available information that the County believes to be reliable; however, the County takes no 
responsibility as to the accuracy or completeness thereof and has not independently verified such 
information. 
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State Budget for Fiscal Year 2003-04 

On August 2, 2003, then-Governor Davis signed the 2003-04 Budget Act (the "2003-04 Budget 
Act") into law. The 2003-04 Budget Act projected that State General Fund (the "State General Fund") 
revenues would increase from $70.9 billion for Fiscal Year 2002-03, excluding the proceeds of any fiscal 
recovery bonds, to $72.8 billion in Fiscal Year 2003-04, an increase of 2.8 percent. State General Fund 
expenditures were projected to decrease from $78.1 billion in Fiscal Year 2002-03 to $70.8 billion in 
Fiscal Year 2003-04, or 10 percent. A significant portion of this 10 percent decrease was attributable to 
the Vehicle License Fee ("VLF") increase which eliminated the need for the State to backfill local 
governments, new federal funds, borrowings to cover the State's 2003-04 pension obligations, and the 
Medi-Cal accounting shift from an accrual to a cash basis. 

The 2003-04 Budget Act contained various reductions in local revenues provided by the State, 
including a reduction in VLF revenues of approximately $825 million during the period between the 
elimination of the State's VLF backfill and the increase in the VLF rate on October 1, 2003. The 
2003-04 Budget Act assumed that the VLF rate would increase from the rate of 0.65 percent to 
2.0 percent beginning October 1, 2003. During the approximately 90 day period between the date when 
the State backfill ended on July 1, 2003, and the date when the VLF rate increased, local governments 
would only receive revenues based on the 0.65 percent VLF rate. The 2003-04 Budget Act and related 
legislation required the State to repay the $825 million VLF "gap" loss to local governments no later than 
August 15, 2006. Governor Schwarzenegger subsequently rescinded the VLF rate increase retroactive to 
October 1, 2003. See "Proposed Governor's Budget for Fiscal Year 2004-05" below. 

The 2003-04 Budget Act identified a budget shortfall of $38.2 billion between expenditures and 
revenues and attempted to close this shortfall through a combination of program savings, borrowing, new 
revenues, funding shifts, and deferrals. Program savings were primarily achieved in the 2003-04 Budget 
Act through significant reductions in spending for certain programs. Some reductions in program 
spending were to be offset by higher fees. The year-end reserve was projected to be approximately $2 
billion and reflected the issuance of $10.7 billion in fiscal recovery bonds to eliminate the Fiscal Year 
2002-03 deficit and the issuance of a second series of tobacco securitization bonds. Governor 
Schwarzenegger subsequently proposed, and the State Legislature approved, placing a bond measure on 
the March 2, 2004 ballot authorizing the issuance of up to $15 billion of economic recovery bonds to 
replace the fiscal recovery bonds. The voters approved this measure on March 2, 2004. See "Proposed 
Governor's Budget for Fiscal Year 2004-05" below. 

Certain of the features of2003-04 Budget Act affecting counties included the following: 

1. The Senate budget package required redevelopment agencies to shift $250 million of 
redevelopment agency funds to the Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund (the "ERAF") in Fiscal 
Year 2003-04. The Assembly version of the budget also required such a one-time shift to the ERAF but 
set the amount at $13 5 million. 

2. The 2003-04 Budget Act repealed six mandates and suspended local government 
requirements to implement 37 other mandates in Fiscal Year 2003-04. The 2003-04 Budget Act deferred 
(to an unspecified date) State funding to reimburse local agencies for: (1) implementing 40 active 
mandates in Fiscal Year 2003-04 (about $200 million) and (2) unpaid prior-year mandate claims (about 
$700 million). 

3. The 2003-04 Budget Act reduced funding for the Citizens' Option for Public Safety and 
Juvenile Crime Prevention Grants program by $32.6 million (leaving $200 million to be divided equally 
between the two programs). 
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4. The Senate budget package eliminated the $38 million continuous appropriation for local 
government booking fees and county authority to charge local agencies fees for booking people into 
county jail The Assembly budget package, in contrast, maintained the continuous appropriation and 
county fee authority. 

Proposed Governor's Budget for Fiscal Year 2004-05 

On January 9, 2004, Governor Schwarzenegger (the "Governor") released his proposed budget 
for Fiscal Year 2004-05 (the "2004-05 Proposed Governor's Budget"). The 2004-05 Proposed 
Governor's Budget projects the State General Fund revenues for Fiscal Year 2004-05 to be $76.4 billion, 
an increase over the current fiscal year of 2.4 percent, and State General Fund expenditures to be $76.1 
billion, a decrease over the current fiscal year of2.4 percent. 

The revenue increases forecasted by the 2004-05 Proposed Governor's Budget include significant 
gains in the personal income tax, sales tax and corporation tax. Personal income tax revenues are 
forecasted to be $35.1 billion in Fiscal Year 2003-04 and $38 billion in Fiscal Year 2004-05. This 
forecast assumes that moderate growth will resume in Fiscal Year 2003-04. Sales and use tax revenue is 
forecasted at $23.7 billion in Fiscal Year 2003-04 and $25 billion in Fiscal Year 2004-05. This forecast 
assumes a 2.3 percent increase in taxable sales for Fiscal Year 2003-04 and that taxable sales increase at a 
faster rate in Fiscal Year 2004-05 and Fiscal Year 2005-06 due to the improving economy, increasing by 
5.8 percent and 5.4 percent, respectively. Corporate tax revenues are expected to total approximately 
$7.5 billion in Fiscal Year 2003-04 and approximately $7.6 billion in 2004-05. The 2004-05 Proposed 
Governor's Budget also forecasts $500 million in additional revenue from a 25 percent share of tribal 
gaming operations annual income. 

Certain of the features of the 2004-05 Proposed Governor's Budget affecting counties include the 
following: 

1. The 2004-05 Proposed Governor's Budget includes provisions for full reimbursement to 
local governments, including counties, for the VLF offset program in Fiscal Year 2004-05, resulting in 
payments estimated at $4.1 billion in such fiscal year. 

2. The 2004-05 Proposed Governor's Budget includes a $1.3 billion shift oflocal property 
taxes that would have been payable to certain local governments, including counties, to the ERAF, 
resulting in a decrease in payments of such taxes to such local governments of approximately IO percent. 

3. The 2004-05 Proposed Governor's Budget includes a provision to reduce and, by October 
2004, eliminate federal Temporary Assistance to Needy Families ("T ANF") funds used to support 
counties' juvenile probation services, including prevention, intervention, supervision, treatment, and 
incarceration programs for at-risk youth and juvenile offenders. 

4. The 2004-05 Proposed Governor's Budget includes a prov1s1on to eliminate State 
reimbursement of jail booking fees that would have been payable to counties. 

5. The 2004-05 Proposed Governor's Budget proposes major reform in the health and 
human services area, including, with respect to the Medi-Cal program, realigning eligibility standards, 
requiring co-payments, implementing a tiered benefit structure and conforming basic optional benefits to 
those offered under private plans, and with respect to the CalWORK.s program, increasing work 
incentives and reducing services and assistance payments thereunder. The 2004-05 Proposed Governor's 
Budget proposes budgeting $31.2 billion for the Medi-Cal program in Fiscal Year 2004-05. The State 
General Fund increase of 16.2 percent reflects the costs of using one-time savings in Fiscal Year 2003-04 
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because of a change in the Medi-Cal program from accrual accounting to cash accounting and Federal 
Medical Assistance Program amounts received in Fiscal Year 2003-04. 

6. The 2004-05 Proposed Governor's Budget assumes implementation of the 2003-04 Mid-
Year Spending Reduction Proposals to achieve State General Fund savings of $206.9 million in Fiscal 
Year 2003-04 and $479.4 million in Fiscal Year 2004-05. 

The 2004-05 Proposed Governor's Budget identifies an existing deficit of more than $22 billion, 
which includes an accumulated deficit through Fiscal Year 2002-03 of $9.3 billion and a pre-existing 
operating deficit in Fiscal Year 2003-04 of $3.0 billion. The 2004-05 Proposed Governor's Budget plan 
includes the issuance of up to $15 billion in Economic Recovery Bonds (the "Economic Recovery 
Bonds"), voter approved on March 2, 2004, to finance the State General Fund reserve and other State 
obligations incurred prior to June 30, 2004. In connection therewith, the 2004-05 Proposed Governor's 
Budget also includes a provision for the creation of a deficit recovery fund to finance what would 
otherwise be the State General Fund's costs of the existing debt. The amount of Economic Recovery 
Bond proceeds received but not used to finance the accumulated budget deficit through Fiscal Year 
2002-03 will be transferred into this new fund. The new fund is to be used in Fiscal Year 2004-05 to 
finance outstanding State obligations due in Fiscal Year 2003-04 and Fiscal Year 2004-05. The 
Economic Recovery Bonds will be a general obligation of the State and secured by a pledge of revenues 
from an increase in the State's share of the sales and use tax of one-quarter cent starting July 1, 2004. 
Such taxes would revert to their current levels when the bonds are repaid. The portion of sales and use 
tax that otherwise would have been allocated to local governments, including the County, would be 
decreased by a commensurate amount. Commencing in Fiscal Year 2004-05, local government's share of 
local property tax revenues would be restored by an amount equal to the one-quarter cent reduction in the 
local sales and use tax. 

LAO Reports 

On February 18, 2004, the State Legislative Analyst Office ("LAO") released an analysis of the 
2004-05 Proposed Governor's Budget (the "LAO Analysis"), which is available on the LAO website at 
www.lao.ca.gov. Information on this website is not incorporated herein by reference. The LAO Analysis 
generally agrees with the Governor's economic forecast with respect to improving growth in personal 
income and employment in the State. While the 2004-05 Proposed Governor's Budget projects a 
cumulative surplus of $635 million for Fiscal Year 2003-04 and Fiscal Year 2004-05, which assumed 
voter approval of the Economic Recovery Bonds at the March 2, 2004 election, the LAO Analysis 
estimates a deficit of $783 million for the same period. The difference reflects the LAO's forecast of 
lower revenues and higher costs to the State in Fiscal Year 2003-04 and Fiscal Year 2004-05. However, 
the LAO cautions that some of the solutions (including savings realized from the issuance of pension 
obligation bonds, Medi-Cal rate reduction and the renegotiation of tribal gaming compacts) in the 
Governor's proposal may not be realized and could increase the budget shortfall for Fiscal Year 2004-05 
to about $4 billion. The LAO Analysis states that a $7 billion ongoing gap between revenues and 
expenditures would occur in Fiscal Year 2005-06 and continue in subsequent years, absent further 
corrective action. 

Continuing State Budget Shortfall 

The County cannot predict whether the State will continue to encounter budgetary problems in 
this or in any future fiscal years, and if it were to do so, it is unknown what measures would be taken by 
the State to balance its budget, as required by law. Accordingly, the County cannot predict the :fmal 
outcome of future State budget negotiations, the impact that such budgets will have on its finances and 
operations or what actions will be taken in the future by the State Legislature and Governor to deal with 
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changing State revenues and expenditures. Current and future State budgets will be affected by national 
and State economic conditions and other factors, including the current economic downturn, over which 
the County has no control. See "County Financial Information- Impact of State Budget on County" 
herein. 

LIMITATIONS ON TAX REVENUES 

Article XIII A 

On June 6, 1978, California voters approved an amendment ( commonly known as both 
Proposition 13 and the Jarvis-Gann Initiative) to the California Constitution. This amendment, which 
added Article XIII A to the California Constitution, among other things affects the valuation of real 
property for the purpose of taxation in that it defines the full cash property value to mean "the county 
assessor's valuation of real property as shown on the 1975/76 tax bill under "full cash value", or 
thereafter, the appraised value of real property newly constructed, or when a change in ownership has 
occurred after the 1975 assessment." The full cash value may be adjusted annually to reflect inflation at a 
rate not to exceed 2% per year, or a reduction in the consumer price index or comparable local data at a 
rate not to exceed 2% per year, or reduced in the event of declining property value caused by damage, 
destruction or other factors including a general economic downturn. The amendment further limits the 
amount of any ad valorem tax on real property to one percent of the full cash value except that additional 
taxes may be levied to pay debt service on indebtedness approved by the voters prior to July 1, 1978, and 
bonded indebtedness for the acquisition or improvement of real property approved on or after July 1, 
1978 by two-thirds of the votes cast by the voters voting on the proposition. 

Legislation enacted by the California Legislature to implement Article XIII A provides that all 
taxable property is shown at full assessed value as described above. In conformity with this procedure, all 
taxable property value included in this Official Statement ( except as noted) is shown at I 00% of assessed 
value and all general tax rates reflect the $1 per $100 of taxable value. Tax rates for voter approved 
bonded indebtedness and pension liability are also applied to 100% of assessed value. 

Future assessed valuation growth allowed under Article XIII A (new construction, change of 
ownership, 2% annual value growth) will be allocated on the basis of "situs" among the jurisdictions that 
serve the tax rate area within which the growth occurs. Local agencies and school districts will share the 
growth of "base" revenue from the tax rate area. Each year's growth allocation becomes part of each 
agency's allocation the following year. The County is unable to predict the nature or magnitude of future 
revenue sources that may be provided by the State of California (the "State") to replace lost property tax 
revenues. Article XIII A effectively prohibits the levying of any other ad valorem property tax above the 
1 % limit except for taxes to support indebtedness approved by the voters as described above. 

Article XIII A Litigation 

In June 1978, Article XIIl A of the California Constitution was amended by Proposition 13 to, 
among other things, limit a County assessor's ability to annually adjust for inflation to 2% per year. See 
"Limitations on Tax Revenues-Article XIIl A" herein. On December 27, 2001, an Orange County 
Superior Court ruled in County of Orange v. Orange County Assessment Appeals Board No. 3 (the 
"Orange County Litigation") that the Orange County Assessor raised a homeowner's assessment in 
violation of Article XIII A by increasing the assessment on the homeowner's property by more than 2% 
per year, when the price appreciation in prior years was less than 2% per year. Orange County raised 
assessments by more than 2% in a single year if the value of a property remained flat after a taxpayer 
purchased the property, and then increased by more than 2% in a subsequent year. On December 12, 
2002, the Superior Court certified the lawsuit as a class action. On January 30, 2003, the Superior Court 
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held a hearing and ruled that the Orange County Tax Collector must notify the affected taxpayers of their 
right to file tax refund claims. Implementation of the motion is pending further review by the appellate 
courts on the entire case. On April 18, 2003, the Superior Court entered a Final Judgment which held that 
the current statewide practice of restoring property assessment, after a prior assessment reduction due to 
an economic downturn, based on the market value was invalid. On June 12, 2003, an appeal was filed 
with the Court of Appeal, Fourth District, Division Three. Oral arguments were conducted before the 
Court of Appeal on January 7, 2004 and a decision is expected by April 4, 2004. 

The County cannot predict the outcome of the Orange County Litigation. Presently, the Court's 
ruling in the Orange County Litigation applies only to the assessments involved in the case. However, if 
the Court's ruling is upheld on appeal and applied generally the loss of tax revenues to communities 
throughout the State could be significant. The ruling creates the possibility that all taxing agencies, 
including the County, would be required to give refunds of the portion of tax collections which resulted 
from increases in assessed valuations at a rate greater than 2% per annum. The County has not computed 
the amount of taxes that might be subject to refund if the ruling in the Orange County Litigation is upheld 
on appeal or what amount its tax collections would be lowered in future fiscal years, but does not believe 
that the outcome of the Orange County Litigation will adversely affect its ability to pay any of its 
obligations, including the Lease Payments, when due. 

Article XIII B 

On November 6, 1979, California voters approved Proposition 4, which added Article XIII B to 
the California Constitution. In 1990, the voters through their approval of Proposition 111 amended 
Article XIII B. Article XIII B of the California Constitution limits the annual appropriations of the State 
and any city, county, school district, authority or other political subdivision of the State to the level of 
appropriations for the prior fiscal year, as adjusted annually for changes in the cost of living, population 
and services rendered by the governmental entity. The "base year" for establishing such appropriation 
limit is the 1978-79 fiscal year. Increases in appropriations by a governmental entity are also permitted 
(i) if financial responsibility for providing services is transferred to the governmental entity, or (ii) for 
emergencies so long as the appropriations limits for the three years following the emergency are reduced 
to prevent any aggregate increase above the Constitutional limit. Decreases are required where 
responsibility for providing services is transferred from the government entity. 

Appropriations subject to Article XIII B include generally any authorization to expend during the 
fiscal year the proceeds of taxes levied by the State or other entity of local government, exclusive of 
certain State subventions, refunds of taxes, benefit payments from retirement, unemployment insurance 
and disability insurance funds. Appropriations subject to limitation pursuant to Article XIII B do not 
include debt service on indebtedness existing or legally authorized as of January 1, 1979, on bonded 
indebtedness thereafter approved according to law by a vote of the electors of the issuing entity voting in 
an election for such purpose, appropriations required to comply with mandates of courts or the Federal 
government, appropriations for qualified out lay projects, and appropriations by the State of revenues 
derived from any increase in gasoline taxes and motor vehicle weight fees above January 1, 1990 levels. 
"Proceeds of taxes" include, but are not limited to, all tax revenues and the proceeds to any entity of 
government from (i) regulatory licenses, user charges, and user fees to the extent such proceeds exceed 
the cost of providing the service or regulation, (ii) the investment of tax revenues and (iii) certain State 
subventions received by local governments. Article XIII B includes a requirement that if an entity's 
revenues in any year exceed the amount permitted to be spent, the excess would have to be returned by 
revising tax rates or fee schedules over the subsequent two fiscal years. 

As amended in 1990, the appropriations limit for the County in each year is based on the limit for 
the prior year, adjusted annually for changes in the costs of living and changes in population, and 
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adjusted, where applicable, for transfer of :financial responsibility of providing services to or from another 
unit of government. The change in the cost of living is, at the County's option, either (i) the percentage 
change in California per capita personal income, or (ii) the percentage change in the local assessment roll 
for the jurisdiction due to the addition of nonresidential new construction. The measurement of change in 
population is a blended average of Statewide overall population growth, and change in attendance at local 
school and community college ("K-14") districts. 

As amended by Proposition 111, the appropriations limit is tested over consecutive two-year 
periods. Any excess of the aggregate "proceeds of taxes" received by the County over such two-year 
period above the combined appropriations limits for those two years is to be returned to taxpayers by 
reductions in tax rates or fee schedules over the subsequent two years. 

Article XIII B permits any government entity to change the appropriations limit by vote of the 
electorate in conformity with statutory and Constitutional voting requirements, but any such voter­
approved change can only be effective for a maximum of four years. 

For fiscal year 2003-04, the County adopted the estimated annual appropriation limit in the 
amount of $210,498,839. The limitation will apply only to proceeds of taxes and therefore will not apply 
to service fees and charges, investment earnings on non-proceeds of taxes, fines, and revenue from the 
sale of property and taxes received from the State and Federal governments that are tied to special 
programs. Based on the County's 2002-03 budget, the funds subject to the Gann appropriations limit 
(total General Operating Budget minus non-proceeds of taxes, debt service, and the 1999-00 carry over) 
were approximately $111,103,447. 

Proposition 46 

On June 3, 1986, California voters approved Proposition 46, which added an additional 
exemption to the 1 % tax limitation imposed by Article XIII A. Under this amendment to Article XIII A, 
local governments and school districts may increase the property tax rate above 1 % for the period 
necessary to retire new general obligation bonds, if two-thirds of those voting in a local election approve 
the issuance of such bonds and the money raised through the sale of the bonds is used exclusively to 
purchase or improve real property. 

Proposition 62 

Proposition 62 was adopted by the voters at the November 4, 1986, general election which (a) 
requires that any new or higher taxes for general governmental purposes imposed by local governmental 
entities such as the County be approved by a two-thirds vote of the governmental entity's legislative body 
and by a majority vote of the voters of the governmental entity voting in an election on the tax, (b) 
requires that any special tax ( defined as taxes levied for other than general governmental purposes) 
imposed by a local government entity be approved by a two-thirds vote of the voters of the governmental 
entity voting in an election on the tax, ( c) restricts the use of revenues from a special tax to the purposes 
or for the service for which the special tax was imposed, ( d) prohibits the imposition of ad valorem taxes 
on real property by local governmental entities except as permitted by Article XIII A of the California 
Constitution, ( e) prohibits the imposition of transaction taxes and sales taxes on the sale of real property 
by local governmental entities, and (f) requires that any tax imposed by a local governmental entity on or 
after August 1, 1985, be ratified by a majority vote of the voters voting in an election on the tax within 
two years of the adoption of the initiative or be terminated by November 15, 1988. 

On September 28, 1995, the California Supreme Court, in the case of Santa Clara County Local 
Transportation Authority v. Guardino, upheld the constitutionality of Proposition 62. In this case, the 
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court held that a county-wide sales tax of one-half of one percent was a special tax that, under Section 
53722 of the Government Code, and was held invalid without the required two-thirds voter approval. The 
decision did not address the question of whether or not it should be applied retroactively. 

Following the Guardino decision upholding Proposition 62, several actions were filed 
challenging taxes imposed by public agencies since the adoption of Proposition 62. On June 4, 200 I, the 
California Supreme Court released its decision in one of these cases, Howard Jarvis Taxpayers 
Association v. City of La Habra, et al. ("La Habra"). In this case, the court held that a public agency's 
continued imposition and collection of a tax is an ongoing violation upon which the statute of limitations 
period begins anew with each collection. The court also held that, unless another statute or constitutional 
rule provided differently, the statute of limitations for challenges to taxes subject to Proposition 62 is 
three years. Accordingly, a challenge to a tax subject to Proposition 62 may only be made for those taxes 
received within three years of the date the action is brought. Since the adoption of Proposition 62, the 
County has not enacted any increase in taxes that would be subject to Proposition 62 

Right to Vote on Taxes Initiative-Proposition 218 

On November 5, 1996, the voters of the State approved Proposition 218, a constitutional 
initiative, entitled the "Right to Vote on Taxes Act" ("Proposition 218"). Proposition 218 adds Articles 
XIII C and XIII D to the California Constitution and contains a number of interrelated provisions 
affecting the ability of local governments, including the County, to levy and collect both existing and 
future taxes, assessments, fees and charges. Proposition 218 became effective on November 6, 1996. 
Senate Bill 919 was enacted to provide certain implementing provisions for Proposition 218 and became 
effective July 1, 1997. The County is unable to predict whether and to what extent Proposition 218 may 
be held to be constitutional or how its terms will be interpreted and applied by the courts. Proposition 218 
could substantially restrict the County's ability to raise future revenues and could subject certain existing 
sources of revenue to reduction or repeal, and increase the County's costs to hold elections, calculate fees 
and assessments, notify the public and defend its fees and assessments in court. Further, as described 
below, Proposition 218 provides for broad initiative powers to reduce or repeal assessments, fees and 
charges. This initiative power is not limited by the terms of Proposition 218 to fees imposed after 
November 6, 1996 and absent other legal authority could result in retroactive reduction in any existing 
taxes, assessments or fees and charges, However, other than any impact resulting from the exercise of this 
initiative power, presently the County does not believe that the potential financial impact on the financial 
condition of the County as a result of the provisions of Proposition 218 will adversely affect the County's 
ability to pay debt service on the Certificates as and when due and its other obligations payable from the 
General Fund. 

Article XIII C of Proposition 218 requires majority voter approval for the imposition, extension 
or increase of general taxes and two-thirds voter approval for the imposition, extension or increase of 
special taxes, including special taxes deposited into the County's General Fund. Proposition 218 also 
provides that any general tax imposed, extended or increased without voter approval by any local 
government on or after January 1, 1995 and prior to November 6, 1996 shall continue to be imposed only 
if approved by a majority vote in an election held within two years of November 6, 1996. The County has 
not enacted imposed, extended or increased any tax without voter approval since January 1, 1995. These 
voter approval requirements of Proposition 218 reduce the flexibility of the County to raise revenues 
through General Fund taxes, and no assurance can be given that the County will be able to raise such 
taxes in the future to meet increased expenditure requirements. 

Article XIII C of Proposition 218 also expressly extends the initiative power to give voters the 
power to reduce or repeal local taxes, assessments, fees and charges, regardless of the date such taxes, 
assessments, fees or charges were imposed. This extension of the initiative power to some extent 
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constitutionalizes the March 6, 1995 State Supreme Court decision in Rossi v. Brown, which upheld an 
initiative that repealed a local tax and held that the State constitution does not preclude the repeal, 
including the prospective repeal, of a tax ordinance by an initiative, as contrasted with the State 
constitutional prohibition on referendum powers regarding statutes and ordinances which impose a tax. 
Generally, the initiative process enables California voters to enact legislation upon obtaining requisite 
voter approval at a general election. Proposition 218 extends the authority stated in Rossi v. Brown by 
expanding the initiative power to include reducing or repealing assessments, fees and charges, which had 
previously been considered administrative rather than legislative matters and therefore beyond the 
initiative power. This extension of the initiative power is not limited by the terms of Proposition 218 to 
fees imposed after November 6, 1996 and absent other legal authority could result in retroactive reduction 
in any existing taxes, assessments or fees and charges. Such legal authority could include the limitations 
imposed on the impairment of contracts under the contract clause of the United States Constitution. SB 
919 provides that the initiative power provided for in Proposition 218 "shall not be construed to mean that 
any owner or beneficial owner of a municipal security, purchased before or after (the effective date of 
Proposition 218) assumes the risk of, or in any way consents to, any action by initiative measure that 
constitutes an impairment of contractual rights" protected by the United States Constitution. However, no 
assurance can be given that the voters of the County will not, in the future, approve an initiative which 
reduces or repeals local taxes, assessments, fees or charges that currently are deposited into the County's 
General Fund. Further, "fees" and "charges" are not defmed in Article XIII C or SB 919, and it is unclear 
whether these terms are intended to have the same meanings for purposes of Article XIlI C as they do in 
Article XIII D, as described below. Accordingly, the scope of the initiative power under Article XIII C 
could include all sources of General Fund moneys not received from or imposed by the federal or State 
government or derived from investment income. 

The initiative power granted under Article XIII C of Proposition 218, by its terms, applies to all 
local taxes, assessments, fees and charges and is not limited to local taxes, assessments, fees and charges 
that are property-related. The County is unable to predict whether the courts will interpret the initiative 
provision to be limited to property-related fees and charges. No assurance can be given that the voters of 
the County will not, in the future, approve an initiative which reduces or repeals local taxes, assessments, 
fees or charges which are deposited into the County's General Fund. The County has assessed the 
potential impact on its fmancial condition of the provisions of Proposition 218 respecting the imposition 
and increase of taxes, fees, charges and assessments and does not believe that an election by the voters to 
reduce or eliminate the imposition of certain existing fees, charges, assessments and taxes would 
substantially affect its :financial condition. However, the County believes that in the event that the 
initiative power was exercised so that all local taxes, assessments, fees and charges which may be subject 
to the provisions of Proposition 218 are eliminated or substantially reduced, the financial condition of the 
County, including its General Fund, could be materially adversely affected. Although the County does 
not currently anticipate that the provisions of Proposition 218 would adversely affect its ability to pay the 
principal of and interest on the Certificates as and when due and its other obligations payable from the 
General Fund, no assurance can be given regarding the ultimate interpretation or effect of Proposition 218 
on the County's fmances. 

Article XIII D of Proposition 218 adds several new requirements making it generally more 
difficult for local agencies to levy and maintain "assessments" for municipal services and programs. 
"Assessment" is defmed in Proposition 218 and SB 919 to mean any levy or charge upon real property for 
a special benefit conferred upon the real property. This includes maintenance assessments imposed in 
County service areas and in special districts. In most instances, in the event that the County is unable to 
collect assessment revenues relating to specific programs as a consequence of Proposition 218, the 
County will curtail such services rather than use amounts in the General Fund to finance such programs. 
In addition, independent fire districts within the County impose assessments that may be subject to 
Proposition 218. Accordingly, the County anticipates that any impact Proposition 218 may have on 
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existing or future taxes, fees, and assessments will not adversely affect the ability of the County to pay 
debt service on the Certificates as and when due. However, no assurance can be given that the County 
may or will be able to reduce or eliminate such services in the event the assessments that presently 
finance them are reduced or repealed. 

Article XIII D of Proposition 218 also adds several provisions affecting "fees" and "charges" 
which are defined as "any levy other than an ad valorem tax, a special tax, or an assessment, imposed by a 
local government upon a parcel or upon a person as an incident of property ownership, including a user 
fee or charge for a property related service." All new and, after June 30, 1998, existing property related 
fees and charges must conform to requirements prohibiting, among other things, fees and charges which 
(i) generate revenues exceeding the funds required to provide the property related service, (ii) are used for 
any purpose other than those for which the fees and charges are imposed, (iii) are for a service not 
actually used by, or immediately available to, the owner of the property in question, or (iv) are used for 
general governmental services, including police, fire or library services, where the service is available to 
the public at large in substantially the same manner as it is to property owners. Further, before any 
property related fee or charge may be imposed or increased, written notice must be given to the record 
owner of each parcel of land affected by such fee or charge. The County must then hold a hearing upon 
the proposed imposition or increase of such property based fee, and if written protests against the 
proposal are presented by a majority of the owners of the identified parcels, the County may not impose 
or increase the fee or charge. Moreover, except for fees or charges for sewer, water and refuse collection 
services, no property related fee or charge may be imposed or increased without majority approval by the 
property owners subject to the fee or charge or, at the option of the local agency, two-thirds voter 
approval by the electorate residing in the affected area. The County believes that all such "fees" and 
"charges" that are currently imposed conform to these requirements. 

The fees and charges of the County's enterprise funds, including those which are not property 
related for purposes of Article XIII D of Proposition 218, may be determined to be fees and charges 
subject to the initiative power as provided in Article XIII C of Proposition 218, as described above. In the 
event that fees and charges cannot be appropriately increased or are reduced pursuant to the exercise of 
the initiative power, the County may have to choose whether to reduce or eliminate the service financed 
by such fees or charges or finance such service from its General Fund. Further, no assurance can be given 
that the County may or will be able to reduce or eliminate such services in the event the fees and charges 
that presently finance them are reduced or repealed. 

Additional implementing legislation respecting Proposition 218 may be introduced in the State 
legislature from time to time that would supplement and add provisions to California statutory law. No 
assurance may be given as to the terms of such legislation or its potential impact on the County. 

Future Initiatives 

Article XIII A, Article XIII Band Propositions 46, 62 and 218 were each adopted as measures 
that qualified for the ballot pursuant to the State's initiative process. From time to time, other initiative 
measures could be adopted, which may place further limitations on the ability of the State, the County or 
local districts to increase revenues or to increase appropriations which may affect the County's revenues 
or its ability to expend its revenues. 
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RISK FACTORS 

Potential investors in evaluating the Certificates should consider the following factors, along with 
all other information in this Official Statement. 

Not a Pledge of Taxes 

The obligation of the County to pay the Lease Payments and Additional Payments does not 
constitute an obligation of the County for which the County is obligated to levy or pledge any form of 
taxation or for which the County has levied or pledged any form of taxation. The obligation of the 
County to pay Lease Payments and Additional Payments does not constitute a debt or indebtedness of the 
County, the State of California or any of its political subdivisions within the meaning of any 
constitutional or statutory debt limitation or restriction. 

Although the Lease Agreements do not create a pledge, lien or encumbrance upon the funds of 
the County, the County is obligated under the Lease Agreements to pay Lease Payments and Additional 
Payments from any source of legally available funds (subject to certain exceptions) and the County has 
covenanted in each Lease Agreement that, for as long as the Property related to such Lease Agreement is 
available for its use and possession, it will make the necessary annual appropriations within its budget, 
beginning with fiscal year 2004-05, for all Lease Payments and Additional Payments due thereunder. 

Additional Obligations of the County 

The County is permitted to enter into other obligations that constitute additional charges against 
its revenues without the consent of Owners of the Certificates. To the extent that the County incurs 
additional obligations, the funds available to pay Lease Payments may be decreased. 

The Lease Payments and other payments due under the Lease Agreements (including payment of 
costs of repair and maintenance of the Property, taxes and other governmental charges levied against the 
Property) are payable from funds lawfully available to the County. In the event that the amounts which 
the County is obligated to pay in a fiscal year exceed the County's revenues for such year, the County 
may choose to make some payments rather than making other payments, including Lease Payments and 
Additional Payments, based on the perceived needs of the County. The same result could occur if, 
because of California Constitutional limits on expenditures, the County is not permitted to appropriate 
and spend all of its available revenues or is required to expend available revenues to preserve the public 
health, safety and welfare. 

Default; No Acceleration 

Whenever any event of default referred to in the Lease Agreements happens and continues, the 
Trustee is authorized under the terms of the Lease Agreements to exercise any and all remedies available 
pursuant to law or granted pursuant to the Lease Agreements; provided, however, that notwithstanding 
anything therein or in the Trust Agreements to the contrary, THERE SHALL BE NO RIGHT UNDER 
ANY CIRCUMSTANCES TO ACCELERATE THE LEASE PAYMENTS OR OTHERWISE 
DECLARE ANY LEASE PAYMENTS NOT THEN DUE OR PAST DUE TO BE IMMEDIATELY 
DUE AND PAYABLE. Following an event of default under a Lease Agreement, at the direction of the 
Insurer, the Trustee may elect either to terminate such Lease Agreement and seek to collect damages from 
the County or to maintain such Lease Agreement in effect and seek to collect the Lease Payments as they 
become due thereunder. The Lease Agreements further provide that the Trustee can elect to re-enter and 
re-let the Property following an event of default subject to the right of any sub-lessee lawfully occupying 
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a portion of the Property. An event of default under one Lease Agreement is not an event of default under 
the other Lease Agreement as the Lease Agreements are not subject to cross-default. 

Under the Lease Agreements, the County will agree that if the Lease Agreements is not 
terminated by the Trustee following any event of default, it will remain liable for the payment of Lease 
Payments and Additional Payments and the performance of all conditions therein contained and to 
reimburse the Authority, or its assignee, for the full amount of the Lease Payments and Additional 
Payments to the end of the term of the Lease Agreements, but said Lease Payments and Additional 
Payments will be payable only at the same time and in the same manner as provided in the Lease 
Agreements. The County further agrees to reimburse the Authority, and its assignee, for any cost or 
expense, including attorneys' fees, incurred by the Authority or its assignee in collecting the Lease 
Payments and Additional Payments thereunder following a default. The County covenants and agrees 
that no surrender of the Property by it for the remainder of the term of a Lease Agreement will be valid to 
terminate its obligations thereunder except where the Authority, or its assignee, has expressly elected to 
terminate such Lease Agreement. No surrender or termination of the Lease Agreements will be affected 
merely by operation of law. 

No assurance can be given that the Trustee will be able to re-let the Property so as to provide 
rental income sufficient to pay principal and interest evidenced by the Certificates in a timely manner or 
that such re-letting will not adversely affect the exclusion of interest with respect thereto from gross 
income for federal or State income tax purposes. Furthermore, it is not certain whether a court would 
permit the exercise of the remedies of repossession and re-letting with respect to the Property. 

In the event of a default, there is no remedy of acceleration of the total Lease Payments due over 
the term of the Lease Agreements and the Trustee is not empowered to sell the Property and use the 
proceeds of such sale to prepay the Certificates or pay debt service with respect thereto. The County will 
be liable only for Lease Payments on an annual basis and, in the event of a default, the Trustee would be 
required to seek a separate judgment each year for that year's defaulted Lease Payments. Any such suit 
for money damages would be subject to limitations on legal remedies against counties in California, 
including a limitation on enforcement of judgments against funds of a Fiscal Year other than the Fiscal 
Year in which the Lease Payments were due and against funds needed to serve the public welfare and 
interest. 

Substitution or Release of Property 

The Lease Agreements provide that, upon satisfaction of the conditions specified therein, the 
County may release from the Lease Agreements and Site Leases any portion of the Property or substitute 
other property and improvements for all or a portion of the Property. Although each Lease Agreement 
requires that the property which will comprise the Property after such release or substitution must have an 
annual fair rental value equal to or greater than the Lease Payments thereafter becoming due and payable 
under the related Lease Agreement, the Lease Agreements do not require that such property have an 
annual fair rental value equal to or greater than the annual fair rental value of the property comprising the 
Property at the time of substitution or release. Thus, a portion of the property comprising the Property 
could be replaced with less valuable property, or could be released altogether. Such a replacement or 
release could have an adverse impact on the security for the related Series of Certificates secured by such 
Property, particularly if an event requiring abatement of Lease Payments were to occur subsequent to 
such substitution or release. 
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Abatement 

The obligation of the County under the Lease Agreements to pay Lease Payments is in 
consideration for the use and possession of the Property. The obligation of the County to make Lease 
Payments under a Lease Agreement may be abated in whole or in part if the County does not have full use 
and possession of the Property leased thereunder. The amount of Lease Payments due under a Lease 
Agreement will be abated during any period in which by reason of damage, destruction, condemnation or 
title defect there is substantial interference with the use and possession of the Property leased thereunder. 
Such abatement will end with the substantial completion or replacement, repair or reconstruction of the 
Property or a portion thereof, or the elimination of the title defect interfering with the use of the Property 
or a portion thereof. 

Each Reserve Fund will be funded in an amount equal to the Reserve Requirement for the 
respective Series of Certificates. Funds on deposit in the Reserve Fund for a Series may be used by the 
Trustee to make payments with respect to the respective Certificates in the event amounts received by the 
Trustee are insufficient to pay principal and interest represented by the Certificates as such amounts 
become due. If damage or destruction or eminent domain proceedings with respect to the Property result 
in abatement of Lease Payments, and the resulting Lease Payments, together with moneys in the Lease 
Payment Fund, Interest Account, Principal Account and Reserve Fund for a Series, are insufficient to 
make all payments of principal and interest represented by the related Series of Certificates during the 
period that the Property is being replaced, repaired, reconstructed or completed, then payments of the 
principal and interest components due shall be made to the Trustee from the proceeds of rental 
interruption insurance or other amounts pursuant to the Trust Agreement for such Series. 

The amounts available to the Trustee following an abatement may not be sufficient to pay 
principal and interest represented by the Certificates in the amounts and at the rates set forth thereon. In 
such an event, all Certificate Owners of the affected Series would forfeit a pro rata portion of interest 
attributable to abated Lease Payments payable during the period of abatement and, to the extent 
Certificates mature during a period of abatement, the Owners of such Certificates would forfeit a pro rata 
portion of principal attributable to such abated Lease Payments. The failure to make payments of 
principal and interest as a result of an abatement would not under such circumstances constitute a default 
under the Trust Agreements, the Lease Agreements or the Certificates. 

Security 

Military conflicts and terrorist activities may adversely impact the operation of the County and 
Lease Payments made under the Lease Agreements. In addition, the County may experience a decrease 
with respect to its revenues and an increase with respect to its expenses because of any change in 
economic circumstances as a result of future military conflicts or terrorist activities. Such a reduction in 
revenues may include, but is not limited to, a decline in airport, transient occupancy tax, parking tax, 
business tax and sales tax revenues and such an increase in expenses may include, but is not limited to, an 
increase in worker's compensation expenses. 

The County is subject to safety and security measures and inspections on a continuing basis. 
Neither the Authority nor the County represent that any existing or additional safety and security 
measures will be adequate in the event that terrorist activities are directed against the County or that costs 
of security measures will not be greater than presently anticipated. See "Risk Factors - Abatement" 
herein. 
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Earthquakes and Natural Disasters 

The County is not obligated under the Lease Agreements to procure and maintain, or cause to be 
procured and maintained, earthquake insurance on the Property, unless the County, in its reasonable 
discretion, determines that such coverage is available from reputable insurers at commercially reasonable 
rates. The County currently has no earthquake insurance on the Property and does not anticipate such 
insurance being available at commercially reasonable rates. The County is not located in a recognized 
earthquake zone and no known major earthquake fault is located within the County. However, like many 
California communities, the County is subject to unpredictable seismic activity, fires, flood or other 
natural disasters. Although no known active or inactive fault lines pass through, or near, the Property, 
seismic activity, fire, flood or other natural disasters could result in substantial damage to and interference 
with the County's right to use and possession of all or a portion of the Property could result in Lease 
Payments being subject to abatement. 

Limitations on Remedies 

The rights of the owners of the Certificates are subject to the limitations on legal remedies against 
counties in the State, including a limitation on enforcement of judgments against funds needed to serve 
the public welfare and interest. Additionally, enforceability of the rights and remedies of the owners of 
the Certificates, and the obligations incurred by the County, may become subject to the federal 
bankruptcy code and applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, or similar laws 
relating to or affecting the enforcement of creditors rights generally, now or hereafter in effect, equity 
principles which may limit the specific enforcement under State law of certain remedies, the exercise by 
the United States of America of the powers delegated to it by the Constitution, the reasonable and 
necessary exercise, in certain exceptional situations, of the police powers inherent in the sovereignty of 
the State and its governmental bodies in the interest of serving a significant and legitimate public purpose 
and the limitations on remedies against counties in the State. Bankruptcy proceedings, or the exercise of 
powers by the federal or State government, if initiated, could subject the owners of the Certificates to 
judicial discretion and interpretation of their rights in bankruptcy or otherwise, and consequently may 
entail risks of delay, limitation, or modification of their rights. 

Bankruptcy 

In addition to the limitation on remedies contained in the Trust Agreements, the rights and 
remedies provided in the Trust Agreements and the Lease Agreements may be limited by and are subject 
to the provisions of federal bankruptcy laws and to other laws or equitable principles that may affect the 
enforcement of creditors rights. Under Chapter 9 of the Bankruptcy Code (Title 11, United States Code), 
which governs the bankruptcy proceedings for public agencies such as the County, there are no 
involuntary petitions in bankruptcy. Bankruptcy proceedings, if initiated, could subject the owners of the 
Certificates to judicial discretion and interpretation of their rights in bankruptcy proceedings or otherwise, 
and consequently may entail risks of delay, limitation or modification of their rights. 

THE AUTHORITY 

The Stanislaus County Capital Improvements Financing Authority was established pursuant to a 
Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, dated as of September 1, 1989, by and between the County and the 
Redevelopment Agency of Stanislaus County. The Board of Supervisors of the County is appointed as 
the Governing Board of the Authority. 
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TAX MATTERS 

In the opinion of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation, Newport Beach, 
California, Special Counsel, under existing statutes, regulations, rulings and judicial decisions, interest 
due with respect to the Certificates is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and is 
not an item of tax preference for purposes of calculating the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on 
individuals and corporations. In the further opinion of Special Counsel, interest due with respect to the 
Certificates is exempt from State of California personal income tax. Special Counsel notes that, with 
respect to corporations, interest due with respect to the Certificates may be included as an adjustment in 
the calculation of alternative minimum taxable income which may affect the alternative minimum tax 
liability of such corporations. 

The difference between the issue price of a Certificate (the first price at which a substantial 
amount of the Certificates of the same series and maturity is to be sold to the public) and the stated 
redemption price at maturity with respect to such Certificate constitutes original issue discount. Original 
issue discount accrues under a constant yield method, and original issue discount will accrue to the owner 
of the Certificate before receipt of cash attributable to such excludable income. The amount of original 
issue discount deemed received by the owner of a Certificate will increase the owner's basis in the 
Certificate. In the opinion of Special Counsel original issue discount that accrues to the owner of a 
Certificate is excluded from the gross income of such owner for federal income tax purposes, is not an 
item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and 
corporations, and is exempt from State of California personal income tax. 

Special Counsel's opinion as to the exclusion from gross income of interest (and original issue 
discount) due with respect to the Certificates is based upon certain representations of fact and 
certifications made by the County, the Central Valley Center for the Arts, Inc., a 501(c)(3) nonprofit 
corporation organized to support the arts in the County and Gallo Center for the Arts, LLC, a single 
member LLC that is wholly-owned by CVCA (collectively "CVCA") and others and is subject to the 
condition that the County and CVCA comply with all requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, 
as amended (the "Code"), that must be satisfied subsequent to the execution and delivery of the 
Certificates to assure that the portion of each Lease Payment constituting interest (and original issue 
discount) will not become includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes. Failure to comply 
with such requirements of the Code might cause interest (and original issue discount) due with respect to 
the Certificates to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of 
execution and delivery of the Certificates. The County and CVCA have covenanted to comply with all 
such requirements. 

The amount by which a Certificate Owner's original basis for determining loss on sale or 
exchange in the applicable Certificate (generally, the purchase price) exceeds the amount payable on 
maturity ( or on an earlier call date) constitutes amortizable Certificate premium, which must be amortized 
under Section 171 of the Code; such amortizable Certificate premium reduces the Certificate Owner's 
basis in the applicable Certificate (and the amount of tax-exempt interest received), and is not deductible 
for federal income tax purposes. The basis reduction as a result of the amortization of Certificate 
premium may result in a Certificate Owner realizing a taxable gain when a Certificate is sold by the 
Owner for an amount equal to or less (under certain circumstances) than the original cost of the 
Certificate to the Owner. Purchasers of the Certificates should consult their own tax advisors as to the 
treatment, computation and collateral consequences of amortizable Certificate premium. 

The County has elected, pursuant to Treasury Regulation Section l.150-l(c)(3) that the Series 
2004A Certificates, which are being issued to finance the Series 2004A Project, shall constitute qualified 
501(c)(3) bonds within the meaning of Section 145 of the Code. With respect to the Series 2004A 
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Certificates, Special Counsel has relied on the opinion of Slovak Baron & Empey LLP, Palm Springs, 
California, Counsel to CVCA, that CVCA is an organization described in Section 50l(c)(3) of the Code 
and other matters. Neither Special Counsel nor CVCA's Counsel can give or has given any opinion or 
assurance about the future activities of CVCA, or about the effect of future changes in the Code, the 
applicable regulations, the interpretation thereof or the resulting changes in enforcement thereof by the 
Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS"). Failure of CVCA to be organized and operated in accordance with 
IRS's requirements for the maintenance of its status as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of 
the Code may result in interest with respect to the Certificates being included in federal gross income, 
possibly from the date of the original execution and delivery of the Certificates. 

As described in the Preliminary Official Statement relating to the Certificates, dated March 12, 
2004 (the "Preliminary Official Statement"), in its Circular 230, the Department of the Treasury has 
proposed modifications to its regulations governing the practice before the IRS. The proposed 
modifications would treat opinions on tax-exempt bonds as tax shelter opinions subject to special 
restrictions relating to the form of the opinion, among other matters. Subsequent to the publication of the 
Preliminary Official Statement, the IRS made an announcement, the effect of which is that the proposed 
modifications to Circular 230 will not be applicable to the Certificates. As a result, Special Counsel 
expects to deliver the proposed form of opinion attached hereto as Appendix D. 

Special Counsel's opinions may be affected by actions taken (or not taken) or events occurring (or 
not occurring) after the date hereof. Special Counsel has not undertaken to determine, or to inform any 
person, whether any such actions or events are taken or do occur. The Trust Agreements, the Lease 
Agreements, and the Tax Certificate permit certain actions to be taken or to be omitted if a favorable 
opinion of Special Counsel is provided with respect thereto. Special Counsel expresses no opinion as to 
the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of interest (and original issue discount) 
due with respect to any Certificate if any such action is taken or omitted based upon the advice of counsel 
other than Stradling Y occa Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation. 

The IRS has initiated an expanded program for the auditing of tax-exempt bond issues, including 
both random and targeted audits. It is possible that the Certificates will be selected for audit by the IRS. 
It is also possible that the market value of the Certificates might be affected as a result of such an audit of 
the Certificates (or by an audit of similar securities). 

Although Special Counsel has rendered an opinion that the interest (and original issue discount) 
due with respect to the Certificates is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes 
provided that the County continues to comply with certain requirements of the Code, the ownership of the 
Certificates and the accrual or receipt of interest ( and original issue discount) with respect to the 
Certificates may otherwise affect the tax liability of certain persons. Special Counsel expresses no 
opinion regarding any such tax consequences. Accordingly, before purchasing any of the Certificates, all 
potential purchasers should consult their tax advisors with respect to collateral tax consequences with 
respect to the Certificates. 

The form of Special Counsel's opinion with respect to the Certificates is attached hereto as 
Appendix D. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Included herein as Appendix B are the audited financial statements of the County as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2003, together with the report thereon dated October 16, 2003 of Bartig, Basler & 
Ray, A Professional Corporation, independent certified public accountants ("Bartig, Basler & Ray"). 
Such audited financial statements have been included herein in reliance upon such report. Bartig, Basler 
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& Ray has consented to the use of the audited financial statements of the County and the report as 
Appendix Bin this Official Statement. However, Bartig, Basler & Ray has not undertaken to update the 
audited financial statements of the County or its report or to take any action intended or likely to elicit 
information concerning the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the statements made in this Official 
Statement, and no opinion is expressed by Bartig, Basler & Ray with respect to any event subsequent to 
its report dated October 16, 2003. 

CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS 

Certain legal matters incident to the authorization, sale, execution and delivery of the Certificates 
are subject to the approval of Stradling Y occa Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation, Special 
Counsel. A complete copy of the proposed form of opinion of Special Counsel is contained in Appendix 
D hereto. Special Counsel has not undertaken any responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or 
fairness of this Official Statement or other offering materials relating to the Certificates and expresses no 
opinion relating thereto. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the County by its disclosure 
counsel, Hawkins Delafield & Wood LLP, Los Angeles, California and for the County and the Authority 
by the County Counsel. 

LITIGATION 

To the best knowledge of the County there is no action, suit or proceeding known to be pending 
or threatened restraining or enjoining the execution or delivery of the Certificates, the Trust Agreements, 
the Lease Agreements, or any other document relating to the Certificates, or in any way contesting or 
affecting the validity of the foregoing. 

There are a number of lawsuits and claims pending against the County. In the opinion of the 
County, such suits and claims as are presently pending will not have a material adverse affect on the 
ability of the County to make Lease Payments. 

RATING 

Moody's Investors Service, Inc. ("Moody's") has assigned its municipal bond rating of "AAA" to 
the Certificates with the understanding that the Insurer will issue its Insurance Policy securing the 
payment when due of the principal of and interest on the Certificates concurrently with the issuance of the 
Certificates. Such a rating reflects only the view of Moody's, and does not constitute a recommendation 
to buy, sell or hold the Certificates. An explanation of the significance of such rating may be obtained 
only from Moody's. There is no assurance that such rating will continue for any given period of time or 
that it will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by Moody's if in the judgment of 
circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or withdrawal of such rating may have an 
adverse effect on the market price of the Certificates. 

UNDERWRITING 

The Certificates are being purchased by the Underwriter named on the cover page hereof 
(the "Underwriter") pursuant to a Certificate Purchase Agreement with the County (the "Purchase 
Agreement"). The Underwriter has agreed, subject to certain conditions, to purchase the Series 2004A 
Certificates at a price of $15,141,562.45 and the Series 2004B Certificates at a price of $27,099,625.85. 
The Purchase Agreement relating to the Certificates provides that the Underwriter will purchase all of the 
Certificates if any are purchased, the obligation to make such purchase being subject to certain terms and 
conditions set forth in the Purchase Agreement, the approval of certain legal matters by counsel and 
certain other conditions. The Underwriter may offer and sell the Certificates to certain dealers and others 
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at prices lower than the offering prices stated on the cover page. The offering prices may be changed from 
time to time by the Underwriter. 

FINANCIAL ADVISOR 

The County has retained Kelling, Northcross & Nobriga, A Division of Zion's First National 
Bank, as :financial advisor (the "Financial Advisor") in connection with the issuance of the Certificates. 
The compensation of the Financial Advisor for this issue is contingent on the successful sale of the 
Certificates. The Financial Advisor is not obligated to undertake an independent verification of or assume 
responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the information contained in this Official 
Statement. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to a Continuing Disclosure Agreement with the Trustee (the "Disclosure Agreement"), 
the County has agreed to provide, or cause to be provided, with respect to each fiscal year commencing 
with fiscal year 2003-04, by no later than January 1 after the end of the prior fiscal year, to each 
nationally recognized municipal securities information repository and any public or private repository or 
entity designated by the State as a state repository ( each, a "Repository") for purposes of Rule 15c2-
12(b )(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Rule") certain annual financial 
information and operating data, including its audited rmancial statements and information of the type set 
forth in this Official Statement under the heading "County Financial Information." See Appendix F -
"Form of Continuing Disclosure Agreement." The County has never failed to comply in all material 
respects with any previous undertakings with regard to the Rule to provide annual reports or notices of 
material events. 
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MISCELLANEOUS 

Included herein are brief summaries of certain documents and reports, which summaries do not 
purport to be complete or definitive, and reference is made to such documents and reports for full and 
complete statements of the contents thereof. Any statements in this Official Statement involving matters 
of opinion, whether or not expressly so stated, are intended as such and not as representations of fact. 
This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or agreement between the County and the 
purchasers or Owners of any of the Certificates. 

The execution and delivery of this Official Statement has been duly authorized by the County. 

COUNTY OF STANISLAUS 

By: Isl Patricia Hill-Thomas 
Patricia Hill-Thomas 
Interim Chief Executive Officer 
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APPENDIX A 

ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPIDC INFORMATION 
REGARDING THE COUNTY OF STANISLAUS 

There follows in this Official Statement a brief description of the County of Stanislaus 
(the "County"), together with current information concerning its economy and governmental organization. 

General Information 

The County of Stanislaus was organized on April 1, 1854 and is a general law county governed 
by the General Law Statutes of the State of California (the "State"). The County, which is located in the 
Central Valley region of the State about 300 miles north of Los Angeles and 90 miles east of San 
Francisco, covers approximately 1,494 square miles or 869,338 mapped acres. Approximately 44.5% of 
the County's acreage consists of farmland and 43% is used for grazing land. 

The City of Modesto, incorporated on August 6, 1854, serves as the County seat. The other eight 
incorporated cities of the County are Ceres, Hughson, Newman, Oakdale, Patterson, Riverbank, Turlock 
and Waterford. 

As required by State and federal mandate, the County is responsible at the local level for 
activities involving public welfare, health and justice, including the administration of courts and jails, and 
for the maintenance of public records, land use, solid waste disposal, assessment, collection of ad valorem 
taxes, and road transportation activities. The County also operates recreational and cultural facilities 
serving both the incorporated and unincorporated areas of the County. 

Governmental Organization 

The five-member Board of Supervisors serves as the legislative body of the County. Members 
are elected by district to four-year terms, with elections held every two years on a staggered basis. 

The Chief Executive Officer manages the activities of the County's departments and the County 
Counsel provides legal counsel to the Board of Supervisors. Both officers are hired by and are directly 
responsible to the Board of Supervisors. Other elected officials include the Assessor, Auditor-Controller, 
Sheriff-Coroner, District Attorney, Clerk-Recorder, and Treasurer-Tax Collector. 

The County provides a wide range of services to its residents, including police protection, 
medical and health services, library services, judicial institutions including support programs, road 
maintenance, airport service, parks and a variety of public assistance programs. Other services provided 
by special districts, which are governed by the County Board of Supervisors, include fire protection, 
lighting, sanitation and flood control. The County provides a wide variety of services for unincorporated 
towns and rural areas, which is approximately 25% of the population. 

Education and Community Services 

Within the County a variety of public and private educational institutions furnish area residents 
with excellent instructional services. There are 29 school districts in the County, providing kindergarten 
through twelfth grade education. In State Achievement Tests, County students collectively have ranked 
above average at all grade levels. 
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The County is served by a two-year community college, Modesto Junior College, which provides 
an instructional program that leads to transfers to four-year colleges and universities. Modesto Junior 
College also offers a curriculum that grants associate degrees in a number of vocational and academic 
areas, as well as some vocational programs that lead to a certification in a specific trade. Through a 
community service program, students may take part in fee-funded vocational, cultural, education and 
enrichment opportunities. 

The County is also served by California State University, Stanislaus, which is located in Turlock 
within 30 minutes of surrounding County communities. Cal State Stanislaus is one of the 19 campuses of 
the California State University system, and offers bachelor's degree programs in Business, Humanities, 
Art, Science and Education, and Master's degrees in Business Administration, Communication Studies, 
Education, English, History, Psychology and Public Administration. Cal State Stanislaus is fully 
accredited by the Western Association of Schools and Colleges, and its Department of Chemistry is 
nationally accredited. 

Transportation 

The County is intersected by several major highways including Interstate 5 and Highway 99, two 
of the State's major north-south routes. East-west arteries include Highways 132, 108 and 120. This road 
system provides a convenient and efficient means of shipping to all major State and national destinations. 
Transportation and access to major markets are often cited as one of the major advantages of locating a 
business in the County. 

More than 90 interstate truck lines and over 100 contract carriers operate in the County. 
Overnight delivery is possible to all major locations in the State. The County is served by three 
transcontinental railroad systems: Santa Fe, Southern Pacific and Union Pacific railroads. Modesto and 
Empire Traction Company ("M&ET") links the three railroads with shortline service. M&ET also 
operates Valley Lift, a modem intermodal facility in Modesto capable of loading 60 flatcars at a time, 
with staging and parking for more than 500 truck trailers or containers. Valley Lift's two overhead cranes 
can handle 40-ton loads in trailers and containers. 

The Modesto City-County Airport is served by two commuter airlines with daily flights to the 
cities of San Francisco, Los Angeles and San Jose. At Modesto Airport there are fixed-base operators 
providing private air service, air taxi, charter and cargo services. Within 30 minutes of Modesto, the 
Stockton Airport provides additional intrastate air services. In addition, other municipal airports operate 
within the County. 

Several major airports, providing service to national and international destinations, are within 90 
miles of the County. These include San Francisco, San Jose, Oakland and Sacramento airports. The Port 
of Stockton is 30 miles north of the County, providing a deep-water port with direct access to the Pacific 
Ocean. Rail and truck transportation to and from the port are available from the County. 

Population Characteristics 

Based on population estimates by the State Department of Finance, the population of the County 
increased by from 1980 to 1990 by 38.1 % and increased from 1990 to 2000 by 22.1 %. From 2000 to 
2002, the population growth has averaged 2.6% per year. The following table provides a historical 
summary of population estimates for the County and its largest cities and unincorporated area for the 
years 1980, 1990 and the period 2000 through 2003. 
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COUNTY OF STANISLAUS, 
CITIES AND UNINCORPORATED AREA 

POPULATION 
(As of January 1) 

1980 1990 2000 2001 2002 2003 

Stanislaus County 264,300 365,100 445,900 456,300 470,000 481,600 

Cities: 
Ceres 13,000 25,850 34,650 35,000 35,700 36,400 
Hughson 2,930 3,220 3,980 4,110 4,240 4,920 
Modesto 106,100 162,100 188,200 193,100 198,800 203,300 
Newman 2,770 3,960 7,025 7,475 7,550 7,775 
Oakdale 8,440 11,800 15,500 15,700 16,250 16,750 
Patterson 3,880 8,450 11,500 12,200 13,050 13,650 
Riverbank 5,625 8,425 15,800 16,150 17,000 17,250 
Turlock 25,700 41,750 55,600 57,300 59,400 61,300 
Waterford 2,600 4570 6,925 7,025 7,175 7,675 

Total 11] 000 210 200 339 000 349,100 358 855 362 020 
Unincorporated Area 93,300 94,900 106,900 108,200 110,800 112,600 

Source: State of California, Department of Finance 
Note: Totals may not add due to rounding. 

Employment 

As of January, 2004 the County's civilian labor force was 215,400 with an unemployment rate of 
12.4%. These figures compare to the State's civilian labor force and unemployment of 17,460,000 and 
6. 7% respectively. The following chart compares civilian labor force, employment and unemployment 
statistics, as available, for the years 1999 through January, 2004. 
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COUNTY, STATE AND NATIONAL 
CIVILIAN LABOR FORCE, EMPLOYMENT AND UNEMPLOYMENT 

ANNUAL AVERAGES 
1999-2004 

Civilian Civilian Civilian Unemployment 
Year/Area Labor Force Employment Unemployment Rate 

1999 
County of Stanislaus 203,500 182,100 21,400 10.5% 
California 16,375,600 15,522,300 853,300 5.2 
United States 139,380,000 133,498,000 5,882,000 4.2 

2000 
County of Stanislaus* 204,300 182,900 21,400 10.5% 
California 16,892,000 16,056,500 835,500 4.9 
United States 142,588,000 136,899,000 5,689,000 4.0 

2001 
County of Stanislaus 210,500 188,800 21,700 10.3% 
California 17,171,600 16,249,100 922,800 5.4 
United States 143,783,000 136,941,000 8,389,000 4.8 

2002 
County of Stanislaus 216,600 191,800 25,000 11.5% 
California 17,375,800 16,214,900 1,160,900 6.7 
United States 144,875,000 136,486,000 8,389,000 5.8 

2003 
County of Stanislaus 216,600 191,800 25,000 11.5% 
California 17,460,000 16,282,700 1,177,300 6.7 
United States 146,515,000 137,625,000 8,776,000 5.9 

2004* 
County of Stanislaus 215,400 188,600 26,800 12.4% 
California 17,460,000 16,297,500 1,162,400 6.7 
United States 146,863,000 138,566,000 8,297,000 5.6 

Source: State of California, Employment Development Department and U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor 
Statistics. 
March 2002 Benchmark; data not seasonally adjusted 
* Data as of January, 2004. 
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Major Employers 

The major employers in the County of Stanislaus are set forth in the following table: 

COUNTY OF STANISLAUS 
MAJOR EMPLOYERS 

2003 

Employer 
Name 

County of Stanislaus 
Signature Foods 
Modesto City Schools 
E & JGallo 
Del Monte Corporation 
Memorial Hospital Association 
Doctors Medical Center 
Stanislaus Foods 
Turlock School District 
Foster Farms 

Number of 
Employees 

4,747 
4,100 
4,000 
3,425 
2,600 
2,600 
2,300 
2,000 
1,831 
1,813 

Source: Stanislaus County Economic Development Corporation. 
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Industry 
Government 

Manufacturing 
Education 

Wines 
Manufacturing 

Health Care 
Health Care 

Manufacturing 
Education 

Turkey Products 



Employment by Industry 

The following table shows employment by industry group in the County for the period 1999 
through 2003: 

COUNTY OF STANISLAUS 
EMPLOYMENT BY INDUSTRY GROUP<1> 

ANNUAL AVERAGES 1999-2003 

Industry Group<2> 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 

Total Agricultural JMQ,Q !ilQQ 14,100 U,2QQ 13.500 
Non-Agricultural: 

Total Private 118,000 120,300 125,200 135,400 127,100 
Goods Producing: 

Natural Resources, Mining & 9,200 9,900 11,000 10,700 11,300 
Construction 

Manufacturing 22,900 22,800 23,000 22,500 22,600 
Service Providing: 

Wholesale Trade 5,500 5,400 5,400 5,600 5,700 
Retail Trade 19,900 20,200 21,100 21,700 21,900 
Transportation 4,000 3,800 4,300 4,500 4,700 
Information 2,000 2,000 2,200 2,100 2,100 
Financial Activities 5,300 5,100 5,400 5,600 6,100 
Professional & Business Services 16,300 17,400 16,800 15,000 14,000 
Educational & Health Services 15,900 16,500 17,100 18,100 19,000 
Leisure and Hospitality Services 12,000 12,200 13,000 13,600 13,700 
Other Services 5,200 5,000 5,900 6,200 6,200 
Federal Government 1,200 1,400 1,200 1,200 1,200 
State & Local Government 22,500 22,600 23.400 24,100 23,700 

Total All Industries 158. lQQ 152,200 163 800 164.600 165 500 

Source: State of California Employment Development Department. 
(1) Data based on the Modesto Metropolitan Statistical Area; March 2002 Benchmark; data may not 
total due to independent rounding. 
(2) Employment is by place of work and does not include persons who are involved in labor 
management trade disputes, self-employed, or unpaid family workers. 
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Personal Income 

Between 1997 and 2002 the County's median household effective buying income increased 
18.9% while that of the State and nation grew by 16.5% and 9.9%, respectively, for the same time period. 
The following table summarizes the total effective buying income and the median household effective 
buying income for the County, the State and the nation between 1997 and 2002. 

Year and Area 

1997 
Stanislaus County 
California 
United States 

1998 
Stanislaus County 
California 
United States 

1999 
Stanislaus County 
California 
United States 

2000 
Stanislaus County 
California 
United States 

2001 
Stanislaus County 
California 
United States 

2002 
Stanislaus County 
California 
United States 

COUNTY, STATE AND NATIONAL 
EFFECTIVE BUYING INCOME 

1997 to 2002 

Total Effective 
Buying Income 
{OOO's Omitted} 

$ 5,229,756 
524,439,600 

4,399,998,035 

$ 5,489,170 
551,999,317 

4,621,491,730 

$ 5,900,303 
590,376,663 

4,877, 786,658 

$ 6,611,580 
652,190,282 

5,230,824,904 

$ 6,517,967 
650,521,407 

5,303,481,498 

$ 6,679,400 
647,879,427 

5,340,682,818 

Source: Sales and Marketing Management Survey of Buying Power, 2003. 
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Median Household 
Effective Buying 

Income 

$30,543 
36,483 
34,618 

$30,839 
37,091 
35,377 

$32,750 
39,492 
37,233 

$36,022 
44,464 
39,129 

$36,180 
43,532 
38,365 

$36,331 
42,484 
38,035 



Commercial Activity 

The following table shows the County's taxable sales from 1998 through August 2002. 

COUNTY OF STANISLAUS 
TAXABLE SALES 

1998-2002 
(OOOts) 

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 

Apparel Stores $ 86,916 $ 94,533 $ 115,339 $ 127,711 $ 154,083 
General Merchandise Stores 592,821 637,505 702,326 754,247 784,431 
Specialty Stores Group 285,634 342,170 390,154 411,996 432,777 
Food Stores 202,291 330,364 237,565 255,923 260,781 
Eating and Drinking Group 293,068 320,071 342,807 378,895 403,421 
Home Furnishing and Appliances 124,565 133,580 146,043 153,417 181,384 
Building Materials 240,418 276,806 303,139 360,337 368,472 
Automotive Group 774,253 922,909 1,102,803 1,069,523 1,248,936 
All Other Retail Stores Group 275,195 238,896 243,819 249,876 273,693 

Retail Stores Total $2,875,161 $3,186,834 $3,583,995 $3,937,431 $4,107,978 

Business and Personal Services 159,115 183,041 208,118 214,161 223,862 
All Other Outlets 1,203,295 1,289,096 1,402,941 1,421,077 1.494,025 

Total All Outlets $4,237,571 $4,658,971 $5,195,054 $5,572,669 $5,825,865 

Source: California State Board of Equalization, Taxable Sales in California (Sales & Use Tax). 
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Agriculture 

Despite increasing urbanization, agriculture remains an important contributor to the County's 
economy. In 2002, the value of agricultural production totaled $1,367,971,000, an approximate 1.1% 
increase from 2001. Livestock and poultry products remain the County's number one grossing crop 
followed by fruit and nut crops. Crop yields have returned to their typical levels as compared to the EI 
Nifio weather conditions of 1998. 

Roughly 47 percent of agricultural production consists of livestock and poultry and their 
products, 29 percent is comprised of fruit and nut crops, which the remainder including nursery, 
vegetable, seed, apiary, and field crops. The following table summarizes the County's agricultural 
activity from 1998 through 2002 and illustrates that the overall value of output has increased on average 
by 5 percent since 1998. 

AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTION 
FOR YEARS 1998-2002 

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 

Fruit & Nut Crops $ 361,116,000 $ 306,276,000 $ 295,123,000 $ 311,735,000 $ 393,520,000 
Field Crops 117,389,000 102,065,000 101,413,000 139,898,000 132,418,000 
Vegetable Crops 81,184,000 84,533,000 95,680,000 100,153,000 105,508,000 
Seed Crops 1,157,000 867,000 991,000 797,000 561,000 
Nursery Products 60,123,000 64,111,000 68,642,000 68,960,000 85,889,000 
Apiary Products 6,181,000 6,514,000 7,958,000 7,389,000 7,323,000 
Livestock & Poultry 195,688,000 207 ,922,000 228,497,000 233,237,000 242,677,000 
Livestock& 507,399,000 437,923,000 398,998,000 491,131,000 400 075,000 
Poultry Products 
TOTALS $1,302,714,000 $1,210,211,000 $ 1,197,302,000 $1,353,300,000 $1,367,971,000 

Source: County of Stanislaus Agricultural Department. 
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Construction Activity 

The total valuation of building permits issued in the County for residential and non-residential 
property was $724, 133,000 in 2002. The following table provides a summary of building permit 
valuations for the County for the time period 1998 through 2002. 

COUNTY OF STANISLAUS 
BUILDING PERMIT ACTIVITY AND VALUATIONS 

1998-2002 
(OOO's) 

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 

Residential Valuations 
Single Family $235,540 $284,175 $492,765 $498,984 $474,757 
Multiple Family 5,637 3,208 17,566 16,540 12,839 
Residential Alterations and Additions 15,202 19.213 33.081 27,292 34,343 

Total Residential Valuations $256 379 $306 596 $543.412 $542.816 $521.939 

Nonresidential Valuations 
Commercial 65,465 52,275 100,544 72,333 56,864 
Industrial 24,585 27,288 37,811 11,388 12,531 
Other Valuation 33,081 35,817 67,502 66,676 71,701 
Nonresidential Alterations and Additions 35,242 33.166 50.868 69.216 61,098 

Total Non-Residential Valuations $158 373 $148 546 $256 725 $219,613 $202,194 

Total Building Valuations $414 752 $455 142 $800 137 $762 429 $724 133 

Units 
Single Units 1,997 2,246 3,110 3,941 2,881 
Multi-Dwelling Units ~ __M 303 253 __m 

Total Residential Units 2,090 2,310 3,413 3,194 3,073 

Note: Totals may not add due to rounding. 
Source: Construction Industry Research Board. 
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audit und the· repot'f' .of other nttditors are faidy ;stated in 'fill material respects; in telati_on- to the 
~usk f'l:ll,,1wial. stat1::ments 1akeµ as·n wbple. The s.tat!stical iat'oqmitkin.b1.1s not h;en subjected to 
the uuditing procedures itppliid in. the audit of the hnsic:fmaricial stateinents-.;::md,.accordingly: 
we eKpress .no oplniQn p~ it. 

BARTJG, ~ASLER.Q. RAY, q>As. INC:. 

l«:B4,15~"'~,~.4.,, ~. 
Octobet l6, 2003 
Roseville, -Cul ifomia; 

2: 



Management's 

Discussion and 

Analysis 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

As management of the County of Stanislaus (County), we offer this narrative overview and 
analysis of the financial activities of the County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003. Please 
read it in conjunction with the County's basic financial statements following this section. 

FlNANCIAL HIGfilIGHTS 

• The assets of the County exceeded liabilities at the close of the 2002-2003 fiscal year by 
$650,750,384 (net assets). Of this amount, $501,918,905 is invested in capital net of related 
debt and $184,492,812 is restricted for specific purpose (restricted net assets), leaving a 
deficit of ($35,661,333) in unrestricted net assets. 

• The government's total net assets decreased by $8,398,302. 

• As of June 30, 2003, the County governmental funds reported combined fund balances of 
$256,423,498, a decrease of $3,803, 145 in comparison with the prior year. A?proximately 
76% of the combined fund balances, $195,410,472 is available to meet the County's current 
and future needs (unreserved fund balance). 

• At the end of the fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $35,999,464, 
or 19% of total general fund expenditures and transfers. 

• The County's total Jong-term debt decreased by $10,340,781 in comparison with the prior 
year. The decrease resulted primarily from scheduled principal retirements of the pension 
obligation bond and certificates of participation. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the County's basic 
financial statements. The County's basic financial statements comprise three components 1) 
Government-wide financial statements~ 2) Fund financial statements and 3) Notes to the basic 
financial statements. This repon also contains other supplementary infonnation. 

Government-wide Fin11ncial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview 
of County finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement of net assets presents infonnation on all County assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets 
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the·financial position of the County is improving or 
deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how net assets changed during the most 
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving 
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cask flows. Thus, revenues and 
expenses are re?oned in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future 
fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.) 

Both of these government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the County that are 
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from 
other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user 
fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the County include 
general government, public protection, public ways and facilities, health and sanitation, public 
assistance, education and recreation. The business-type activities of the Co1111ty include the Fink 
and Geer Road Landfills, Health Clinics and Ancillary Services, Stanislaus Behavioral Health 
Center, Inmate Welfare/Commissary and Transit. 

The government-wide financial statements include not only the County (known as the primary 
goveaunent), but also legally separate entities (Component units) for which the County is 
financially accountable. There are four C:omponent units included in these financial statements. 
The Redevelopment Agency, Stanislaus County Capital Improvements Financing Authority, and 
the Lighting Districts, although legally separate, function for all practical purposes as 
departments of the County and therefore, are included as an integral part of the primary 
government. The Modesto/Stanislaus Consolidated Emergency Dispatch component unit 
financial infonnation is reported separately from the County. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 15·17 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statements are groupings of related accounts that are used to maintain control 
. over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The County, like 

other state and local govenunents, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate finance­
related legal compliance. All.of the funds of the County can be divided into three categories: 
governmental funds proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental funds financial statements focus on near­
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources 
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a county's 
near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental fends with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-tenn 
financing decisions. Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds 
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconcjliation to 
facilitate this comparison lx:tween governmental funds and governmental activities. 

For the governmental funds, information is presented separately for the General Fund, 
Behavioral Health and Recovery, Community Services Agency, Public Facility Fees, and the 
Tobacco Settlement Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other 
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for 
each of the non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements 
elsewhere in this report. 
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Management's Discl1$Slon and Analysis 

OVE:R.VIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont.) 

The County adopts an annual appropriat!)d budget for its general fund and special revenue funds. 
Budgetary comparison statements have been provided in this report for the General fund and the 
major special revenue funds. 

The governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 18-31 of this report 

Proprietary funds are divided into two types. Enterprise funds are used to report the same 
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The 
County uses enterprise funds to account for the Fink and Geer Road Landfills, Health Clinics and 
Ancillary Services, Stanislaus Behavioral Health Center, Inmate Welfare/Commissary and 
Transit activities. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and 
allocate costs internally among the County's various functions. The County uses internal service 
funds to account for its self-insurance activities, Central Services, Fleet services, Technology and 
communication, and Morgan shop garage. All of these activities, except the professional liability 
self-insurance, predominantly benefit governmental functions and have been included within 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. The Professional Liability 
fnsurance predominantly benefits business type functions and is included within the business­
type activities in the government-wide financial statements. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail. The Fink and Geer road landfills, and the Heal th Clinics and 
Ancillary services fund are considered to be major funds of the County. The County's internal 
service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary funds 
financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of 
combining statements elsewhere in this report. 

The proprietary funds financial statements can be found on pages 32·35 of this report. 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements 
liecause the resources of those funds are not available to support the County's own programs. 
The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds except for 
agency funds. 

The fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 36-37 of this report. 

Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The 
notes can be found on pages 38-76 of this report. 

The combining and individual fund statements referred to earlier provide information for non­
major iovemmental funds, enterprise and internal service funds and are presented immediately 
following the notes to the financial statements. Combining and individual fund statements can be 
found on pages 79-93 of this report. 

5 



Management's Discussion and Analysis 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

As noted earlier. net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial 
position. In the case of the County, assets exceeded liabilities by $650,750,384 at the close of the 
most recent fiscal year. 

By far the largest portion of the County's net assets (77%) reflects its investment in capital assets 
(e.g., land, buildings. machinery, infrastructure, and equipment), less any related del>t used to 
acquire lhose assets lhat is still outstanding. The County uses these capital assets to provide 
services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although 
the County's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it d1ould be noted tliat 
the resources needed to repay tfiis debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital 
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

Governmental Activities Business-type activities Total 
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 

current and other assets $339,861.sqs $314.530,586 $13,Z.57,728 $15,515,121 $353,119,233 $330,045,707 

Capital assets 594.875,200 586,793,860 24,761,035 24,635,244 619,636,235 611,429,104 

Total assets 934,736,705 901,324,446 3S.018,763 40,150,365 972,755.468 941,474,811 

Long-tenn liabilities 
outstanding 225,865,344 233,459,774 22,320,494 20,711,534 248.185,838 254,171,308 

Other liabilities 69,294,808 40,584,606 4,524,438 4,150,854 73.819,246 44,735,460 
Total liabilities 295,160,152 274,044,380 26,844,932 24,862,388 322,005,084 298,906,768 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital, net of 

related debt 479,642,785 466,709,321 22,276,120 22.441,843 501,918,905 489,151,164 

Restricted 163,462,506 170,994,690 21,030,306 19,420,965 134,492,812 190,415,655 

Unrestricted (3,528, 738) (10,423,945) (32,132,595) (26,574,831) (35,661,333) (36,998,776) 

Total net assets $639,576,553 $627,280,066 $11,173,831 $15,287,977 $650,750,384 $642,568,043 

Another significant portion of the County's net assets, $184,d92,812, represents resources that 
are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. inese two portions of the net assets 
(invested in capital and restricted) equal greater than 100% of the tolal net assets, leaving a 
deficit of $(35,661,333). 

The County's net assets decreased by $8.4 million during the current fiscal year. This decrease 
can be attributed to a $3.7 million dollar loss in the Health Clinic and Ancillary Services 
business activity and increased capital project spending in the governmental activities. 

For business-type activities, the County reported a negative balance of ($32,132,595) in 
unrestricted net assets. This deficit is due primarily to the liability for closure/post-closure in the 
closed Geer Road landfill and the accumulated deficit in the Health Clinics and Ancillary 
Services fund. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Cont.) 

Governmental activities Governmental activities decreased the County's net assets by $4.3 
million, thereby accounting for 51 % of the total decrease in net assel8 of the County. 

The following table indicates the changes in net assets for governmental and business-type 
activities: 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total 
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 

Rcvenu~: 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services $91,056,066 $94.515.279 $58,550.605 $56,562,907 $149,606,671 $1Sl,078,l86 
Operating grants and contributions 332.085,792 340,536,926 . 514,380 808,097 332,600, 172 341,345,023 
Capital grants and contributions 23,552,188 19,854,710 2,322,034 23,552,188 22,176,744 

General revenues: 
Properly taxes 31,561,725 29,325,476 3l,56l,7Z5 79,325,476 
Sales tax.es 26,468,7.57 23,656,194 1,892,035 1,606,502 28,360,792 25,262,696 
Otbertaxes 2.918.028 2.603,661 2,918,028 2,603,661 
Unrestricted investment earnings 3,646,615 S,476,(Y77 2,571,919 1,979,239 6,218,534 7,455,316 
Grants/contributions not restricte<I 34,395,428 32,450.247 34,395,428 32,450,247 
Other general revenue 12,566,954 11,371.236 (Jl,801) 12,566,954 11,359,435 

Total revenues 558,ZSl,553 .559,789,806 63,528.939 63.266,978 621,780,492 623,056,784 

Expenses: 
General government 48,391,005 40,719,666 48,391,005 40,719,666 
Public protc«ion 143,930,821 136,575,084 143,930,821 136,575,084 
Public ways and facilities 39,214,960 33,500,529 39,214,960 33,500,529 
Healtll and sanitation 103,632,801 99,938,442 103,632,801 99,938,442 
Public assistance 205,434,527 210.016,007 205,434,527 210,016,007 
Education 9,628,228 8,979,780 9,628.228 8,979,780 
Recreation 6,062.670 4,786,457 6,062,670 4,786.457 
lnterest on.Jong-term debt 11,582,666 11,720.293 11.582,666 11,720,293 
Landfills 7,659,100 7.184,548 7.659,10() 7,184,548 
Behavioral health 13,799,708 14,019,815 13,799,708 14,019,815 
Health Clinics and Ancillary 37,321,847 36,353,822 37.321.847 36,353,822 
Inmate Welfare and Commissary 1,437,906 1,317.672 1,437,906 1,317,672 
Transit 2,082,555 1,951,513 2,082,555 1,951,513 

Total expenses 567,877,678 546.236,258 62,301,116 60,827,370 630, 178,794 607 ,063,628 

Net asset increase (decrease) before (9,626, 125) 13,553,548 1.227,823 2,439,608 (8,398,302) 15,993,156 
transfers and special items 

Special items 52,403,206 52.403,206 
Transfers 5,341,969 2,379,750 (5,341.%9) (2,379,750) 

Change in net assets (4,284,156) 68,336,504 (4, 114.146) 59,858 (8,398,302) 68,396,362 
Net assets -July I, restated 643,860.709 15,287,977 659 ,148,686 
Net assets - July I 558,943,562 15,228,119 574.171.681 
Net assets- June 30 $639,576,553 $627,280,066 $1l.l73.831 $15,287,977 $650,750,384 $642.568,043 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

GOVERNMENT· WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Cont.) 

Key elements of the decrease in net assets for governmental activities are as follows: 

• Revenues remained flat while expenditures increased overall by 4%. 
• Redevelopment expenditures increased by $4.9 million to improve major stonn drain lines 

and add a new storm drain basin as well as curbs, gutters and landscaping in the town of 
Salida. This was all financed with borrowed money. The ongoing redevelopment tai. 
increment money received each year will provide the resources to pay for the debt. 
Recreation expenditures increased by $1 million for the county's portion of an improvement 
at the Woodward Reservoir park. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Cont.) 

Business-type activities - Business-type activities decreased the County's net assets by $4.1 
million or 49% of the total decrease in net assets. This decrease can be attributed mainly to the 
$3.7 million loss in the Health Clinics and Ancillary Services activity. 

40,0(IO 

85.000 l 
30.00IJ 

2!5..000 . 
~ 20.,000 

1$.000 

10.000 

~.aoo 

..,_ .... ,__ - ·--.. _ 
oe,,,.odi...,.. ·-

L«ldfltb WGStt-to- lchQvloNI HNJ!h lr1ndt TNS'lltt 
Ehl,W HU1th C:hnlC$ W•ffo,c,& 

C:Ol'Mllssary 

Resources by Source - Business-type 
Activities 

9 

Charga:f«.S.rv~ 
9U1t 



Management's Di5(:ussion and Analysis 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY'S FUNDS 

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 

Governmental fund11. The general government functions are contained in the General, Special 
Revenue, Debt Service, and Capital Project Funds. Included in these funds are the special 
districts governed by the County Board of Supervisors. The focus of the County's 1:ovemmental 
fundll is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable 
resources. Such information is useful in assessing the County's financing requirements. In 
particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net 
resources available for spendil)g at the end of the fiscal year. 

At June 30, 2003, the County's governmental funds reported combined fund balances of 
$256,423,498, a decrease of $3,803,145 in comparison with ihe prior year. This decrease can 
largely be attributed to the increase in Capital Project expenditures for the Salida storm drain and 
landscape improvements, the improvements to City Hall and the new Salida library, plus the 
beginnings of the new art center and related parking structure. Approximately 76% of the 
combined fund balances, $195,410,472 constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available 
for spending at the government's discretion. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to 
indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has been committed: 
1) to pay debt service ($14,047 ,088) 
2) to liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the prior period ($18,830,444) 
3) to reflect amount due from other funds that are long-term in nature and thus do not represent 

available spendable resources ($10,531,832) · 
4) to reflect amounts advanced to other governmental agencies that are long·tenn and do not 

represent available resources ($13,701,237) 
5) for a variety of other restricted purposes ($3,902.425). 

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At June 30, 2003. unreserved fund 
balance of the general fund was $35.999,464 while total fund balance reached $59,940,770. As a 
measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund 
balance and total fund balance to total fund e11penditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 
19% of total fund expenditures and transfers, while total fund balance represents 32% of that 
same amount. 

The County's management also designates (eannarks) unreserved fund balance to a particular 
function, project, activity or for purposes beyond the current year. However, designated fund 
balance is available for appropriation at any time. Of the $35. 9 million General Fund unreserved 
fund balance, 59% is designated. Unreserved, undesignated fund balance at year-end was $14.6 
million. 

The total fund balance of the County's general fund increased by $4. l million during the current 
fiscal year. largely due to fewer transfers out for debt service. 

The debt service funds have a total fund balance of $15,406,642, of which 70% or $10,774,967 
is reserved for the payment of debt service. The net decrease in fund balance during the current 
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Management's Disc11SSion and Analysis 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE COUNTY'S FUNDS (Cont.) 

year in the debt service funds was $2,749,781. This decrease was due to Pension Obligation 
Bond payments exceeding revenue collection. 

Proprietary funds. The County's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found 
in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

The following table shows actual revenues, expenses and results of operations for the current 
fiscal year: 

l'nlprletary Funds 
Major Funds Non-major 

Othtt 
Fink Road OeerRoad Health Enterprise 

Clinics 
Landfill Landfill &Ancilla.,y Funds Total 

Operating revenue, $4,793.868 $ 0 $37,576,983 $16,179,759 $58.550,610 
Operating expenses 6,966,IIS 692,984 36,410.687 17,307.)jl 61,376.937 
Operating inoorne (los,) ~ ~ ~ (1,127,392) (2,826,n7) 

Non-operating revenues (expenses), net 2,180,896 186.239 (394,113} 2,2Mi.875 4,219,897 
Net income (loss) before contributions 

and transfers 8,649 (506,745) m.1s3 l,!19.483 1,393.570 
Contributions and ll'llnSfers (475.078) 450,000 (4,488,296) (828.593) (5.341,967) 

Net income (loas) ($466,429) ~ m:m:mi $290,890 ($3,948,397) 

The net loss in the Fink Road Landfill was due to an increase in closure/postclosure· liability. The 
Joss in the Geer Road Landfill is due to a decrease in investment income. The Health Clinics and 
Ancillary fund loss is due to expenses exceeding revenue. 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY IDGHLIGHTS 

The County appropriated $2.2 million for contingencies and departmental reserves as part of 
administrative policy. At year-end, revenues exceeded budgetary estimates in the General Fund 
by $12 million and expenditures were less than budgetary estimates, thus eliminating the need to 
draw upon e11isting fund balance for budget increases. 

During the year, appropriations were increased by $3,577,080 resulting in a difference between 
the original budget and the final amended budget. This increase was primarily due to 
amendments to the public protection budgets of the Sheriff, District Attorney, Agricultural 
Commissioner and Public Defender. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital assets 

The County's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of 
June 30, 2003, amounted to $619,636,235 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Cont.) 

capital assets includes land and easements, roads, highways, bridges, park facilities, buildings 
and improvements, and equipment. The County's total investment in capital assets for the current 
period increased by $8.2 million due to the addition of infrastructure not included in 2001/02. 

Major capital asset events during the 2002/03 fiscal year included the following: 
• Completion of $2 million in renovations to an existing building in 

Salida for a new branch library and community center meeting facility. The Salida library 
opened in April of 2003. 

• As part of an overall downtown Modesto improvement plan, the fonner 
city hall building was remodeled into County offices for the Sheriffs civil unit and 
alternative work program, the Adult Probation department, and the Strategic Business 
Technology department for $3.6 million. Also preliminary work was begun on a new arts 
center and related parking structure for $2.8 million. 

• Major public works projects included a $4 million widening of Albers 
Road and $4,5 million improvements to Shackelford Road. 

Capital assets for the governmental and business-type activities are presented below to illustrate 
changes from the prior year: 

County of Stanislaus Capital Assets 
(net of depreciation) 

Go_-m_mmental Activities Buslness•Type Activities 
2001 ;1002 20oa 2002 

TQ!!!I 
2003 2002 

Land and 
easements 
Buildings and 
improvements 
Equipment 
lnfrastrucrure 

$ 28,327,968 $ 27,995,206 $14,399,808 $14,399,810 $ 42,727,776 $ 42,395,016 

135,418,336 130,795,997 7,735,953 8,065,875 143, 154,289 138,861,672 
16,140,9$2 14,497,896 2,625,274 2,169,559 18,766,206 16,667,455 

414987964 413 504 761 414 987 964 413.504.761 

Total $594.875.200 $586.793.860 $24,761,035 $24.635.244 $619.636.235 $611429104 

Long-term debt 
At June 30, 2003, the County had total long-tenn debt outstanding of $182,705,000. The 
decrease of $10.3 million from last year's outstanding debt is a result of scheduled principal 
payments. 

Our long-term debt ratings are an "A-" from Standard and Poor's Corporation and an "A" from 
Moody's Investor service. 

Certificates of 
Partk:ipation 
Peosion Obligation Bonds 
Loan Anticipation Note 

Total 

County of Stanislaus 
Outstanding Debt 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities 
2003 2002 2003 2002 

$ 89,645,344 $ 94,826,893 $ 1,454,656 s l,552,888 

87,080.000 92,105.000 
4,525,000 4,525,000 

$181,250,344 $191,456,893 $ 1,454,656 S 1,552,888 
-12-- --

TQtal 

2003 2002 ------
$ 91,100,000 $ 96,379,781 

87,030,000 92,105,000 
4.525,000 4,525,000 

$ 182,705,000 $ 193,009,781 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET 

The following factors were considered in preparing the County's budget for fiscal year 2003/04: 

• The slow national and state economy and state budget deficit of the past year have resulted in 
the County reducing the budget during 2002/03 and further reducing it in 2003/04. 

• Property tax revenue, which represents 25% of the General fund discretionary revenue, is 
budgeted in 2003/04 with no growth or at the same level as actual re1'¢ipts in 2002/03. 

• The County's Final Budget for 2003/04 was based on a proposed State budget in June 2003. 
It was known at the time that significant changes to the State budget were likely. The County · 
plans to examine its budget at mid-year and make the necessary adjustments. 

• The financial position of the Health Services Agency Clinics and Ancillary services 
enterprise fund has deteriorated $3.7 million more this fiscal year. The County's plan to 
eliminate the $22 million net asset deficit is to reclassify a loan from another fund to revenue 
($8 million) anil to use a portion of the interest generated from the tobacco endowment funds 
each year to reduce the deficit. This plan relies on the clinics to break even each year. 
Depending on the market conditions, it is estimated to take until 2015 for the tobacco 
endowment funds to earn the necessary interest. 

Since the County budget was adopted, the following economic conditions have materialized: 

• The unemployment rate in the County for August 2003 was 9.3% up from last year's August 
rate of 8.6% and compared to the 6.5% rate for the State of California 

• Unrestricted vehicle license fees, about 25% of the General fund discretionary revenue will 
be reduced approximately $8.0 million in 2003/04 through actions the State took to deal with 
their own budget deficit. With the change of governor, this loss could increase depending on 
the new administration's actions. 

During the current fiscal year, unreserved, undesignated fund balance in the general fund 
increased to $14.6 million mainly due to a decrease in transfers out for debt service and for the 
Community Services Agency. The County has appropriated $12.7 million of this fund balance 
for spending in the 2004 fiscal year budget. 

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County's finances for all 
those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the infonnation 
provided in this report or requests for additional financial faforrnation should be addressed to the 
Auditor-Controller's Office, lOIOTenth Street, Suite 5100, P.O. Box 770, Modesto, CA 95353. 

Questions or requests for additional information regarding the discretely presented component 
unit, Modesto/Stanislaus Consolidated Emergency Dispatch, should be addressed to the Office 
Manager, 3705 Oakdale Road, Modesto, CA 95357. 
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County of Stanislaus 
Statement of Net Assets 

.June 30, 2003 

Prlmea Goverrunent 
Govermnenlal Buslne5s-type 

Actlvltes Activities 
ASSETS 
Cash and investments $ 135,790,347 $ 11,276.960 $ 
Cash with fiscal agent 83,979,398 
Taxes receivable 105,364 
Accounts receivable 53,407,400 ll,772,221 
Interest and olher receivables 5,215,122 122,381 
Deposit with others 672,375 
Deferred charges 87.539 
Inventories 754,986 427,350 
Prepaid item• 343,244 152,650 
Advances to other governments 13,701,237 
Intergovernmental receivables 1.729,037 
Internal balances 28,788,202 (28,788,202) 
Restricted cash and investments 
Capital assets: (net of accumu!ate<l depreciation) 

15,287,254 18,294,368 

Land 28,327,968 14,399,808 
Infrastructure 414,987,964 
Building and improvements 135,418,336 7,735,953 
Equipment 5~:~;~i~ :Zf625 274 
Total capital assets ~7l'>I.~~ 

Total assets 934,736,705 38,orn:M 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 15,687,111 3,226,980 
Salaries and benefits payable 8,805,379 J,268,841 
Interest payable 3,817.520 
Deferred revenue 10.966.980 
Deposits from others 17,818 28,617 
Tax revenue llllticipation note 30,000,000 
Long-term liabilities: 
Portion due or payable within one year: 

Compensated absences - current 626,392 80,921 
Rlsk management liability - current 8, 150,492 117,396 
Capital leases - current 493,977 388,713 
Long·term obligations - current 15,350,536 134,464 

Portion due or payable after one year: 
Risk management liability 12,467,977 541,604 
Capital leases payable 560,335 641,547 
Compensated absences 22,315,825 1,705,188 
Long·term obligations I 65,899.808 1,320,192 

Estimated cost of landfill closure/postclosure 17,390,469 
Total liabilities 295,160,152 26,B:!Pt.!m: 

NET ASSETS 
Investment in capital assets. net of related debt 479,642, 785 22,276,120 
Restricted for: 

Capital projects 102,534,957 
Debt service 10,774,967 200,338 
Other purposes 50,152,582 20,829,968 

Unrestricted (deficit) f528,738) (32, 132,595) 
Total net assets $ g~;i,316,33~ $ ll,17~,831 $ 

Toe 11ccomprtnying not ea to 1hc linancinJ suitcmentli are an integral part of tlli.s st;,tement. 
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Total 

147,067,307 $ 
83,979,398 

105.364 
65,179,621 
5,337,503 

672,375 
87,539 

1,182,336 
495,894 

13,701,237 
1,729.037 

33,SSl,622 · 

42,727,776 
414,987,964 
143,154,289 

18,766,206 
~,~.m.m 
~'2.1ss,iilis 

18,914,091 
10,074,22.0 
3,817,520 

10,966,980 
46,435 

30,000,000 

707,313 
8,267,888 

882,690 
1-5,485,000 

13,009,581 
1.201,882 

24,021,013 
167,220,000 
17,390.469 

322.N>5,l5a 

501,918,905 

I 02,534,957 
10,975,305 
70,982;550 

(35.651,333) 
6;1J,i30.3S4 $ 

Component Unit 
Emergency 
Dispatch 

455,239 

862,515 
2,851 

2,522,367 
930,633 

3,453,000 
4,773,605 

20,245 
168,163 

15,081 

532,532 

Tio,U21 

3,453,000 

584,?_84 
4,037,584 

Functions/Programs 
Prlm11ry government 
Golfenlm~ntal :octhltieu 
General govern meat 
Public protection 
Public Wa)'i; and faclliti~ 
Hea.llh and .s.milation 
Publie assisumce 
Educntlon 
R.ema.tion 
Interest and fiscal charges on long-tenn debl 

Total govemmental activities 
Jlullfaes,.lype actMlies: 

Lalldlil~ 
Behnvioral Health 
Health Clinics &. Ancillary 
Inmate; Welfare and Comm.iss:ary 
Tnwit 

Total busine~typc activities 
Ttltl'.ll Staruslll.us County 

Component unit.:: 
Emcrg,mcy Dispatch 

County of Stanislaus 
Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

Expenses 

Fees, .Fines, and 
Charges for 

Servlees 

48,391.005 $ . 23,686,029 $ 
143,930,821 33,973,SOS 
39,214.960 l,990.484 

103.632.801 24.778,203 
205,434.527 4.139,918 

9,628,228 387,SSJ 
6,062.670 2.100,374 

~ 

~ 9l,OS6,066 

7,659,100 4,793,867 
13.799.708 14,756,842 
37,:121.847 37.576,983 

1,437,906 1,226,081 
2.082.SSS 196,832 

62,30U16 58,550,605 
630,173.7~ $ 149,606.671 $ 

5,505,476 $ ____ 

Ge11etalt"Cve-nues: 
TQX.cs: 

Property ta= 
1',-openy laxes - ,,,,, ... ...,d 
S.:ites taxes 
Smestroces-lib1111)' 
Saleii tax-cs::·roid 
Other1axes 

Franchise fees 
'Paymmt in lieu Qf t~; 

Motor ve!rlcle license 
Open space subvention 

Unrestricted investment erunings 
Mi.scellmal!OOS 
N'ettrnn.sfers 

S,IIS<i.569 

Total general revenues: and transfers 
Changes in net assets 

Net osscts-·bcginning 
NetllSSdlS-ending 

The acoomp1:nyblg 111KeS tQ tho fio~ncial ~cn=:nt:I ;w tu1 lmcgral pan ofdlb ~ 
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Progrom Revenues 
OperaHn1 
Grunts and 

Contributions 

10,9$2.722 
64,024,458 

66.011,224 
190.135,002 

608.042 
354,344 

3:l2.0IIS,792 

39,919 
280,187 

194.274 
514.380 

332,600.172 

Capital 
Grants and 

ContrlbuUOll.!I 

703,473 
4,062.477 

16,714,211 
582.449 

l,067,lS4 
422,424 

23,552,18$ 

23,!152,188 

256,468 



County of Stanislaus 
County of Stanislaus Balance Sheet 

Statement of Activities Govenunental Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 June 30, 2003 

Net @xeellSe) Revenue and Changes In Net Assels Bcba-Jioral Commanity Public Other TotlUs 
Prl~ GOV<nunent Comeonent Unit Genenil Health and SctViccs Focllity Tobacco Govemmontw Governmental 

Governmental Buoiness•'l'ypo Emergency funcl Rccov~ A= ~----~~ Funds Funds 
Actlvlttes Activities Total Dispatch Functloos/l'rogrmns Assc!S: 

Primary aovermnent Pooled ensh imd investmenu $ 8,228.524 $ 4,191.275 $ 1,547,785 $ 41.207,:121 $ $ 64,414.245 $ 119,590,0SO 
Governmental adhi.ties: Cash wl1h fiscnl agen1 30.000,000 ~.979,399 14,047,088 98,026,487 

(13,048.781) $ s (I 3,048,781) Chffleral govmunen& 
Taxes rocclvuble IOS.364 105,364 (41.870,381) (41,870,381) Pnblic protection 
Accounts ?Keivable 14,488.377 7,712.?SI 11,135,135 19,641.786 52.978,249 (20,510,2(;5) (20.510.265) Public 111ayi'111dfacilitJ .. 

(12,260,925) {IZ,260,925) Henlth nod sonilolion Interest and other ro:civablcs 333.736 23,355 170,376 211,230 739,747 
(11,159,607) {I 1,159,607) Publi,;;asili.~ Interfund receivable: 30,267.672 J0,267,672 
(7.565,479) (7.565,479) Educntion Duie:fromotberfu-nda 340,105 24.996 200,067 565,168 
(3,185.528) (3.185.528) Rccremion Due uptJl WI" govcmmcnls 1,729,037 1,729,037 

(11.582,666) {11.582,6661 interest nnd fisc-81 charges on long·tenn debt Deposit with others 8.645 B,64S 

(121,183,632) 
----

(121.183,632) Totnl governmental activities: lnvmloly 378,328 378,328 

Buaine,s-ly~eact!v!Uea: D,ferredcha,gos 79j00 79.SOO 

cz.865,:mJ (2,865,233) LMdfilb Advanc:e to other governments 11,701.237 2,000,000 13,701,237 
997,053 997,053 Behnvioal Heallh Advances to other funds 501,350 2,M0,000 7.390,482 10.531,832 
535,323 535,323 Heollh Clinics & AnciilOIY P.repaidite-ms 71.495 271,749 343,244 

(:?11,825) £211,825) Inmate WclfaroundCommiswy Restricted cash and lnvestmems 1,240.166 1.240,166 
(1,691,449) (1,691,449) Tomsit Total°""" s 98,604.158 $ 14,980,181 $ 12,707,916 S 41,377,597 $ 53,979,399 $ 108,635,475 $ 330,2114,726 

(3,236,JJl) (3,236,131) Total ba:5ine.5:s-type DCtivitics Liilbilities and" fund balances 
(121.183~632} $ (3,2_3~.13ll_ $ (124.419,763) Tow S""1i,Jaua Cowny Li11biliries 

Ai:counts payable $ 3.Z96,069 $ 4,646,337 S 332.502 $ 5,953,400 $ 14,228,308 
Component D.Dlt: s.J.r;e, ao4 boli.O .. P•)'llblo 3,735,224 976.000 1,600,633 2,28:!,315 8,594,172 

(82,439) llm<rgcncy Dispul<n Tax reve:n11C .andc;:ipation noic 30,000,000 30.000,000 
General revenues: lnletiundpa~le 5.509,656 S.SO!l.656 

Toxea: Due to other funds 369,674 304,314 728.956 1,402,944 
30.146,039 30,146,039 'Prope,1),tax .. Depooib from olhers 17,818 17.818 

1,415,686 1.415,686 Propony taxes - u"""'rcd Def med revenue 1.262.421 801,920 8,679,432 '/2,3)1}7 10.966,980 17,515.505 1,891,035 19.407,540 SaJescaxes Advance.s ftom other rund.s 2,640.000 $01,350 3.141,350 7,036,979 7,036,979 Sllle.s taxca - library 
1,916,273 1.916.273 SW tue.s .. road To<alllabilid<s 38,663,388 9,368.571 10,612.567 _ 

- ----·---
15.216,702 73.861,228 

Z.918.028 2.918.028 Olherl!IXe& Fund!balanca: 
918.309 918,309 Pranchisefees R«erwxl for: 

P~atin lieu ofta,ces: Eneumt,rances 8,604,598 898.674 14.474 9,312,698 18.830.444 31.658.197 32,658,197 M-vehiclo license 
Advance to other f-unda 501,350 2,640,000 7,390,482 I0.531,832 1,737.231 1,737,231 Open spa,ce svbveoti91l 

3.646,6)5 2.571,919 6,218.534 85,426 Unmtri:;tcd investmenleamioga 
Advance to other 

11.648,615 11.648.645 Miscellllneous government 11,701,237 Z.000,000 13.701.237 
5,341,%9 (S,341,969) Nettr.wfer:s Odter 3,134.121 80,130 27.150 661,024 3,902,425 

I~ (878,015) 116.021,461 85,426 Total generul revenues and lmnsf'ers Ceah wilh 1is<aJ Ogen! 14,047,088 14,047,088 
(4,284.156) (4,114,146) {l!,398.302) Z,987 Chanpo lo PCI "'°" Unreserved: 

643.860,709 15,287,977 659,148.686 4,034,597 Net ~eu~-beginnin-g Desisnoled lo:: 
639,576,553 $ 11,173,831 s 650,750.384 $ 4,037,584 Net BSSl!U-ending Debi ~ecrvkc 9,751j89 9,157,589 

C<1aling1;11~es 11,644,467 11,644,467 
Reported ill : 
General fund 14,597,408 14,597,408 
Special revenue fund 1,992,80(; 2,0S3,72S 53,979,399 49,663.287 107,689,217 
Capi1:d ptoject funds 41.377.597 5,71:!,519 47,090,116 
Debt $etYlee funds 4.631,675 4,631,675 

Tobi fund baJ&oc:ei 59,940,770 5.6ll,61D 2,095,349 41,377,597 53.979,399 93.418.773 256.423,493 

TQtal liabilities and fund ba1~s S 98,604,158 $ 14,930, 181 $ 12,707,916 $ 41,377,597 $ 53,979,399 $ 108,635,475 $ 330,284,726 

The accompanying notes: to the fjnanci~l statements are an integral pan of this statement 
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County of Stanislaus 
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 

to the Statement of Net Assets 
. June 30, 2003 

Total fund balances for governmental funds (page 18) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activites are not financial ,-esources and, 
therefore, are not reported in the funds. These assets consist of: 

Land 
Infrastructure 
Buildings and improvements 
Equipment 

Total capital assets 

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and, 
therefore, are deferred in the funds 

$ 28,327,968 
414,987,963 
134,477,100 
11,906,111 

Internal service funds are used by the County to charge the cost of general liability, unemployment, 
worker's compensation, dental, vision, & purchased insurance plus Central services, Fleet services, 
Technology & communication and Morgan garage to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of 
these internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets. 

Some of the County's revenues will be collected after year-end, but are not available 
soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures, and therefore are not 
recognized as revenue in the funds. 

Long-term liabilities applicable to the County's governmental activities are not due 
and payable in the current period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. 
Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but rather is recognized 
as an e~penditure when due. All liabi!ities--both current and long-term-are reported 
in the statement of net assets. 
Balances at June 30, 2003 are: 

Certificates of participation 
Bonds and note payable 
Capital leases 
Accrued interest on long term debt 
Compensated absences 

Total long-term liabilities 

Net assets of governmental activities (page 15) 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of 1his statement. 
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(94.170,344) 

(87,080,000) 
(764.871) 

(3,817,520) 

(22,315,825) 

$ 256,423,498 

589,699,142 

8,039 

(2,817,002) 

4,411,436 

(208, I 48,5 60) 

639.576,553 

REVENUES, 

Toxu 

Uce:asc~. pcmw :ind fra.nchlses 

PiflCJ:, forleiturcs aud pcn~tlCJi 

Rovenue f'Jonp.se of mo11ey 

ill\ll proJml)' 

Tnwgovcmmcntal teve,iue 

Char~forscrvlcc$ 

M~lnrlco111rcvc11UC 

Toud~VClnuois 

EXPENDITURl!S: 

OJrm,1; 

°'"'al 
Publlcprotee:doo 

Publit w.ys and fucililles 

HtalihandiSMiwion 

P1.ibJic::a!W111nc:e 

Bd!J(:atiotl 

Rccm:1tlon and cultund k.Mees 

C.pll,lou,J;,y 

~IBOfflCIJ: 

IRterest nnd rssait clwges 

PJincipal 

'Tota.lexpmwnues 

~m'OQ~QVCC' 

('llnder}eicpandiaarn 

omER FINANCING 

SOURCBS (USES) 

C1pi1.1lle~proo:llm 

Tru11rcra1n 

Tmns.fc11ou1 

SclooffiitetJa~ 

County of Stanislaus 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Governmental Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

BcMvioral COlMUllllty !'nblJc 

°'°'"'I Hegilho.nd - Facility Tobocco 

Food Reco:;::2: A~~ ""' Seal,mont 

$ 4M02,4'9 S ' s $ $ 

J,689.8:13 66,369 

6,U6.245 102,160 

1,921,212 Ul,93B l,&l 1,I0?,9SS l.525.567 

89,13),714 3'J,896.IS6 112.31$.400 

JJ,48l.876 21,008,98) 6~,129 9,3:ll,123 

7,7SJ.913 293,'lSl m.m (9,&S!J 

lW.250.252 SS.56~018 174.0ZS,845 10.419,250 __ ,_.S25.S~?-

30,938.008 

'96.980.176 1.101.4n 

3,!139,628 62,341,045 

306.900 183,l~.662 

)J.0.482 

s.314.m 

97,756 

H'7.869,97l 6.3,448.522 183,J(lg,662 9?.756 

S2)$0.281 (7,88),$04) (9,Q83,Sl7) ro.:m,49-4 1.S2:S.S6? 

51.026 16.97$ 11(),ll~ 

2,6l4,4l0 &.1SS.l89 8,4311,800 

(50,942,18'2) (l,276.24Q) Cl,&)S.002) {S,'74-8,lln) (202,630) 

1,9$9 

To<lll QUK:rfmiLIIQ~IOlmOli (1,1,cs) {48,274,7$7) 6.999.02.4 6.770,914 (5.748,187) (102.630) 

Nettllimgci111\lndbalnnces 4,JOS,S24 (884.480) 12,"2.903) 4.513.307 1,322.937 

Fundbo.lanci;:ot:t>e:ginningofyear SS.81S,i46 6.496.090 4,408,25:! )6,804.290 SHSM62 

FoOObal.mcesn1.0ll((ofyt111r s S9,940,770 $ S,611.610 S 2.oc>.S.349 S 41.Jn..S97 s S),979,399 $ 

Tht:noO!et<to thefinancialst:i.ttments:areoointagrulpartofthisstatement. 
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Other Toub 

Oovemmcntal Oovmmiental 

""""' ~ 
ll.946,026 S 60,940.m 

l.650,648 3,406:,&JO 

1.6ll,1S9 7,99M64 

2.090,63,0 7.908,954 

IWJ14,3SS 379,661,625 

20.21<WS 84,6119,346 

2.634.4114 ~ 
124.41i._~)_? 556;?51.S@ 

S.!04.S~ 39,04ZJ74 

4Z,271.494 140,)S9, 147 

24,703,267 24.70J,U7 

37.S78.'137 103,SSMlO 

21,U!i,931 204,332,433 

9,118.681 9,449,163 

58,254 5A3'J.03l 

17,742.:189 17,840.345 

ll.207,9'1 11;07,951 

]t),208.176 ~ 
IS2,1119,836 ~ 

(S7.638.l99) (10.378,176) 

S,,S2l 290,938 

.$6,097,678; 7$,409,177 

(9,406.481) <69,.,in:u 
286,6:51 ~ 

47,030,669 ~033 

[10,607Jl,O) (3,803,145) 

l04,026J03 260.22~643 

93,119,7'1) S 256,423.4~! 



County of Stanislaus 
R~onciliation of the 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental funds 
to the Government-wide Statement of Activities· Governmental Activities 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 20) 

The change in net assets reported for goverrunental activities in the 
statement of activities are different beca.u,ie: 

Goverrunental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, 
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over 
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 

Expenditures for capital assets and infrastructure 
Less sale of foted assets 
Less current year de prcciation 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current 
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds 

23,083,820 
(570,279) 

(31,186,008) 

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, 
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets 

Repayments: 
Certificate of participation 
Pension obligation bond 
Capital lease 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the 
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are n<lt reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds. 

Change in accrued interest payable 
Change in compensated absences 
Change in deferred charges 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of 
certain activities to individual funds. The net expense of certain activities 
of the internal service funds is reported with governmental activities. 

Change in net assets of governmental activities (page 17) 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral pan of this statement 
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5,183,176 
5,025,000 

372,778 

(374,714) 
(45,042) 
(48,236) 

$ (3,803,145) 

(8,672,467) 

1,496,720 

10,580,954 

(467,992) 

(3,418,226) 

(4,284,156) 

County of Stanislaus 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

General Fund 
Budget and Actual on Budgetary Basis 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 

Vwlance 
Origio:tl Final Actu;J wich 

Rnenue1: Boo1ct Budl!l Amount FinnlBudget 
T.,.., $ 4S,026,700 $ 46.176.700 S 49,00Z.483 S Z.825.783 
Li<:cnsea. peunita. and fra.nchlsos. 1.592,865 1..59Z.86S 1,689.813 96.948 
Fine&r Cotfeit11rcs and penaltiei:a 3,611,127 J,339.24S 6.266.245 2,927,000 
Revenue from use of money and property 4,771,892 4.846.892 2,921,212 (l.925.680) 
lnterg:ovemmental reVeflOI; 85,431,818 llii,S77,8.l6 89,133.714 2,SSS.818 
Charges for services 33,32J.111 33,865,610 33,482.876 (382,7,14) 
Misce1Uln£OUS revenue 969,412 969.412 7.753.913 6,7&4,SO! 

TotaJrevenu:es 17il.,~.rn 117 l(;S.3'.&J 19M3iJ.2sti ~b9b 

Expenditures; Gelleral 
Asse:u;or 

Salaries and employee benefit$ 3.241..539 3,259,836 3,141,584 115,2S2 
Services :uad s~pliei 90,652 92.813 63,049 29,764 
Other ,1wg .. 459.710 417.710 502,232 (54,522) 
E1'pmditure rrmsfer 40,891 40,891 27.238 13.653 
Fixedlts.sm 2,160 ('2,160) 2.160 
ToWc:xpmclitures ~,IJ~~2 3,841.239 :t734,\'S43 106.307 

Assessor Propeny Tax Computer 
Salaries and ttnployte benefits 
&rvice& rutd $UJ>plies 123.000 123,000 (33.362) 156.362 
Othercharg;es. 7,SOO 7..51)0 (1.500) 15.000 
&pc:ndiluie ttlm5fer 
Appropriations for contingencies 
Fixed.as.sets 55,700 65.076 8,059 57,017 
Totd c:xpcndltures 1~.~m~ l~.!i7! (32.803) 22R]7§i 

AuditoT-Ccntrollcr 
Salaria QDd employee benefi!S 2,813,402 2,813,402 2,686,833 IU.519 
Servi~ and sopp1ia 225,035. 22S,035 137,382 87,653 
Otherdlarges 330,8~ 470,830 446,928 23,902 
Expen.diwrD trans for 3,254 3.254 (6.109) 9.363 
Fixed.as:sc1s. 
Total eJ<peoditwes 3.3723%[ J31:I32I l,263,084 ---1!!:.431 

Boordof'Su~r;, 
Salaries and employee benefits 972,609 97M09 930.613 41,996 
Scmcu and Sllpplia 162.lTI 163.177 159,338 3,839 
Other charges 79,QI3 78,0)) 83,297 (5.284) 
Expenditure transfer 18.976 18,976 12,228 6.748 
Fixedas..U 

Total CJlptnditorcs 12232.773 [;nt773 I.UZ~::t7t -----!'.!!2Y9 

Admini6b'ativ~Officc 
Sal:iries and employee benefits 3,246,045 3,511,045 :J,391,237 119,808 
Services and supplies 520.433 325.433 243,601 s1,m 
Other charj:es 426,741 382.997 365.418 17,579 
Expenditure transfer 21.706 21,706 5,815 1~.891 
Fix.edes:sets. rs.coo 46,650 42,Sj(j 4,094 

Total expenditures 4.~.Q23 4.~,.H~I 4,fflJ27 2Jt},2Q4 

Economic Development 
Snlmiell and cmiployec benefits 
Services and wpplies 462.360 601,360 333,909 267,451 
Oll>ercbarges 23,340 23,340 IS.218 8,122 
Expcnditim transfer 
Pixed assets 25.000 8,142 (25.000) 33,142 
Total expenditures 510,700 tiil,M :J:I:J.ll, 3oK7B 

(Continued) 
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County of Stanislaus 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund .Balances 

General Fund (Continued) 

E11penditi.1n15; Gm.erul 
Purcho.&ing Agent 

SDJariei. 1111d employee benefits 
Services and supp1ies 
Othcrch,ugea 
Expenditure 1mnsfer 
Fixed assets 
Tolttl expenditures. 

C.A.R.E. Unit 
Salmiu; and ,employee: l>enefit5 
Set'Viees and supplies. 
Otha•harges 
Expenditure transfer 
Fuedassets 
Total c~pendit.ures 

Risk Mimagi.mlcnt 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Services l1!ld suppties 
Other charges 
Bii;pen~ituro tnnmer 
Fixed assets 
Total expendiwres 

Special Projects 
Salnries nnd employee benefits 
Service& and supplies 
Other cbarge!i 
Expenditure transfer 
Fi~edasscts 
Total expenditures 

C1pi1al Improvement fin::mcing Authority 
Salaries .and employee benefits 
Services and supplies 
Other charges 
Expenditure transfer 
fixcd~s«s 

Tot.al expenditures 

PlantAc.q11isjtio.n 
Salaric.~ and. employee bet1efi1s 
Services. and supplies: 
Other charges 
Bx.pendituro tram.fer 
Fixed assets 

Budget and Actual on Budgetary Basis 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 

Origin a.I Final ActuB1 
Bu~ DudE! Amount 

520,085 520,085 483.035 
19,865 19,865 8,969 
29,897 29,897 22,ISO 
3,458 3,458 4,424 

filM. 373Jli3 31H.31ts 

698,239 691.239 41.3:!Q 
~.zu 25 • .111 7,259 
5,725 12,725 13,543 

~ ':!9,113 li2.13 

1,017,860 1,017,860 977,301 
56.84-0 56,84-0 21.916 
99,589 77,589 76,385 

4,800 4.800 710 

l,]79.Q8<J i,157.0&9 __!67tdl2 

2,738,013 l,329,213 (287,927) 
83,720 23,720 1.471 

9,000 209,000 208,077 z:s,o,m I,!g,.~l f'9.J,~) 

52.000 261.308 261,308 
265,669 56.361 50.209 

31~ ]17.5511 31[31' 

42,560 42,560 
1,168.655 9&1.531 191,312 
1,2!l,7ll 1.322,295 1,207,094 

20 
3,155,699 3,495,099 M9,S53 

Variance 
with 

FinalBUdJ;Ct 

37,050 
I0,896 
7,747 
(966) 

____B.121 

649.913 
17.952 

(818) 

657.047 

40,559 
34,924 

1,204 
4,090 

80.777 

1,617,140 
22.249 

923 
l,640.312 

6,152 

6.152 

790.219 
115.201 

(20) 
2,595.546 

Total e-xpendh-ures b,136.uiiS S,841.485 i._340.539 lsUU.Y•f6 

Appropriations for Contingencies 
Salaries nnd employee benefits 
Sen-ice..~ and supplies 
Other charges 
expendium~ m1nsrer 
Appropriations for conting-encie,g 
Fi:x.ed~ 
Total expenditures 

2,199,000 

2-:rw.000 

23 

2.028,976 50,000 1,978,976 

2,028,976 50~0 ~76 

(Contim1cd) 

County of Stanislaus 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

General Fnnd (Continued) 
Budget and Actual on Budgetacy Basis 
For the fiscal year en.ded June 30, 2003 

Origlnnl Final · Actuol 

Expernlltures: General 
Bui:l~t tsudget Amount 

CountyFacilitie:s 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Servicts lllld supplies 399,989 399,939 238,980 
Otberch11Tges so 100 96 
Expendt1ure trans:fer 
Fi,i;edassct& 50,000 50,000 
T<1tale.xperiditures i3o.ib9 i3nrm~ ~!J.0,() 

Elections Division 
Salaries and cmploye-e benefits- 607,174 615,338 518,997 
Services and supplies 921,821 900,378 803,339 
Other chiu'ges 56,996 61,996 48,]40 
Ex._pendituretran.!lifer 15,201 90,844 90,953 
fixed as:1e1s 64,000 64.000 
Total expenditum !,60i.I§l U:J:!:330 i~~.4~ 

County Counsel 
Salad.es and employee benefit& 1,456.470 1,488,183 1,460,578 
Set'Yic:es and supplies 74,414 74,414 56,135 
Other charges 50,529 50,529 44,83S 
&.penditurc transfer 12,16! 12,161 12,021, 
Fixed assets 
Total expenditures l.593S74 1.o'is.~s! l:S733~ 

Treasurer and Tux Collector 
Saluies and employee benefits m,414 757,414 698.696 
Secvice:s and ~pplies 74,367 94.367 83,496 
Other charges 368,701 292,701 259,901 
Jlxpcndi<un:lrllllsfer 84,315 84,315 62,921 
Fixed wets 
Touil oxpenditumi 1JlJ4.,797 [;nl,/!J/ t.irB.014 

C9llcctioos 
Salaries and employee benefits 917,896 862.896 803.395 
Services o.nd ::;i:pplies 102,6:17 120,487 118,340 
Otberchlll"gCS 176.111 !SB,111 191,2~4 
Expenditure transfer (6(;5,983) (6<i~,983) (600,;30) 
Fixedn..uets 
Total ex_pcndilures 3:!u.~U 3~:311 ~12,639 

CBOMotch -Other Agencie.11 
S~aries and employee benefits 
Services and sup,plics 
Other charges 1,168,602 l,518,602 1,256,524 
Bxpenditure u3Jl.Sfer 
Fi~eda.s&:l'tS 
TOUU ex:pendilures l.l~.502 i.5us.&n: 1.2S6:S24 

CEO HCD
0 

Ornnt 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Services :and supplies 456,463 456,463 (I) 
01hercb12rgcs 
Expenditure t~nsfer 
Fixed assets 
Total expenditures 4554fi3 ;J3()%} 

24 

Variance 
with 

'Final Bu_~~ 

160,959 
4 

50.000 
ilu,§63 

96,341 
97,039 
13,856 

(109) 

iOl.(ZI 

28,205 
18.279 
S,694 

140 

__M318 

58,718 
10.871 
32,800 
21,394 

123,783 

59.SOI 
2,147 

(3,143) 
(6S,6S3) 

\7,14Bi 

262,078 

262;078 

4S6.464 . 

-=.464 
(Continued) 



County of Stanislaus County of Stanislaus 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Statement or Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

General Fund (Continued) General Fund (Continued) 
Budget and Actual on Budgetary Basis Budget and Actual on Budgetary Basis 
For the fiscal year cnde<I June 30, 2003 For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 

Varionco VIII'inncc. 
Origirud Final Aclual wich Origtn:il Final Actual with 
Budget BudJet Amount Final Budget Budget _______IDJ~g~ Amot1f!._~-- _ _Emal Bud&et 

Expenditure,: General Expendltnns: Publtc Protection 
Trusury Recorder DMsion 

Salruieo '"d employee benefits 238,377 ZJB,377 225,431 12.9# Salaries and employee benefits 1,088,416 1.059,206 918,571 14(),635 
Scrvicos and :supplies 215,975 210,975 188,764 22,211 Services and S1.Jppties 149,105 93.462 77,091 16.371 
Other chnrges 28,269 28,269 18,157 10.112 Othtroh.l!ges 121,431 133,641 138,003 (4.362) 
E:tpendituro tmnfirer 57,604 62,604 59.66-0 2,944 Expmdi~ lraasf'cr 20,816 96.459 100,299 (3,840) 
Fixedossets Fixed assets 30,000 30,000 30,000 

Tocal expcnditore& 54u.:!25 34028 4!n.m, 48,iU TOIOI ""Pendiwres I.M,/68 1,412.768 -- l.ffl.9ii4 14i.iAA 

Facility Maintenance Dis1:rict Attorney 
Salaries.and employee beneflts 3.00Z,009 3,063,498 2.981,826 81.672 Salaries and employee benefits 7?427,356 7,9'J0,092 7,673,685 262,407 
Services and supplies 4,240.265 4,300,265 4,206.803 93,462 Senices and aupplie.s 264.670 348,641 271.063 77,578 
Other charg:C$ 225,858 279,369 275,418 3,951 Other cliarges 485,802 468,802 497,201 (28,399) 
Expenditare transfer (l,8SI,404) 
Fl><ed....,. 

(1.851,404) (1,618,715) (232,689) &pendi~trlln&fer 55,237 55,231 57.096 (1,859) 
Fixed iwets 

Total expendir.ures 5,616,l!!ii ~.,~,.,~ 3.m.l,~ (53,604) Total expendhures 8.i:13.063 ui:m.,n ii.499.043 30~.,~ 

CEO" Econ Development Ban le Planning 
Salaries and ernploye-e: benefits S.umies and employee benefits 1,057,802 1,053.691 955.195 98,496 
Servic:ca: and supplies 1,375,000 2,716,300 1,654,960 1,061.340 Seniices ond .supplies 618,807 767,183 ISS.()75 612,108 
Other chnrgu 125,000 250,000 20.000 230.000 Olherch.,... 50,370 56,IOS 53,690 2,415 
B"pendit11re transfer &penditurc transfer 14,448 14,448 9,629 4,819 
F'u.e-da&6C\S Pt:xcd assets 
Total expenditures 1,300.0UU :l.~!W t~,+.m l..!91.340 Total expenditures 1.741.ffl !,!91.427 1,17~:3!~ 1!1.~& 

llxpeadlluns: Puollo Proi..Uon 
Agrioulrural Commissioner Probation 

Sal>ries and employee bencft!S 1,802,028 2,153,Sll 2,081,941 71,870 Salaries aqd employee bcn-cflts J,097,351 l.OSl.351 l,011,851 39,500 
Services and suppHcs 201,104 J70,195 242,810 127.385 Services and supplies 1,051,548 1.045,548 606,926 438,622 
Otber chora,& 146,850 187,603 181,275 6,328 Ocher charges 633.685 685.685 641,92'2 43,763 
Expenditure U'QJlsfer 172,84S 172,845 IS9.563 13,282 Expenditure transfer 570 (570) 
Fixed- 30.000 28,364 1,636 F'txcdD.SKIS SI.S03 Sl.503 9,812 41,691 
Totnl expenditure, iSiiiii1 :i,~i4,4:i<I ~.ffl.lJ3~ T.W,561 Total expenditures 2,834.08' ~~4.Ul7 2,f7I.imI 363,uUO 

Animal Services Probation·C-rlc 
Sal:uies and emptoyce benefils 1,692,207 1,584,912 l,$43,69S 41.217 Sllaries and employee benefits 5,702,980 5,816,824 5,524,368 292,456 
Services; .mcl wpplies. 258,874 337,874 336,616 1.258 SMllees aud supplies 312,063 303,063 282,508 w.sss 
Other chnrges 184,JII J89,3Jl 184,425 4,886 Olhar cruuges 276,791 276,791 269,400 7,391 
llxpcnditure ttan,ror 10,350 10,350 2,674 7.676 ~penditure an:nsrcr 84,438 84,438 105,496 (21,058) 
Fil(ed.is.se(S Fb.ed assets 61.296 41,296 (2.492) 43,788 
Total c;x~diuircs 2.145.ffl :i.1~.m ~.:Jlo 55,U3) Total expe:n.ditores 0,4JJ.36S ~~t412 6.i l'I.ZSO JU.132 

Offii;e or EITIC'rgency Services Probation • lnstiwti0fl3 
Salarie.s :md employee benefit.& 362,292 342,625 231.234 lll.391 Salaries and employee benefits 4,633,071 4,716,071 4,SOJ,800 212,271 
&:rvices and supplies lOS,576 266.0ll 182,453 83,558 Services and supplie,s 229,431 154,431 105,383 49,048 
Othuchiltges 740-™i 628,131 654,9&1 (26,8S3) 01her ehnrges 128.869 164.869 164.667 202 
Expenditure lransfct Expenditure bulls.fer 544,071 659,071 667,871 (8,800) 
Fixcdas-setis 51,9&1 46,984 26,146 20,838 Fixednsse:18 134,648 31,648 (29.300) 60,948 

To1al e,(penditures l.ZQJ,418 1.~ll:l7~I I.ID4.SI, 138,934 Total e"pem1it,ure.s 3.670.u§u 3.1~.mn, 3.:i1:r.i21 --1!1_U!> 

county Coun Funding J>ublic O(;fender 
Salaries and employee b~efits Salaries and employee benefits 3.537,337 3,'37,337 3,377,166 160.171 
Services and supplies 168,061 168,061 160,142 7,911 SUV'iCC$ illld supplies 422,466 422,466 325,417 97,049 
Otherchargea 5,676,115 5,824,115 5,824,ll9 (4) Olllercharga 202,236 181,980 141,226 40,7.54 
Expenditure transfcc 834,516 804,516 744,842 59,674 E:ic:ponditurc 1nmr~ 62,222 62,222 188,645 (126,423) 
Fixed assets Fi,:ed:issets. 117 117 117 
Tot.al expenditures ________1678,@_ 6~.692 6.li§M_ 61.sB!i Tot:al expmdilum1 4,2Z4,JJg 4.~.I~~ 4.im.m ___!!h66s 

(Continued) (Com;nuod) 
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County of Stanislaus County of Stanislaus 
Statement of Revenues, &pendltures and Changes In Fund Balances Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

General Fund (Continued) General Fund (Continued) 
Budget and Actual on Budgetary Basis Budget and Actual on Budgetary Basis 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 

VM:ance V11.rlo.ncc 
Original Final Actu~ with Origina1 Firio.1 Actual whh 

E~ndlt1,11:es:PubUcProtectlon Budget Budget Amount FinolBudg~ Expenditures:Educadon ~ ~ct -~ P.inN.Budg~ 

Indigent Defense Cooperativo Extension 
Salon., and omployeo b•••fits S~ori .. and employee benefits 248,239 231, 715 210,348 21,367 
Services aud supplies 1.477,860 t,777,860 J,739,684 38,176 Service, •ndsupplies 34,665 34.~ 2M92 11,573 
01nerctllU);es 330 330 330 Other charges 40.817 57,342 56.593 749 
Expenditure transfer Expenditure tr:insfer 47,998 47.9'98 44,249 3,749 
fiuda~ts FiMdl!ls:seq 
To1alexpenditures l,4}8,190 l,}/9,l§d J,'39,0is4 38.306 Total expenditures 311,/['I 37I~no 334.Zisi 3/AM 

Expenditures: Health ---- ----

Sheriff~ Administration CEO Jail Medical 
SB1111ies and employee benefirs J,Sl2,l 11 l,S00.283 t,394,789 (05,494 Salaries and cmploye.o benefits 
Service,ondsupplies 536.414 511,414 393,118 )18,296 Service, ondsupplles 3,891,736 3,950,736 3,950.710 26 
Other ch•rgcs 274.390 254,390 26<1.oG4 (S,674) Olhor c~arge., 
Expenditure transfer 8.851 8,851 (400) 9.2St Eipend1ture.transfCf 
Fixed nssets Fi~cd BSSC.t& 

Total expenditures 2.3.51.766 2,i/4,§38 .2,U4/3)1 ZZ7.361 Total expenditul't& 3,89{.)3b 3.')50,136 3.9~110 :i6 
Expenditure,; Publk:-...., 

Sheriffs Operations Vetcroo'sServjces 
Selaricsandemployocbeoefits 21,627,742 ;?2,600,358 21,382120 1218238 Slllariesnndemployecbcncfita 244,691 249.539 248,712 ~7 
Servicc.,aodsuppli,. 1,655,407 1,476,407 l,244JOO '232'.101 Suvice .. ndsupplies 7,692 17,692 10,894 6,798 
Othercnaiges 3,822,851 3,822,851 3,685,155 137,696 Olhorcharges Z9,91i 40,912 40.080 SJZ 
Sxpondilv1nanofor (295.833) (296.833) (351,519) 54,686 Bxpendltul'Omnsfer 3,054 3,054 4,193 (l,139) 
Fixed .,.... 38,000 JB.000 455 37,545 Flxed assets 
Total<:itp~nditum U,847,167 27,Wi,783 8.%0,:,JI 1.686.ii:2 T~Ullexpcnditures 285.349 __ 3!1.i§_L 3~.879 J:,iii 

Expenditures: Recn2tion 

Sheriffs Detention Par~ an,d R~tioo 
Salaries and employee benofir, 20,08S,198 20.197,925 19,124,474 1,073,451 Solari°' andemplo!,'<ebenefit< 2,191.410 2,229,338 2.177,509 Sl,829 
Scrnces and ,upplies 3,210,923 3,210,178 2.98),288 226,S90 Semoes and ouppU<> 917,752 1,012,752 958,809 53,943 
Other cha.gos 824,772 928.894 882,704 46,190 Otherchargos l,3ll,603 1.264,925 1,264,892 33 
!li<pendlluretnmsfer 26,890 86.890 134,502 (47,612) E:cpcnd1l•relr111Sfcr 372,528 442.528 393,463 49,065 

F~~t:;~diturcs Z4.15t1Mi u.!ll:!8-1 2~.iU~~ l.Jtti:7'3 F:~ :~ditures J:m:;;; s.F,;:tiM $J:~:fil ;~~u: 
Court Security Parks • Mtmcr Plan 

Sal~C$ und empl9yee bencii1.& 2.748,223 2.749,355 2,603,619 145,736 Sn.J~es ond emplo~ee benefits 17.880 17,880 
Secvices and svpplies 10,487 10,487 J,813 6,674 Son,ices and supplies 103,510 790,293 421,635 368M8 
()lhe,ch"'S" 3,000 3,000 3,141 (141) Olhercha,gos 6,380 6,380 
Expenditmvtransfer 83,352 71,3!52 67,23& 4,114 Expcndiluretransftr 
Flx-ed am:~ Fixed assets 
Totalei.:penditures 2,845,061 l,834,194 :i,6/1811 1~.383 Totalexpendirures iUJ316 -~~~}3_ 4:39315 JB,63_$_ 

Grand Jury Forced Cleanup 
S.lane, and employee bonofilS 50,142 S0,142 47,999 2,143 Salon .. and cmpl"!"' l>onofit, 
Serv1ceundsopplles 61,011 61,011 52.SJl 8,480 Servtces,ndsupphes 20.000 
Othercllorg,. 5,767 5,767 $,801 (34} O<llorchnrg,. 
Expenditure tmnsfcr 774 (n4) Expenditure transfer 
Pixed asselS Fixed ll.5set:; 
Totolexper.idltures ii6.9iu 116.926 IU1,IOS 9JH5 Toulex~ditures ~000 

Expenditures: l'llbltc Ways •ntl Facllltl., 
Airpo1t Tuolumne RiV1;1rRegional Park 

Sall.Vies and employee benefits Salaries and employee benefits 
~ccund,'1'ppli1:;s 159,208 159.208: 159.3)8 Servkc::sandsuppHcs 226,0Ui 2.26,026 226,026 
Olher ch:orgcs Other charges 
l!ltpcndit1,1re hi1nsf~ Expenditure transfer 
Fixed ns.sers Fixed assds 

TolQI cxp~nditum 1$9,20~ B9.i0& 159.208 Total expenditures 226,026 i26,026 2i6.U26 

(Conlinued) (Continued) 

27 28 



County of Stanislaus 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

General Fund (Continued) 
Budget and Actual on Budgetary Basis 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 

Original Final Actual 
"Budget Badget Amount 

Expenditures: Debt Service 
Debt Servi,;,; 

Salaries and emp1oyee benefils 
Services and supplies 
Other -chorges 

500,000 

Expenditure transfer (393.S63) (393.563) (393.559) 
fi.:cd11ssets 
Torn, expenditures ?~"3,3li3l r~3.5g3, It'lo.:r.n 

'Tax Revenue ADJ.lcipati<>n Note 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Serviocs rmcl $applies 
OOericharges 

75,000 67,250 

Expeooit= lrallsfer 
F'txedasscts 
Total expendtwres 1:s.uuu- b7;JSIJ 

ToUII E:l:penditurH • Ceueral Fond $ 154,143,072 $ 157,725,153 $ 139,033.981 I 

Excess of revenue 
over expenditures 20.578,853 19.643,407 Sl,116.Z75 

Otlier tina;nclng saorces (uses)! 
O:ipita.l t~ pro~eds 51,0Z6 51.026 
Tr.msf-enin 2.179.389 815,409 2.614.410 
Trans(mout (40,:131,574) (46,956,585) (50,942.182) 
Slllc ofFhi;ed osscts 1,989 

Total other fimmc:ing SO\.m:es (uses} ps.101,1s92 (46,141.176) (48,274.7l7) 

E;:i;cess (deliciency) of rcvenuea and ocher 
financing sources over (under} n:pendilllft:S 
and c;ither financing \lses (17,522,306) (26,497,769) 2,941..ll8 

Fund b11Iances at beginning of year (17,276,349) (26,160,933) $6,S!J,179 

Variance, 
with 

Final Budget 

(500,000) 

(4) 

tsro.oo::iJ 

1,150 

18,691,172 

31,572,868 

1,799,001 
(3,985.597) 

1.989 
(2,184.607) 

29.439.U7 

78,358,596 

Fund balan~ al end of year $ (34.798,655) $ (52,658,702) $ --J::..454.6-07 $ _J!)7.797.883 

'Thoaccomp-.10Jingnota tolhc r!flllndll111ittmentsll1l:anintcgril pJn ofthiJ:Slllteftllt. 
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County of Stanislaus 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures • Budget and Actuol 

Behavioral Health and Recovery· Special Revenue Fund 
Fo,.. the flscal year ended June 30, .2003 

Variance with 
Bud1,e1ed Amount Finni Budget 

Original Finni Actual .Positive 
Bud11ct Bud~et Amount (Ne&!!livel 

Revenues 
F"mes, forfeitures, and pcnnltics $ 40,600 $ SS,636 $ 102,160 $ 46,524 
Revenue from use of money and property 480,203 462,702 261,938 (200,764) 
Int.ergovemmentaJ revenue 24,566,672 33,762,832 33,898,156 135,324 
Cbuges for services 19,891,711 20.232,332 21,008,983 776,651 
Mbccllaneou, revenue 66,370 246.SSO 293,781 47,231 

Total revenues 45,045,556 54,760,052 55.565,019 ~967 

Expenditures 
Public Protecti.on 
Salaries and omp!oye<> benofit,; 877,893 845,893 712,869 133,024 
Services and supplies 91,594 123,:194 75,813 47,782 
Other charges 116,756 116,756 123,991 (7,235) 
E<penclituro transfer 236,699 23(i.699 190,725 4:l,974 

TotaJ Public Protection 1322,943 l.;!22,943 11103,398 -----112:?.44 

Hcolth and Sanirarion 
Salaries end employee benefits 27,301,504 26,374,085 24,821,345 J,552,740 
Services end supplies 33,296,344 35,392,616 31,747,192 3,645,424 
Olher charges 4.669.540 4,438,891 4,468,2$9 (29,368) 
Fixed assets 85,000 140,975 71,000 69,975 
llxpencliture transfer (236,699) (201,545) (190,725) (10,820) 

Total Health ond Sanitation 65,I !S,689 66,145,022 60,917,071 5,227,951 

---
Total expenditures 6M38,6Ji 67,467,965 62,020,469 S,447,495 

fa:ccss {deficiency) of revenues 
ov..- C•ndor) cxpencliturts (21,393,076) (12.707,913) (6,455,450) 6,252,462 

Other financing soun:es (uses) 
TraTisfers jn 17,283,372 7,262,247 8,258.289 996.042 
Tra"8fers out (302,189) (582,759) (1,276.240) (693.481) 
Capital lease ptoe*ds 16,975 16,975 

Total other finQJlcing ionn:es (uses) 16,981,183 6,6%,463 6,999,024 ~61 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues end 
other financing :sources over (under) 
expenditures and other financing uses $ (4,411.893) $ (6,011,450) $ 543,574 $ 6.SSS,023 

The aocompanytng notes to the finanoial statements are an lntegrel part otthlssteta.menL 
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County of Stanislaus 
Statement of Revenues nnd Expenditures - Budget and Actual 

Community Services Agency- Special Revenue Fund 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 

Buds;e:ted Amounts 
Orlgtmu Final Acrual 
Bud;ct lllldllct Amount 

Revenue$ 

Licenses, permits and ftn.nchises $ 77,700 s 77,700 s 66,369 
Revenue from use of money and property 1.622 
Intergovernmental revenue )85,942.177 188.020,872 172.315,400 
Churgcs for services 297,619 339,532 666,129 
Mi-scelloncous revenue 1,sJs,m 1,563,SSI 976,325 

Total revenues 187,856,047 190.001,655 174,025,844 

Expenditures 
Public Assistance 
Salaries nnd employt.e benefits 48,844,366 47,065,917 42,653,952 
Services and supplies 8,910,519 9,921,937 8,256,779 
Otherc:llorges 140,286,SSO 143,099,169 131,913,351 
Pi><ed assets 69.SOO 288,616 280,578 

Total expenditures 198,110.965 200,375,639 183,104,660 

Excess (deficien,cy) of rcvcn\les 
-over (under) expenditures (10,254.918) (10,373,984) _J_!l,078,816) 

Other fipancing sources (uses) 
Transfers in 7,448,247 7,787.489 8,438,800 
Transfers out (224.914) (601,641) (1,838,002) 
C.pitnl lense proceeds 17-0,116 170,116 

Total otber financing sou~ (uses) 7,223.333 7,355.964 6,770,915 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and 
other financing sonrces over (under) 
expenditures and other finnncing uses $ (3,031,585) $ (3,018,020) $ (2,307,901) 

The accompariy1ng not9' 1-o 1he financial sWem1;11nl:$ are an lnfegral part of \his S!f.\tt1ment. 
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Vnrianccwith 
Fuuil Budget 

Positive 
(Ne;otive) 

$ (11,331) 
1,622 

(15,705,472) 
326,S97 

(5&7,226) 

(15.975,811) 

4,411.%5 
1,665,158 

11,185,818 
8,Q38 

17,270,979 

1,295,169 

651,311 
(1,236,361) 

(SSS,050) 

$ 710,119 

A.SSBTS1 
CurrcatA!,ets: 

P60led-c:ash::1mllnYCJtmen.lS 

Aecountsrecelvllbfe,11.et 

luleresL11rufotnerreceJvables 
lnveoto:Jyofsv.ppJlcsCltcost 

Deposllwilhodie:ra 

011Cftomolhcrtblld1 

""'1dl!O ... 
Total cum-nt :iuets 

~cot.as.w:u; 
RC$tlicledc:ush11Ddinvcstmc:nl.J 

Ce~llll mw: 
!.okl 

.Dti.lldlngalld~tis: 

J!4ulp"""' 
Lcts:AC'CUMUl:ateddepteciation 

TOWrionctlffllntoDCts 

Tot:ilUS!!lS 

UA!IUTIES: 

Ctlffllnt)i:)bllhiell: 

Actmmtspayable 

Sal4riesand.be-nc:flt1payab)c 

1 ...... dp<1)'11blo 

County of Stanislaus 
Statement of Net Assets 

Proprietary Funds 
JnM 30,2003 

FinkRo.."'111 OcerRoud 

S..l""r S..lwy 

~~ 

S,61,,465 S 213.835 S 

702,860 

71,40[ 27,J41 

6,3,87,726 243,1'16 

JJ,341.3,33 6,7SZ"'7 

14.491.341 

54~S'l 
643,5'18 l~'J39 

~~ 
~~ 

s~s~s 

186,6SO $ 

32,092 

65.453 S 

GoYU11mcn1ol 

'Buslnet1-cypa At-1Mtles - Enterprise Rmds Activities 

HcallhClinlc Oll>ct -.;;;;;--
8'Ancillu)i Enlerpriic s ..... 

"°"""' ~~~ 

s 2.775,318 S 8,©1,618 $ 18,872,639 

7.466,441 3,602,920 11,772.'221 429,150 

12,864 111,606 74,713 
m,o,o 34,UO 42.7,350 376,658 

"'3,730 

m.#1 3~14 t,7,775 

15:2,650 IS2,650 
8,$,IS~ 6.7'!9,6'.!J~~ 

200,338 18.2!l4.36S 

14.491.341 

12.000.171 7.417,746 19,472,S04 990,773 
11,606,736 733,760 12,!1911,313 21,787,912 

(19,47:2.946) ~ (22,201.122)~ 

4,334,2~ ~~~ 

~S~S~$~ 

2.342,S26 S «J0.671 S l,19S.JIIO $ l,4'10,478 

820,340 416,409 1.261,841 211,207 
2:0,439,032 1,7~ :22,:2J!l,496 2,522,522 

Deposits frDmo!hm 23.617 28,617 

Cimm poftio11 q,flong-1':r!D cbUgadoo 

C1urc111portionofoeapltalleass 

Co~lfltcdctbscnccs~cumnt 

Total ament Uobllitics 

N<11t1:11mritfi;ibiHtin 

&timatcd cost of cloconsf;pos!closmt 

Liabili1:, for c::omptMitcd absences 

Advancesf'rcm.othcrfund, 

SelriMlffllncefla,bllity 

Longltrmobligation 

cap;w i«lse p,oyablo 

Tcl:tl nonctnmit UabUiliei. 

Totdlillbilkies 

NBTASS.ETS1 

Jnvestedlncap!iA[BSS,Ots, 

nctcri'n::latcddcbt ·­Uor,strlci<d 

Totaloctnsets 

134.464 13~ 
383.214 S,49" 388,713 121,896 

2.m 65.899 12.249 20.921 626,392 

~ 2.781.292 27,33l,352 ~ ~~ ........ ~ 

, • .,92,534 

127.6'18 

ll.!197,935 

I.ISQ.639 

7.390,,n 

1.320.192 

426,871 

17)90,469 

1,'105,188 

7390,48:1 

IJl0,192 

21,:!77,469 

635.636 5.911 641,517 167.54!5 
5,920,212 ll,!i97.9JS --,0-,4%."""'949-~ ~ ~ 
~ 11,663.388 34,732,424 3.2\4,074 SS,780.230 Zfi,417,509 

J4.Sl9,S21 

11,341.333 

11,213 

6.152,(;/1 

~~ 

S 26.098.236 $ (4,656,302) S ~= 

1,660,455 

200,338 

~ 

6.064,931 

2.7.lS,93S 

791.014 

22,276.120 

lt.OJOJ06 

4,886,614 

~~ 

(21,852,48J)S~S 9,181.394 S~ 

Adjusuncnt to reflect lhe consolidation: Q,f iniemal :ieni" fund activites rcl11.ted ,o enterprise funds 
Not assets ofbusi.m:.2; type a<:tivitcs 

~ 

~ 
T11ecr.ecom_p4nyin9: no<cs to the financilll stalcmeQls are an in1egr.11 p#1 of this stntem.eni. 
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Operating rtvenue~: 

~sfocsuvices 

Mls«:IJMeom Revenue 

Toi al oper11tiria: ~vermu 

OpcnitingcxpenKCS.: 

&L1rtesoeObenellts 

Sttv!cuond-,bpplles 

Oepreciati,oo 

&wnatc::d~lot 

tlosuie/p:1ntelosuc. 

To!GlopcBUns:~s 

Opcr.atlng income (I~,;) 

f'IWl9Jli,minl J"VfQ1m: (~Ka) 

,~~tmrinp -......... Losson:5.'llaor&ld;aJotl 

Opeml,gSJBIIU 

To11Jnon,opcr.allng 

rt:YCfllJCl(cxpei:ual) 

lnGOmt Clim> beifore 

coAltibutions and tnnsfeu 

Tra"tfer1ln 

Tnnsfer1on 

Capital contributions 

Chooaellinoecossccs 

Toto! fie'I ilSSC!a: .. bqinniag 

Total 11111 "9et$ .. endin,g: 

County of Stanislaus 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net As.sets 

Proprietary Funds 
For the fiscal yea.- ended June 30, 2003 

OoVffllmtntal 

Bu!inm-tlee Activi1ie$ • En~risi: ~ ~ 
nnkRood °"''"""" HmlthCl!nle Oil<, ....... , 
SmlltlUl' S.,,lwy &AllclllAty Eowpri,o "'""" ~~ Service, ~~~as 

s 4.193,868 S $ 36.320,341 S 16.179.751) S s,.19;,m s S0,941,210 

---- ---- 1.2$6.~i ----~ ~---- 37.$76;9$3 ~ ~ __J_(h941.210 

938.,417 lM9Q,4;!.'\ ?,?60,J.98 29.789.2'98 5',B93.885' 

S.303.216 602.:?12 16,748~64 7,073.26) 29.822,Jll 47.284.957 
43.4SG 112 171,700 2tj8,492 1,084,m l,334.o83 

680.936 680,936 

---- ---- ---- ---
~~ 36.410.611 ~~~9'1..S 

(2.172.247) ~ 1,166.296 ~ (2.826.327)_~(3.S11,71!1) 

2,180,896 186.'l.19 133,665 2.500.800 486.492 

(~74.300) (JJ.0181 {681,318) {21,452) 

M.913 

280,187 2.)26,m 2,406,41S 

---- ---
~~ (394,IUI ~~ S4),9.S3 

8,649 {S06,74S) 772,183 1.119'.483 1,393-,510 Q.<>27,7621 

62,.000 4:50,.000 1.29:5.321 349-.270= Z,719·,.591 179,444 

fl,100,0?8) (S.783.617) {1,117,86)) (3.061Jlij (832.934) 

---- ---- ---- ---- 'fl,'l:17 

(466.429) (:56,745) (3.'116,.113) 290.890 (),948,397) (3J$;1,97$) 

~~ (18,ll6,37QJ ~ 2,7.59.411 

s ~ $ (4,656.JW) $ (2J.8~l.48J) $ ~ s (824.564) 

AdjuilJllelll lO ~nee,;~ ~nsolld41lon o,flmcm.il Kr\lice tund .K:dvidesrelitcd 10 oni.q,rip furxl1 ----1!2L 
(h:u,geipn,t;m:etso(~(ype,aah>l~ 

~ 

Thcno1~s tolhc fl~cial ·~ arc .:i11ir1cgn11 plnofthlsst.iument. 
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°Bwin:·n:;!Y9EAdfrilk.t·~mih,Rlll!N f'\rt1.~1 
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~ ~ Sl.:~ fWllb· Total Ftmls; 
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~ f5:183.tfl1) 

1-ru.ffli> 
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(l:!(,.1124) 
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~- ~ 

l_JH'.89°. l"IG.2l9 
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(ll,4m) Q<y!Wf 
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:i.~ 
tUl'l!!Ol) 

1,.."97.ds, 

1.w1.,•1 n,.-
2.'IIM/IIS 

~-sa 
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3.9s1· 
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. .:iu.-i..i . 
"foillBl·~~ 

~~~ 

·----'-"'-""'-~~ 
l"',"65~~ 

·?1""92· 

.o.l!!!J2! 
W",2,1~1 -1&"l.2'n 

1'""6..,,,~ 

$ 16"5470,' .A "GNIJn" ~·~ $" 26.tr1$.9M I 1RJmJB9 

:de• arc-6.ailallhc~i, C,,h SUUPatflf. 

~bJ~lllhllri~U:: . . . ' .. 
p:r5birflllnltd'Nd' A¥ttl S M13.-fft5 $ .2£S.U., ! 2,175.318 S llf'U.6lf. f;. a.sr?,GJ9 

"Jb;;lllrkl:d.~a.41::mdia\'ttnn:Jd.i 
P!'f!b.::111eiir·ut~A#cu ~~~ ~ 

Tobi ~u;Pd cullqutnr.!:ais , . 
J!CrSl*:Dltilli:lNd..uxts ·~. f 6..M.:Jl:!·~~ $ ).6~JH.~ .$ 1S:ff2.6.J!.I-. 

"lhcrio-1cstntb;_rwtdalsJ11i,ru,e1t1**'11ni1~p;trtt:fllw.:slaJancdt. 
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Fm: 11>1 Fi«al v .. r F,111!<4 Ju•• Jd, m3 

~~~!lo#) 

Al)lo!MDltll't~~~lll,IIJ_llel 

;dlll!;9'~~11Jqimi1ftt«tl~G' 
tkpi:,c:1»1t.i. 
~<~fn~CIJ~aetolli\f ~·~~---~., 
<lrtiru•1"t,baaa,b.\mwlt.rf 

~l.Jip:plirf, 
~c}:~~·Jottc!ue~~~ 

~~)'Nl'AM!llllt!IJl'll~IIN!~IJINlfflK 

IllcrnVoWl~p"*1 

JlkffllWk!.S--dDl#&ii!J~ 
:ra.~51.ilaliililylli~d-.ti.-eti:!::I 
~fll°w)m~1 .. ricr.fillq"~11: ~-'"~~..-$ 
Tiieaiwilt~~~~e~ 

l~lna-lrilllJUll(O'JklhUUy 

Nel.allt:l"Pf"'i'!W~'by'qt::MII\JctbiUCII 

Q)\'Uml.>abl 

Bwil'rtt!Ti5:M'ti~1,·~IJIICfMcl'lnk hcttrllk'I 

fbllhl.'ru\Sc O&r LU:!fflAl 

~.~ (~'T~ .t..(lndlwy ~ .. b·lal, 

~~~~~~ 
S ~7"-;24'TI . .l W'lJM>. ~: I.I~ $. (1,1!'7..1911 tl'.Jl&.32Tt .S (l.571.71S) 

~~· 111. ··nJ.7'10 .-l 1.m.i .. w UJ;i,IJ ....... ""'"""·· (i.,..;nO> 921,1,U -l~ACB ...... 1>Jll7 1,159.,1'8 1,1,w,.7,w Jl,:1.0 

U,IA ., .. ., .... m.rm -· »·.)'01 
$0!.?J3 ~.u-,; lff.~l 1',tCS 

1~141' ,,.:,,',:. "'·"" n,,,;,;, llllJ)JO 11!4.m, 
'9t;m 1,146,lOf .?.r+lp,ki ,.,,.. 

..... '""" "l~llO ,,..., ,.,,,. 
u~ ~m l,:M-,x.l!' ll0;,126 (]~ 

{~ (i~ ,.... ....... 
"ci;ao.,g,M. 6'.0,,!1lei 

---.------------ 1.1111,-J;!I;" 

~~.$, s:rrrrnz ~-~··· .., .... « 

111R~~~~~-.it11111:v,1\~dlblJ•·•·•II\ 

35 

ASSETS 
Pooled cash nnd in,vcstmcnts 
Ac:couRIS ceccivablc (net ofnllowmcc 
for uncoll«Wllcs) 
Cosh wllh lia'-11 agcnl 
hm:rcstm!othcrrccclwblo 
Adv111nces:toorher1'1mdJ 
Propcrt,y, pion\ and equipment 

. JtCt of accurmlalCd deptecialion 
Othc:rinvatmcnls 

To<al"""' 

UABLIJTIBS 
A~11tspayablc 
S:ibrk:s o.nd benefits paywte. 
Trust~igtlions 

Ag.cJtCy fullds for other govemmon1 \tlUI 
Mvonc:es from otbcr funds 

To-talliabilitOJ 

NEr ASSSTS 
Nctass.ctshcld In tnm CorinvestmeaE 

pool pmtidpimts/pmrion bimcfits. 

Bmpl0ycct' 
Rctimncnt 

....!!'.!:!!L_ 

4.989.901 

28,04S.S66 
6.951.SSO 

~7.730,039 

~ 

8,738.684 

8.7JM84 

$ 95t91y12· 

CGunly of Stanislaus 
Statement of Fiduciary Ne( ,\.ssets 

Fidod•l'f Funds 
June, 30.2003 

Jnveslmmt ,.._ 
Trun Funcll 

S 367,760.309 $ 66.471,396 

676,354 3J90.158 

1.693.582 :!36.221 
812.018 

T'..8,002 

3zg,13ea24.5 71.637.795 

1.226,802 6.683,13,J 
8,965 25,079 

64.117.S6S 
1,114,707 

812.018 

2.350,474 7J,637,79.S 

S 367.7J9',771 $ 

Th~ :iocOJDP3Dying notes to the finnncial :stoll!lnmts ore ;in integral part ofthb statement. 

u 

Wood word lnfOko Pro]ccl 
Prlvotc·Purposc 

Truttfund _.l2!!!! 

$ l,ij00,000 s 440.221,606 

4.o66.512 
;i8.!14S,S66 
a.ssu.n 

Sll.013 

T.!3.00Z 
927~7la.oJ!> 

1.000.000 l.41Di!§S~ 

16,6<8,619 
34.044 

64.117Ji.S 
1,114.707 

81:!.018 

82,726,9,!iJ 

$ 1.000.000 S l.327,7Stlg 



Additions: 
Contributions: 

l!mpJoyer contribution~ 
MQJPbcr t.onlribu,tons 
Contributions on pooled lnvestme.nlS 

Tollll conuibutions 

Investment income: 
Net appreciation in fuir value 
Interest 
Divldcn~ 
Mi,;cellancoos :income 
Less investment ex.pense. 

Net invC81me-n1 income 

To-I~ additions 

Dcd"Uctiona: 
Beneflc pay~nts 
Refunds of prior-contribution, 
Disutbudons from PoOled in"Yestm-entt 
Adntlnimtive expense 

Total dcdu-ctions 

Cb.ttlg.e iD net assets 

Net ~els held in trwic - beginning 

Net wets held in tru5t - ending 

County or Stanislaus 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets 

Fiduciary Funds 
f'Ol the Piscnl Ye:a- Ended June, 30.::?003 

Employees' Woo-dw.trd lntak-t Project 
Retfretntnl Investment Pri'VIIIC-Purpo;iC 

Trust Tn,,, ~tFund 

s 16.207,877 
18,520,605 

2.!120,JS4,528 

34.728.482 2..520.254.523 

16,953,722 
23,326,484 9,320,820 
6,335,126 

709.360 1.000.000 
<2.623.591) 

44,701.LO! ---9.320.820 1.000.000 

79,429,583 2='!29 .57$1348 1.000.000 

43,435.482 
l,561,286 

2,489,3$4,763 
1,147,117 

46143.SBS !,489J84,763 

33.285,698 40,190.585 1,000,000 

925.692,674 327.589.186 

$ 958.978.372 $ 367.T/9,771 s 1.000.000 

The accompanying not~ to 1he :financ:ial statemenls. are an integral part ofthis suxcmi:nt. 
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Toi.I 

1G.w1Jm 
18.520.605 

2.520.254,528 

:Z,:,$4,953,0IO 

16.953,722 
3:Z.647.304 
6.335,126 
1.709,3~0 

[2.623,!191) 

55_,021,921 

2.610.004.931 

43.435,482 
1.561.286 

2,489.384.76:; 
1,147,117 

2.535.528.648 

74,476,283 

1.253.281.860 

1,121,158.14, 

Note 1: 

COUNTY OF STANISLAUS 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

Sununary of Significant Accounting Policies 

This summary of significant accounting policies of the County of Stanislaus (the County) 
is presented to assist in understanding the County's financial statements. These accounting 
policies confotm to generally accepted accounting principles and have been consistently 
applied in the preparation of the financial statements. 

A. Reporting Entity 

TI1e accounting methods and ptocedures adopted by the County conform to 
· generally accepted accounting principles as applied to governmental entities. Th~se 
financial statements present the government and its component units, legally 
separate entities for which the government is considered to be financially 
accountable under the criteria set by Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statement No. 39. 

Reporting for component units on the County's financial statements can be blended 
or discretely presented. Blended component units, although legally separate 
entities, are in substance, part of the government's operations. Blended component 
units are an extension of the County and so data from these units are combined with 
the data of the primary government. Discretely presented component units, on the 
other hand, are reported in a separate column in the combined financial statements. 
Each component unit has aJwte 30th year end. 

Blended Component Units 

1. Redevelopment Agency of the County of Stanislaus ("Agency"): The Agency 
was established by the County as a separate legal entity in accordance with state 
law. It is governed by the five members of the County Board of Supervisors. 
The purpose of the Agency is to acquire, rehabilitate, and revitalize property 
within legally designated redevelopment areas. The Agency provides service 
solely to the County and is reported as a capital project fund. 

2. Stanislaus County Capital Improvements Financing Authority ("Authority"): 
The Authority was established on September I, 1989, as a separate legal entity 
whose sole purpose is to provide financing for various County capital projects. 
It is governed by the five members of the County Board of Supervisors. The 
activity for the Authority is reflected in the debt service funds. 

3. Lighting Districts: The County has 30 different, legally separate lighting 
districts whose boards are the same as the County Board of Supervisors. The 
County's approval is needed to set the districts' budget and to set assessment 
rates. The activity for the lighting districts is reported in the special revenue 
funds. 
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COUNTY OF STANISLAUS 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

Note 1: Sununary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

A. 

B. 

c. 

Reporting Entity (continued) 

Discretely Presented Component Unit 

Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency 

The Modesto/Stanislaus Consolidated Emergency Dispatch Agency (the "Agency") 
was created on September I, 1999, pursuant to a joint exercise of powers 
agreement between the City of Modesto (the "City") and the County of Stanislaus 
(the "County"). The Agency is administered by a seven-member colillllission 
consisting of one member of the Modesto City Council, one member of the 
County's Board of Supervisors, the County Chief Executive Officer, the Modesto 
City Manager, two members from the Dispatch Advisory Board, and one member 
from the City of Ceres' City Council. The purpose of the Agency is to consolidate 
the public safety communications system. The responsibilities of the County and 
the City include approval: of the annual budget, claims, liabilities, and the use of 
Agency property as collateral. Each participant will contribute sufficient funds to 
pay for all costs and expenses associated with providing Emergency Dispatch 
Services. Upon termination of the agreement, assets will be distributed equally to 
the City and County, unless otherwise approved. The financial statements may be 
obtained by writing to the Modesto/Stanislaus Consolidated Emergency Dispatch, 
Office Manager. 3705 Oakdale Road, Modesto, California, 95357. 

hnplementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements 

GASB Statement No. 39 

The County has elected to early implement Government Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Statements No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations 
are Component Units: an amendment ofGASB statement No. 14. 

Basis of Presentation 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The statement of net assets and statement of activities display information about the 
primary government (the County) and its component units. These statements 
include the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary 
activities. The government-wide statements distinguish between the governmental 
and business-type activities of the County and between the County and its 
discretely presented component unit. Governmental activities, which normally are 
supported by truces and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from 
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees charged to 
external parties. 
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

c. Basis of Presentation (continued) 

Govemment-Wide Fina11cial Statementli ( continued) 

In the Government-wide statements, eliminations have been made to minimize the 
double counting of certain internal activities." In the statement of net assets, all 
internal balances have been eliminated except those representing the net balance 
due between governmental and business type activities. This residual balance is 
reported as "internal balances." In the statement of activities, direct expenses such 
as services provided and used are not eliminated, but Internal Service Fund activity 
has been eliminated. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the program expenses 
of a given function are offset by program revenues. Program expenses include 
direct expenses, which are clearly identifiable with a specific function, and 
allocated indirect expenses. Program revenues include 1) charges paid by the 
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and 2) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements 
of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, 
including all taxes, are presented instead as general revenues. 

When both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available, unrestricted 
resources are used only after the restricted resources are depleted 

Fwul Financial Statementli 

The fund financial statements provide information about the County's funds, 
including fiduciary funds and blended component units. Separate statements for 
each fund category-govm11nenta~ proprietary and fiduciary - are presented. The 
emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise 
funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and 
enterprise funds ~e separately aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from 
exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange 
transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal 
values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, l'esult 
from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities. 

The County reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General Fund is used to account for all revenues and expenditures 
necessary to carry out basic governmental activities of the County that are not 
accounted for through other funds. For the County, the General Fund includes 
such activities as public protection, health and sanitation, public assistance, 
education and recreation services. 
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Note l: Sununary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

C. Basis of Presentation ( continued) 

Fund Financial Statements (continued) 

• The Community Services Agency Fund was established for the administration of 
the three major public social program areas including financial assistance, social 
services, and employment services. Intergovernmental revenue is the primary 
source of financing for this fund. · 

• Public Facility Fees were established by the Board of Supervisoi:s adoption of 
Resolution No. 89-1724 for the purpose of reducing the impact of a growing 
community on existing County resources. The fees are charged to new 
development based on the need for facilities to maintain the existing level of 
service. The fee benefits the following departments and programs: roads, 
detention, criminal justice, library, parks, public and mental health, emergency 
services, animal services and sheriff. 

• The Tobacco Settlement Fund was established to account for the proceeds from 
securitizing the County's share of tobacco settle=t revenues. Currently the 
proceeds are restricted to use for capital expenditures. The intent is to preserve 
the initial amount and to distribute 80% of the annual investtnent earnings to the 
General Fund. 

The County reports the following major enterprise funda; 

The Fink Road Sanitary Landfill Fimd was established to account for the 
operation of Fink Road Sanitary Landfill, which provides a dumping site for 
the disposal of solid wastes. Revenues are derived from fees generated for the 
disposal of waste at the site. 

The Geer Road Sanitary Landfill Fund was established to account fo, the 
operation of Geer Road Sanitary Landfill, which provided a dumping site for the 
disposal of solid wa.~te. The landfill is owned jointly with the City of Moi:lesto. 

The Health Clinics and Ancillary Services Fund was established to account for 
health care operations in outpatient clinics throughout the County. Revenues are 
derived from fees for patient services, payments from federal and state programs 
such as Medicare and Medi-Cal, private insurance, and subsidies from the 
County. 

The County reports the following additional fund types: 

• Internal Service Funds account for the County's fleet maintenance, 
communication, technology, and other services provided to other departments or 
other governments, and self-insurance programs-worker's compensation, long-
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Note l; Swrunary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

C. Basis of Presentation (continued) 

D. 

Fund Financial Statements (continued) 

term disability, employee benefits, and personal injury and property damage on a 
cost-reimbursement basis. · 

The Pension Trust Fund ·accumulates contributions from the County, its 
employees and other participating employers, and earnings from the fund's 
investments. Disbursements are made from the fund for retirement, disability 
and death benefits (based on a defined benefit formula} and administrative 
expenses. This fund includes all assets of the Stan CERA. 

The Investment Trust Fund accounts for the assets of legally separate entities 
that deposit c;ish with the County Treasurer. These entities include school and 
community college districts, other special districts governed by local boards, 
regional boards and authorities and pass through funds for tax collections for 
cities. These funds represent the assets, primarily cash and investments, and the 
related liability of the County to disburse these monies on demand. 

The Woodward Intake Project Private-Purpose Trust Fund accounts for the 
County's share of an agreement with South San Joaquin Irrigation district for the 
construction of an intake pipe at the reservoir so it may continue to be used as a 
county park. 

The Agency Funds account for assets held by the County as an agent for various 
local governments. 

Basis of Accounting 

The government-wide, proprietary, pension and investment trust fund financial 
statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. 

Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time 
liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. 
Nonexchange transactions, in which the County gives (or receives) value without 
directly receiving ( or giving) equal value in exchange, include property and sales 
taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from 
property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. 
Revenues from sales tax are recognized when the underlying transactions taJce 
place. Revenues from grants, entitlements and donations are recognized in the 
fiscal year in which all eligible requirements have been satisfied. 
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Note I; Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

D. 

E. 

Basis of Accounting (continued}. 

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accmal basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues 
are recognized when measurable and available ("susceptible to accrual"). The 
County considers revenues available if they are collected within 180 days after 
year-end, except for property taxes. Property taxes are considered available if they 
are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are generally recorded 
when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service 
expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims 
and judgments are recorded only when payment is due. General capital assets 
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of 
general long-term debt and capital leases are reported as other financial sources. 

For its business-type activities and enterprise funds, the County has elected under 
GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary 
Funds and Other Governmental Entities that Use Proprietary Fund Accounting. to 
apply all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as any applicable 
pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board, the Accounting 
Principles Board or any Accounting Research Bulletins issued on or before 
November 30, 1989 unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict 
GASB pronouncements. The GASB periodically updates its codification of the 
existing Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards which, along 
with subsequent GASB pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations}, 
constitutes GAAP for governmental units, 

Non-Current Governmental Assets/Liabilities 

GASB Statement No. 34 eliminates the presentation of account groups, but 
provides for these records to be maintained and incorporates the information into 
the Gove!,11JUental Activities column in the government-wide statement of net 
assets. 

F. Budgetary Basis of Accounting 

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 29000 and 29143, inclusive, of the 
California Government Code and other statutory provisions, commonly known as 
the County Budget Act, the County prepares a budget for each fiscal year on or 
before August 30. Budgeted expenditures are enacted into law through the passage 
of an Appropriation Ordinance. This ordinance mandates the maximum authorized 
expenditures for the fiscal year and cannot be exceeded except by subsequent 
amendments to the budget by the County's Board of Supervisors. 

An operating budget is adopted each 'fiscal year for the General Fund and all 
Special Revenue Funds except the Tobacco Settlement Fund. An operating 
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

F. 

Tolal expenditures 

Budgetary Basis of Accounting (continued) 

balanced budget is adopted for the capital project funds for the life of the project, 
except for the Redevelopment Agency, which adopts an operating budget each 
fiscal year. Expenditures are controlled at the object level within budget units for 
the County. A budget unit may be (1) a single department, (2) a division of a large 
department having multiple divisions, or (3) an entire fund. The object level within 
a budget unit is the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed 
appropriations. Any transfers of appropriations between object levels within tbe 
same budget unit may be authorized by the County Executive Office. Budget 
amendments or supplementary appropriations normally financed by unanticipated 
revenues during the year or transfers of appropriations between budget units must 
be approved by the Board of Supervisors. Budgeted amounts in the budgetary 
financial statements are rep0rted as originally adopted and as amended during the 
fiscal year by resolutions approved by the Board of Supervisors. 

The budgets for the governmental funds may include an object level known as 
"expenditure transfers". This object level is an accounting mechanism used by the 
County to show reimbursements between operations within the same fund (an 
example would be the General Fund). 

The amounts reported in the budgetary basis differ from the basis used to present 
the basic financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP). Annual budgets are prepared on tbe modified accrual basis of 
accounting except that current year encumbrllllces are budgeted as expenditures. 

The following schedule reconciles the amounts on the Statements of Revenues and 
Expenditures - Budget to Actual to the amounts on the Statement of Revenue, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances: 

Sj>_ecial Revenue Funds 
Community 

Behavioral Health Services Agency 
General Fund 

(budgetary basis) $ 139,033.981 $ 62,020,469 $ 183, 104,660 
Basis difference • net deduction of 

2001102 encumbrance plus 
2002103 encumbrances (J,164.010) 1,428,053 5,002 

To1al Expenditures (GAAP) $ 137,869,971 $ 63,448,522 $ 183,109,662 
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

G. Cash and Cash Equivale11ts 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in bank and investments held by the County 
Treasurer in a cash management pool. The amounts classified as "Cash with Fiscal 
Agent" represent loan proceeds held by the trustees for various borrowings (See 
Note 12). "Cash with Fiscal Agent" is considered cash and cash equivalents for the 
purposes of reporting cash flows. 

For purposes of the accompanying statement of cash flows, the enterprise and 
internal service funds consider all highly liquid investments with a maturity of 
three months or less when purchased, and their equity in the County Treasurer's 
investment pool, to be cash equivalents. 

H. Investments 

I. 

California Government Code Sei;tion 53600, et seq., authorizes the County to 
invest in obligatiom of the State or any local agency of the State of California, 
bankers' acceptances, conuncrcial paper, negotiable certificates of deposits, 
repurchase agreements or reverse repurchase agreements, medium-term notes 
issued by corporations, State of California Local Agency Investment Fund, and 
open-ended mutual funds. All investments are carried at fair value until they are 
within 90 days of maturity at which time they are reported at amortized cost. 
Interest earned on pooled investments is apportioned quarterly to certain 
participating funds based upon each fund's average daily deposit balance with all 
remaining interest deposited in the General Fund. 

The Pension Trust (Stanislaus County Employees' Retirement Association) funds 
are invested pursuant to policy guidelines established by the Retirement System's 
Board. The objective of the investment policy is to invest in a manner that 
provides the safeguards and diversity that a prudent invE:,Stor would adhere to. The 
policy of Stanislaus County Employee's Retirement Association is to invest in the 
following asset classes: Large Cap US Stocks, Small Cap US Stocks, Non US 
Stocks and Fixed Income. 

Deferred Revenue 

The County reports deferred revenue on its financial statements. Deferred revenues 
arise when potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" 
criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when the 
County receives resources before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies 
are received prior to the incunence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent 
periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met. or wheo the County has a 
legal claim to the resources, the liability of deferred revenue is removed from the 
financial statements and revenue is recognized. 
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Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

J. Other Assets 

K. 

Inventory: In governmental funds, inventories are valued at cost. In proprietary 
funds, they are valued at lower of cost or market Cost is determined by using 
either the weighted average or the first-in, first-out method. The consumption 
method of accounting for inventory is used for the governmental fund types and the 
proprietary fund types. For the governmental fund types, the reserve for inventory 
indicates that a portion of the fund balance is not an available financial resource 
(see Note 14). 

Prepaid Items: Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future 
accounting periods and are reco.tded as prepaid items. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets (including infrastructure) are recorded at historical cost or estimated 
historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Contributed fixed assets are 
valued at their estimated fair market value on the date contributed. Capital assets 
include public domain (infrastructure) general fixed assets consisting of certain 
improvements including roads, bridges, lighting system, drainage systems, and 
flood control. The County defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual 
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. 

Capital assets used in operations are depreciated or amortized (assets under capital 
leases) using the straight-line method over the lesser of the capital lease period or 
their estimated useful lives in the government-wide statements, and the proprietary 
funds. 

The estimated useful lives are as follows: 

Infrastructure (except for the maintained 
pavement subsystem) 

Structures and improvements 
Equipment 

20 to 60 years 
15 to 60 years 
3 to 20 years 

The County has seven networks of infrastructure assets - roads, bridges, lighting 
districts, stonn drains, signs, signals and beacons. 

Landfills, in the Enterprise Funds, are amortized over the estimated n~mber of 
years that space will be available. 
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Note 1; Swnmary of Significant Acc:ounting Policies ( continued) 

L. 

M. 

Compensated Absences (Accrued Vacation, Sick Leave, and Compensatory 
Time) 

All regular employees of the County earn vacation and sick leave with pay every 
year. The amount of vacation and sick hours eamed is based on the yea111 of 
continuous service and the bargaining unit to which the employee belongs. All 
employee bargaining units have vacation accumulation limits. Also, regular 
employees are given credit for 8 hours sick leave each month of employment with 
limited accumulation. 

After at least six months of County service, most regular employees upon 
separation are entitled to all unused vacation time accumulation. Most regular 
employees are entitled to a portion of accumulated sick leave after six years of 
service, depending on age, y= of service, and bargaining unit. 

At the close of each fiscal year, the balance of this accumulated time at the last pay 
period is computed for each employee at the current salary range. In the financial 
statements, these amounts are referred to as "Compensated Absences." An average 
of all termination payments since July 1986 is used to compute the amount that is 
expected to be liquidated in the next year with expendable available financial 
resources. This current portion and the balance of the long-term liability are 
reported in the government-wide financial statements and are generally liquidated 
by the general fund. 

lnterfund Transactions 

Interfund transactions are reflected as either loans, services . provided, 
reimbursements or transfers. Loans are reported as receivables and payables as 
appropriate, are subject to elimination upon consolidation and are referred to as 
either "interfund receivable/payable" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or 
"advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). 
Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and the 
business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as 
"internal balances". 

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by 
a fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that 
they are not available for appropriation and are not available financial resources. 

Services or supplies provided can result, at year-end, in receivables and payables 
referred to as "due to/from other funds". These receivables and payables are 
eliminated in the governmental-wide consolidation with residual balances reported 
as "internal balances" when they are between funds of the County. 
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Note2; 

M. 

N. 

Interfund Transactions (continued) 

Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropdate 
benefiting fund and reduces its I'!llated cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund 
transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or proprietary 
funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide presentation 

Estimates 

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Restatement of Net Assets 

The beginning net assets of the Governmental Activities on the Government-wide 
Statement of Activities has been restated to reflect phasing in the rest of the County's 
infrastructure not included in tl1e June 30, 2002 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

The beginning net assets of the Business-type Activities has been restated to reflect a fund 
change. The Waste to Energy fund reported as a major fund last year has been determined 
this year to be an Agency fund instead of a County enterprise fund. All the proprietary 
fund statements have been changed to reflect the removal of this fund. 

Restatement of Equity 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-type 
Activities 

Net assets June 30, 2002, as previously reported 
Infrastructure phase-in for storm drains and signs 
Removal or Waste to Energy Fund 

627,280,066 

16,580,fi'.13 
$1,214,122 

(35,926.145) 
Net assets July I. 2002 as restated 643,860,709 $• 15,287,977 

Note 3; Indivjdual Fund Deficits 

Deficit Fund Balances - Government Fund Type 

Special Revenue Fund • Job Training Partnership Act 106.761 

The Job Training Partnership Act deficit is due to a timing difference between 
expenditures and State reimbursement 
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Individual Fund Defle!ts (continued) 

Accumulated Deficits - Proprietary Funds 

Enterprise fund • Geer Road Landfill 
Enterprise fund -Health Clirucs/Ancillary fund 
Internal Service fund • Workers' Componsation Insurance 
Internal Service fund· Denllll Insurance 
lntmial Service fund -Technology and Communication 

4,656,302 
21,852,483 

9,681,038 
241,696 

2,221,640 

The deficit in the Geer Road Landfill is due to the liability for closure/post closure 
maintenance. This accumulated deficit will be funded with receipts from Fink Road 
Landfill. 'The Health Clinics and Ancillary Services Fund deficit is due to the closure of the 
County hospital inpatient facilities in November 1997. The plan to recover this deficit 
focuses on transfers from other funds, one-lime revenue sources, increased fees for service 
and dedicated revenue streams. 

The In'ternal Service Fund deficits are due to unexpected expenses in combination with user rates that were 
too low. These deficits will be funded by increased user charges, 

Note 4: Excess of Actual Expenditures Over Budget In ludividual Budget Units 

The following budgetary units had an ellcess of actual expenditures over budget for the 
year ended J1me 30, 2003: 

General Fund; 
Collections 
Facility Maintenance 
Debt Service 

Special Revenue: 

Excess Expenditures 

Household Ha2ardous Waste 
Vehicle Registration 
Source Reduction and Recy¢ling 
Workers' Compensation Fraud 
Rural Crime Task Force 
County Fire Service 

$ 7,148 
53,604 

500,004 

$ 20,821 
2,331 

166.059 
5,932 
5,745 

24,834 

The above disclosure is based on departmental appropriations as of June 30, 2003. If a 
department received unanticipated revenue during the fiscal year and did not increase 
estimated revenue and appropriations, then the positive effect on the departmental budget 
would not be reflected in the above. 

Note.5: Cash and lnvesbnents 

The County maintains a cash and investimmt pool for the purpose of increasing interest 
income through pooled investment activities. This pool, which is available for use by all 
funds, is displayed on the combined balance sheet as "Pooled Cash and Investments." The 
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Note 5: Cash and Investments (continued) 

Pension Trust Fund participates in the pool, but the majority of its ca.sh and investments 
are not included in the County's pooled cash and investments. 

Cash and investments with the County Treasurer are invested pw-suant to investment 
policy guidelines established by the County Treasurer and accepted by the Board of 
Supervisors. The objectives of the policy are, in order of priority, legality of investment, 
safety of principal, liquidity and yield. 

Total County cash and investments are as follows: 
Cash: 

Imprest cash 
Cashon hand 
Bank deposits: 

in Treasurer's pool 
with others external to the pool 

Investments in Treasurer's pool 
Less: outstanding checks 

Subtotal 
Restricted cash and investments with fiscal agent 

Total Cash and bves1mcnts 

Total County cash and investments are reported as follows: 
Primary government 
Component unit 
Pension trust 
Invesbncnt trust fund 
Private-purpose trust fund 
Agency funds 

Total Cash and Investments 

Deposits 

$ 227,847 
17,933 

30,672,477 
6,823,707 

631,617,869 
(62 281485) 
607,078,348 
~ 

L 621325774 

$ 180,648,929 
4SS,239 

4,989,901 
367,760,309 

1,000,000 
~6 471 396 

S 671325174 

Deposits are placed with various financial institutions and are carried at cost. The 
difference between carrying amount of the County's deposits and the bank balance is a 
result of transactions in transit. 

The County's deposits are categorized to give an indication of the level of custodial risk 
assumed by the County at year-end. Category 1 includes deposits that are insured or 
collatera!ized with securities held by the County or by its agents in the County's name. 
Category 2 includes deposits that are co!laterali;;ed with securities held by the pledging 
financial institution's trust department or agent in the County's name. Collateralized 
deposits represent amounts covered by collateral held by the pledging financial 
institutions; under California laws, depository banks maintain a collateral pool for all . 
public funds deposited. Category 3 includes deposits that are uncollateralized. This 
category includes any bank balance that is collateralized with securities held by the 
pledging financial institution or by its trust department or agent but not in the County's 
name. 
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Note 5: Cash and Investments (continued) 

At June 30, 2003, deposits included the following: 

Deposits with financial institutions·pool 
DePQsits whh fhumcial Ulstitutions~thcr 

Cashon hand 
Imprest cash 

Total deposits and c:ash on hand 

100,000 
1,028,851 

C.tesory 

2 
$ 

$ l,123,SSI --$--

$30,572,477 
5,794,856 

$36,367,333 

Bank 
Balw,ce 

$ 24.206.191 
6,&23,707 

$ 31,029,898 

Curry ins 
Amount 

30,fil2,477 
6,'in3,707 

37,496,184 

17,933 

227,847 

~ 
Under the California Government Code, a financial institution is required to secure deposits in 
excess of $100,000 made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities held in the 
fonn of an undivided collateral pool. The market value of the pledged securities in the 
collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. 
California law also allows financial institutions to secure public deposits by pledging first trust 
deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of these deposits. The collateral must be held at 
the pledging bank's trust department or other bank, acting as the pledging bank's agent, in the 
County's name. 

Investments 

The County's invesbnents are categorized to give an indication of the level of custodial risk 
assumed by the County at year end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or 
registered, or securities held by the County or its agent in the County's name. Category 2 
includes uninsured and unregistered invesbnents with securities held. by the counterparty' s 
trust department or agent in the County's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and 
unregistered investments with securities held by the counterparty, or by the counterparty's 
safekeeping departi:nent or agent, but not in the County's name. The County did not have any 
category 2 or 3 investments at June 30, 2003. 

Al June 30, 2003, investments included the following: 

Pooled Jnvc.:itmcnts ir.i County TrcD,rury; 
Bunkers Ac~pto.nces 
US T~ury Nole# 
Federal Agencies 
Repurchase Agreements 
Cornmcrci-'1 ~per 
Negotiable Certificates ofD-eposit 
Medium-Tenn N'otes 

Pension T,u,t: 
Pensi-on Common S\ocks 
Pension Bonds 

Category To1aia: 

Pooled Inveitments Not Subject to Categorization 
Local Certifieates of Deposit 
L,ot;Al Agency lnvestmcnt Fund 
Managed Money Market Pools 

To1111 lnvestment& 

Stated 
Mo.turity Int-erest 
~ ~ 

9/8/0, 1.15% 
7/IC)/())-8115/03 1,14-5.75 
8/lS/03·5121/03 .93-7.25 

7fU03 I.I 
717/0)-7/30/03 1.02·1,24 
7/10/03-816/03 1.15-1.79 
7121/0:l-2115/06 2.99-<S.63 
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$ 4.990,150 
138,1%,250 
138,825.832 
Sl.885.175 
59,971.399 
29.942,200 
~ 

:llJ.172,065 

6 l0,0o9.808 
~ 

~ 

FairVnlue& 
au,,ytng 
~ Pac Vaine 

s 4.990.150 · $ 5,000.000 
!38, 146.250 
138.825.832 
81,885,175 
59,971,399 
29,942,200 
~ 

513,172,065 

610,069.808 
317,660.231 

$ 28,300.000 
30,000,000 
~ 

~ 

137 ,000,000 
136,225,000 
81,885,175 
00,000,000 
30,000.000 
~2 2')!!QQQ 

507,330,175 

556,686,292 
294,893,576 

$ 28,300,000 
30,000,000 
60145 804 

SI d.77155§42 
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

Note 5: Cash and Investments (continued) 

Investments ( continued) 

In accordance with GASB No. 31, investments are reported at their fair value and all 
changes in fair value are reflected in income of the period in which they occur. 

Except for repurchase agreements, the County did not invest in any types of investments 
during this fiscal year, other than those owned as of June 30, 2003. 

Fair values were obtained from our custodial statement for all investments having greater 
than 90 days to maturity in the following categories; 

Bankers Acceptances 
U.S. Agency and GSE Bonds and Notes 
U.S. Treasury Bonds, Notes and Bills 
Corporate Bonds and Notes 

Amortized cost was used for all investment having 90 days or less to maturity, which may 
include the following categories: 

Commercial Paper 
Bankers Acceptances 
State of Califorrria Local Agency Investment Fund 
U.S. Agency and GSE Bonds and Notes 
U.S. Treasury Bonds, Notes and Bills 
Repurchase Agreements 
Corporate Bonds and Notes 

Book cost was used for collateralized Certificates of Deposit purchased from state and 
nationally chartered banks. 

The Stanislaus County Treasurer's Pool is not SEC-registered, but is invested in 
accordance with Califorrria State Government Code, and the Stanislaus County Treasurer's 
Investment Policy. California State Government Code requires the formation of an 
Investment Oversight Committee, which is charged with overseeing activity in the pool for 
compliance to policy and code requirements. To this end, the Oversight Committee 
reviews the monthly investment report prior to presentation to the Board of Supervisors 
and causes an audit of investments to occur annually. 

The Stanislaus County Treasurer's Pool maintains some investment in the State of 
Califorrtla Local Agency Investment Fund (L.A.I.F. ). This fund is not SEC-registered, but 
is required to invest according to California State Code. The total amount invested by all 
public agencies in LAIF is $5.7 billion. Of this amount, 98% was invested in 
nonderivative instruments with 2% invested in derivative financial products. The Local 
Investment Advisory Board (Board) has oversight responsibility for LAJF. The Board 
consists of five members as designated by state statute. The value of the pool shares in 
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Note 5: Cash and Investments (continued) 

Investments (continued) 

LAIF, which may be withdrawn, is determined on an amortized cost basis, which is 
different than the fair value of the pooled treasury's portion in the pool. 

In addition, funds wer,; invested in three separate money market funds. 

In accordance with GA.~B 31, investments are marked to fair values annually and an 
adjustment is made to each fund accordingly. Howeve1·, actual daily activity is done on a 
dollar to dollar basis and only a withdrawal from the pool of a si7.e that jeopardizes pool 
participants would cause the withdrawal to be done at market value. 

Withdrawals from L.A.I.F. are done .on a dollar to dollar basis. 

The County has no legally binding guarantees to support the shares in the County 
Treasurer's Pool. · 

The Staruslaus County Treasurer's Pool generally limits participation in the po·o1 to those 
agencies and districts required to participate by legal provisions of the California State 
Code. Voluntary participation is limited to the Stanislaus County Employees Retirement 
System and Independent Special Districts, which represent approximately 3% of the pool. 

L.A.I.F. is ao outside pool utilized by the Stanislaus County Treasurer's Investment Pool. 
While fair value for the pool shares were made available by L.A.I.F., GASB 31 requires 
that short-tenn investments be carried at amortized cost. Therefore, this infonnation was 
not applicable. 

In accordance with Government Code Section 53647, interest on all money deposited in 
the County Treasury belongs to the County unless otherwise directed by law or the County 
Board of Supervisors. The County has numerous funds in which the interest earned is 
deposited into the General fund to comply with the above code section. 

The following represents a condensed statement of net assets and changes in net assets for 
the Treasurer's investment pool at June 30, 2003: 

Statement of Net Assets 

Net assets held for pool participants 

Equity of external pool participants 
Equity of internal pool participants 
Total Equity 

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

Net assets at July l, 2002 
Net investment income 
Net contributions and withdrawals 
Net Assets at June 30, 2003 
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$ 6Q7 Q78 34§ 

$ 440,676,845 
166401503 

$ 6Q79ZRJ48 

$ 576,900.515 
16,429,507 
13 748 326 

$ 607078 348 

Note 6: 

COUNTY OF STANISLAUS 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

Interfund Transactlom 

Interfund Receivables/Payables 

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2003 are as follows: 

Due To/From Ot11er Funds 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount 

Behavioral Health and Recovery General Fund $ 147,624 
Community Services Agency General Fund 24,996 
Other Governmental Funds General Fund 189,172 
Health Clinics and Ancillary Services General Fund 7,882 
Other Governmental FIJJ!ds Other Governmental Funds 10,895 
Behavioral Health and Recovery Other Governmental Funds 192,481 
Health Clinics and Ancillary Services Other Governmental Funds 525,580 
Other Enterprise Funds Behavioral Health and Recovery 304.314 

Totals $ 1,402,944 

The General Fund owes the other funds for State realignment. The Other Government 
Funds owe Health Clinics and Ancillary Services and the other funds for services 
provided. Behavioral Health and Recovery fund owes the Other Enteq,rise Funds for 
services provided. 

Advances To/From 

Re<:_eivable Fund 

General Fund 
Behavioral Health and Recovery 
Other Governmental Funds 

Totals 

Payable Fund 

Other Governmental Funds 
Behavioral Health ond Recovery 
Health Clinics and Ancillary Services 

Amount 

$ 501,350 
2,640,000 
7,:l~0,482 

$ 10,531,832 

The above interfund advances are long-term loans that are not expected to be repaid in the 
short-term. 

ln.terfund Receivables/Payables 

Receivable Fl.Ind 

General Fund 

Totals 

Payable Fund 

Other Governmental Funds 
Health Clinics and Ancillary Services 
Other Enterprise Funds 
Internal Serv:ice Funds 

Amount 

$ 5,509,655 
20,489.032 

1,746,464 
2,522,521 

$ 30,267,672 

During the year, certain funds borrowed $30,267,672 from the General Fund to cover their 
deficit cash balances. 
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Note 6: InterCund Transactions (continued) 

Transfers 

Transfer from 

Clem:ral Fund 

Behavioral Health and Recovery 

Community Services Agency 

Public Fac.ilily Fees 

Otl,er Governmental Funds 

Tmnsferfo 

Community Services Agency 
Boh•vloral Health ond Recovery 
Other Governmental Funds 
Health Clinles and Ancillary 

Seivice:s 
Internal Service Funds 

Community Service., Agency 
Olher Govem,ncntol Funds 
Other Enterprise Funds 

Community Services Agency 
Other Governmental Funds 

General Fond 
Olher Governm.ntal Funds 
Health Clinics and Ancillary 

Services 

General Fund 
Other Govommontal Funds 
Health Clinics and Ancillary 

Services 

H~lth Clinics and Anci118l")' S-ervk~s Other Governmental Funds 

Other Enterprise Funds 

l'inkl.andfill 

Internal Service Funds 

Behavioral Health nnd Recoveiy 
Other Governmental Funds 

Fink Landfill 
<leorLMdfill 
OU,er Govern1J10nt Funds 

General Fund 
Other Governmentnl Funds 

Amount Purpose 

7,716,$89 County program contributions 
6,803,740 County program contributions 

35,164,834 County program contributions and debt se,vicc 
I, 138.970 County program contribution 

--,,..•,..,1-'s,ccos,,,.o County program contribution 

~ 

182,062 Contributions to joint programs 
744,908 To pay POB debt service 

___ 34=9~,2,..,7~0 Reimbune administrative costs of program 
1,276,240 

540, 149 Contribution to children's pro&ram 
1,297,853 To payPOB debt service 
l,1!38,002 

1.155,671 Capital assets purchases 
4,441,307 Capital assets purchases 

151,210 Capital assets purchases 

S,748,188 

1,3701447 Various contributions to programs 
8.233,522 Various contribution$ to programs and POD debt servie<, 

5,141 Various contributions to programs 

9,609,110 

5,783,617 Reimburse administrative costs ofHSA and POB debt 
setvlce 

954,549 Reimburse administro.tive costs of prognu119 
__ ....;2:::.23::,:,3;:c;lc..:.4 To pay POB debt service 

1.177,863 

62S,000 Landfill closure/post,<;losure 
450,000 Landfill olosure/post-closwe 

--~25"',07~8 To pay POil debt mvice 
l,t00,078 

112,044 Return contribution to Gcncial Fund 
__ ....;7..:;20::o,8;;.;;8"-9 To pay POB debt service and insurance reimbursement 

832.933 

~ 
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Note 7: Capital Assets 

COUNTY OF STANISLAUS 

Notei, to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2003 was as follows; 

Governmentttl Acthities 
CD.pita.l assets, not being depreciated: 

Balance 
July 1,2002 Additions 

umd $ i?,995.2-06 $ 4S7.S61 

Tmnsreni& 
R.cdremcnts Adjustments 

(124.805) 
(1"..f.80S) Toto.I ct1pi1aJ assets, not being depreciated 2-7,995,206 ___ 4..;;~~.S"'6"-7 ----- ·----"-=-'-

Capital assets, being depreciatW: · 
lnfi'asuurnre 
Stttictures and Improvements 
Equipment 
Toto.lc.ipital.11Sscts, being 
depreciated 

Le.ss nccumulitled deprecialion for: 
Infrastruclure 
Struel.ures mid improvements 
Equipment 

Total oca1mulateddepreciation 

Total capilala.sscts, being 
depreciated, net 

Government activities capital 
asseis.net 

capital as.st!'IS, being depr-ccillted: 
Saucturcs and improvements 
'Eqldpmerit 
Total capital assets. being 
depreciated 

Less accumubted depreciation for: 
Structures and improvements 
Equipment 

Total accwttlllated deprecialioo 

Total capitaJ as.sets, being 
de.precinted,net 

Business-type activities capital 
os:sets,n« 

953,396.!><ki 9,023,BSI 
162.954,48'2 9,118,807 
42.577,4-94 5.334.749 

1,158.928,922 23,477,407 

(539,892, TBS) (24,121,291) 
(J2,158,48S) (4,487,068) 
(28,079,598) (4,lr.ll,Z79) 

(600,130,26!1_ __ (32,629,638) 

5S8,798,6S4 (9,152,231) 

s~ $ (8,694,665) 

!4,399,810 
14.399!_1fl 

19,394.285 88,196 
12,608,043 980,152 

32.002.328 ~8 

(11,328,410) (408,141) 
(10;!38.484) (676,249) 

(21.766,894) (1,084.390) 

10,235.434 (16,042) 

l4.63S,244 $ (l6,04i) 
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(2.162.034) 

(2,162.034) 

1,873,1!9 

1,873,119 

(288.915) 

(288,915) 

(9,978) 
{576,869) 

(586,8-4§)_ 

_(5_8~,846) 

(586,846) 

17,090,434 
(9,399) 

('707,682) 

17~ 

(509,791) 

(89,202) 

(598.993) 

~ 

$17~ 

(13,013) 

(13,013) 

741,@4 

741,6!)4 

7211,681 

72M81 

Balllllc:e 
June 30. 200.J 

$ 211.m,968 
28,327,968 

979,Sll,ZJI 
172,063,890 
46,457,891 

1,198.033.013 

(564.523.267) 
(36,645,553) 
(30.116,960) 

(631,485,780) 

566,547,2'33 

$ 594,875,200 

14,399,810 
14,399~0 

19,472,503 
12,998.313 

32.470,816 

(11.736.SSI) 
(10,373.039) 

(22,J09.S90) 

10.361,226 

$ 24,76l.036 



COUNTY OF STANISLAUS 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

Note 7: Capital Assets (continued) 

Note 8: 

Note 9: 

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions aa follows: 

General government 
Public protection 

. Public ways 
Health and sanilation 
Public assistance 
Education 
Recreation 

Total Deprecuttion Expense-Governmental functions 

Depreciation expense was charged to the bvsiness-typ<> functions aa follows: 

Transit 
Fink Road Landfill 
Geer Road Landfill 
Behavioral Health Center 
Health Clinics and Ancillary Services 
Inmate Welfare/Commissary 

Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type Funerions 

Accounts Receivable 

2,533,320 
3,420,111 

24,509,321 
615,388 

1,011,169 
117,240 
423,089_ 

$ 32,629,638 

35,671 
43,4$6 

712 
217,049 
771,700 

15,772 
$ 1,084,390 

Accounts receivable net of allowance for uncollectibles includes receivables from federal, 
state, and local governments in the net amount of $37,556,979. Patient accounts receivable 
at Health Clinics and Ancillary Services of $26,633,753 net of. an allowance for 
uucollectibles of $19,274,242, leaves a net receivable of $7,359,511. Substantially all other 
receivables are deemed collectible. 

Proprietary Revenue 

Charges for services for Health Clinics and Ancillary Services of $56,469 ,886, net of 
discounts and allowances of $20,256,475, leaves a net amount of $36,213,411. 

Note 10: Property Taxes 

The County's property taxes are levied July I (Unsecured Roll) and October l (Secured 
Roll) on assessed values established on the lien date of the previous January 1 for all 
taxable property located within the County. Local assessed values are detennined, subject 
to appeal before the Assessment Appeals Board, by the County Assessor's Office. Locally 
assessed real property is appraised at the base year value and is ad justed each year after 
1975 by the change in the California Consumer Price Indei- (CPI) not to exceed an increase 
of 2%. Property is re-appraised from the 1975n6 base year value to current full value upon 
either (1) a change in ownership, or (2) new construction, as of the date of such 
transaction or completion of construction (only the newly constructed portion of 
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Note 10: Property Taxes (contimied) 

the property is re-appraised). Thereafter, it continues to be increased annually by the 
change in the CPI not to exceed 2%. The total gross assessed value for the 2002/2003 
fiscal year is $24,679,602,644. 

The County is permitted by Section 93, of the California Revenue and Taxation Code, to 
levy taxes up to $1.00 per $100 of assessed valuation for general governmental services 
other than the payment of principal and interest on general obligation bonds or other 
indebtedness approved by a two-thirds vote of its voters after June 4, 1986. Taxes are 
allotted to local agencies and school districts as outlined in Sections 95 through 100 of the 
California Revenue and Taxation Code. 

Taxes are due in one installment (Unsecured Roll) on billing and are subject to late 
payment penalties if paid after August 31, or two installments (Secured Roll) due on 
November 1 and February 1, and again subject to the late payment penalties if paid after 
December 10 and April 10, respectively. 

The County and its political subdivisions operate under the provisions of Sections 4701-
4717 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code (otherwise known as the "Teeter 
Plan"). Under this method, the accounts of all political subdivisions that levy taxes on the 
County tax roll are credited with 100% of their respective secured tax levy, regardless of 
the actual payments and delinquencies. This method then provides for all the delinquent 
penalties and redemptions flow to the County's General Fund. In addition, Section 4703.2 
of the California Revenue and Taxation Code requires that a property tax loss reserve be 
maintained at not less than 25% of the total delinquent secured taxes as calculated at the 
end of the fiscal year. 

Unsecured taxes are accrued in the period when they are levied and are recognized when 
they become available. "Available" means, due, or past due and receivable within the 
current period and collected within the current period or ex peeled to be collected soon 
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. This period was 60 
days from the end of the fiscal year. 

Property taxes receivable that do not meet the "available" criteria are recorded as deferred 
revenue. 

Note 11: Leases 

Operating Leases 

The County is committed under various operating leases for building and office space and 
business and data processing equipment. Operating leases do not give rise to property 
rights or lease obligations and, therefore, the results of the lease agreements are not 
reflected in the County's government-wide financial statements. 
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Note 11: ~ (continued) 

Aggregate rental expense for all operating leases approximated $3,879,231 for all fund 
types for the year ended June 30, 2003. The following is a schedule by yeai-s of future 
minimum rental payments required under operating leases that have initial or remaining 
non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year as of June 30, 2003. 

Year Ending Juno30 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 

2009-2013 
Total Minimum Lease 

Payments 

Capital Leases 

Amount 
$ 3,388,438 

2.,856,112 
2,093,668 

l,SSl,Sl2 
l,330,577 
7,630,674 

$ 18,850,98! 

The County has entered into certain capital lease agreements under wltlch the related 
buildings and equipment will become property of the County when all terms of the lease 
agreements are met: 

Governmental activities: 
Buildings 
Vehicles 

Business-type activities: 
Vehicles 
Medical equipment 

Total capital lense obligations 

Stated Interest 
Rate 

6.45-7.08% 
0.00-7.24% 

7.24% 
3.00-6.94% 

Present Value of Remaining 
Payments at 

$ 

June ;l_O, 2003 

16,850 
1,037,461 
J,054,311 

11.409 
l,018,851 
1,030,260 
2,084,571 

Equipment and related accumulated amortization under capital leases are as follows: 

Buildings 
Equipment 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

Net value 
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Governmental 
Activities 
$ 219,441 

2,720,304 
(841,127) 

$ 2,098,618 

Business-type 
Activities 

1.905,318 
(797,297) 

$ 1,108,021 

COUNTY OF STANISLAUS 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 · 

Note I.I: Leases (continued) 

Capital I eases (continued) 

Year Ending 
June30 

2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 

Total Minimum Lease Payments 
Less: Amounts Representing Interest 

Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments 

Note 12: Long-Term Debt 

A. Summary of Long-Term Debt 

Total Governmental 
Activities 

542,452 
383,63!> 
142,422 
56,067 

--1:1.ll 
1,130,133 
_QJ~ 

_l_ 1,054,311 

Total l3usiness-type 
Activities 

$ 431,447 
318,436 
160,834 
160,834 

____ j.Q.209 

1,111,760 
{81 500! 

$ 1,030,260 

The following is a summary of long-term liability transactions for the )'{lar ended 
June 30, 2003: 

Governmental Activities: 
Risk management liability 
Certificates of participation 
Bonds payable 
Capital lease payable 
Compensated absences 

Total Gov,m,mental 
Activities 

Business-Type Activities: 
Risk management liability 
Certificates of participation 
Compensated absences 
Capital lease payable 

Total Business-Type 
Activities 

Amounts 
Balance Balance Due Within 

July l, 2002 -~ Addltion_s _ ~etions Adjustments June 30, 2003 One Year 

l 7,932,043 14,634,967 
94,826,893 
96,630,000 

l,ISS,296 423,451 
22,915,541 -- 707,519 

(l l,948,541) 
(5,183,077) 
(5,025,000) 

(524,436) 
(680,844) 

$ 233,459,773 $15,765,937 $ (23,361,898) 

226,000 433,000 
1,552,888 (126,923) 
l,555,983 236,788 (6,662) 

640,513 731.205 (341.458) 

$ 3,975,384 § _ l,400,993 $ (475,043) 
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$ 

$ 

1,528 

1,528 

28,691 

28,691 

Z0,618,469 
89,645,344 
91,605.000 

1,054,311 
22,942,216· 

8,150.492 
5,430,536 
9,920,000 

493,977 
626,392 

$ 225,865,340 $ 24,621,397 

659,000 541,604 
l,454,656 134,464 
1,786,109 80,921 
J,030,260 388,713 

$ ~930,025_$_1, 145, 702 



COUNTY OF STANISLAUS 
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Note 12: Long-Term Debt (continued) 

A. Summary of Long-Term Debt (continued) 

As of June' 30, 2003, annual debt service requirements of governmental activities to 
maturity are as follows: 

Year Ending 
30-Jun 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 

2009-2013 
2014-2018 
2019-2022 

Totals 

Governmental Activities 
Bonds Payable Certificates of Participation 

Princi_!'_al foterest Principal Interest 
9,920,000 6,135,162 5,430,536 4,500,975 
S,795,000 5,633,306 5,690.952 4,244.344 
6,225,000 5,203,591 5,953,312 3,968,749 
6,690,000 4,741,880 6,257,200 3,671,958 
7,185,000 4,245,849 6,549,560 3,368,097 

44, 755,000 12,401,496 28,608,784 12,405,317 
11,035,000 394,501 29,450.000 4,944,287 

----'1.1_o_s._ooo_ 42,625 

91,605,000 ~ 89,645,344 ~ 

As of June 30, 2003, annual debt service requirements of business-type activities to 
maturity are as follows: 

Year Ending 
30-Jun 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 

2009-2013 

Totals 

B. Long Tenn Obligations 

Governmental Activities 

Business-Tr~ Activities 
Certificates of Porticipation 
Principal 

134,464 
139,048 
146,688 
152,800 
160,440 
721,216 

1,454,656 

Interest 
68.619 
62,837 
56,719 
so.us 
43,090 
91,604 

372,987 

On Jnne 11. 1992, the County, through the Stanislaus County Capital Improvements 
Financing Authority, issued $ J 1, 120,000 of Certificates of Participation (1992 COPS) at a 
weighted average interest rate of 6.58%. The proceeds were used to acquire certain office 
buildings and computer hardware and software for County purposes, and to effect a current 
refunding of a portion of the California Health Facilities Financing Authority borrowing 
entered into on July 11, 1989. Repayment is due in semi-annual payments commencing· 
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Note 12; Long-Term Debt (continued). 

B. Long Term Obligations (continued) 

Governmental Activities (continued) 

December I, 1992, ranging from $22,605 to $682,605 including interest, through June I. 2012. 
at rates ranging from 5,90% to 6.85%. Tlie ~neral Fund, Special Revenue Fund, and Heallh 
Clinic an<I Ancillary Services Enteiprise Fund will repay this debL Principal and interest paymenrs 
of $365,000 and $24,457, respectively, wen: made during the fiscal year ended Jone 30, 2003. The 
County reports a !'Ortion of this liability as governmental activilles. 

On September 15, 1992, the County, through the Stanislaus County Capital 
Improvements Financing Authority, issued $10,155,000 of Certificates of 
Participation at a weighted average interest rate of 5.88%. The proceeds were used 
to fund the construction of a support services building which will provide kitchen, 
laundry, housekeeping and commissary services, as well as storage space, for the 
County jail facility located adjacent to the site. Repayment is due in semi-annual 
payments commencing June l, 1993, ranging from $26,797 to $901,797 including 
interest, through June l, 2012, at rates ranging from 4.75% to 6.125%. This debt 
will be paid out of the General Fund. Principal and interest payments of $520,000 
and $94,820, respectively, were made during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003. 

On June 22, 1995, the County, through the Stanislaus County Capital 
Improvements Finllllcing Authority, issued $13,755,000 of Certificates of 
Participation to advance refund a portion of the 1989 Certificates of Participation. 
After the refunding, $54,500,000 of the 1989 Certificates remained outstanding. 
Interest rates range from 4.10% to 5.00% of the 1995 Certificates, with a final 
maturity in 2008. Annual debt service ranges from $1,436,095 to $1,440,605. 
Principal and interest payments of $1,085,000 and $354,890, respectively, were 
made during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003. 

011 January 3, 1996, the County, through the Stanislaus County Capital 
Improvements Financing Authority, issued $55,920,000 of Certificates of 
Participation at an average rate of 5.5% to advance refund the remaining 
$54,500,000 outstanding of the 1989 Certificates of Participation that had an 
average rate of 7.45%, The net proceeds (after payment of $1.2 million in 
underwriter fees, bond insurance and other issuance costs), plus other funds held by 
the trustee related to the 1989 Certificates of Participation, were used to purchase 
federal securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an 
escrow agent to provide for the payment in full of all outstanding prior certificates 
on April 1, 1996. AJJ a result, the 1989 Certificates of Participation are considered 
to be defeased and the liability for those certificates have been removed from the 
government-wide financial statements. Principal and interest payments of 
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Note 12: Long Term Debt (continued) 

B. Long Term Obligations (continued) 

Governmental Activities (continued) 

$1,935,000 and $2,351,632, respectively, were made during the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2003. 

The County refunded the 1989 Certificates to reduce its total debt service payments 
over the next 22 years by $19 million and to obtain an economic gain (difference 
between the present values of the debt service payment on the old and new debt) of 
almost $7 .9 million. · 

On September 25, 1995, the County issued $108,970,000 of Taxable Pension 
Obligation Bonds series 1995. The proceeds were used to pay the Stanislaus 
County Employees' Retirement Association for the County's unfunded actuarial 
accrued liability. The bond is a term bond due August 15, 2013, with an interest 
rate of 7.15%, interest due semi-annually on February 15 and August 15. The 
annual payments must be deposited with the trustee by July 31 of each year, and 
range in amount for $394,501 to $11,432,995. The debt service payments are 
accumulated through departmental charges, with the rate being determined by 
actuarial analysis in conjunction with normal retirement contribution rates. Interest 
payments of $6,405,864 were made during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003. 

On May 13, 1997, the County, through the Stanislaus County Capital 
Improvements Financing Authority issued $12,035,000 of Certificates of 
Participation at a weighted average interest rate of 5.5% to finance the construction 
of an agricultural center and a police officer standards training facility. Repayment 
is due in semi-annual payments commencing November 1, 1997, ranging from 
$29,700 to $1,019,700 including interest, through May J, 2017, at rates ranging 
from 4.60% to 6.00%. This debt will be repaid by the General Fund. Principal and 
interest payments of $470,000 and $580,933, respectively, were made during the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2003. 

On December 16, 1997, the County, through the Stanislaus County Capital 
Improvements Financing Authority, issued $10,630,000 of Certificates of 
Participation (!997 COP) at a weighted average interest rate of 4.43%. The 
proceeds were allocated to advance refund a portion of the remaining outstanding 
balance of the 1992 Series A and Series B Certificates of Participation. Repayment 
is due in semi-annual payments commencing June l, 1998. ranging from $37,625 
to $1,542,625, and includes interest through June 1, 2012, at rates ranging from 
3.75% to 5.00%. This debt will be repaid by the General Fund and Health Clinic 
and Ancillary Services Enterprise Fund. Principal and interest payments of $90,000 
and $488,465, respectively, were made during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003. 
The County reports a portion of this liability as business-type activities. 
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·Note 12: Long Term Debt (continued) 

B. Long Term Obligations (continued) 

Governmental Activities (continued) 

The refunded portion of the 1992 Series A Cettificates amounts to $4,625,000 with 
an average rate of 6.73% and the refunded portion of the 1992 Series B Certificates 
amounts to $5.165,000 with an average rate of 6.042%. The net proceeds (after 
'payment of $386,455 in underwriting fees, insurance and other issuance costs) plus 
other funds held by the trustee related to the 1992 Series A and Series B 
Certificates of Participation were used to purchase U.S. government securities. 
Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to 
provide for a portion of the future debt service payments on the 1992 Series A and 
Series B Certificates. As a result, a portion of the 1992 Series A and Series B 
Certificates are considered to be defeased and the liability for those certificates has 
been removed from the general long-tenn debt account group. At June 30, 2003, 
the outstanding portion is $1,130,000. 
The County advance refunded a portion of the 1992 Series A and Series B 
Certificates of Participation to reduce its total debt service payments over the next 
14 years by almost $1.5 million and to obtain an economic gain (difference 
between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) 
of approximately $1.7 million. 

On March l, 1998, the County, through the Stanislaus Capital Improvements 
Financing Authority, issued $22, 160,000 of Certificates of Participation to finance 
the acquisition of real property and construct a portion of a government office 
building within the City of Modesto, CA. Interest rates range from 3.75% to 4.75% 
with a final maturity in 2018. Annual debt service ranges from $1,005,044 to 
$1,775,325. Principal and interest payments of $845,000 and $928,672 were made 
during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2003. 

On July 24, 2001, the Stanislaus County Redevelopment Agency issued $4,525,000 
of Loan Anticipation Notes at an average rate of 3.09%. The Notes are a bridge 
loan, the proceeds of which will primarily be used to finance the wnstruction or 
certain storm drainage infrastructure in the town of Salida. The Notes are expected 
to be paid at maturity from proceeds of a Joan from Rural Utilities Service of Rural 
Development, United States Department of Agriculture. Principal is all due and 
payable on the maturity date, September 1, 2003. Interest is payable on 
January I. 2002 and on each July and January 1 thereafter and on the maturity date. 
Interest payment of $135,750 was made during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003. 

Business-Type Activities 

On June 11, 1992, the County, through the Stanislaus County Capital 
Improvements Financing Authority, issued $11,120,000 of Certificates of 
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Note 12: Long-Term Debt (continued) 

B. Long-Term Obligations (continued) 

Business-Type Activities (continued) 

Participation (1992 COPS) at a weighted average interest rate of 6.58%. The 
proceeds were used to acquire certain office buildings and computer hardware and 
software for County purposes, and to effect a curre:nt refunding of a portion of the 
California Health Facilities Financing Authority borrowing entered into on July 11, 
I 989. Repayment is due in semi-annual payments -commencing December l, 1992, 
ranging from $22,605 to $682,605 including interest, through June 1, 2012, at rates 
ranging from 5.90% to 6.85%. The General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, and 
Health Clinic and Ancillary Services Enterprise Fund will repay this debt. Principal 
and interest payments of $365,000 and $24,457, respectively, were made during the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2003. The County reports a portion of this liability as 
governmental activities. 

On December 16, 1997, the County, through the Stanislaus County Capital 
Improvements Financing Authority, issued $10,630,000 of Certificates of 
Participation (1997 COP) at a weighted average interest rate of 4.43%. The 
proceeds were allocated to advance refund a portion of the remaining outstanding 
balance of the 1992 Series A and Series B Certificates of Participation. Repayment 
is due in semi-annual payments commencing June !, 1998, ranging from $37,625 
to $1,542,625, and includes interest through June 1, 2012, at rates ranging from 
3.75% to 5.00%. Titls debt will be repaid by the General Fund and Health Clinic 
and Ancillary Services Enterprise Fund. Principal and interest payments of 
$90,000 and $488,465, respectively, were made during the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2003. The County reports a portion of this liability as governmental activities. 

Note 13; Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs 

There are two solid waste landfill sites in the County. The Find Road Sanitary 
Landfill is owned by the County and is currently operating. The Geer Road 
Sanitary Landfill is on land jointly owned by the City of Modesto and the County 
of Stanislaus. This landfill has reached capacity and was closed in June 1990. The 
County of Stanislaus, by and through its Board of Supervisors, administered the 
closure operations of the Geer Road Landfill. Both landfills are reported in their 
entirety as enterprise funds. 

State and federal laws require the County to close a landfill once its capacity has 
been reached and to monitor and maintain the site for thirty subsequent years. The 
County recognizes a portion of the closure and postclosure care costs in each 
operating period even though actual payouts will not occur until a landfill is closed. 
The amount recognized each year to date is based on the landfill capacity used as of 
the balance sheet date. 
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Note 13: Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Costs (continued) 

Estimated total liability for closure/ 
post<:losure at June 30, 2003 

Liability recognized as of June 30, 2003 
Landfill capacity 118ed to date 
Estimated remaining useful life 

Pink Road 

$ 18,440,768 
S,792.534 

31.41% 
20 

Geer Rood 

$ 11,597,935 
11.597,935 

100% 

Total 

$ 30,038, 703 
17,390,469 

The estimated costs of closure and postclosure care are subject to changes such as the effects of 
inflation, technology. revision of laws and other variables. State and federal laws require the 
County to establish a closure fund to accwnulate assets needed for the actual payout of closure and 
postclosure care costs. Of the restricted cash and investments in the Proprietary fund types, the 
following amounts are held for this purpose; 

Fink Road Landfill 
Geer Road Landfill 

Note 14: Net Assets/Fund Balances 

Net Assets 

11,341,333 
6,752,697 

The government-wide and business-type activities financial statements utilize a net assets 
presentation. Net assets are categorized as invested capital assets (net of related debt), 
restricted and unrestricted. 

• Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - This category groups all capital 
assets, including infrastructure, into one component of net assets. Accumulated 
depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduce the balance in this 
category. 

Restricted Net Assets - This category presents external restrictions imposed by 
creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and 
restrictions imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted Net Assets - This category represents net assets of the County, not 
restricted for any project or otl1er purpose. 
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Note 14: Net Assets/Fund Balances (continued) 

As of June 30, 2003, the County had the following restrictions to net assets; 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities 

Restricted for: 
Capital projects $ 46,583,057 
Capital projects - tobacco settlement 53,979,399 
Capital projects - redevelopment 1,972,501 
Debt service 10,774,967 200,338 
Landfill closure/post-closure 18,094,030 
Inmate welfare 1,925,542 
Transit 810,396 
Children & families commission 23,773,BlS 
Road construction 1,334,279 
Tax loss reserve fund 1,240,166 
Behavioral health & recovery 5,611,610 
Child supp(lrt service 2,512,388 
Public assistance 1,493,561 
Public health 3.229,652 
Environmental resources 925,023 
Lighting & storm drain districts 1,847,632 
Clerk-recorder - fixed assets 2,425,956 
Library 1,344,495 
Cpa2000 2,009,525 
Other 2,404,477 

$ 163,462,506 $ 21,030,306 

Fund Balances 

In the fund financial statements, reserves and designations segregate portions of fund 
balance that are either not available or have been earmarked for specific purposes. The 
various reserves and designations are established by actions of the Board or management 
and can be increased, reduced or eliminated by similar actions. 

The term "reserved" is used to indicate that a portion of reported fund balance is (l) legally 
restricted to a specific use or (2) not available for appropriation or expenditure. The 
County's management will sometimes designate portions of unreserved (available) fund 
balance based on tentative future spending plans. Designated portions of fund balance 
represent financial resources legaUy available for uses other than those tentatively planned. 
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Note 14; Net Assets/Fund Balances (continued) 

Fund Balances (continued) 

As of June 30, 2003, the County has reserved or designated fund balances as follows: 

Reserved for Encumbrances: This represents that portion of fund balance reserved for 
encumbrances existing at year end which will result in subsequent year expenditures. 

Reserved - Advances to Other Funds: This represents the portion of fund balance reserved 
for loans to other funds that are not expected to be repaid in the short-term. 

Reserved - Advance to other governments: This represents the portion of fund balance 
reserved for loans to other governments that are not expected to be repaid on the short­
term. 

Reserved - Other: This represents that portion of fund balance unavailable for 
appropriation for the following reasons: 

General Special 
Fund Revenue 

Deposits with others $ 8,645 
Inventory 378,328 
Imprest cash 85,310 46.732 
Prepaid items 343,244 
General reserve 1,800,000 
Tax loss reserve 1,240,166 
Total $ 3,134,121 $ 768.304 

Reserved for Cash with Fiscal Agent; This represents that portion of borrowings which are 
held in reserve accounts by trustees and that portion of borrowings held in interest reserve 
accounts for interest payments. 

Designated for Debt Service: This represents that portion of available fund balance 
segregated to meet future principal and interest payments on debt. 

Designated for Contingencies; This represents that portion of available fund balances set 
aside for emergency and unforeseen expenditures. 

Note 15: Risk Management 

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destrnction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 
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Note 15: Risk Management (continued) 

The County has a risk management program with respect to workers' compensation, 
general and professional liability, unemployment, vision and dental cate. Under its existing 
workers' compensation insurance plan, the County is responsible for $500,000 per 
occurrence, with a commercial insurance company providing certain liability 
coverage for up to $5,000,000. The general liability insurance covers property damage, 
personal injury, auto, and public officials' errors and omissions, General liability, auto, and 
public officials' errors and omissions are the County's responsibility for up to $250,000 
per occurrence, with the ei(Cess insured by the CSAC Excess Insurance Authority for up to 
$9,750,000. The County has also purchased optional excess liability coverage in the 
amount of $10 million. Property damage is inS\lfed by a commercial carrier for 
$385,403,877 with a $10,000 deductible. Unemployment, vision care, and dental 
insurance are the responsibility of the County. Limited exposure precludes the need for 
outside coverage. 

The Health Services Agency Clinics and Ancillary Services, and the Behavioral Health and 
Recovery Department participate in the medical malpractice program administered by the 
CEO Risk Management Division. Under this program, the County has a self-insured 
retention of $500,000 per occurrence and pays all defense costs. The County also carries 
excess insurance coverage up to $10,000,000 per claim. 

There was no reduction in insurance coverage from the prior year. There were no 
settlements in excess of insurance coverage for each of tile past three fiscal years. 

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the past fiscal year are as follows: 

Unpaid claims as of July 1 
Incurred claims (including IBNRs) 
Claim payments 
Unpaid claims as of June 30 

2001/02 2002/03 

$ 14,492,075 $ l&,158,043 
15,244,842 15,067,967 

01 SJ& &74} m 948540 
$ I§ 158043 $ 21277469 

The County is a defendant in several legal actions. In the opinion of County Counsel, it is 
probable the potential liability for these matters could exceed the County's general liability 
self-insurance retention of $250,000. Any excess over $250,000 would be covered by 
excess insurance coverage explained above. 
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Risk Management (continued) 

In addition, the County is a defendant in a number of other lawsuits or proceedings arising 
in the normal course of its activities where the ultimate outcome cannot be predicted with 
certainty. Management does not expect that these matters will have a material adverse 
effect on the consolidated financial position or results of operations of the County. 

Further, the County participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs. These 
programs are subject to financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their 
representatives. Some audits of these programs prior to and for the year ended 
June 30, 2003, have not been conducted or concluded. Accordingly, the County's 
compliance with applicable grant requirements will be established at some future date. The 
amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot 
be detennined at this time although the County expecta such amounts, if any, to be 
immaterial. 

The County has recorded an interfund receivable in the General Fund from the Health 
Clinics and Ancillary Services Enterprise Fund in the amount of $20,489,032 and- has 
determined there is a reasonable possibility of impairment of the asset, however, an 
estimate of the amount of loss cannot be made. 

Note 16: Commitments 

Waste Energy Agreement 

The County, along with the City of Modesto (together known as the Contracting 
Communities), has various agreements with Stanislaus Waste Energy Company (SWEc) 
whereby SWEC will accept, process, and dispose of acceptable waste from the Contracting 
Communities as defined in the agreements. As part of-the agreements, SWEC constructed 
a waste energy facility (the Facility) financed by a bond issue through the California 
Pollution Control Financing Authority. These bonds were refinanced (see Note 17). 

As part of a service agreement between SWEC and the Contracting Communities, the 
County is to pay a fee (service fee) for processing waste that is formula based and subject 
to escalation adjustments. The service fee includes debt service, operation and maintenance 
expenses, and certain pass-through costs. The service fee is reduced by 90% of the energy 
revenue received by SWEC. The agreement expires in 2010 and contains a fair market 
value purchase option at the expiration of the initial term. Net service fees paid under the 
agreement were approximately $7,064,950 for the year ended June 30, 2003. 

In addition to the service fee, the County is required to maintain a resource recovery 
account, which shall hold a minimum balance equal to three months' estimated service fee. 
The resource recovery account is pledged for the service fee obligation and is held by the 
County in its Agency funds. The obligation to pay the service fee is nonrecourse to the 
general credit of the Coo nty. 
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Note 16; Commitments (continued) 

Waste Energy Agreement (continued) 

In addition to the service agreement, the County entered into a facility site lease agreement 
with SWEC to lease the site where the Facility is located for $400,000 per year. The term 
of the lease is 35 years, expiring in 2021, and contains a 15-year option to renew at the 
lessee's {SWEC) option. · 

Construction Contracts 

The County has entered into contracts to complete the renovation of existing office space, 
to construct a performing arts center, to begin work on a new parking garage/office 
structure and to remodel space for the Salida Library. At June 30, 2003, the contractual 
amount remaining was $1,213,772. 

The County has entered into agreements with South San Joaquin Irrigation District to pay 
for one half the cost of constructing water treatment improvements at Woodward 
Reset"voir. The County's share is not to exceed $3.0 million. At June 30, 2003, the 
remaining commitment was $2.0 million. 

Note 17: Joint Venlures 

Stanislaus Waste-to-Energy Financing Agency 

Stanislaus Waste-to-Energy Financing Agency (Agency) was created May l, 1989, 
pursuant to a joint exercise of powers agreement between the City of Modesto and the 
County of Stanislaus. The Agency is administered by a commission consisting of two 
members of the City council and two members of the County's Board of Supervisors. The 
agreement provides tllat the City and the County shall pay for costs associated with the 
operation of the Agency and are entitled to all rights and property of the Agency equally. 
On May 1, 1990, the Agency issued Certificates of Participation to refinance the bonds 
mentioned in Note 16. And on February l, 2000 Refunding Revenue Certificates were 
issued to refinance the 1990 COPs. Outstanding debt of the Agency at June 30, 2003 is 
$50,110,000. Financial statements for the Agency are produced biannually and are 
available from the County of Stanislaus. 

Tuolumne River Regional Park 

The County participates with the City of Modesto and the City of Ceres in the operation 
and development of the Tuolumne River Regional Park (TRRP). The governing body 
consists of two members from each city council and the County Board of Supervisors. 

The TRRP Board prepares the annual budget, which must be approved by both cities'· 
councils and the Board of Supervisors. Each participant has an equity interest in the assets 
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Joint Ventures (continued) 

Tuohunne River Regional Park (continued) 

of the Park based on the percentage of cumulative contributions paid. As of June 30, 2003. the County's 
equity interest was $2,102,183 and is included as part of the unrescricted net assets in the Government-wide 
Statement of Net Assets. For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2003, the County contributed $226.108 to 
TRRP. Financial statements for TRRP are prepared by the City of Modesto Finance Department and are 
available from them. 

Stanislaus Drug Enforcement Agency 

Stanislaus County and the cities of Modesto, Oakdale, Ceres, Patterson, Turlock, 
· Riverbank and Newman are the participants in the Stanislaus Drug Enforcement Agency 
(SDEA). The purpose of the SDEA is to maintain a specially trained police unit to assist 
each of the participating agencies in the enforcement of drug control laws, and to study, 
plan and set priorities for effective enforcement of such laws throughout Stanislaus 
County. The governing body consists of the Sheriff to Stanislaus County and the chief of 
police for each participating city. All participants contributed to the funding of the SDEA 

· budgeted expenditures, based on population and assessed property value. The County's 
contribution to the SDEA for fiscal year 2003 was $405,668. Upon termination of the 
agreement, assets will be distributed based on total contributions from each participant. 
Financial statements of the SDBA are available from the County. 

California Identification System Remote Access Network 

Toe County of Stanislaus and nine cities within the county have formed a local policy 
board to participate in the State Department of Justice CAL-ID program. This program is 
an integrated fingerprint identification system using a remote access network. The 
responsibilities of the local board include making budget recommendations, purchasing 
necessary equipment for the remote access network, obtaining funding, and establishing 
local policy. Annual contributions by all participating jurisdictions are determined based 
on the population of their jurisdiction as a percent of the total population. As part of the 
Joint Powers Agreement, the financial records of the CAL-ID program are kept by the 
County and will be found in the non-major special revenue funds of these financial 
statements. 

The City-County Capital Improvements and Financing Agency 

The City-County Capital Improvements and Financing Agency (Agency) was. created 
December 17, 1996, pursuant to a joint exercise of powers agreement between the City of 
Modesto and the County of Stanislaus. The _Agency is administered by a six-member 
commission consisting of two members of the City Council, two members of the County's 
Board of Supervisors, the County Chief Executive Officer and the City Manager. The 
Agency prepares the annual and project budgets, which must be approved by both the City 
Council and the Board of Supervisors. Each participant has an equity interest in the assets 
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Note 17: Joint Ventures (continued) 
The City-County Capital Improvements and Financing Agency (continued) 

of the Agency in accordance with any project agreements or in the percentages as agreed 
upon by the Agency which percentages shall be reviewed and approved in connection with 
the project and annual budgets of the Agency. As of June 30,2003, the County's equity 
interest in the Agency was $17,905,575 and is included as part of the unrestricted net 
assets in the Government-wide Statement of Net Assets. The financial statements of the 
Agency are the responsibility of tho County and are part of the nonmajor capital project funds of these 
financial sl1:1temt,nlS. 

The California County Tobacco Securitization Agency 

In November 1998, the attorneys general of 46 states (including California) and various 
other public entities (collectively, the "Settling States'') and the four largest United States 
tobacco manufacturers entered into a master settlement agreement (MSA) in resolution of 
cigarette smoking-related litigation. The MSA effectively releases the ruanufactureIS from 
past, present and future smoking related claims in eicchange for, among other things, 
certain payments to be made to the Settling States. 

On August 5, 1998 the counsel for the State of California and various jurisdictions therein 
("participating jurisdictions") entered into a memorandum of understanding (MOU), made 
to the State of California in accordance to the MSA. However, the payments under the 
MSA are subject to numerous adjustments and potential delays. 

On November 15, 2000, the County entered into a Joint Powers Agreement (the 
"Agreement") with the County of Merced, County of Sonoma, and the County of Kem 
thereby creating the California County Tobacco Securitization Agency (the "Agency"). 
The Agency included the County of Marin, County of Placer and the County of Fresno as 
of May 1. 2002. The Agency is governed by a Commission, which is comprised of two 
designees of the Board of Supervisors of each member. 

The purpose of the Agreement is to provide for the exercise of powers common to each 
member, including, but not limited to, the power to insure, hedge or otherwise manage the 
risks associated with the receipt of the MSA payments. In furtherance of it's purpose, the 
Agency has been empowered to issue Bonds secured by the MSA payments of one or more 
members, the proceeds of which will be used directly or indirectly to purchase all or a 
portion of the rights to the MSA payments from a member or members. 

On March 1, 2002, the Stanislaus County Tobacco Funding Corporation, a component unit 
of the Agency, entered into an agreement with the Agency for the purpose of issuing bonds 
in the principal amount of$67,305,000 to acquire the County's rights to receive the MSA 
payments when and as such funds are available. The County agreed to sell its rights, title 
and interest of the money due under the MSA and the MOU for $52,403,206. The financial 
statements of the Agency are produced annually and are available from the County of 
Stanislaus. 

73 

COUNTY OF STANISLAUS 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

Note 18: Jointly Governed Organizations 

Arson Task Force 

The County, in conjunction with thirty other cites and fire districts, created an Arson Task 
Force. The purpose of the Task Force is to assist in the enforcement of arson laws, as well 
as providing investigation and prosecution support to all parties of the Task Force. The 
governing body of the Task Force is a committee comprised of the Fire Warden of 
Stanislaus County, the District Attorney of Stanislaus County, and the fire chief of each 
participating city and district. There is no financial obligation to the Task Force by any 
participating agency. 

Sap Joaquin Valley Unified Air Pollution Control District 

The County and seven other counties located in the San Joaquin Valley air basin.have 
merged their respective air pollution control districts into the San Joaquin Valley Unified 
Air Pollution Control District (Unified District). The purpose of the Unified District is to 
establish a single, integrated agency under one centralized management structure that is 
able to implement programs on a valley-wide basis. The governing board of the Unified 
District consists of one supervisor from each of the eight counties, plus three city members 
appointed by the cities withln the eight counties. It is the intent of the parties that the 
Unified Districts be self-supporting and funded through pennit fees, penalties, and 
subventions. 

Note 19: Deferred Compensation Plan 

The County offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all full-time County employees. 
and administered by either Diversified [nvestment Advisors or ITT Hartford, pemtlts 
participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. For all part-time 
employees under the age of 70, participation in the deferred compensation plan, 
administered by the Public Agency Retirement System (PARS), is mandatory in lieu of 
FICA. The part-time employees pay a 5.5% share of the amount deposited with the plan 
and the County pays the other 2%. The deferred compensation is not available to 
employees until termination, retirement, death, or an unforeseeable emergency. 

All amounts of compensation deferred under these plans, all property and rights purchased 
with those amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are 
held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries. These assets 
are not included on the books of the County and are not subject to the claims of the 
County's general creditors. 

Full-time employee investments are managed by the plan's trustee under numerous 
investment options. The choice of the investment option(s) is made by the participants. The 
plan's trustee, tor part-time employees, makes all investment decisions. 
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Note 20: Employees' Retirement Plan 

The County is a major participant in the Stanislaus County Employees Retirement 
Association (StanCERA), a retirement system organized under the 1937 Retirement Act. 
StanCERA is a cost-sharing multiple-employer Public Employee Retirement System 
(PERS).StanCERA provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living 
adjustments, death benefits and health and welfare insurance for certain retirees and their 
dependents. The plan is administered by the Stanislaus County Employees Retirement 
Association. One actuarial valuation is performed for the system as a whole and the 
contribution rate is determined for each participating entity. The participating entities are 
the County, City of Ceres, and six special districts located in the County that are noi 
governed by the County's Boai:d of Supervisors. StanCERA issues a publicly available 
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information 
for StanCERA. The financial report may be obtained by writing to Stanislaus County 
Employees Retirement Association, P.O. Box 3150, Modesto, CA 95353-3150 or by 
calling (209) 525-6393. 

The financial statements of StanCERA are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. 
Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. 
Employer contributions are recognized when due and a fonnal commitment to provide the 
contributions has been made. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the tenns of the plan. 

Plan investments are reported at fair value. Short-tenn investments are reported at cost. 
which approximates fair value. AU other securities are valued at the last reported sales 
price at current exchange rates. No investment in any single asset represents more than 5% 
of the net assets available for pension benefits. 

The StanCERA has five tiers of retirement benefits, all or some of which are offered to 
General and Safety members, respectively. The benefits known as Tier 1, Tier 2, Tier 4, 
and Tier 5 vest after five years of credited service, while the benefit known as Tier 3 vests 
after ten years of credited service. Vested General members with Tier l, Tier 2, Tier 4 or 
Tier 5 benefits may retire at age fifty or older with ten or more years of qualifying service 
or at any age with thirty or more years of qualifying service. Vested Safety members with 
Tier I, Tier 2, Tier 4 or Tier 5 benefits may retire at age fifty or older with ten years of 
qualifying service or at any age with twenty or more years of service. All Tier 3 members 
may retire at age fifty-five with ten or more years of qualifying service. 

For members with Tier l, Tier 4 or Tier 5 benefits, final average salary is the average 
monthly salary based on the highest twelve consecutive months of earnings. For members 
with Tier 2 or Tier 3 benefits, final average salary is the average monthly salary based on . 
the highest thirty-six consecutive months of eai:nings. 

The retirement benefit for Tier I, Tier 2 Tier 4 and Tier 5 members includes a post­
retirement cost-of-living (COL) adjustment based upon the Consumer Price Index. COL 
increases/decreases are limited to a maximum of 3% annually. Total COL decrease(s} 
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cannot exceed the cumulative amount of previous COL increase(s). Tier I, Tier 2, Tier 4 
and Tier 5 provide death and disability benefits. 

Those members participating in Tier l, Tier 2, Tier 4 and Tier 5 are required by statute to 
contribute to the pension plan. Members' contribution rates are formulated on the basis of 
the age at date of entry and the actuarially calculated future benefits. The County is 
required by statute to coutribute the remaining amounts necessary to finance the estimated 
benefits accrued to its members. Benefits and contribution provisions are established by 
state law subject to amendment only by a legislative act of the State of California. 
Alternative benefit and contribution schedules are permissive with approval of the Board 
of Supervisors. 

In addition to providing pension benefits, StanCERA sponsors health insurance for certain 
retirees and their depeudents. Substantially all of the active members may become 
eligible for those benefits if they reach normal retirement age. Currently, 1,360 retirees 
are active participants in the health care plans, and they received post-retirement 
health care benefits in the amount of $6,454,071 for the year ending June 30, 2003. 
StanCERA sponsored health insurance benefits are not vested and may be discontinued 
with 90 days notice. 

StanCERA also provides a death benefit of $5,000 paid to the beneficiary or estate if a 
member dies after retirement, provided that Stanislaus County was the members last public 
employer. 

Post-employment health care benefits are funded from excess earnings of the retirement 
assocjation. The County does not contribute towards post-employment benefits other than 
retirement. The actuarial study dated June 30, 1998 projected the liability level for health 
care premium to be $93,346,000 based on current utilization. As of June 30, 2003, the 
funding for post-retiree's health premium reserve is $110,698,145. 

The County's contribution to StanCERA for the years ending June 30, 2001, 2002 
!ind 2003 were $6,044,594, $9,827,993 and $14,572,417, respectively, equal to the 
required contributions for each year. 

. Note 21: Subsequent Event 

On October 15, 2003, the county issued $45,000,000 of one-year Tax and Revenue 
Anticipation Notes at a coupon interest rate of 2.0%. The tr:ue interest cost is 0.99334%. 
The notes are secured by a pledge of unrestricted revenues received during fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2004. The notes mature on October 14, 2004. 

On Octo~r 3, 2003, the County settled a lawsuit prior to a jury verdict for $1.9 million. 
The terms of the settlement included the County acquiring property and buildings valued at 
$1,950,000 next to the Geer Road landfill. 
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Required Supplementary Information 
For the Year Ended June 30, Z003 

Stanislaus County Employees' Retirement Association (StanCERA) 
Schedule of Funding Progress 

The actuarial value of assets as a percentage of the actuarial liability and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability as a 
percentage of the annual covered payroll as of June 30, 2002 are obtained from StanCERA 's annual actuarial report 
The report for this fiscal year is not yet available. As such, the information for this fiscal year is no! reflected in the 
following three-year analysis: 

Funded Status of Plan 
(In thousands) 

(UAAL)asa 
Actuarial 

Percentage 
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Funded of 

Covered 
Valuation Value of Liability CAAL) Unfunded AAL Ratio Covered 

Payroll 
n,@ Assets (a) En!!}! Ag~ Qi} (UAAIJ ill-B) ......ulbL PaJ1roll (c} 

((Q-i!}/c} 

07/01/2000 $ 679,421 $ 666,114 $ (13,307) 102.0 $ 157,010 (8.5) 
07/01/2001 784,114 781,495 (2,619) 100.3 174,595 (1.5) 
07/01/2002 878,821 870,768 (8.053) 100.9 196,471 (4.1) 
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APPENDIXC 

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL LEGAL DOCUMENTS 

The following is a summary of certain provisions of the Trust Agreements and the Leases 
which are not described elsewhere. The terms of each Trust Agreement are substantially similar, 
and the terms summarized below apply to both the Series 2004A Trust Agreement and Series 2004B 
Trust Agreement except where otherwise indicated. The terms of each Lease are substantially 
similar, and the terms summarized below apply to both the Series 2004A Lease and Series 2004B 
Lease except where otherwise indicated. This summary does not purport to be comprehensive and 
reference should be made to the respective agreement for a full and complete statement of the 
provisions thereof 

Each Series of the Certificates is separately issued and secured under its related Trust 
Agreement, which pertains exclusively to the related Series of Certificates, the related Lease 
Agreement, the related Lease Payments and the related Property. The Owners of a Series of 
Certificates will have no claim on the revenues or funds securing the other Series of Certificates or 
on any other revenues held under the Trust Agreement for the other Series. 

DEFINITIONS AND SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS 
OF THE TRUST AGREEMENTS 

DEFINITIONS 

Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms defined below will for all purposes below 
have the meanings defined below, the following definitions to be equally applicable to both the 
singular and plural forms of any of the terms defined below. All capitalized terms used below and 
not defined below shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in each Lease. 

"Additional Certificates" means certificates of participation authorized by a supplemental 
Trust Agreement that are executed and delivered by the Trustee under and pursuant to the Trust 
Agreement. 

"Additional Payments" means all amounts payable by the County as Additional Payments as 
defined in the Lease. 

"Assignment Agreement" means each respective Assignment Agreement related to the 
Certificates, dated as of the date of each respective Trust Agreement, by and between the Trustee and 
the Authority, and any duly authorized and executed amendments thereto. 

"Authority" means the Stanislaus County Capital Improvements Financing Authority, a joint 
exercise of powers authority organized under the laws of the State, its successors and assigns. 

"Authority Representative" means the Chair of the Authority, or any other person authorized 
to act on behalf of the Authority under or with respect to the Lease. 

"Beneficial Owner" means any person which (a) has the power, directly or indirectly, to vote 
or consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Certificates (including persons holding 
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Certificates through nominees, depositories or other intermediaries), or (b) is treated as the owner of 
any Certificates for federal income tax purposes. 

''Business Day" means any day other than (i) a Saturday or Sunday, or (ii) a day on which 
banking institutions in the State of New York or the State of California are authorized or required by 
law or executive order to remain closed. 

"Certificates" means (i) with respect to the Series 2004A Trust Agreement, the $15,340,000 
County of Stanislaus Certificates of Participation (2004 Capital Improvement Projects), Series 
2004A (the "Series 2004A Certificates"), and (ii) with respect to the Series 2004B Trust Agreement, 
the $27,455,000 County of Stanislaus Certificates of Participation (2004 Capital Improvement 
Projects), Series 2004B (the "Series 2004B Certificates"), each to be executed and delivered by the 
Trustee pursuant to the respective Trust Agreement. 

"Certificate Year" means the period extending from September I each calendar year to 
August 31 of the subsequent calendar year, provided that the first Lease Year will commence on the 
Closing Date and end on August 31, 2005. 

"Closing Date" means the date on which the Certificates, duly executed by the Trustee, are 
delivered to the Original Purchaser thereof. 

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, and the regulations issued under the Trust 
Agreement, as the same may be amended from time to time, and any successor provisions oflaw. 

"Completion Certificate" means a certificate of the County Representative stating that all 
components of the Project have been completed or concluded in conformity with the requirements of 
the Lease. 

"Construction Fund" means the fund by that name established and held by the Trustee 
pursuant to the Trust Agreement. 

"Continuing Disclosure Agreement" means that certain Continuing Disclosure Agreement 
dated as of April 1, 2004, by and between the County and the Trustee, as dissemination agent, as it 
may be amended from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof. 

"Costs of Issuance" means all expenses incurred in connection with the authorization, sale, 
execution and delivery of the Certificates and the application of the proceeds of the Certificates, 
including but not limited to all compensation, fees and expenses (including but not limited to fees 
and expenses for legal counsel) of the County, the Authority and the Trustee, compensation to any 
financial consultants or underwriters, legal fees and expenses, the premium for the Insurance Policy, 
any insurance policy deposited in the Reserve Fund to satisfy the Reserve Requirement, filing and 
recording costs, rating agency fees, costs of preparation and reproduction of documents and costs of 
printing. 

"Costs of Issuance Fund" means the fund by that name established and held by the Trustee 
pursuant to the Trust Agreement. 

"Costs of Issuance Requisition" means a written requisition substantially in the form attached 
to the Trust Agreement. 
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"County" means the County of Stanislaus, a body corporate and politic organized and 
existing under the laws and Constitution of the State, and its successors and assigns. 

"County Representative" means the Chief Executive Officer or the Assistant Chief Executive 
Officer of the County, and any other person authorized by the Board of Supervisors of the County to 
act on behalf of the County under or with respect to the Trust Agreement. 

"Delivery Date" means the date on which the Certificates are executed and delivered to the 
Original Purchaser. 

"Depository" means the securities depository acting as depository pursuant to the Trust 
Agreement. 

"DTC" means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, a limited purpose trust 
company organized under the laws of the State of New York in its capacity as securities depository 
for the Certificates. 

"Event of Default" means an event of default under the Lease, as defined therein. 

"Fiscal Year" means the fiscal year of the County commencing July I and ending June 30 of 
the next year. 

"Government Obligations" means Permitted Investments of the type described in 
paragraph (I) of the definition thereof. 

"Independent Counsel" means an attorney duly admitted to the practice of law before the 
highest court of the state in which such attorney maintains an office and who is not an employee of 
the Authority, the Trustee or the County. 

"Insurance Business Day'' means any day other than (i) a Saturday or Sunday, or (ii) a day on 
which the Insurance Trustee or lending institutions in the State of New York are authorized or 
required by law or executive order to remain closed. 

"Insurance Policy" means the financial guaranty insurance policy issued by the Insurer 
insuring the payment when due of the principal of and interest with respect to the Certificates as 
provided therein. 

"Insurer" means Ambac Assurance Corporation, a Wisconsin-domiciled stock insurance 
company incorporated under the laws of the State of Wisconsin, and licensed to do business in the 
State of California, or any successor thereto or assignee thereof. 

"Interest Payment Date" means March I and September I of each year commencing 
September I, 2004. 

"Lease" means with respect to the Series 2004A Certificates the Lease/Purchase Agreement 
related to the Series 2004A Certificates and with respect to the Series 20048 Certificates means the 
Lease/Purchase Agreement related to the Series 20048 Certificates, each dated as of the date of each 
Trust Agreement, by and between the County and the Authority, and any duly authorized and 
executed amendments thereto. 
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"Lease Payment" means any payment required to be paid by the County to the Authority 
pursuant to the Lease. 

"Lease Payment Date" means each February 15 and August 15 commencing August 15, 
2004, or if such day is not a Business Day, then the next succeeding Business Day. 

"Lease Payment Fund" means the fund by that name established and held by the Trustee 
pursuant to the Trust Agreement. 

"Letter of Representations" means the letter of the County delivered to and accepted by the 
Depository on or prior to delivery of the Certificates as book-entry certificates making reference to 
the DTC Operational Arrangements memorandum, as it may be amended from time to time, setting 
forth the basis on which the Depository serves as depository for such book-entry certificates, as such 
letters were originally executed or as they may be supplemented or revised or replaced by letters 
from the County and the Trustee delivered to and accepted by the Depository. 

"Moody's" means Moody's Investors Service or any successors or assigns thereto. 

"Net Proceeds" means any proceeds of any insurance, performance bonds or taking by 
eminent domain or condemnation paid with respect to the Property remaining after payment 
therefrom of any expenses (including attorneys' fees) incurred in the collection thereof. 

"Net Proceeds Fund" means the fund by that name established and held by the Trustee 
pursuant to the Trust Agreement. 

"Nominee" means the nominee of the Depository, which may be the Depository, as 
determined from time to time pursuant to the Trust Agreement. 

"Original Purchaser" means UBS Financial Services Inc., as the original purchaser of the 
Certificates on the Closing Date. 

"Outstanding" when used as of any particular time with respect to Certificates, means 
(subject to the provisions of the Trust Agreement) all Certificates theretofore executed and delivered 
by the Trustee under the Trust Agreement except: 

(a) Certificates theretofore cancelled by the Trustee or surrendered to the Trustee 
for cancellation; 

(b) Certificates for the payment or prepayment of which funds or Government 
Obligations, together with interest earned thereon, in the necessary amount will have 
theretofore been deposited with the Trustee (whether upon or prior to the maturity or 
prepayment date of such Certificates), provided that, if such Certificates are to be prepaid 
prior to maturity, notice of such prepayment will have been given as provided in the Trust 
Agreement or provision satisfactory to the Trustee will have been made for the giving of such 
notice; and 

( c) Certificates in lieu of or in exchange for which other Certificates will have 
been executed and delivered by the Trustee pursuant to the Trust Agreement. 
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Notwithstanding anything in the Trust Agreement to the contrary, in the event that the 
principal and/or interest with respect to the Certificates shall be paid by the Insurer pursuant to the 
Insurance Policy, the Certificates shall remain Outstanding for all purposes, not be defeased or 
otherwise satisfied and not be considered paid by the County. 

"Owner" or "Certificate Owner" or "Owner of a Certificate", or any similar term, when used 
with respect to a Certificate means the person in whose name such Certificate is registered on the 
registration books maintained by the Trustee. 

"Participants" means those broker-dealers, banks and other financial institutions from time to 
time for which the Depository holds book-entry certificates as securities depository. 

"Permitted Investments" means, if and to the extent permitted by law and by any policy 
guidelines promulgated by the County: 

(1) For all purposes including defeasance investments in refunding escrow accounts (the 
Trustee is entitled to rely upon investment direction of the County as a certification that such 
investment is a Permitted Investment): 

(a) cash (insured at all times by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation); or 

(b) obligations of, or obligations guaranteed as to principal and interest by, the 
United States of America or any agency or instrumentality thereof, when such obligations are backed 
by the full faith and credit of the United States of America, including: 

U.S. treasury obligations 
All direct or fully guaranteed obligations 
Farmers Home Administration 
General Services Administration 
Guaranteed Title XI financing 
Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA) 
State and Local Government Series 

Any security used for defeasance must provide for the timely payment of principal 
and interest and cannot be callable or prepayable prior to maturity or earlier redemption of the rated 
debt (excluding securities that do not have a fixed par value and/or whose terms do not promise a 
fixed dollar amount at maturity or call date). 

(2) For all purposes other than defeasance investments in refunding escrow accounts: 

(a) obligations of any of the following federal agencies which obligations 
represent the full faith and credit of the United States of America, including: Export-Import Bank, 
Rural Economic Community Development Administration, U.S. Maritime Administration, Small 
Business Administration, U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (PHA's), Federal 
Housing Administration and Federal Financing Bank; 

(b) direct obligations of any of the following federal agencies which obligations 
are not fully guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America: senior debt 
obligations rated "Aaa" by Moody's or "AAA" by S&P issued by the Federal National Mortgage 
Association (FNMA) or Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC), obligations of the 
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Resolution Funding Corporation (REFCORP), senior debt obligations of the Federal Home Loan 
Bank System and senior debt obligations of other Government Sponsored Agencies approved by the 
Insurer; 

( c) U.S. dollar denominated deposit accounts and bankers' acceptances with 
domestic commercial banks (including those of the Trustee and its affiliates) which have rating on 
their short term certificates of deposit on the date of purchase of"A-1" or "A-1+'' by S&P and "P-1" 
by Moody's and maturing no more than 360 days after the date of purchase (ratings on holding 
companies are not considered as the rating of the bank); 

( d) commercial paper which is rated at the time of purchase in the single highest 
classification, "A-1+" by S&P and "P-1" by Moody's and which matures not more than 270 days 
after the date of purchase; 

( e) investments in a money market fund rated "AAAm" or "AAAm-G" or better 
by S&P, including funds for which the Trustee or its affiliates provide investment advisory or other 
management services; 

(t) pre-refunded Municipal Obligations defined as follows: Any bonds or other 
obligations or any state of the United States of America of any agency, instrumentality or local 
governmental unit of any such state, which are not callable at the option of the obligor prior to 
maturity or as to which irrevocable instructions have been given by the obligor to call on the date 
specified in the notice; and 

(i) which are rated, based on an irrevocable escrow account or fund (the 
"escrow"), in the highest rating category of S&P or Moody's or any successors 
thereto; or 

(ii) (1) which are fully secured as to principal and interest and redemption 
premium, if any, by an escrow consisting only of cash or obligations described in 
paragraph (1 )(b) above, which escrow may be applied only to the payment of such 
principal of and interest and redemption premium, if any, on such bonds or other 
obligations on the maturity date or dates thereof or the specified redemption date or 
dates pursuant to such irrevocable instructions, as appropriate, and (2) which escrow 
is sufficient, as verified by a nationally recognized independent certified public 
accountant, to pay principal of and interest and redemption premium, if any, on the 
bonds or other obligations described in this paragraph on the maturity date or dates 
specified in the irrevocable instructions referred to above, as appropriate; 

(g) municipal obligations rated "Aaa/ AAA" or general obligations of states with 
a rating of at least "A2/A" or higher by both Moody's and S&P; 

(h) investment agreements approved in writing by the Insurer (supported by 
appropriate opinions of counsel); 

(i) the Local Agency Investment Fund of the State, created pursuant to Section 
16429.1 of the California Government Code, to the extent the Trustee is authorized to register such 
investment in its name; and 
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G) other forms of investments (including repurchase agreements) approved in 
writing by the Insurer. 

The value of the above investments shall be determined as follows: 

"Value" which shall be determined as of the end of each month, means that the value 
of any investments shall be calculated as follows: 

(a) for the purpose of determining the amount of any fund, all Permitted 
Investments credited to such fund shall be valued at fair market value. The Trustee shall 
determine the fair market value based on accepted industry standards and from accepted 
industry providers. Accepted industry providers shall include, but are not limited to, pricing 
services provided by Financial Times Interactive Data Corporation, Merrill Lynch, Salomon 
Smith Barney, Bear Steams, or Lehman Brothers. 

(b) As to certificates of deposit and bankers' acceptances: the face 
amount thereof, plus accrued interest. 

( c) As to any investment not specified above: the value thereof 
established by prior agreement between the County, the Trustee and the Insurer. 

"Prepayment" means any payment made by the County pursuant to the Lease as a 
prepayment of Lease Payments. 

"Prepayment Fund" means the fund by that name established and held by the Trustee 
pursuant to the Trust Agreement. 

"Principal Office or Corporate Trust Office" means the corporate trust office of the Trustee at 
550 Kearny Street, Suite 600, San Francisco, California 94108-2527, Attention: Corporate Trust; or 
such other or additional offices as may be designated by the Trustee. 

"Project" has the meaning given to the term "Project" in the respective Lease. 

"Project Cost Requisition" means a written requisition substantially in the form attached to 
the Trust Agreement. 

"Project Costs" means, with respect to any item or portion of the Project, the contract price 
paid or to be paid therefor upon acquisition, construction, procurement or improvement thereof, in 
accordance with a purchase order or contract therefor. Project Costs include, but are not limited to, 
the administrative, engineering, legal, financial and other costs incurred by the County and the 
Authority in connection with the acquisition, construction, procurement, remodeling or improvement 
of the Project, all applicable sales taxes and other charges resulting from such construction, 
procurement, remodeling or improvement of the Project and the costs associated with making rebate 
calculations required by the Code. Project Costs shall not include any costs of the County or the 
Authority to enforce remedies under the Trust Agreement or under the Lease. 

"Property" means the site described in each Lease being leased to the County by the 
Authority under the terms of such Lease. 
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"Record Date" means the close of business on the fifteenth day of the month preceding each 
Interest Payment Date, whether or not such fifteenth day is a Business Day. 

"Reserve Fund" means the fund by that name established and held by the Trustee pursuant to 
the Trust Agreement. 

"Reserve Requirement" means, as of any calculation date, for each series of Certificates, the 
least of (1) the maximum aggregate annual Lease Payments (in any Certificate Year) then payable 
under the related Lease ( exclusive of Lease Payments attributable to Certificates that have been 
defeased), (2) 125% of the average annual aggregate Lease Payments (in any Certificate Year) then 
payable under the related Lease ( exclusive of Lease Payments attributable to Certificates that have 
been defeased), or (3) 10% of the face amount of the Certificates and/or the Additional Certificates, 
as applicable (less original issue discount if in excess of two percent of the stated prepayment amount 
at maturity). 

"S&P" means Standard & Poor's Ratings Services or any successors or assigns thereto. 

"Site Lease" means each Site Lease related to the Certificates, dated the date of each Trust 
Agreement, by and between the Authority and the County. 

"Special Counsel" means Stradling Y occa Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation, or 
any other attorney or firm of attorneys of nationally recognized standing in matters pertaining to the 
tax-exempt status of interest on obligations issued by states and their political subdivisions and 
acceptable to the County. 

"State" means the State of California. 

"Tax Certificate" means the Tax Certificate, dated as of the Closing Date, concerning matters 
pertaining to the use and investment of proceeds of the Certificates executed and delivered to the 
County on the date of execution and delivery of the Certificates, including any and all exhibits 
attached thereto. 

"Term" means the time during which the Lease is in effect, as provided in the Lease. 

"Trustee" means BNY Western Trust Company, a banking corporation duly organized and 
existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of California, and any successor trustee. 

"Trust Agreement" means, with respect to the Series 2004A Certificates, the Series 2004A 
Trust Agreement, and, with respect to the Series 2004B Certificates, the Series 2004B Trust 
Agreement, together with any amendments thereof or supplements thereto permitted to be made 
under the respective Trust Agreement. 

THE CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION 

Transfer and Exchange 

Transfer of Certificates. Any Certificate may, in accordance with its terms, be transferred 
upon the books required to be kept pursuant to the provisions of the Trust Agreement by the person 
in whose name it is registered, in person or by his duly authorized attorney, upon surrender of such 
Certificate for cancellation at the Principal Office accompanied by delivery of a written instrument of 
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transfer in a form acceptable to the Trustee, duly executed. Whenever any Certificate or Certificates 
will be surrendered for transfer, the Trustee will execute and deliver a new Certificate or Certificates 
of the same tenor and maturity, for like aggregate principal amount in authorized denominations. 
The Trustee may require the payment by the Certificate Owner requesting such transfer of any tax or 
other governmental change required to be paid with respect to such exchange. 

Exchange of Certificates. Certificates may be exchanged at the Principal Office for a like 
aggregate principal amount of Certificates of other authorized denominations of the same tenor and 
maturity. The Trustee may require the payment by the Certificate Owner requesting such exchange 
of any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange. 

Time for Transfer or Exchange. The Trustee will not be obligated to transfer or exchange 
any Certificate after a Record Date and before the following Interest Payment Date, or during the 
period in which it is selecting Certificates for prepayment, or after notice of prepayment has been 
given as provided in the Trust Agreement. 

Certificate Register 

The Trustee will keep or cause to be kept at its Principal Office sufficient books for the 
registration and transfer of the Certificates which will, during normal working hours and upon 
reasonable notice, be open to inspection by the County and the Authority; and, upon presentation for 
such purpose, the Trustee will, under such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, register or 
transfer or cause to be registered or transferred, on said books, Certificates. The County, the 
Authority and the Trustee will be entitled to treat the registered owner of a Certificate as the absolute 
owner thereof for all purposes, whether or not a Certificate will be overdue and the County, the 
Authority and the Trustee will not be affected by any notice to the contrary. 

Additional Certificates 

Subsequent to the execution and delivery by the Trustee of the Certificates, the Trustee will, 
upon written request or requests of the County Representative and of the Authority Representative, 
execute and deliver from time to time one or more series of Additional Certificates pursuant to the 
Trust Agreement in such aggregate principal amount as may be set forth in such written request or 
requests, provided that there has been compliance with all of the following conditions, which are 
conditions precedent to the preparation, execution and delivery of such Additional Certificates: 

(a) The parties to the Trust Agreement have executed a supplemental agreement 
which (i) sets forth the terms and provisions of such Additional Certificates, including the 
establishment of such funds and accounts, which may be separate and apart from the funds 
and accounts established under such Trust Agreement for the Certificates, as are necessary or 
appropriate, and (ii) requires that prior to the delivery of such Additional Certificates the 
Reserve Requirement with respect to such Additional Certificates is on deposit in the Reserve 
Fund established under such Trust Agreement or in a reserve fund established under such 
supplemental agreement; 

(b) The scheduled principal and interest payable with respect to such Additional 
Certificates will be payable only on Interest Payment Dates applicable to the Certificates; 
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( c) The Lease will have been amended, if necessary, to (i) increase or adjust the 
Lease Payments due and payable on the Lease Payment Date to an amount sufficient to pay 
the principal, premium (if any) and interest payable with respect to all Outstanding 
Certificates, including all Additional Certificates, as and when the same mature or become 
due and payable ( except to the extent such principal, premium and interest may be payable 
out of moneys then in the Reserve Fund or otherwise on deposit with the Trustee in 
accordance with the Trust Agreement), (ii) if appropriate, amend the definition of"Property" 
to include as part of the Property all or any portion of additions, betterments, extensions, 
improvements or replacements, or such other real or personal property (whether or not 
located upon the Property as such Property is constituted as of the date of the Trust 
Agreement), to be fmanced, acquired or constructed by the preparation, execution and 
delivery of such Additional Certificates, and (iii) make such other revisions to the Lease as 
are necessitated by the execution and delivery of such Additional Certificates (provided, 
however, that such other revisions will not prejudice the rights of the Owners of Outstanding 
Certificates as granted them under the terms of the Trust Agreement); 

( d) There has been delivered to the Trustee a counterpart of the amendments 
required by the Trust Agreement; 

(e) The Trustee has received a certificate of the Authority Representative that 
there exists on the part of the Authority no Event of Default ( or any event which, once all 
notice or grace periods have passed, would constitute an Event of Default) under the Trust 
Agreement; 

(f) The Trustee has received a certificate of the County Representative that 
(i) there exists on the part of the County no Event of Default ( or any event which, once all 
notice or grace periods have passed, would constitute an Event of Default) under the Trust 
Agreement and (ii) the Lease Payments as increased or adjusted do not exceed in any year the 
fair rental value of the Property; 

(g) The Trustee has received an opinion of Special Counsel substantially to the 
effect that (i) said supplemental agreement and said amendments to the Lease comply in all 
respects with the requirements of the Trust Agreement, (ii) said supplemental agreement and 
said amendments to the Lease have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by each of 
the respective parties thereto (provided that said opinion of Special Counsel, in rendering the 
opinions set forth in this clause (ii), will be entitled to rely upon one or more other opinions 
of counsel, including counsel to any of the respective parties to said supplemental agreement 
or said amendments to the Lease), (iii) assuming that no Event of Default has occurred and is 
continuing, the Trust Agreement, as amended by said supplemental agreement, and the 
Lease, as amended by the respective amendments thereto, constitute the legal, valid and 
binding obligations of the respective parties thereto, enforceable against said parties in 
accordance with their respective terms ( except to the extent that enforcement thereof may be 
limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, debt adjustment or other laws affecting 
creditors' rights generally, and except to the extent that enforcement thereof may be limited 
by general principles of equity, regardless of whether enforcement is sought in a legal or 
equitable proceeding) and (iv) the execution of such supplemental agreement and said 
amendments to the Lease, and performance by the parties under the Trust Agreement, will 
not result in the inclusion of the interest portion of any Lease Payments payable with respect 
to any Certificates, including Additional Certificates, theretofore prepared, executed and 
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delivered, in the gross income of the Owners of the Certificates for purposes of federal 
income taxation; 

(h) The County will have provided the Insurer written notice of the proposed 
execution and delivery of such Additional Certificates at the addresses indicated in the Trust 
Agreement and will have received prior written consent of the Insurer with respect to such 
Additional Certificates; provided that any Additional Certificates being delivered to refund 
any outstanding Certificates will not require the prior written consent of the Insurer if the 
aggregate maximum annual debt service with respect to the Certificates and the Additional 
Certificates during any remaining year that the Certificates will be outstanding does not 
exceed maximum annual debt service with respect to the Certificates prior to such refunding. 

(i) There will have been delivered to the Trustee an endorsement to or reissuance 
of the title insurance policy delivered under the Lease providing that the insured amount is at 
least equal to the aggregate principal amount of all of the Certificates and Additional 
Certificates outstanding upon the execution and delivery of such Additional Certificates; 

G) Upon the execution and delivery of such Additional Certificates, the amount 
on deposit in the Reserve Fund will be equal to the Reserve Requirement, taking into account 
the execution of the Additional Certificates; and 

(k) Such other conditions will have been satisfied, and such other instruments 
will have been duly executed and delivered to the Trustee (with a copy to the Insurer), as the 
County or the Authority will have reasonably requested. 

Upon delivery to the Trustee of the foregoing instruments, the Trustee will cause to be 
executed and delivered Additional Certificates representing the aggregate principal amount specified 
in such supplemental agreement, and such Additional Certificates will be equally and ratably secured 
with all Certificates, including any Additional Certificates, theretofore prepared, executed and 
delivered under the Trust Agreement, all without preference, priority or distinction ( other than with 
respect to maturity, payment, prepayment or sinking fund payment (if any)) of any one Certificate, 
including Additional Certificates, over any other; provided, however, that no provision of the Trust 
Agreements will require the County to consent to or otherwise permit the preparation, execution and 
delivery of Additional Certificates, it being understood and agreed that any such consent or other 
action of the County to permit the preparation, execution and delivery of Additional Certificates, or 
lack thereof, will be in the sole discretion of the County. 

COSTS OF ISSUANCE FUND 

The Trustee will establish, maintain and hold in trust a separate fund designated as the "Costs 
of Issuance Fund". The moneys in the Costs of Issuance Fund shall be used and withdrawn by the 
Trustee to pay the Costs of Issuance upon submission of a Costs of Issuance Requisition from a 
County Representative stating the person to whom payment is to be made, the amount to be paid, the 
purpose for which the obligation was incurred and that such payment is a proper charge against said 
fund. On the second Business Day preceding September 1, 2004, or upon the earlier written request 
of a County Representative, all amounts remaining in the Costs of Issuance Fund shall be transferred 
by the Trustee to the Escrow Fund or, at the request of the County, to the Construction Fund. 

C-11 



CONSTRUCTION FUND 

The Trustee will establish and maintain a separate fund to be known as the "Construction 
Fund." The Trustee will maintain the Construction Fund until the Project has been acquired and 
constructed by the County, or until all amounts therein are expended towards such acquisition and 
construction, the remaining proceeds of sale of the Certificates. All remaining money in the 
Construction Fund will be applied by the Trustee for the costs of the acquisition and construction of 
the Project and the incidental costs and expenses related thereto (including reimbursement to the 
County for any such costs or expenses paid by it). The Trustee will disburse moneys from the 
Construction Fund to pay Project Costs or to reimburse the County for payment of such Project Costs 
upon receipt by the Trustee of a Project Cost Requisition signed by the County Representative. The 
Trustee will be absolutely protected in making any disbursement from the Project Fund in reliance 
upon a Project Cost Requisition signed by the County Representative. 

In connection with the foregoing, the Trustee will have the right to establish convenience 
accounts within the various funds established under the Trust Agreement which can be established 
and closed at the discretion of the Trustee. 

When the acquisition and construction of the Project has been completed, the County will 
direct the Trustee to transfer any remaining balance of money in the Construction Fund to the 
Reserve Fund, to the extent money is needed therein for the balance therein to equal the Reserve 
Requirement, and any then remaining balance the Trustee will deposit in the Lease Payment Fund, 
unless the County provides an opinion of Special Counsel to the effect that another use of such 
moneys will not cause the interest represented by the Certificates to be included in the gross income 
of the Owners thereof for federal income tax purposes, in which case, such money may be expended 
by the County as provided in such opinion. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of a default in the payment of any Lease Payment 
and there are no other available funds held under the Trust Agreement, the Trustee will pay from the 
remaining funds in the Construction Fund any principal and/or interest due on the Certificates. 

PREPAYMENT FUND 

Establishment of Prepayment Fund 

The Trustee will establish a special fund in the Trust Agreement designated as the "County of 
Stanislaus (2004 Capital Improvement Projects) Prepayment Fund," referred to in the Trust 
Agreement as the "Prepayment Fund"; will keep such fund separate and apart from all other funds 
and moneys held by it; and will administer such fund as provided in the Trust Agreement. Moneys to 
be used for prepayment of the Certificates will be deposited into the Prepayment Fund and used 
solely for the purpose of prepaying the Certificates in advance of their maturity on the date 
designated for prepayment and upon presentation and surrender of such Certificates to the Trustee. 

Surplus 

Any funds remaining in the Prepayment Fund after prepayment and payment of all 
Certificates Outstanding, including accrued interest and payment of any applicable fees and expenses 
to the Trustee pursuant to the Trust Agreement and any other Additional Payments payable under the 
Lease or provision made therefor satisfactory to the Trustee, and provision for any amounts required 
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to be transferred to the Rebate Fund pursuant to the Trust Agreement, will be withdrawn by the 
Trustee and remitted to the County. 

LEASE PAYMENTS; LEASE PAYMENT FUND 

Assignment of Rights in Lease 

The Authority has, pursuant to the Assignment Agreement, assigned and set over to the 
Trustee certain of its rights in the Lease, including but not limited to all of the Authority's rights to 
receive and collect all of the Lease Payments, the Prepayments and all other amounts required to be 
deposited in the Lease Payment Fund pursuant to the Lease or pursuant to the Trust Agreement. All 
Lease Payments, Prepayments and such other amounts to which the Authority may at any time be 
entitled ( other than Additional Payments due to the Authority under the Lease) are to be paid directly 
to the Trustee, and all of the Lease Payments and Prepayments collected or received by the Authority 
are to be deemed to be held and to have been collected or received by the Authority as the agent of 
the Trustee and if received by the Authority at any time are to be deposited by the Authority with the 
Trustee within five (5) Business Days after the receipt thereof, and all such Lease Payments are to be 
deposited by the Trustee upon the receipt thereof in the Lease Payment Fund, all such Prepayments 
are to be deposited by the Trustee upon the receipt thereof in the Prepayment Fund. If the County 
fails to deposit with the Trustee a Lease Payment on the applicable Lease Payment Date, the Trustee 
shall, within three Insurance Business Days after such Lease Payment Date, notify the Insurer of such 
failure. The Insurance Policy will be held by the Trustee and will be deemed to be held in the Lease 
Payment Fund. 

Security Interest in Moneys and Funds 

The Authority and the County, as their interests may appear, grant to the Trustee for the 
benefit of the Owners a lien on and a security interest in all moneys in the funds held by the Trustee 
under the Trust Agreement ( excepting only the Rebate Fund and any moneys to be deposited into the 
Rebate Fund), including without limitation, the Lease Payment Fund, the Reserve Fund, the 
Prepayment Fund, the Construction Fund and the Net Proceeds Fund, and all such moneys are to be 
held by the Trustee in trust and applied to the purposes specified in the Trust Agreement and in the 
Lease. 

Pledge of Lease Payments and Proceeds 

The Lease Payments and any proceeds from the re-letting or any other disposition of the 
Property pursuant to the Lease (the "Lease Proceeds'') are irrevocably pledged to and will be used for 
the punctual payment of the interest and principal represented by the Certificates and the Lease 
Payments and Lease Proceeds will not be used for any other purpose while any of the Certificates 
remain Outstanding. This pledge will constitute a first lien on the Lease Payments and Lease 
Proceeds in accordance with the terms of the Lease, subject to the Trust Agreement. 

Establishment of Lease Payment Fund 

The Trustee will establish a special fund designated as the "County of Stanislaus (2004 
Capital Improvement Projects) Lease Payment Fund." All moneys at any time deposited by the 
Trustee in the Lease Payment Fund will be held by the Trustee in trust for the benefit of the Owners 
of the Certificates. So long as any Certificates are Outstanding, neither the County nor the Authority 
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will have any beneficial right or interest in the Lease Payment Fund or the moneys deposited therein, 
except only as provided in the Trust Agreement, and such moneys will be used and applied by the 
Trustee as provided in the Trust Agreement. 

Deposits 

There will be deposited in the Lease Payment Fund all Lease Payments and in the 
Prepayment Fund all Prepayments received by the Trustee, including any moneys received by the 
Trustee for deposit therein pursuant to the Trust Agreement and the Lease, and any other moneys 
required to be deposited therein pursuant to the Lease, including without limitation that section of the 
Lease regarding proceeds of rental interruption insurance or pursuant to the Trust Agreement, which 
moneys will be applied as a credit towards any Lease Payment then due. 

Application of Moneys 

Except as provided in the Trust Agreement, all amounts in the Lease Payment Fund will be 
used and withdrawn by the Trustee solely for the purpose of paying the principal and interest with 
respect to the Certificates as the same will become due and payable, in accordance with the 
provisions of the Trust Agreement, subject to the requirement that certain investment earnings may 
be transferred to the Rebate Fund, as provided in the Trust Agreement. 

On or before each Interest Payment Date, the Trustee will set aside an amount sufficient to 
pay the interest becoming due and payable on such Interest Payment Date on all Outstanding 
Certificates. Moneys so set aside will be used and withdrawn by the Trustee solely for the purpose of 
paying the interest on the Certificates as it will become due and payable (including, accrued interest 
on any Certificates prepaid prior to maturity). 

On or before each Interest Payment Date on which the principal of the Certificates will be 
payable, the Trustee will set aside an amount equal to (i) the principal amount of the Certificates 
coming due and payable on such Interest Payment Date pursuant to the Trust Agreement, (ii) the 
prepayment price of the Certificates ( consisting of the principal amount thereof and any applicable 
premiums) required to be prepaid on such Interest Payment Date pursuant to any of the provisions of 
the Trust Agreement. Moneys so set aside will be used and withdrawn by the Trustee solely for the 
purpose of (i) paying the principal of the serial Certificates at the maturity thereof, or (ii) paying the 
principal of and premium (if any) on any Certificates upon the prepayment thereof pursuant to the 
Trust Agreement. 

Surplus 

Any funds remaining in the Lease Payment Fund after payment of all Certificates 
Outstanding, including accrued interest and payment of any applicable fees to the Trustee pursuant to 
the Trust Agreement and any other Additional Payments due under the Lease, or provision made 
therefor satisfactory to the Trustee, and provision for any amounts required to be transferred to the 
Rebate Fund pursuant to the Trust Agreement, will be withdrawn by the Trustee and remitted to the 
County. 
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RESERVE FUND 

Establishment of Reserve Fund 

The Trustee will establish a special fund designated as the "County of Stanislaus (2004 
Capital Improvement Projects) Reserve Fund," referred to in the Trust Agreement as the "Reserve 
Fund." All moneys at any time on deposit in the Reserve Fund will be held by the Trustee in trust for 
the benefit of the Owners of the Certificates, as a reserve for the payment when due of all the Lease 
Payments to be paid pursuant to the Lease and of all payments on the Certificates and applied solely 
as provided in the Trust Agreement. 

Certain Net Proceeds 

Net Proceeds of rental interruption insurance will be deposited first to the Reserve Fund to 
make up any deficiencies therein and second to the Lease Payment Fund to be credited to the 
payment of the Lease Payments in the order in which they become due. 

Transfers of Excess 

The Trustee will, on or before February 15 and August 15 of each year, provide written 
notice to the County of any moneys which will be on hand in the Reserve Fund (including investment 
earnings) in excess of the Reserve Requirement on the next succeeding March 1 or September 1, as 
the case may be, and one Business Day immediately preceding any Lease Payment Date, the Trustee 
will transfer such excess moneys to the Lease Payment Fund to be applied to the Lease Payment then 
due from the County. In the event of the partial Prepayment of Lease Payments the County may 
instruct the Trustee to reduce the amounts on deposit in the Reserve Fund to the Reserve 
Requirement as of such date and may direct the Trustee to transfer excess amounts from the Reserve 
Fund for any lawful purpose. 

The transfers described above are in each case subject to the requirement that if the 
Certificate proceeds will have become subject to the arbitrage rebate provisions of the Code as 
described in the Trust Agreement then certain investment earnings are to be transferred to the Rebate 
Fund at the direction of the County as provided in the Trust Agreement. 

Application of Reserve Fund in Event of Deficiency in Lease Payment Fund 

Whether or not Lease Payments are then in abatement, if one (I) day immediately preceding 
any Interest Payment Date, the moneys available in the Lease Payment Fund do not equal the amount 
of the principal, and interest with respect to the Certificates then coming due and payable, the Trustee 
first will apply the moneys available in the Reserve Fund to make delinquent Lease Payments on 
behalf of the County by transferring the amount necessary for such purpose to the Lease Payment 
Fund. The Trustee will take whatever action is necessary to liquidate or draw upon investments of 
funds held in the Reserve Fund or draw upon any surety bond, insurance policy or letter of credit 
securing the Reserve Fund to make such funds available for application as provided under the Trust 
Agreement on the Interest Payment Date. 

Transfer to Make All Lease Payments 

If on any Interest Payment Date the moneys on deposit in the Reserve Fund and the Lease 
Payment Fund ( excluding amounts required for payment of principal or interest with respect to 
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Certificates not presented for payment) are sufficient to pay all Outstanding Certificates, including all 
principal, interest and prepayment premiums (if any), the Trustee will, upon the written direction of 
the County Representative, transfer all amounts in the Reserve Fund to the Lease Payment Fund to be 
applied to the payment of the Lease Payments or Prepayments on behalf of the County and such 
moneys will be distributed to the Owners of Certificates in accordance with the Trust Agreement. 
Any amounts remaining in the Reserve Fund upon payment in full of all Outstanding Certificates and 
the Trustee's fees and expenses pursuant to the Trust Agreement and any other Additional Payments 
due under the Lease, or upon provision for such payments as provided in the Trust Agreement and 
provisions for any amounts required to be transferred to the Rebate Fund pursuant to the Trust 
Agreement, will at the written direction of the County be withdrawn by the Trustee and paid to the 
County. 

NET PROCEEDS FUND 

Establishment of Net Proceeds Fund: Deposits 

The Trustee will establish when required a special fund designated as the "County of 
Stanislaus (2004 Capital Improvement Projects) Net Proceeds Fund," referred to in the Trust 
Agreement as the "Net Proceeds Fund," to be maintained and held in trust for the benefit of the 
Owners, subject to disbursement therefrom as provided in the Trust Agreement. The Trustee will 
deposit Net Proceeds in the Net Proceeds Fund as provided in the Lease. 

Casualty Insurance. The Trustee will disburse Net Proceeds for replacement or repair of the 
Property as provided in the Lease, or transfer such proceeds to the Prepayment Fund upon 
notification of the County Representative as provided in the Lease. Pending such application, such 
Net Proceeds may be invested by the Trustee as directed by the County in Permitted Investments that 
mature not later than such times moneys are expected to be needed to pay such costs of repair or 
replacement. After all of the Certificates have been paid and the entire amount of principal and 
interest with respect to the Certificates has been paid in full, or provision made for payment 
satisfactory to the Trustee, including provision for all amounts required to be transferred to the 
Rebate Fund pursuant to the Trust Agreement, the Trustee will pay any remaining moneys in the Net 
Proceeds Fund to the County after payment of any amounts due to the Trustee pursuant to the Trust 
Agreement and any other Additional Payments due under the Lease. 

Title Insurance. Proceeds of any policy of title insurance received by the Trustee with 
respect to the Property will be applied and disbursed by the Trustee upon the Written Request of the 
County as follows: 

(a) If the County determines that the title defect giving rise to such proceeds has 
not substantially interfered with its use and occupancy of the Property and will not result in 
an abatement of Lease Payments and Additional Payments payable by the County under the 
Lease (such determination to be certified by the County in writing), such proceeds will, with 
the written approval of the Insurer, be remitted to the County and used for any lawful purpose 
thereof; or 

(b) If the County determines that the title defect giving rise to such proceeds has 
substantially interfered with its use and occupancy of the Property and will result in an 
abatement of Lease Payments and Additional Payments payable by the County under the 
Lease; then the Trustee will, with the written approval of the Insurer, immediately deposit 
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such proceeds in the Prepayment Fund and such proceeds will be applied to the prepayment 
of Certificates in the manner provided in the Trust Agreement. 

MONEYS IN FUNDS; INVESTMENT 

Held in Trust 

The moneys and investments held by the Trustee under the Trust Agreement, other than in 
the Rebate Fund, are irrevocably held in trust for the benefit of the Owners and, in the case of the 
Rebate Fund, for payment as required to the United States Treasury, and for the purposes in the Trust 
Agreement, and such moneys, and any income or interest earned thereon, will be expended only as 
provided in the Trust Agreement, and will not be subject to levy or attachment or lien by or for the 
benefit of any creditor of the Authority, the Trustee or the County, or any of them. 

Investments Authorized 

By Trustee. Subject to the further provisions of the Trust Agreement, moneys held by the 
Trustee under the Trust Agreement will be invested and reinvested on maturity thereof by the Trustee 
pursuant to the Trust Agreement. The Trustee will report any such investments to the County on a 
monthly basis in its regular statements. 

Upon Direction of County. The County Representative will direct by facsimile, to the 
designated trust officer responsible for the administration of the Trust Agreement, followed by oral 
notification and distribution by U.S. Mail or overnight courier service of such notice, such 
investment in specific Permitted Investments not less than two Business Days prior to the date that 
such Permitted Investment is to take effect. Such investments and reinvestments will be made giving 
full consideration for the time at which funds are required to be available based upon, among other 
things, scheduled completion of the various components of the Project. In the event that the County 
Representative does not so direct the Trustee, the Trustee will invest in the Permitted Investments 
described in paragraph 2( e) of the definition thereof. 

Investments purchased with funds on deposit in the Lease Payment Fund and Prepayment 
Fund are to mature not later than the Interest Payment Date or prepayment date, as appropriate, 
immediately succeeding the investment. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the 
Trust Agreement, investments purchased with funds on deposit in the Reserve Fund shall have an 
average aggregate weighted term to maturity of not greater than five years; provided that such 
amounts may be invested in an investment agreement to the later of the final maturity of the 
Certificates or any Additional Certificates so long as such amounts may be withdrawn at any time, 
without penalty, for application in accordance with the Trust Agreement; and provided that no such 
investment of amounts in the Reserve Fund allocable to the Certificates or a series of Additional 
Certificates shall mature later than the respective final maturity date of the Certificates or the series 
of Additional Certificates, as applicable. 

Registration. Such investments, if registrable, will be registered in the name of the Trustee 
for the benefit of the Owners and held by the Trustee or its nominee. 

Trustee as Purchaser or Agent. The Trustee may purchase or sell to itself or any affiliate, as 
principal or agent, investments authorized by the Trust Agreement. The Trustee may act as 
purchaser or agent in the making or disposing of any investment. The Trustee or any of its affiliates 
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may act as a sponsor of, or as an advisor to any provider of, Permitted Investments under the Trust 
Agreement. The County acknowledges that to the extent regulations of the Comptroller of the 
Currency or other applicable regulatory entity grant the County the right to receive brokerage 
confirmations of security transactions as they occur, the County specifically waives receipt of such 
confirmations to the extent permitted by law. The Trustee will furnish the County periodic cash 
transaction statements which include detail for all investment transactions made by the Trustee under 
the Trust Agreement. 

Disposition of Investments 

Any income, profit or loss on the investment of moneys held by the Trustee under the Trust 
Agreement will be credited to the respective fund for which it is held, except as otherwise provided 
in the Trust Agreement. 

Accounting 

The Trustee will furnish to the County, not less than monthly, an accounting (which may be 
in the form of its regular statements) of all investments made by the Trustee and all funds and 
amounts held by the Trustee; provided, that the Trustee will not be obligated to deliver an accounting 
for any fund or account that (i) has a balance of zero and (ii) has not had any activity since the last 
reporting date. The Trustee will keep accurate records of all funds administered by it and of all 
Certificates paid and discharged. 

Valuation and Disposition oflnvestments 

Valuation. With respect to all funds and accounts, investments will be valued by the Trustee 
(i) as frequently as deemed necessary by the Insurer but not less often than annually nor more often 
than monthly, and (ii) upon any draw upon the Reserve Fund. In making any such valuations, the 
Trustee may utilize, and conclusively rely upon such valuation services as may be available to the 
Trustee, including those within its regular accounting system. 

Disposition. Subject to the provisions of the Trust Agreement, the Trustee will sell, or 
present for prepayment, any Permitted Investment so purchased by the Trustee whenever it will be 
necessary in order to provide moneys to meet any required payment, transfer, withdrawal or 
disbursement from the fund to which such Permitted Investment is credited. 

Commingling of Moneys in Funds 

The Trustee may, and upon the written request of the County Representative will, commingle 
any of the funds held by it pursuant to the Trust Agreement into a separate fund or funds for 
investment purposes only; provided, however, that all funds or accounts held by the Trustee under 
the Trust Agreement will be accounted for separately notwithstanding such commingling by the 
Trustee. 

Tax Covenants 

General. The County and the Authority have covenanted with the holders of the Certificates 
that, notwithstanding any other provisions of the Trust Agreement, they will not take any action, or 
fail to take any action, if any such action or failure to take action would adversely affect the 
exclusion from gross income of interest due with the Certificates under the Code. The County and 
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the Authority (to the extent that the Authority may have control over the proceeds of the Certificates) 
will not, directly or indirectly, use or permit the use of proceeds of the Certificates, or any portion 
thereof, by any person other than a governmental unit ( as such term is used in the Code), in such 
manner or to such extent as would result in the loss of exclusion from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes of interest due with respect to the Certificates. 

Use of Proceeds. The County and the Authority (to the extent that the Authority may have 
control over the proceeds of the Certificates) will not take any action, or fail to take any action, if any 
such action or failure to take action would cause the Certificates to be "private activity bonds" within 
the meaning of the Code, and in furtherance thereof, will not make any use of the proceeds of the 
Certificates, or any portion thereof, or any other funds of the County, that would cause the 
Certificates to be "private activity bonds" within the meaning of the Code. To that end, so long as 
any Certificates are outstanding, the County and the Authority, with respect to such proceeds and 
such other funds, will comply with applicable requirements of the Code and all regulations of the 
United States Department of the Treasury issued under the Code, to the extent such requirements are, 
at the time, applicable and in effect. The County will establish reasonable procedures necessary to 
ensure continued compliance with the Code and the continued qualification of the Series 2004A 
Certificates as "50l(c)(3) bonds" and the Series 20048 Certificates as governmental bonds." 

Arbitrage. The County and the Authority (to the extent that the Authority may have control 
over the Project or the proceeds of the Certificates) will not, directly or indirectly, use or permit the 
use of any proceeds of any Certificates, or of the Project, or other funds of the County, or take or 
omit to take any action, that would cause the Certificates to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning 
of the Code. To that end, the County and the Authority will comply with all requirements of the 
Code and all regulations of the United States Department of the Treasury issued under the Code to 
the extent such requirements are, at the time, in effect and applicable to the Certificates. 

Federal Guarantee. The County and the Authority (to the extent that the Authority may have 
control over the proceeds of the Certificates) will not make any use of the proceeds of the Certificates 
or any other funds of the County, or take or omit to take any other action, that would cause the 
Certificates to be "federally guaranteed" within the meaning of the Code. 

Compliance with Tax Certificate. In furtherance of the foregoing tax covenants of the Trust 
Agreement, the County covenants that it will comply with the provisions of the Tax Certificate, 
which is incorporated in the Trust Agreement as if fully set forth in the Trust Agreement. These 
covenants will survive payment in full or defeasance of the Certificates. 

Rebate Fund 

The Trustee will establish a special fund designated the "County of Stanislaus (2004 Capital 
Improvement Projects) Series 2004A Rebate Fund" (the "2004A Rebate Fund") and the County of 
Stanislaus (2004 Capital Improvement Projects) Series 20048 Rebate Fund (the "2004B Rebate 
Fund" and together with the Series 2004A Rebate Fund, the "Rebate Fund"). All amounts at any 
time on deposit in the Rebate Fund will be held by the Trustee in trust, to the extent required to 
satisfy the requirement to make rebate payments to the United States (the "Rebate Requirement") 
pursuant to the Code and the Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder (the "Treasury 
Regulations"). Such amounts will be free and clear of any lien under the Trust Agreement and will 
be governed by the Trust Agreement and by the Tax Certificate. 
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THE TRUSTEE 

Appointment of Trustee 

Awointment. BNY Western Trust Company, a banking corporation duly organized and 
existing under the laws of the State of California, has been appointed Trustee by the Authority and 
the County. 

Qualifications. The Authority and the County agree that they will maintain a Trustee having 
a corporate trust office in New York, New York, San Francisco, California or Los Angeles, 
California capable of exercising trust powers in the State of California, with a reported capital 
surplus of at least $75,000,000, or be a member of a bank holding company system, which will have 
a combined capital and surplus of at least $75,000,000, and subject to supervision or examination by 
federal or state authority, so long as any Certificates are Outstanding. 

Removal. The Insurer and, so long as there is no Event of Default, the County, may remove 
the Trustee initially appointed, and any successor thereto, and may appoint a successor or successors 
thereto. 

Resignation. The Trustee may, upon prior written notice to the County, the Insurer and the 
Authority, resign; provided that such resignation will not take effect until the successor Trustee is 
appointed as provided in the Trust Agreement. Upon receiving such notice of resignation, the 
County will promptly appoint a successor Trustee subject to written approval of the Insurer. 

Successor. Any successor Trustee will be a bank or trust company meeting the qualifications 
as set forth above. Any resignation or removal of the Trustee and appointment of a successor Trustee 
will become effective upon acceptance of appointment by the successor Trustee and upon receipt of 
written approval of the Insurer. Upon such acceptance, the successor Trustee will mail notice thereof 
to the Owners at their respective addresses set forth on the Certificate registration books. 

Rights of the Trustee 

Ownership of Certificates. The Trustee may become the Owner with the same rights it would 
have if it were not Trustee; may acquire and dispose of other bonds or evidence of indebtedness of 
the County with the same rights it would have if it were not the Trustee; and may act as a depository 
for and permit any of its officers or directors to act as a member of, or in any other capacity with 
respect to, any committee formed to protect the rights of Owners, whether or not such committee 
shall represent the Owners of the majority in principal amount of the Certificates then Outstanding. 

Attorneys, Agents, Receivers. The Trustee may execute any of the trusts or powers and 
perform the duties required of it under the Trust Agreement by or through attorneys, agents, or 
receivers, shall not be responsible for the actions or omissions of such attorneys, agents or receivers 
if appointed by it with reasonable care, and shall be entitled to advice of counsel concerning all 
matters of trust and its duty under the Trust Agreement. 

Standard of Care. So long as there is no Event of Default, (a) the Trustee shall not be liable 
in connection with the performance of its duties under the Trust Agreement, except for its own 
negligence or willful misconduct, and (b) the Trustee will only perform those duties specifically set 
forth in the Trust Agreement and no implied duties, covenants or obligations whatsoever shall be 
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read into the Trust Agreement. In the event of and during the continuance of an Event of Default, the 
Trustee will exercise such care in performing its duties under the Trust Agreement as a corporate 
trustee would exercise in such event. 

Indemnification of Trustee. The County will, to the extent permitted by law, indemnify and 
save the Trustee and its officers, directors, agents, and employees harmless from and against 
(whether or not litigated) all claims, losses, costs, expenses, liability and damages, including legal 
fees and expenses, arising out of (i) the use, maintenance, condition or management of, or from any 
work or thing done on, the Property by the County, (ii) any breach or default on the part of the 
County in the performance of any of its obligations under the Trust Agreement and any other 
agreement made and entered into for purposes of the Property, (iii) any act of negligence of the 
County or of any of its agents, contractors, servants, employees or licensees with respect to the 
Property, (iv) any act of negligence of any assignee of, or purchaser from, the County or of any of its 
or their agents, contractors, servants, employees or licensees with respect to the Property, or (v) the 
exercise and performance by the Trustee of its powers and duties under the Trust Agreement or any 
related document, (vi) the sale of the Certificates and the carrying out of any of the transactions 
contemplated by the Certificates or the Trust Agreement, or (vii) any untrue statement or alleged 
untrue statement of any material fact or omission or alleged omission to state a material fact 
necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances in which they were made, not 
misleading in any official statement or other disclosure document utilized in connection with the sale 
of the Certificates. No indemnification will be made in the Trust Agreement or other agreements for 
willful misconduct or negligence by the Trustee, its officers, agents, employees, successors or 
assigns. 

In accepting the trust created by the Trust Agreement, the Trustee acts solely as Trustee for 
the Owners and not in its individual capacity, and all persons, including, without limitation, the 
Owners, Authority and County, having any claim against the Trustee arising from the Trust 
Agreement will look only to the funds and accounts held by the Trustee under the Trust Agreement 
for payment, except as otherwise provided in the Trust Agreement or where the Trustee has breached 
its standard of care as described in the Trust Agreement. Under no circumstances will the Trustee be 
liable in its individual capacity for the obligations evidenced by the Certificates. 

No provision of the Trust Agreement will require the Trustee to expend or risk its own funds 
or otherwise incur any financial liability in the performance of its duties under the Trust Agreement 
or in the exercise of any of its rights or powers. 

The Trustee will not be liable with respect to any action taken or omitted to be taken by it in 
good faith in accordance with the direction of the Owners of not less than a majority in aggregate 
principal amount of the Certificates at the time Outstanding relating to the time, method and place of 
conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the Trustee or in the exercise of any right 
under the Trust Agreement. 

The Trustee will have no responsibility with respect to any information, statement or recital 
in any official statement, offering memorandum or any other disclosure material prepared or 
distributed with respect to the Certificates. 

The Trustee will not to be deemed to have knowledge of any Event of Default under the 
Trust Agreement or under the Lease unless it has actual knowledge thereof at its Principal Office. 
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MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENT OF AGREEMENTS 

Amendments Permitted 

With Consent. The Trust Agreement and the rights and obligations of the Owners, and the 
Lease and the rights and obligations of the parties thereto, may be modified or amended at any time, 
with notice to any rating agency then rating the Certificates, by a supplemental agreement or 
amendment thereto which will become effective when the written consents of the Insurer (so long as 
the Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations under the Insurance Policy) and Owners of a 
majority in aggregate principal amount of the Certificates then Outstanding, exclusive of Certificates 
disqualified as provided in the Trust Agreement, will have been filed with the Trustee. No such 
modification or amendment will: 

(a) extend or have the effect of extending the fixed maturity of any Certificate or 
reducing the interest rate with respect thereto or extending the time of payment of interest, or 
reducing the amount of principal thereof or reducing any premium payable upon the 
prepayment thereof, or diminish the security afforded by the Insurance Policy without the 
express consent of the Owner of such Certificate and the Insurer (so long as the Insurer is not 
in default in its payment obligations under the Insurance Policy), or 

(b) reduce or have the effect of reducing the percentage of Certificates required 
for the affirmative vote or written consent to an amendment or modification of the Lease, or 

( c) modify any of the rights or obligations of the Trustee without its written 
assent thereto, or 

( d) amend Trust Agreement dealing with permitted amendments without the prior 
written consent of the Owners of all Certificates related to such Trust Agreement then 
outstanding and the Insurer (so long as the Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations 
under the Insurance Policy). 

Without Consent. The Trust Agreement and the rights and obligations of the Owners, and 
the Lease and the rights and obligations of the parties thereto, may be modified or amended at any 
time by a supplemental agreement or amendments thereto, with the prior written consent of the 
Insurer (so long as the Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations under the Insurance Policy) 
without the consent of any such Owners, but only to the extent permitted by law and only: 

(a) to add to the covenants and agreements of the County under the Trust 
Agreement, 

(b) to cure, correct or supplement any ambiguous or defective provision 
contained in the Trust Agreement or in the Lease, 

( c) in regard to matters arising under the Trust Agreement or under the Lease 
Agreement, as the parties thereto may deem necessary or desirable, will not adversely affect 
the interest of the Owners or the Insurer, 

( d) to substitute the Property, or a portion thereof, in accordance with the Lease, 
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( e) to make such additions, deletions or modifications as may be necessary or 
appropriate to assure the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of the 
interest component of Lease Payments and the interest payable with respect to the 
Certificates, 

(f) to add to the rights of the Trustee, 

(g) to provide for the execution and delivery of Additional Certificates in 
accordance with the provisions of the Trust Agreement. 

Any such supplemental agreement will become effective upon execution and delivery by the 
parties thereto. 

Procedure for Amendment with Written Consent of the Owners 

The Trust Agreement or the Lease may be amended by supplemental agreement as provided 
in the Trust Agreement. In the event the consent of the Owners is required pursuant to the Trust 
Agreement, a copy of such supplemental agreement, together with a request to the Owners for their 
consent thereto, will be mailed by the Trustee to each Owner of a Certificate at his address as set 
forth in the Certificate registration books, but failure to receive copies of such supplemental 
agreement and request so mailed will not affect the validity of the supplemental agreement when 
assented to as provided in the Trust Agreement. 

Such supplemental agreement will not become effective unless there will be filed with the 
Trustee the written consent of the Owners of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of the 
Certificates then Outstanding ( exclusive of Certificates disqualified as provided in the Trust 
Agreement) and notices will have been mailed as provided the Trust Agreement. Any such consent 
will be binding upon the Owner of the Certificate giving such consent and on any subsequent Owner 
(whether or not such subsequent Owner has notice thereof) unless such consent is revoked in writing 
by the Owner giving such consent or a subsequent Owner by filing such revocation with the Trustee 
prior to the date when further notice has been mailed as provided in the Trust Agreement. 

Effect of Supplemental Agreement 

From and after the time any supplemental agreement becomes effective pursuant to the Trust 
Agreement, the Trust Agreement or the Lease, as the case may be, will be deemed to be modified and 
amended in accordance therewith, the respective rights, duties and obligations of the parties thereto 
and all Owners of Certificates Outstanding, as the case may be, will thereafter be determined, 
exercised and enforced under the Trust Agreement subject in all respects to such modification and 
amendment, and all the terms and conditions of any supplemental agreement will be deemed to be 
part of the terms and conditions of the Trust Agreement or the Lease, as the case may be, for any and 
all purposes. 

COVENANTS 

Compliance With and Enforcement of Lease 

The County has covenanted to perform all obligations and duties imposed on it under the 
Lease. The Authority has covenanted to perform all obligations and duties imposed on it under the 
Lease. The County will not do or permit anything to be done, or omit or refrain from doing anything, 
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in any case where any such act done or permitted to be done, or any such omission of or refraining 
from action, would or might be a ground for cancellation or termination of the Lease by the 
Authority. 

Observance of Laws and Regulations 

The County will observe and perform all valid and lawful obligations or regulations imposed 
on it by contract, or prescribed by any law of the United States, or of the State, or by any officer, 
board or commission having jurisdiction or control, as a condition of the continued enjoyment of any 
and every right, privilege or franchise owned or acquired by the County, including its right to exist 
and carry on business as a municipal corporation, to the end that such rights, privileges and 
franchises will be maintained and preserved, and will not become abandoned, forfeited or in any 
manner impaired. 

Prosecution and Defense of Suits 

The County will promptly, and also upon request of the Trustee, the Insurer or any Owner, 
from time to time take such action as may be necessary or proper to remedy or cure any defect in or 
cloud upon the title to the Property, and will prosecute all such suits, actions and other proceedings as 
may be appropriate for such purpose. 

County Budgets 

In accordance with the Lease, the County Representative will certify to the Trustee on or 
before September 1 of each year that the County has included all Lease Payments ( other than Lease 
Payments of advance rental) and Additional Payments due under the Lease in the Fiscal Year 
covered by its annual budget and the amount so included. If the County fails to certify that it has 
included all such Lease Payments and Additional Payments in such annual budget, the Trustee will 
promptly provide the County written notice specifying that the County has failed to observe and 
perform its covenant and agreement in the Lease and requesting that such failure be remedied within 
30 days, or such failure will constitute an Event of Default under the Lease. 

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

Limited Liability of the County 

Except for the payment of Lease Payments, Additional Payments and Prepayments when due 
in accordance with the Lease and the performance of the other covenants and agreements of the 
County contained in the Trust Agreement and in the Lease, the County will have no obligation or 
liability to any of the other parties to the Trust Agreement or to the Owners with respect to the Trust 
Agreement or the terms, execution, delivery or transfer of the Certificates, or the distribution of 
Lease Payments to the Owners by the Trustee. 

No Liability of the County or Authority for Trustee Performance 

Except as expressly provided in the Trust Agreement, neither the County nor the Authority 
will have any obligation or liability to any other parties thereto or to the Owners with respect to the 
performance by the Trustee of any duty imposed upon it under the Trust Agreement. 
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Limitation of Rights to Parties and Certificate Owners 

Nothing in the Trust Agreement or in the Certificates expressed or implied is intended or will 
be construed to give any person other than the County, the Authority, the Trustee and the Owners, 
any legal or equitable right, remedy or claim under or in respect of the Trust Agreement or any 
covenant, condition or provision of the Trust Agreement; and all such covenants, conditions and 
provisions are and will be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the County, the Authority, the Trustee 
and the Owners. 

Except as expressly provided in the Trust Agreement, the Authority shall not have any 
obligation or liability to the Owners with respect to the payment when due of the Lease Payments by 
the County or with respect to the observance or performance by the County of the other agreements, 
conditions, and covenant imposed upon the County by the Lease or by the Trust Agreement. 

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES OF CERTIFICATE OWNERS 

Events of Default 

Remedies. If an Event of Default occurs, then, and in each and every such case during the 
continuance of such Event of Default, the Trustee may exercise any and all remedies available 
pursuant to law or granted pursuant to the Lease; provided, however, that notwithstanding anything 
in the Trust Agreement or in the Lease to the contrary, THERE WILL BE NO RIGHT UNDER ANY 
CIRCUMSTANCES TO ACCELERATE THE MATURITIES OF THE CERTIFICATES OR 
OTHERWISE TO DECLARE ANY LEASE PAYMENTS NOT THEN IN DEFAULT TO BE 
IMMEDIATELY DUE AND PAY ABLE; provided further that so long as the Insurer will not be in 
default in its payment obligations under the Insurance Policy, the Insurer will control all remedies 
upon an Event of Default. 

Actual Knowledge. The Trustee will not be deemed to have knowledge of any Event of 
Default unless and until the trust officer responsible for the administration of the Trust Agreement 
will have actual knowledge thereof, or will have received written notice thereof at the Principal 
Office. 

Application of Funds 

All moneys received by the Trustee pursuant to any right given or action taken under the 
provisions of the Trust Agreement or the Lease, will be deposited into the Lease Payment Fund and 
be applied by the Trustee after payment of all amounts due and payable to the Trustee pursuant to the 
Trust Agreement and the Lease in the following order upon presentation of the several Certificates, 
and the stamping thereon of the payment if only partially paid, or upon the surrender thereof if fully 
paid -

First, Costs and Expenses: to the payment of the costs, fees and expenses of the Trustee in 
declaring such Event of Default and in performing its duties under the Trust Agreement, including 
reasonable compensation to its or their agents, attorneys and counsel and then any of such amounts 
incurred by the Owners; 

Second, Interest: to the payment to the persons entitled thereto of all installments of interest 
then due in the order of the maturity of such installment, and, if the amount available is not sufficient 
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to pay in full any installment or installments maturing on the same date, then to the payment thereof 
ratably according to the amounts due thereon, to the persons entitled thereto, without any 
discrimination or preference; 

Third, Principal: to the payment to the persons entitled thereto of the unpaid principal with 
respect to any Certificates which will have become due, whether at maturity or by call for 
prepayment, in the order of their due dates, with interest on the overdue principal and interest at a 
rate equal to the rate paid with respect to the Certificates and, if the amount available will not be 
sufficient to pay in full all the amounts due with respect to the Certificates on any date, together with 
such interest, then to the payment thereof ratably, according to the amounts of principal due on such 
date to the persons entitled thereto, without any discrimination or preference; and 

Fourth, Insurer: to the extent not included in clauses First, Second or Third above, to the 
payment of all amounts then due to the Insurer, as certified in writing to the Trustee. 

Institution of Legal Proceedings 

If one or more Events of Default will happen and be continuing, the Trustee, with the prior 
written consent of the Insurer, may, and upon the written request of the Owners of a majority in 
principal amount of the Certificates then Outstanding, and upon being indemnified to its satisfaction 
therefor, will, proceed to protect or enforce its rights or the rights of the Owners by a suit in equity or 
action at law, either for the specific performance of any covenant or agreement contained in the Trust 
Agreement or in the Lease, or in aid of the execution of any power in the Trust Agreement granted, 
or by mandamus or other appropriate proceeding for the enforcement of any other legal or equitable 
remedy as the Trustee will deem most effectual in support of any of its rights or duties under the 
Trust Agreement; provided that such written request will not be otherwise than in accordance with 
provisions of law and the Trust Agreement and that the Trustee will have the right to decline to 
follow any such written request if the Trustee will be advised by counsel that the action or 
proceeding so requested may not be taken lawfully or if the Trustee in good faith will determine that 
the action or proceeding so requested would be unjustly prejudicial to the Certificate Owners not a 
party to such written request or expose the Trustee to liability. 

Non-Waiver 

Nothing in the Trust Agreement or in the Certificates will affect or impair the obligation of 
the County which is absolute and unconditional, to pay or prepay the Lease Payments as provided in 
the Lease. So long as the Insurer is not in default in its payment obligations under the Insurance 
Policy, the Trustee will not waive any default or breach of duty or contract under the Trust 
Agreement without the prior written consent of the Insurer. No delay or omission of the Trustee or 
of any Owner of any of the Certificates to exercise any right or power arising upon the happening of 
any Event of Default will impair any such right or power or will be construed to be a waiver of any 
such Event of Default or an acquiescence therein, and every power and remedy given by the Trust 
Agreement to the Trustee or to the Owners may be exercised from time to time and as often as will 
be deemed expedient by the Trustee or the Owners. 

Remedies Not Exclusive 

No remedy conferred or reserved to the Trustee or to the Owners in the Trust Agreement is 
intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and every such remedy will be cumulative and will be 
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in addition to every other remedy given under the Trust Agreement, at law or in equity or by statute 
or otherwise. 

Power of Trustee to Control Proceedings 

Subject to the Insurer's right to control all remedies upon an Event of Default, in the event 
that the Trustee, upon the happening of an Event of Default, will have taken any action, by judicial 
proceedings or otherwise, pursuant to its duties under the Trust Agreement, whether upon its own 
discretion, upon the request of the Insurer, or upon the request of the Owners of a majority in 
principal amount of the Certificates then Outstanding, it will have full power, in the exercise of its 
discretion for the best interest of the Owners of the Certificates, with respect to the continuance, 
discontinuance, withdrawal, compromise, settlement or other disposal of such action; provided, 
however, that the Trustee will not, unless there no longer continues an Event of Default, discontinue, 
withdraw, compromise or settle, or otherwise dispose of any litigation pending at law or in equity, if 
at the time there has been filed with it a written request signed by the Owners of at least a majority in 
principal amount of the Outstanding Certificates under the Trust Agreement opposing such 
discontinuance, withdrawal, compromise, settlement or other disposal of such litigation. 

Limitation on Certificate Owners' Right to Sue 

No Owner of any Certificate executed under the Trust Agreement will have the right to 
institute any suit, action or proceeding at law or in equity, for any remedy under or upon the Trust 
Agreement, unless (a) such Owner will have previously given to the Trustee written notice of the 
occurrence of an Event of Default under the Lease; (b) so long as the Insurer is not in default in its 
payment obligations under the Insurance Policy, such Owner will have obtained the Insurer's consent 
to such institution or appointment; ( c) the Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of all 
the Certificates then Outstanding will have made written request upon the Trustee to exercise the 
powers granted or to institute such action, suit or proceeding in its own name; ( d) said Owners will 
have tendered to the Trustee reasonable indemnity against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be 
incurred in compliance with such request; ( e) the Trustee will have refused or omitted to comply with 
such request for a period of 60 days after such written request will have been received by, and said 
tender of indemnity will have been made to, the Trustee; and (f) there has been a default in the 
payment of such Owner's proportionate interest in the Lease Payments as the same become due. 

Such notification, request, tender of indemnity, refusal or omission, and default are, in every 
case, to be conditions precedent to the exercise by any Owner of any remedy under the Trust 
Agreement; it being understood and intended that no one or more Owners will have any right in any 
manner whatever by his or their action to enforce any right under the Trust Agreement, except in the 
manner provided in the Trust Agreement and for the equal benefit of all Owners of the Outstanding 
Certificates. 

The right of any Owner of any Certificate to receive payment of said Owner's proportionate 
interest in the Lease Payments as the same become due, or to institute suit for the enforcement of 
such payment, will not be impaired or affected without the consent of such Owner, notwithstanding 
any provision of the Trust Agreement. 
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MISCELLANEOUS 

Defeasance 

Methods. If and when any Outstanding Certificates are paid and discharged in any one or 
more of the following ways: 

(i) Payment or Prepayment: by well and truly paying or causing to be paid the 
principal, interest and prepayment premiums (if any) with respect to such Certificates 
Outstanding, as and when the same become due and payable; 

(ii) Cash: if prior to maturity and having given at least 30 days prior written 
notice of prepayment by depositing with the Trustee, in trust, concurrent with the giving of 
such notice, an amount of cash which (together with cash then on deposit in the Lease 
Payment Fund and the Reserve Fund together with the interest to accrue thereon, in the event 
of payment or provision for payment of all Outstanding Certificates) is sufficient to pay such 
Certificates Outstanding, including all principal and interest and premium, if any; or 

(iii) Government Obligations: by irrevocably depositing with the Trustee, in trust, 
Government Obligations together with cash, if required, in such amount as will, in the 
opinion of an independent certified public accountant, together with interest to accrue thereon 
(and, in the event of payment or provision for payment of all Outstanding Certificates, 
moneys then on deposit in the Lease Payment Fund and the Reserve Fund together with the 
interest to accrue thereon), be fully sufficient to pay and discharge such Certificates 
(including all principal and interest represented thereby and prepayment premiums if any) at 
or before their maturity date; 

and all other amounts due under the Trust Agreement have been paid in full, then, notwithstanding 
that any Certificates will not have been surrendered for payment, all obligations of the Authority, the 
Trustee and the County with respect to such Certificates will cease and terminate, except only the 
obligation of the County and the Authority to comply with the Code and the obligation of the Trustee 
to pay or cause to be paid, from Lease Payments paid by or on behalf of the County from funds 
deposited pursuant to paragraphs (ii) and (iii) above, to the Owners of the Certificates not so 
surrendered and paid all sums due with respect thereto, and in the event of deposits pursuant to 
paragraphs (ii) and (iii) above, the Certificates will continue to represent direct and proportionate 
interests of the Owners thereof in Lease Payments under the Lease. 

Surplus Moneys. Any funds held by the Trustee, at the time of payment or provision for 
payment of all Outstanding Certificates pursuant to the one of the procedures described in the Trust 
Agreement, which are not required for the payment to be made to Owners, will be paid over to the 
County, after the payment of any amounts due to the Trustee pursuant to the Trust Agreement, any 
amounts due and owing to the Insurer, and any other Additional Payments due under the Lease. 

Surviving Provisions. The Trustee will retain such rights, powers and privileges under the 
Trust Agreement as may be necessary or convenient for the payment of the principal, interest and 
prepayment premium, if any, on the Certificates and for the registration, transfer and exchange of the 
Certificates. 
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Opinions and Reports. Prior to any defeasance becoming effective under the Trust 
Agreement, the County shall cause to be delivered (i) an executed copy of a report, addressed to the 
Trustee, the County and the Insurer, in form and substance acceptable to the County and the Insurer 
of a nationally recognized firm of certified public accountants, verifying that the Government 
Obligations and cash, if any, satisfy the requirements of the Trust Agreement, (ii) a copy of the 
escrow deposit agreement entered into in connection with such defeasance, which escrow deposit 
agreement shall be in form and substance acceptable to the Insurer, and (iii) a copy of an Opinion of 
Counsel, dated the date of such defeasance and addressed to the Trustee, the County and the Insurer, 
in form and substance acceptable to the County and the Insurer, to the effect that such Certificates are 
no longer Outstanding under the Trust Agreement. 

Non-Presentment of Certificates. In the event any Certificate will not be presented for 
payment when the principal with respect thereto becomes due, either at maturity, or at the date fixed 
for prepayment thereof, if moneys sufficient to pay such Certificate will have been deposited in the 
Prepayment Fund or Lease Payment Fund, as applicable, all liability of the County and the Trustee to 
the Owner thereof for payment of such Certificate will forthwith cease, terminate and be completely 
discharged, and thereupon it will be the duty of the Trustee to hold such moneys, without liability for 
interest thereon, for the benefit of the Owner of such Certificate who will thereafter be restricted 
exclusively to such moneys, for any claim of whatever nature on his or her part under the Trust 
Agreement or on, or with respect to, said Certificate. 

Any moneys so deposited with and held by the Trustee not so applied to the payment of 
Certificates within two years after the date on which the same will have become due will be paid by 
the Trustee to the County, free from the trusts created by the Trust Agreement. Prior to forwarding 
any such moneys to the County, the Trustee may publish notice of its intention to transfer such funds 
in The Bond Buyer or another financial newspaper of general circulation in New York, New York. 
In addition, Trustee will be indemnified from and against any and all liabilities to third parties 
resulting from its actions under the Trust Agreement. Thereafter, Owners will be entitled to look 
only to the County for payment, and then only to the extent of the amount so repaid by the Trustee. 
The County will not be liable for any interest on the sums paid to it pursuant to the defeasance 
provisions of the Trust Agreement and will not be regarded as a trustee or trustees of such money. 

RIGHTS OF THE INSURER 

Upon the occurrence and continuance of an Event of Default, the Insurer will be entitled to 
control and direct the enforcement of all rights and remedies granted to the Owners or the Trustee for 
the benefit of the Owners under the Trust Agreement. 

DEFINITIONS AND SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE LEASE 

DEFINITIONS 

Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms defined below shall for all purposes below 
have the meanings defined below, the following definitions to be equally applicable to both the 
singular and plural forms of any of the terms defined below. All capitalized terms used below and 
not defined below shall have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Trust Agreement. 

"Environmental Regulations" means all Laws and Regulations, with respect to Hazardous 
Materials, including, without limitation, the Comprehensive Environmental Response, 
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Compensation, and Liability Act, as amended (together with the regulations promulgated thereunder, 
"CERCLA"), the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended (together with the 
regulations promulgated thereunder, "RCRA"), the Emergency Planning and Conununity Right-to­
Know Act, as amended (together with the regulations promulgated thereunder, "Title III"), the Clean 
Water Act, as amended (together with the regulations promulgated thereunder, "CWA"), the Clean 
Air Act, as amended (together with the regulations promulgated thereunder, "CAA") and the Toxic 
Substances Control Act, as amended (together with the regulations promulgated thereunder, 
"TSCA"), and any state or local similar laws and regulations and any so-called local, state or federal 
"superfund" or "superlien" law. 

"Permitted Encumbrances" means, as of any particular time: (i) liens for general ad valorem 
taxes and assessments, if any, not then delinquent, or which the County may, pursuant to provisions 
of the Lease, permit to remain unpaid; (ii) the Assignment Agreement; (iii) the Lease; (iv) the Site 
Lease; (v) any contested right or claim of any mechanic, laborer, materialman, supplier or vendor 
filed or perfected in the manner prescribed by law to the extent permitted under the Lease; 
(vi) easements, rights of way, mineral rights, drilling rights and other rights, reservations, covenants, 
conditions, liens or restrictions which exist of record as of the Closing Date and which the County 
certifies will not materially impair the use of the Property by the County; and (vii) easements, rights 
of way, mineral rights, drilling rights and other rights, reservations, covenants, conditions or 
restrictions established following the date of recordation of the Lease and to which the Insurer, the 
Authority, the County and the Trustee consent in writing. 

"Property" means the real property described in Exhibit B to the Lease leased to the County 
by the Authority. 

AGREEMENT TO LEASE; TERM OF LEASE; LEASE PAYMENTS 

Payment of Costs of Issuance 

Payment of the Costs of Issuance will be made from the moneys deposited with the Trustee 
in the Costs of Issuance Fund as provided in the Lease and the Trust Agreement, which will be 
disbursed in accordance and upon compliance with the Trust Agreement. 

Term 

The term of the Lease will commence on the date of execution thereof and will end on 
September 1, 2025, unless extended pursuant to the Lease, or unless terminated prior thereto upon 
the earliest of any of the following events: 

Default and Termination. A default by the County and the Authority's election to terminate 
the Lease under the termination provisions of the Lease; 

Payment of All Lease Payments. The payment by the County of all Lease Payments and any 
Additional Payments required under the Lease; or 

Prepayment. The deposit of funds or Government Obligations with the Trustee in amounts 
sufficient to pay all Lease Payments as the same will become due, as provided in the Lease and the 
Trust Agreement. 
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Purchase. Upon the exercise by the County of its option to purchase all of the Authority's 
interest in the Property as provided in the Lease; provided, however, that upon exercise by the 
County of its option to purchase the Authority's interest in a portion of the Property, as provided in 
the Lease, the Lease will be terminated only with respect to the portion of the Property purchased. 

Extension of Lease Term 

The Term of the Lease may be extended up to September l, 2035 in connection with the 
execution and delivery of any Additional Certificates. If on the final maturity date of the Certificates 
or any Additional Certificates all Interest Components and Principal Components represented thereby 
shall not be fully paid by the County, or if the Lease Payments or Additional Payments under the 
Lease shall have been abated at any time as permitted by the terms thereof, then the Term shall be 
extended until all Certificates and Additional Certificates shall be fully paid, except that the Term 
shall in no event be extended beyond September 1, 2035. 

Lease Payments 

Time and Amount. Subject to the provisions of the Lease regarding abatement in event of 
loss of use of any portion of the Property, regarding option to purchase and regarding prepayment of 
Lease Payments, the County has agreed to pay to the Authority, its successors and assigns, as annual 
rental for the use and possession of the Property, the Lease Payments ( denominated into components 
of principal and interest, the interest component being paid semiannually) in the amounts specified in 
Exhibit A to the Lease, to be due and payable in arrears on the 15th day of the month ( or if such day 
is not a Business Day, the next succeeding Business Day) immediately preceding the respective 
Certificate Payment Dates specified in Exhibit A to the Lease (the "Lease Payment Date") which are 
sufficient in both time and amount to pay when due the annual principal and interest represented by 
the Certificates. In the event that any Additional Certificates are executed and delivered pursuant to 
the Trust Agreement, the County and the Trustee shall execute an amendment to state the Lease 
Payments due under the Lease as a result of the execution and delivery of such Additional 
Certificates. 

The obligation of the County to pay Lease Payments shall commence on the Closing Date for 
the Certificates. In the event the County does not pay a Lease Payment due on the respective Lease 
Payment Date, the Trustee will provide prompt written notice to the County of such failure to pay; 
provided, however, that failure to give such notice will not excuse any event of default under the 
Lease. 

Credits. Any amount held in the Lease Payment Fund on any Lease Payment Date ( other 
than capitalized interest, which will be credited in accordance with the Trust Agreement, and other 
than amounts resulting from the prepayment of the Lease Payments in part but not in whole pursuant 
to the Lease and other amounts required for payment of principal with respect to any Certificates or 
Additional Certificates that have matured or been called for payment and have not been presented for 
payment or interest) will be credited towards the Lease Payment then due and payable. No Lease 
Payment need be made on any Lease Payment Date if the amounts then held in the Lease Payment 
Fund ( other than those amounts excluded under the prior sentence) are at least equal to the Lease 
Payment then required to be paid. 

Rate on Overdue Payments. In the event the County should fail to make any of the Lease 
Payments required in the Lease, the Lease Payment in default will continue as an obligation of the 
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County until the amount in default will have been fully paid, and the County agrees to pay the same 
with interest thereon, to the extent permitted by law, from the date such amount was originally 
payable at the rate equal to the original interest rate payable with respect to each Certificate then 
represented by such delinquent Lease Payment. 

No Withholding. Notwithstanding any dispute between the Authority and the County, 
including a dispute as to the failure of any portion of the Property in use by or possession of the 
County to perform the task for which it is leased, the County will make all Lease Payments and 
Additional Payments when due and will not withhold any Lease Payments pending the final 
resolution of such dispute. 

Fair Rental Value 

The Lease Payments and Additional Payments will be paid by the County in consideration of 
the right of possession of, and the continued quiet use and enjoyment of, the Property during each 
such period for which said Lease Payments are to be paid. The parties to the Lease have agreed and 
determined that such total rental represents the fair rental value of the Property. In making such 
determination, consideration has been given to the fair market value and replacement cost of the 
Property, other obligations of the parties under this Lease (including but not limited to costs of 
maintenance, taxes and insurance), the uses and purposes which may be served by the Property and 
the benefits therefrom which will accrue to the County and the general public, and the transfer of the 
Authority's leasehold interest in the Property at the end of the Term. 

Budget and Appropriation 

The County has covenanted to take such action as may be necessary to include all Lease 
Payments and Additional Payments (to the extent the amounts of such Additional Payments are 
known to the County at the time its annual budget is proposed), due under the Lease in its annual 
budget and to make the necessary annual appropriations therefor, and to maintain such items to the 
extent unpaid for that Fiscal Year in its budget throughout such Fiscal Year. To the extent the 
amount of such payments becomes known after the adoption of the annual budget, such amounts will 
be included and maintained in such budget as amended. The covenants on the part of the County 
contained in the Lease shall be deemed to be and shall be construed to be duties imposed by law and 
it shall be the ministerial duty of each and every public official of the County to take such action and 
do such things as are required by law in the performance of the official duty of such officials to 
enable the County to carry out and perform the covenants and agreements in the Lease agreed to be 
carried out and performed by the County. 

Abatement of Lease Payments in Event of Loss of Use 

In the Event of Non-delivery. To the extent described below, the amount of Lease Payments 
and Additional Payments due under the Lease shall be abated during any period in which by reason 
of delay in the completion of the Project beyond the completion date set forth in the Lease there is 
substantial interference with the County's use and occupancy of the Project. The amount of such 
abatement shall be such that the resulting Lease Payments and Additional Payments do not exceed 
the fair rental value ( as determined by an independent real estate appraiser selected by the County, 
who may not be an employee of the County) for the use and occupancy of the Property and the 
completed portions of the improvements constituting the Project. Such abatement shall continue 
until the substantial completion of the Project. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the County shall 

C-32 



remain obligated to make Lease Payments and Additional Payments under the Lease to the extent 
there are proceeds of any completion or performance bonds or moneys paid to the County by the 
contractors or any other person as liquidated damages as a result of any defect or delay in completion 
of the Project or to the extent that amounts in the Reserve Fund are available to pay Lease Payments 
and Additional Payments which would otherwise be abated under the Lease. Any amounts received 
by the County as liquidated damages for a delay in the completion of the Project shall be deposited 
by the County immediately upon receipt in the Lease Payment Fund. 

In the Event of Damage, Destruction, Condemnation or Title Defect. Except to the extent 
that proceeds of the type described in the following paragraph are available, the amount of Lease 
Payments and Additional Payments shall be abated during any period in which by reason of damage, 
destruction or taking by eminent domain or condemnation of the Property or defects in the title with 
respect to the Property there is substantial interference with the use and possession of all or a portion 
of the Property by the County. The amount of such abatement shall be such that the resulting Lease 
Payments, exclusive of the amounts described in the following paragraph, do not exceed the fair 
rental value ( as determined by an independent real estate appraiser selected by the County, who is not 
an employee of the County) for the use and possession of the portion of the Property not damaged, 
destroyed, interfered with or taken. Such abatement shall continue for the period commencing with 
such damage, destruction, interference or tal<lng and ending with the substantial completion of the 
replacement or work of repair or the removal of the title defect causing such interference with use. 
Except as provided in the Lease, in the event of any such damage, destruction, interference or tal<lng, 
the Lease shall continue in full force and effect and the County waives any right to terminate the 
Lease by virtue of any such damage, destruction, interference or taking. 

Notwithstanding a substantial interference with the use and possession of all or a portion of 
the Property, the County shall remain obligated to make Lease Payments which would otherwise be 
abated (i) to the extent that moneys derived from any person as a result of any delay in the 
reconstruction, replacement or repair of the Property, or any portion thereof, are available to pay the 
amount which would otherwise be abated; and (ii) to the extent that moneys are available in the 
Reserve Fund or the Lease Payment Fund to pay the amount which would otherwise be abated. The 
Lease Payments shall be payable from such amounts paid under (i) and (ii) above as an obligation of 
the County payable from a special fund. 

Repair or Replacement. In the event of such abatement, unless the abatement will be avoided 
as a result of a prepayment of Lease Payments from Net Proceeds, the County will use its best efforts 
to repair or replace the damaged or destroyed or taken portion of the Property, as the case may be, 
from Net Proceeds or special funds of the County or other moneys the application of which would, in 
the opinion of Special Counsel, not result in the obligations of the County under the Lease 
constituting indebtedness of the County in contravention of the Constitution and laws of the State. 

Additional Payments. In addition to the Lease Payments, the County will also pay such 
amounts ("Additional Payments") as will be required for the payment of all administrative costs of 
the Authority relating to the Property or the Certificates and any Additional Certificates, including 
without limitation all expenses, compensation and indemnification of the Trustee payable by the 
County under the Trust Agreement, taxes of any sort whatsoever payable by the Authority as a result 
of its interest in the Property or undertaking of the transactions contemplated in the Lease or in the 
Trust Agreement, fees of auditors, accountants, attorneys or engineers and any and all other amounts 
due to the Insurer and all other necessary administrative costs of the Authority or charges required to 
be paid by it in order to maintain its existence or to comply with the terms of the Certificates and any 
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Additional Certificates or of the Trust Agreement including premiums or insurance maintained 
pursuant to the Lease or to indemnify the Authority and its employees, officers and directors and the 
Trustee. All such Additional Payments to be paid under the Trust Agreement shall be paid when due 
directly by the County to the respective parties to whom such Additional Payments are owing. 

Net-Net-Net Lease 

The Lease will be deemed and construed to be a "net-net-net lease" and the County has 
agreed that the Lease Payments will be an absolute net return to the Authority, free and clear of any 
expenses, charges or set-offs whatsoever, except as expressly provided in the Lease. 

INSURANCE 

Public Liability and Property Damage 

Coverage. The County will maintain or cause to be maintained, throughout the Term of the 
Lease, a standard comprehensive general public liability and property damage insurance policy or 
policies in protection of the County, its officers, agents and employees. Said policy or policies will 
provide for indemnification of said parties against direct or contingent loss or liability for damages 
for bodily and personal injury, death or property damage occasioned by reason of the use or 
operation of any County property or portion thereof. 

Limits. Said policy or policies will provide coverage in the minimum liability limits of 
$1,000,000 for personal injury or death of each person and $3,000,000 for personal injury or deaths 
of two or more persons in each accident or event, and in a minimum amount of $500,000 in each case 
for damage to property resulting from each accident or event (subject to a deductible clause of not to 
exceed $250,000) or such higher amount as is consented to by the Insurer. Such public liability and 
property damage insurance may, however, be in the form of a single limit policy covering all such 
risks in an amount equal to the liability limits set forth in the Lease. 

Joint or Self-Insurance. Such liability insurance, including the deductible, may be 
maintained as part of or in conjunction with any other insurance coverage carried by the County, and, 
subject to compliance with the Lease, may be maintained in the form of self-insurance by the 
County. 

Payment of Net Proceeds. The proceeds of such liability insurance will be applied toward 
extinguishment or satisfaction of the liability with respect to which the insurance proceeds will have 
been paid. 

Workers' Compensation 

The County will also maintain workers' compensation insurance issued by a responsible 
carrier authorized under the laws of the State to insure its employees against liability for 
compensation under the Workers' Compensation Insurance and Safety Act now in force in the State, 
or any act enacted as an amendment or supplement thereto (with provision for self-insurance). 

Casualty and Theft Insurance 

Casualty and Theft Insurance: Coverage. The County will procure and maintain, or cause to 
be procured and maintained, throughout the Term of the Lease, insurance against loss or damage to 
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any portion of the Property caused by fire and lightning, with extended coverage and theft, vandalism 
and malicious mischief insurance. Said extended coverage insurance will, as nearly as practicable, 
cover loss or damage by explosion, windstorm, riot, aircraft, vehicle damage, smoke and such other 
hazards as are normally covered by such insurance, excluding flood and earthquake; provided, 
however, that a flood and earthquake rider shall be purchased if the County, in its reasonable 
discretion, determines that such coverage is available from reputable insurers at commercially 
reasonable rates. 

Amount. Property, subject to a "deductible clause'' not to exceed two hundred fifty thousand 
dollars ($250,000) for any one loss, or in the case of a flood and earthquake rider, ten percent (10%) 
of the coverage obtained. The term "full replacement value" as used in this paragraph shall mean the 
actual replacement cost of the improvements constituting the Property. 

Joint or Self-Insurance. Such insurance may be maintained as part of or in conjunction with 
any other insurance carried or required to be carried by the County, and, subject to compliance with 
the Lease, may be maintained in the form of self-insurance by the County through a California joint 
powers authority. 

Payment of Net Proceeds. The Net Proceeds of such insurance will be paid to the Trustee 
and deposited in the Net Proceeds Fund and applied as provided in the Lease. 

Rental Interruption Insurance 

Coverage and Amount. Upon delivery of the Property to it for occupancy, the County will 
maintain or cause to be maintained rental income or use and occupancy insurance in an amount not 
less than the maximum remaining scheduled Lease Payments in any future 24-month period, to 
insure against loss of rental income from the Property caused by perils covered by the insurance 
required to be maintained as provided in the Lease. 

Joint Insurance. Such insurance may be maintained as part of or in conjunction with any 
other rental income or use and occupancy of insurance carried by the County. 

Payment of Net Proceeds. The Net Proceeds of such rental interruption insurance will he 
paid to the Trustee and deposited (1) in the Reserve Fund to make up any deficiencies therein, and 
(2) deposited in the Lease Payment Fund, to be credited towards the payment of the Lease Payments 
in the order in which such Lease Payments come due and payable. 

Title Insurance 

The County will obtain and, throughout the Term of the Lease, maintain or cause to be 
maintained title insurance on the Property, in the form of an ALTA title policy (with western regional 
exceptions), in an amount equal to the aggregate principal amount of the Certificates and Additional 
Certificates Outstanding, issued by a company of recognized standing, duly authorized to issue the 
same, payable to the Trustee for the benefit of the Owners, subject only to Permitted Encumbrances. 
Said policy or policies will insure the County's leasehold estate under the Lease in the Property, 
subject only to Permitted Encumbrances. All Net Proceeds received under said policy or policies 
will be deposited with the Trustee and applied as provided in the Trust Agreement. So long as any of 
the Certificates and Additional Certificates remain Outstanding, each policy of the title insurance 
obtained pursuant to the Lease or required thereby will provide that all proceeds thereunder will be 
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payable to the Trustee for the benefit of the Certificate Owners and the owners of any Additional 
Certificates. The Net Proceeds of such insurance will be applied as provided in the Lease. 

General Insurance Provisions 

Form of Policies. All policies of insurance required to be procured and maintained pursuant 
to the Lease and any statements of self-insurance will be in a form certified by an insurance agent, 
broker or consultant to the County to comply with the provisions of the Lease. All such policies will 
provide that the County will give the Trustee 30 days' notice of each expiration, any intended 
cancellation thereof or reduction of the coverage provided thereby. Each policy of insurance 
required to be procured and maintained pursuant to the Lease regarding casualty and theft insurance, 
regarding rental interruption insurance and regarding title insurance will provide that all proceeds 
thereunder will be payable to the Trustee for the benefit of the Owners. 

Payment of Premiums. The County will pay or cause to be paid when due the premiums for 
all insurance policies required by the Lease. 

Self Insurance. The County may only elect to self insure as permitted by the Lease if and to 
the extent such self-insurance method or plan of protection will afford reasonable protection to the 
Authority and the Trustee, in light of all circumstances, giving consideration to cost, availability and 
similar plans or methods of protection adopted by other municipal corporations in the State other 
than the County. Insurance provided through a California joint powers authority of which the 
County is a member or with which the County contracts for insurance will be deemed to be self­
insurance for purposes of the Lease where the insurance above the deductible limits described in the 
Lease is provided by commercial carriers. Any self-insurance maintained by the County pursuant to 
the Lease, unless otherwise consented to by the Insurer, will comply with the following terms: 

(a) The self-insurance program will be approved in writing by the County's Chief 
Executive Officer or Assistant Chief Executive Officer in accordance with the California 
Labor Code and the California Government Code; 

(b) The self-insurance program will include an actuarially sound claims reserve 
fund out of which each self-insured claim will be paid; the adequacy of such fund will be 
evaluated on an annual basis by the County's Chief Executive Officer or Assistant Chief 
Executive Officer; and any deficiencies in any self-insured claims reserve fund will be 
remedied in accordance with the recommendation of the County's Chief Executive Officer or 
Assistant Chief Executive Officer; and 

( c) In the event the self-insurance program will be discontinued, the actuarial 
soundness of its claims reserve fund, as determined by the County's Chief Executive Officer 
or Assistant Chief Executive Officer, will be maintained. 

DAMAGE, DESTRUCTION AND EMINENT DOMAIN; USE OF NET PROCEEDS 

Application of Net Proceeds 

Deposit in Net Proceeds Fund. The County will remit promptly to the Trustee any Net 
Proceeds received by the County from its casualty and theft insurance and its title insurance and the 
Trustee, pursuant to the Trust Agreement, will deposit such Net Proceeds of insurance in the Net 
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Proceeds Fund. The County and/or the Authority will transfer to the Trustee any other Net Proceeds 
received by the County and/or Authority in the event of any accident, destruction, theft or taking by 
eminent domain or condemnation with respect to the Project, for deposit in the Net Proceeds Fund. 

Disbursement for Replacement or Repair of the Property. Upon receipt of the prior written 
consent of the Insurer and the certification described in paragraph (a) below and the requisition 
described in paragraph (b) below, the Trustee will disburse moneys in the Net Proceeds Fund to the 
person, firm or corporation named in the requisition as provided in the Lease. 

(a) Certification. As a precondition to the disbursement of Net Proceeds the 
County Representative must certify to the Authority and the Trustee within 45 days after the 
event causing receipt of the Net Proceeds (or such later date as is consented to by the Insurer) 
that: 

(i) Sufficiency of Net Proceeds. The Net Proceeds available for such 
purpose, together with any other funds supplied by the County to the Trustee in a 
subaccount of the Net Proceeds Fund for such purpose, are expected to equal at least 
110% of the projected costs of replacement or repair ( or such lesser percentage as 
may be consented to by the Insurer), as demonstrated in an attached reconstruction 
budget, and 

(ii) Timely Completion. In the event that damage, destruction or taking 
results or is expected to result in an abatement of Lease Payments, such replacement 
or repair can be fully completed within a period not in excess of the period in which 
rental interruption insurance proceeds, as described in the Lease together with other 
identified available moneys, will be available to pay in full all Lease Payments 
coming due during such period as demonstrated in an attached reconstruction 
schedule. 

(b) Requisition. The County Representative must state with respect to each 
payment to be made (1) the requisition number, (2) the name and address of the person, firm 
or corporation to whom payment is due, (3) the amount to be paid and (4) that each 
obligation mentioned therein has been properly incurred, is a proper charge against the Net 
Proceeds Fund, has not been the basis of any previous withdrawal, and specifying in 
reasonable detail the nature of the obligation. 

Any balance of the Net Proceeds remaining after such replacement or repair has been 
completed and after payment or provision for payment of all Certificates as provided in the Trust 
Agreement will be paid to the County after payment of amounts due the Trustee pursuant to the Trust 
Agreement. 

Disbursement for Prepayment. If the County Representative notifies the Trustee in writing of 
the County's determination that the certification provided above cannot be made or that replacement 
or repair of any portion of the Property is not economically feasible or in the best interest of the 
County, then the Trustee will promptly transfer the Net Proceeds to the Prepayment Fund as provided 
in the Trust Agreement and apply them to prepayment of the Certificates as provided in the Trust 
Agreement and prepayment of Lease Payments as provided in the Lease; provided that in the event 
of damage or destruction in whole of the Property and in the event such Net Proceeds, together with 
funds then on hand in the Lease Payment Fund and Reserve Fund are not sufficient to prepay all the 
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Certificates then Outstanding, then the County will not be permitted to certify that repair, 
replacement or improvement of all of the Property is not economically feasible or in the best interest 
of the County. In such event, the County will proceed to repair, replace or improve the Property as 
described in the Lease from legally available funds in the then-current Fiscal Year and will make the 
required notification to the Trustee pursuant to the Trust Agreement and the Trustee will disburse 
moneys in the Net Proceeds Fund to the person, firm, or corporation named in the Requisition as 
provided therein. 

COVENANTS WITH RESPECT TO THE PROPERTY 

Option to Purchase 

The County may exercise an option to purchase the Authority's interest under the Site Lease 
and the Lease in the Property by depositing with the Trustee cash and/or Government Obligations as 
provided in the Trust Agreement. In such event, all or a portion of the obligations of the County 
under the Lease, and the security provided by the Lease for said obligations or said portion of the 
obligations, will cease and terminate as provided in the Lease, excepting in the case all of the 
Authority's interest has been purchased, only the obligation of the County to make, or cause to be 
made, such Lease Payments from such deposit. In the event Lease Payments and Additional 
Payments under the Lease have been paid in full, on the date of said deposit, the Authority's interest 
in the Property will revert and transfer to the County automatically and without further action by the 
County or the Authority, and the Authority will execute and deliver such further instruments and take 
such further action as may reasonably be requested by the County for carrying out the reversion and 
transfer of the Authority's interests in the Property. In the event Lease Payments under the Lease 
have been paid in part only, on the date of said deposit, the County will specify a discrete portion of 
the Authority's interest in the Property for reversion and transfer to the County and the Authority will 
execute and deliver such further instruments and take such further action as may reasonably be 
requested by the County for carrying out the reversion and transfer of such portion of the Authority's 
interest in the Property; provided, that such portion will revert and transfer to the County only if 
(i) the reduction in the fair rental value of the Property effected by such reversion and transfer at the 
time of such reversion and transfer (as determined by an independent appraisal acceptable to the 
Authority and the Insurer) is proportionately less than or equal to the reduction in the maximum 
annual Lease Payments under the Lease effected by such purchase and (ii) the Insurer will have 
provided its written consent to such reversion and transfer. Any such deposit will be deemed to be 
and will constitute a special fund for the payment of Lease Payments in accordance with the Lease. 

Maintenance, Utilities, Taxes and Assessments 

(a) Maintenance; Repair and Replacement. Throughout the Term of the Lease, 
as part of the consideration for the rental of the Property, all repair and maintenance of the 
Property will be the responsibility of the County, and the County will pay for or otherwise 
arrange for the payment of the cost of the repair and replacement of the Property resulting 
from ordinary wear and tear or want of care on the part of the County or any sublessee 
thereof. The County waives the benefits of subsections 1 and 2 of Section 1932 of the 
California Civil Code, but such waiver shall not limit any of the rights of the County under 
the terms of the Lease. 

(b) Tax and Assessments; Utility Charges. The County will also pay or cause to 
be paid all taxes and assessments, including but not limited to utility charges, of any type or 
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nature charged to the Authority or the County or levied, assessed or charged against any 
portion of the Property or the respective interests or estates therein; provided that with respect 
to special assessments or other governmental charges that may lawfully be paid in 
installments over a period of years, the County will be obligated to pay only such 
installments as are required to be paid during the Term of the Lease as and when the same 
become due. 

( c) Contests. The County may, at its expense and in its name, in good faith 
contest any such taxes, assessments, utility and other charges and, in the event of any such 
contest, may permit the taxes, assessments or other charges so contested to remain unpaid 
during the period of such contest and any appeal therefrom; provided that prior to such 
nonpayment it will furnish the Authority and the Trustee with the opinion of an Independent 
Counsel acceptable to the Authority, to the effect that, by nonpayment of any such items, the 
interest of the Authority in such portion of the Property will not be materially endangered and 
that the Property will not be subject to loss or forfeiture. Otherwise, the County will 
promptly pay such taxes, assessments or charges or make provisions for the payment thereof 
in form satisfactory to the Authority. The Authority will cooperate fully in such contest, 
upon the request and at the expense of the County. 

Modification of the Property 

Additions. Modifications and Improvements. The County will, at its own expense, have the 
right to make additions, modifications, and improvements to any portion of the Property if such 
improvements are necessary or beneficial for the use of such portion of the Property. All such 
additions, modifications and improvements will thereafter comprise part of the Property and be 
subject to the provisions of the Lease. Such additions, modifications and improvements will not in 
any way damage any portion of the Property or cause it to be used for purposes other than those 
authorized under the provisions of State and federal law or in any way which would impair the State 
tax-exempt status or the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of the interest 
components of the Lease Payments; and the Property, upon completion of any additions, 
modifications and improvements made pursuant to the Lease, will be of a value which is not 
substantially less than the value of the Property immediately prior to the making of such additions, 
modifications and improvements. 

Installation of County's Equipment. The County and any sub lessee may at any time and 
from time to time, in its sole discretion and at its own expense, install or permit to be installed items 
of equipment or other personal property in or upon the Property. All such items shall remain the sole 
property of the County or such sublessee, and neither the Authority nor the Trustee shall have any 
interest therein. The County or such sublessee may remove or modify such equipment or other 
personal property at any time, provided that such party shall repair and restore any and all damage to 
the Property resulting from the installation, modification or removal of any such items. Nothing in 
the Lease shall prevent the County or any sublessee from purchasing items to be installed pursuant to 
the Lease under a conditional sale or lease purchase contract, or subject to a vendor's lien or security 
agreement as security for the unpaid portion of the purchase price thereof, provided that no such lien 
or security interest shall attach to any part of the Property. 

No Liens. Except for Permitted Encumbrances, the County will not permit any mechanic's 
or other lien to be established or remain against the Property for labor or materials furnished in 
connection with any additions, modifications or improvements made by the County pursuant to the 
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Lease; provided that if any such lien is established and the County will first notify or cause to be 
notified the Authority of the County's intention to do so, the County may in good faith contest any 
lien filed or established against the Property, and in such event may permit the items so contested to 
remain undischarged and unsatisfied during the period of such contest and any appeal therefrom and 
will provide the Authority with full security against any loss or forfeiture which might arise from the 
nonpayment of any such item, in form satisfactory to the Trustee (as assignee of the Authority). The 
Authority will cooperate fully in any such contest, upon the request and at the expense of the County. 

Replacements, Redevelopment and Renovation. The County will, at its own expense, have 
the right to make replacements, redevelopment or renovation of all or a portion of the Property if the 
following conditions precedent are satisfied: 

(a) The County receives an opinion of Special Counsel, a copy of which the 
County will furnish to the Authority and the Trustee, that (1) such replacement does not 
adversely affect the federal income tax exclusion or the State tax-exempt status of the interest 
with respect to the Certificates, and (2) the Lease will remain the legal, valid, binding and 
enforceable obligation of the County; 

(b) In the event such replacement, redevelopment or renovation would result in 
the temporary abatement of Lease Payments as provided in the Lease, the County will notify 
the Insurer and any rating agency then providing a rating on the Certificates and shall deposit 
moneys with the Trustee in advance for payment of Lease Payments from special funds of 
the County or other moneys, the application of which would not, in the opinion of Special 
Counsel (a copy of which shall have been delivered to the Trustee), result in such Lease 
Payments constituting indebtedness of the County in contravention of the Constitution and 
laws of the State; 

( c) The County will certify to the Trustee that it has sufficient funds to complete 
such replacement, redevelopment or renovation; and 

(d) In the case of replacement or redevelopment, the County and the Trustee 
receive an independent appraisal from a California certified general appraiser that the annual 
fair rental value of the replacements will be at least equal to the annual fair rental value of the 
Property immediately prior to such replacement or redevelopment. 

Encumbrances; Alternative Financing Methods 

Encumbrances. Except as provided in the Lease, the County will not, directly or indirectly, 
create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any mortgage, pledge, liens, charges, encumbrances or claims, 
as applicable, on or with respect to the Property, other than Permitted Encumbrances and other than 
the respective rights of the Authority and the County as provided in the Lease. Except as expressly 
provided in the Lease, the County will promptly, at its own expense, take such action as may be 
necessary to duly discharge or remove any such mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, encumbrance or 
claim, for which it is responsible, if the same will arise at any time; provided that the County may 
contest such liens if it desires to do so. The County will reimburse the Authority for any expense 
incurred by it in order to discharge or remove any such mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, encumbrance 
or claim. 
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Alternative Financing Methods. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the County may create or 
suffer to create any mortgage, pledge, liens, charges, encumbrances or claims upon the Property or 
any improvements thereto, provided that (I) any such mortgage, pledge, liens, charges, 
encumbrances or claims will at any time while any of the Certificates remain Outstanding be and 
remain subordinate in all respects to the Site Lease and Lease and any security interest given to the 
Trustee for the benefit of the Owners and (2) the County will have first delivered to the Trustee an 
opinion of Special Counsel substantially to the effect that such mortgage, pledge, liens, charges, 
encumbrances or claims would not result in the inclusion of the interest with respect to the 
Certificates in the gross income of the owners of the Certificates for purposes of federal income 
taxation or impair the State tax-exempt status of such payments. 

Substitution or Release of the Property 

The County will have the right to substitute alternate real property for any portion of the 
Property described in the Lease or to release a portion of the Property from the lien of the Lease by 
providing the Trustee with a supplement to the Lease substantially in the form attached as Exhibit D 
to the Lease and by satisfying the conditions set forth in paragraphs (i) through (viii) below. All 
costs and expenses incurred in connection with such substitution or release will be borne by the 
County. Notwithstanding any substitution pursuant to the Lease, there will be no reduction in or 
abatement of the Lease Payments due from the County under the Lease as a result of such 
substitution. No substitution or release will be permitted under the Lease unless: 

(i) the County provides prior written notice thereof to the Insurer, together with a 
certificate that the substituted real property has an equivalent or greater useful life as the 
Property to be released and that the useful life of the substituted real property exceeds the 
remaining term of the Lease Payments under the Lease; 

(ii) an independent California Certified General or equivalent certified real estate 
appraiser selected by the County finds (and delivers a certificate to the County and the 
Trustee setting forth its findings) that the substituted real property or the property remaining 
after the release has a fair rental value greater than or equal to the Lease Payments thereafter 
becoming due and payable under the Lease so that the Lease Payments payable by the 
County pursuant to the Lease will not be abated; 

(iii) the County obtains or causes to be obtained an ALTA title insurance policy 
(with western regional exceptions) with endorsement so as to be payable to the Trustee for 
the benefit of the Owners showing no prior liens thereon other then Permitted Encumbrances. 
Such policy will comply with the Lease, will be in a form satisfactory to the Insurer, the 
Trustee and the Authority, will be in the amount equal to the principal component of Lease 
Payments attributable to the substituted real property, and will insure the leasehold interest or 
the fee simple interest of the Authority or the County, as applicable, to the substituted real 
property; 

(iv) the County provides the Authority and the Trustee with an opinion of Special 
Counsel that such substitution does not cause, in and of itself, the interest evidenced and 
represented by the Certificates to be included in gross income for federal income tax 
purposes; 
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(v) the County will give, or cause to be given, any notice of the occurrence of 
such substitution required to be given pursuant to the Continuing Disclosure Certificate; 

(vi) upon the substitution of any real property and improvements thereon for all or 
a portion of the Property then existing, the County, the Authority and the Trustee will execute 
and the County will record with the office of the County Recorder, County of Stanislaus, 
California, any document necessary to reconvey to the County the portion of the Property 
being substituted and to include the substituted real property and/or improvements thereon as 
all or a portion of the Property; 

(vii) the County will certify to the Trustee and the Insurer that the substituted real 
property is of approximately the same degree of essentiality to the County as the portion of 
the Property being replaced; and 

(viii) the Trustee will receive the Insurer's prior written consent to such substitution 
and shall proved a copy of such notice to S&P. 

Condemnation of Property 

The County has agreed, to the extent it may lawfully do so, that so long as any of the 
Certificates remain outstanding and unpaid, the County will not exercise the power of condemnation 
with respect to the Property. The County has agreed, to the extent it may lawfully do so, that if for 
any reason the foregoing covenant is determined to be unenforceable or if the County will fail or 
refuse to abide by such covenant and condemns the Property, then the appraised value of the Property 
will not be less than the greater of: (i) if the Certificates are then subject to optional prepayment, the 
principal and interest components of the Certificates outstanding through the date of their 
prepayment, or (ii) if the Certificates are not then subject to optional prepayment, the amount 
necessary to defease the Certificates to the first available prepayment date in accordance with the 
Trust Agreement. 

ASSIGNMENT, SUBLEASING AND AMENDMENT 

Assignment by the Authority 

Except as provided in the Lease, in the Trust Agreement and the Assignment Agreement, the 
Authority will not assign the Lease to any other person, firm or corporation so as to impair or violate 
the representations, covenants and warranties contained in the Lease. 

Assignment and Subleasing by the County 

Assignment. The Lease may be assigned by the County, with the consent of the Insurer, so 
long as such assignment does not, in the opinion of Special Counsel, adversely affect the State tax­
exempt status or the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of the interest with 
respect to the Certificates or affect the validity of the Lease. In the event that the Lease is assigned 
by the County, the obligation to make Lease Payments under the Lease will remain the obligation of 
the County. 

Sublease. The County may sublease all or any portion of the Property, with the consent of 
the Trustee (as assignee of the Authority) and the Insurer, subject to (i) the Lease and the obligation 
of the County to make Lease Payments under the Lease will remain obligations of the County; 
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(ii) the County will, within 30 days after the delivery thereof, furnish or cause to be furnished to the 
Authority, the Trustee and the Insurer a true and complete copy of such sublease (iii) no sublease by 
the County will cause the Property to be used for a purpose other than a governmental or proprietary 
function authorized under the provisions of the laws of the State; and (iv) no sublease will cause the 
interest due with respect to the Certificates to become includable in gross income for federal income 
tax purposes or subject to State personal income taxes. 

Amendments and Modifications. The Lease may be amended or any of its terms modified 
with the written consent of the Insurer, the County and the Trustee (as assignee of the Authority), in 
accordance with the Trust Agreement. 

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

Events of Default Defined 

The following will be "events of default" under the Lease and the terms "events of default" 
and "default" means, whenever they are used in the Lease, any one or more of the following events: 

Payment Default. Failure by the County to pay any Lease Payment required to be paid under 
the Lease by the corresponding Lease Payment Date; and 

Covenant Default. Failure by the County to observe and perform any warranty, covenant, 
condition or agreement on its part to be observed or performed in the Lease or otherwise with respect 
thereto or in the Trust Agreement or in the Site Lease, other than as referred to in the foregoing 
paragraph, for a period of 30 days after written notice specifying such failure and requesting that it be 
remedied has been given to the County by the Authority, the Insurer, the Trustee, or the Owners of 
not less than 20% in aggregate principal amount of Certificates then Outstanding; provided, however, 
if the failure stated in the notice cannot be corrected within the applicable period, the Authority, the 
Insurer or such Owners, as the case may be, will not unreasonably withhold their consent to an 
extension of such time if corrective action is instituted by the County within the applicable period 
and diligently pursued until the default is corrected, except that such grace period will not exceed 60 
days without the prior written consent of the Insurer. 

Bankruptcy or Insolvency. The filing by the County of a case in bankruptcy, or the 
subjection of any right or interest of the County under the Lease to any execution, garnishment or 
attachment, or adjudication of the County as a bankrupt, or assignment by the County for the benefit 
of creditors, or the entry by the County into an agreement of composition with creditors, or the 
approval by a court of competent jurisdiction of a petition applicable to the County in any 
proceedings instituted under the provisions of the federal bankruptcy code, as amended, or under any 
similar act which may be enacted. 

Remedies on Default 

Whenever any event of default referred to in the Lease will have happened and be continuing, 
it will be lawful for the Authority to exercise any and all remedies available pursuant to law or 
granted pursuant to the Lease. Notwithstanding anything in the Lease or in the Trust Agreement to 
the contrary, TIIERE WILL BE NO RIGHT UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES TO 
ACCELERATE THE LEASE PAYMENTS OR OTHERWISE DECLARE ANY LEASE 
PAYMENTS NOT THEN IN DEFAULT TO BE IMMEDIATELY DUE AND PAYABLE. After 
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the occurrence of an event of default under the Lease, the County will surrender possession of the 
Property to the Authority, if requested to do so by the Authority, the Trustee or the Owners, in 
accordance with the provisions of the Trust Agreement. So long as the Insurer is not in default under 
the Insurance Policy, the Insurer will control all remedies upon an event of default under the Lease. 
The Owners' direction of remedies upon default are subject to the prior written consent of the 
Insurer. The Insurer, acting alone, will have the right to direct all remedies upon an event of default. 

No Termination; Repossession and Re-Lease on Behalf of County. In the event the 
Authority does not elect to terminate the Lease in the manner provided for in the Lease, the Authority 
may, with the consent of the County, which consent has been irrevocably given, repossess the 
Property and re-lease it for the account of the County, in which event the County's obligation will 
accrue from year to year in accordance with the Lease and the County will continue to receive the 
value of the use of the Property from year to year in the form of credits against its obligation to pay 
Lease Payments. The obligations of the County will remain the same as prior to such default, to pay 
Lease Payments and Additional Payments whether the Authority re-enters or not. The County will 
remain liable for the payment of all Lease Payments and Additional Payments and the performance 
of all conditions contained in the Lease and will reimburse the Authority for any deficiency arising 
out of the releasing of the Property, or, in the event the Authority is unable to re-lease the Property, 
then for the full amount of all Lease Payments and Additional Payments to the end of the Term of the 
Lease, but said Lease Payments and Additional Payments and/or deficiency will be payable only at 
the same time and in the same manner as provided for the payment of Lease Payments and 
Additional Payments under the Lease, notwithstanding such repossession by the Authority or any suit 
brought by the Authority for the purpose of effecting such repossession of the Property or the 
exercise of any other remedy by the Authority. 

The County has irrevocably appointed the Authority as the agent and attorney-in-fact of the 
County to repossess and re-lease the Property in the event of default by the County in the 
performance of any covenants contained in the Lease to be performed by the County and to remove 
all personal property whatsoever situated upon the Property, to place such property in storage or 
other suitable place in the County of Stanislaus, for the account of and at the expense of the County, 
and the County has exempted and agreed to save harmless the Authority from any costs, loss or 
damage whatsoever arising or occasioned by any such repossession and re-leasing of the Property. 

The County will retain the portion of rental obtained by the Trustee, as assignee of the 
Authority, that is in excess of the Lease Payments and Additional Payments, the fees, expenses and 
costs of the Trustee of re-leasing the Property, and all amounts payable by the County under the 
Lease and the Trust Agreement. 

In the event that the liability of the County under this subsection (a) is held to constitute 
indebtedness or liability in any year exceeding in any year the income and revenue provided for such 
year, the Authority, or the Trustee or the Owners, as assignees of the Authority, shall not exercise the 
remedies provided in this subsection (a). 

Termination; Repossession and Re-Lease. In the event of the termination of the Lease by the 
Authority at its option and in the manner provided on account of default by the County (and 
notwithstanding any repossession of the Property by the Authority in any manner whatsoever or the 
re-leasing of the Property), the County nevertheless has agreed to pay to the Authority all costs, 
losses or damages howsoever arising or occurring payable at the same time and in the same manner 
as is provided in the Lease in the case of payment of Lease Payments and Additional Payments. Any 
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proceeds of the re-lease or other disposition of the Property by the Authority will be deposited into 
the Lease Payment Fund and be applied in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Agreement. 
Any surplus received by the Trustee, as assignee of the Authority, from such re-leasing over total 
Lease Payments will be remitted to the County. Additional Payments that would have been due 
under the Lease and the fees, expenses and costs of the Trustee as assignee of the Authority on re­
leasing the Property will be remitted to the County. 

Opinion of Special Counsel. The re-leasing of the Property as provided in the Lease will be 
subject to the opinion of Special Counsel that such re-leasing will not cause the interest with respect 
to the Certificates to be subject to State personal income tax or adversely affect the exclusion from 
gross income for federal income tax purposes of such amounts. 

No Termination by County 

Under no circumstances may the County terminate the Lease as a remedy for a default by the 
Authority in the performance of any obligation of the Authority under the Lease. 

No Remedy Exclusive 

No remedy conferred in the Lease upon or reserved to the Authority is intended to be 
exclusive and every such remedy will be cumulative and will be in addition to every other remedy 
given under the Lease existing at law or in equity. No delay or omission to exercise any right or 
power accruing upon any default will impair any such right or power or will be construed to be a 
waiver thereof, but any such right and power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may 
be deemed expedient. 

No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver 

In the event any agreement contained in the Lease should be breached by either party and 
thereafter waived by the other party; such waiver will be limited to the particular breach so waived 
and will not be deemed to waive any other breach under the Lease. 

Application of the Proceeds from the Re-Lease of the Property 

All amounts received by the Authority under the Lease will, subject to the Trust Agreement, 
be deposited by the Trustee in the Lease Payment Fund and applied as described under the heading 
"EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES OF CERTIFICATE OWNERS - Application of 
Proceeds." 

Trustee and Owners to Exercise Rights 

Such rights and remedies as are given to the Authority under the Lease have been assigned by 
the Authority to the Trustee under the Assignment Agreement, to which assignment the County has 
consented. Such rights and remedies will be exercised by the Trustee and the Owners as provided in 
the Trust Agreement. 
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PREPAYMENT OF LEASE PAYMENTS 

Security Deposit 

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Lease, the County may, on any date, secure the 
payment of Lease Payments and Additional Payments by a deposit by it with the Trustee of cash 
and/or Government Obligations as provided in the Trust Agreement. In such event, and provided 
that the County has paid any other amounts due and owing under the Lease and the Trust Agreement, 
all obligations of the County under the Lease, and all security provided by the Lease for said 
obligations, will cease and terminate, excepting only the obligation of the County to make, or cause 
to be made, Lease Payments and Additional Payments from such deposit. On the date of said deposit 
title to the Property will vest in the County automatically and without further action by the County or 
the Authority ( except as provided in the Lease). Said deposit will be deemed to be and will 
constitute a special fund for the payment of Lease Payments in accordance with the provisions of the 
Lease. 

Extraordinary Prepayment 

The County will be obligated to prepay the Lease Payments in whole or in part on any date, 
from and to the extent of any Net Proceeds or other moneys theretofore deposited in the Prepayment 
Fund (at least 45 days prior to the date fixed for prepayment of the Certificates) pursuant to the Trust 
Agreement. The County and the Authority have agreed that such Net Proceeds or other moneys will 
be credited towards the County's obligations under the Lease (except in the case of such prepayment 
of the Lease Payments in whole) pro rata among Lease Payments so that following Prepayment, the 
remaining annual Lease Payments will be proportional to the initial annual Lease Payments. 

Optional Prepayment 

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Lease, the Authority has granted an option to the 
County to prepay all or a portion of the Lease Payments to the extent and on the dates at the 
prepayment prices set forth in the Trust Agreement, provided that no amounts are owed to the Insurer 
under the Insurance Policy. The County and the Authority have agreed that such prepayments will 
be credited toward County's obligations under the Lease corresponding to the resulting prepayment 
of the Certificates and Additional Certificates in accordance with the Trust Agreement on the dates 
and at the prepayment prices provided therein. 
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APPENDIXD 

FORM OF APPROVING OPINION OF SPECIAL COUNSEL 

Board of Supervisors 
of the County of Stanislaus 

Modesto, California 

Stanislaus County Capital Improvements 
Financing Authority 

Modesto, California 

[Closing Date] 

Re: $15,340,000 County of Stanislaus Certificates of Participation (2004 Capital 
Improvement Projects) Series 2004A and $27,455,000 County of Stanislaus 
Certificates of Participation (2004 Capital Improvement Projects) Series 2004B 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We have reviewed the Constitution and the laws of the State of California and certain 
proceedings taken by the County of Stanislaus, California (the "County") in connection with the 
authorization, execution and delivery by the County of that certain Lease Agreement, dated as of April 1, 
2004 (the "Series 2004A Lease"), by and between the Stanislaus County Capital Improvements Financing 
Authority (the "Authority") and the County, that certain Lease Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2004 (the 
"Series 20048 Lease," and together with the Series 2004A Lease, the "Leases"), by and between the 
Authority and the County. We have also reviewed that certain Trust Agreement, dated as of Aprill, 2004 
(the "Series 2004A Trust Agreement"), by and among BNY Western Trust Company, as trustee (the 
"Trustee"), the Authority and the County and that certain Trust Agreement dated as of April 1, 2004 (the 
"Series 20048 Trust Agreement," and together with the Series 2004A Trust Agreement, the "Trust 
Agreements"), by and among the Trustee, the Authority and the County. All capitalized terms used 
herein shall have the meaning given them in the Trust Agreements unless otherwise defined. 

Pursuant to the Series 2004A Trust Agreement, the Trustee has agreed to execute and deliver the 
$15,340,000 County of Stanislaus Certificates of Participation (2004 Capital Improvement Projects) 
Series 2004A (the "Series 2004A Certificates") evidencing proportionate interests of the Owners of the 
Series 2004A Certificates in lease payments (the "Series 2004A Lease Payments") to be made by the 
County pursuant to the Series 2004A Lease. Pursuant to that certain Assignment Agreement (the "Series 
2004A Assignment Agreement") dated as of April 1, 2004, by and between the Authority and the Trustee, 
the Authority has assigned to the Trustee as security for the Series 2004A Certificates the Authority's 
right to receive Series 2004A Lease Payments from the County under the Series 2004A Lease. 

Pursuant to the Series 20048 Trust Agreement, the Trustee has agreed to execute and deliver the 
$27,455,000 County of Stanislaus Certificates of Participation (2004 Capital Improvement Projects) 
Series 20048 (the "Series 20048 Certificates," and together with the Series 2004A Certificates, the 
"Certificates") evidencing proportionate interests of the Owners of the Series 20048 Certificates in lease 
payments (the "Series 20048 Lease Payments," and together with the Series 2004A Lease Payments, the 
"Lease Payments") to be made by the County pursuant to the Series 20048 Lease. Pursuant to that certain 
Assignment Agreement (the "Series 20048 Assignment Agreement," and together with the Series 2004A 
Assignment Agreement, the "Assignment Agreements") dated as of April 1, 2004, by and between the 
Authority and the Trustee, the Authority has assigned to the Trustee as security for the Series 20048 
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Certificates the Authority's right to receive Series 2004B Lease Payments from the County under the 
Series 2004B Lease. 

The Certificates are dated the Closing Date. The Certificates mature on the dates and in the 
amounts set forth in the Trust Agreements. Interest due with respect to the Certificates is payable on the 
dates and at the rates per annum set forth in the Trust Agreements. The Certificates are registered 
Certificates in the form set forth in the Trust Agreements and are subject to optional, extraordinary and 
mandatory prepayment prior to maturity in the manner and upon the terms set forth in the Trust 
Agreements. 

The County has elected, pursuant to Treasury Regulation Section 1.150-l(c)(3) that the Series 
2004A Certificates, the proceeds of which are to be applied to finance the Gallo Center for the Arts, shall 
constitute qualified 501(c)(3) bonds, within the meaning of Section 145 of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986, as amended (the "Code"). In rendering this opinion, we have relied on the opinion of Slovak Baron 
& Empey LLP, counsel to the Central Valley Center for the Arts, Inc., a California non-profit public 
benefit corporation ("CVCA") and Gallo Center for the Arts, LLC, a California limited liability company 
solely owned by CVCA (also referred to as "CVCA"), regarding, among other matters, the current 
qualification ofCVCA as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986 (the "Code"). We note that such opinion is subject to a number of qualifications and limitations. 
Failure of CVCA to be organized and operated in accordance with the Internal Revenue Service's 
requirements for the maintenance of its status as an organization described in Section 50l(c)(3) of the 
Code may result in interest with respect to the Certificates being included in gross income for federal 
income tax purposes, possibly from the date of execution and delivery of the Certificates. 

Based upon our examination of the foregoing, and in reliance thereon and on all matters of fact 
as we deem relevant under the circumstances, and upon consideration of applicable laws, we are of the 
opinion that: 

1. The obligations of the County to pay Lease Payments in accordance with the terms of the 
Leases are valid and binding obligations payable from the funds of the County lawfully available therefor, 
except as the same may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, :fraudulent conveyance, 
moratorium or other laws relating to or affecting generally the enforcement of creditors' rights, by 
equitable principles, by the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases and by the limitations on 
legal remedies against counties in the State of California. The obligations of the County to make Lease 
Payments under the Leases do not constitute debts of the County, the State of California or any political 
subdivision thereof within the meaning of any statutory or constitutional debt limitation or restriction and 
do not constitute a pledge of the faith and credit or taxing power of the County, the State of California or 
any political subdivision thereof. 

2. The Leases and the Trust Agreements have been duly authorized, executed and delivered 
by the County and constitute valid and legally binding agreements of the County enforceable against the 
County in accordance with their terms, except as the same may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, 
reorganization, moratorium, :fraudulent conveyance or other laws relating to or affecting generally the 
enforcement of creditors' rights, by equitable principles, by the exercise of judicial discretion in 
appropriate cases and by the limitations on legal remedies against counties in the State of California, 
except that we express no opinion as to any provisions in the Leases or the Trust Agreements with respect 
to indemnification, penalty, contribution, choice of law, choice of forum or waiver provisions contained 
therein. 

3. Under existing statutes, regulations, rulings and judicial decisions, interest due with 
respect to the Certificates (and original issue discount) is excluded from gross income for federal income 
tax purposes and is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax 
imposed on individuals and corporations; however, it should be noted that, with respect to corporations, 
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such interest (and original issue discount) will be included as an adjustment in the calculation of 
alternative minimum taxable income, which may affect the alternative minimum tax liability of such 
corporations. The foregoing opinion is subject to the condition that the County and CVCA comply with 
all requirements of the Code, that must be satisfied subsequent to the execution and delivery of the 
Certificates to assure that the portion of the Certificates designated as and comprising interest ( and 
original issue discount) will not become includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes. 
Failure to comply with such requirements of the Code might cause the portion of the Certificates 
designated as and comprising interest (and original issue discount) to be included in gross income for 
federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of execution and delivery of the Certificates. The 
County and CVCA have covenanted to comply with all such requirements. 

4. The portion of the Certificates designated as and comprising interest as described in 
paragraph (3) above is exempt from State of California personal income tax. 

5. The difference between the issue price of a Certificate (the first price at which a 
substantial amount of the Certificates of a maturity are to be sold to the public) and the stated payment 
price at maturity with respect to such Certificate constitutes original issue discount. Original issue 
discount accrues under a constant yield method, and original issue discount will accrue to a Certificate 
owner before receipt of cash attributable to such excludable income. The amount of original issue 
discount deemed received by a Certificate owner will increase the Certificate owner's basis in the 
applicable Certificate. Original issue discount that accrues for the Certificate owner is excluded from the 
gross income of such owner for federal income tax purposes, is not an item of tax preference for purposes 
of calculating the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals or corporations (as described in 
paragraph (3) above) and is exempt from State of California personal income tax. 

6. The amount by which a Certificate owner's original basis for determining loss on sale or 
exchange in the applicable Certificate (generally, the purchase price) exceeds the amount payable on 
maturity ( or on an earlier call date) constitutes amortizable Certificate premium, which must be amortized 
under Section 171 of the Code; such amortizable Certificate premium reduces the Certificate owner's 
basis in the applicable Certificate (and the amount of tax-exempt interest received), and is not deductible 
for federal income tax purposes. The basis reduction as a result of the amortization of Certificate 
premium may result in a Certificate owner realizing a taxable gain when a Certificate is sold by the owner 
for an amount equal to or less (under certain circumstances) than the original cost of the Certificate to the 
owner. 

Except as expressly set forth in paragraphs (3), (4), (5) and (6), we express no opinion regarding 
any tax consequences with respect to the Certificates. 

Certain agreements, requirements and procedures contained or referred to in the Trust 
Agreements, the Tax Certificate executed by the County and other documents related to the Certificates 
may be changed and certain actions may be taken or omitted, under the circumstances and subject to the 
terms and conditions set forth in such documents, upon the advice or with the approving opinion of 
counsel nationally recognized in the area of tax-exempt obligations. We express no opinion as to the 
exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of the portion of each Certificate 
constituting interest if any such change occurs or action is taken or omitted upon advice or approval of 
counsel other than Stradling Y occa Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation. 

We have not made or undertaken to make an investigation of the state of title to any of the real 
property described in the Leases, the Site Leases or the Assigrunent Agreements or of the accuracy or 
sufficiency of the description of such property contained therein, and we express no opinion with respect 
to such matters. 
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We are admitted to the practice of law only in the State of California and our opinion is limited 
to matters governed by the laws of the State of California and federal law. We assume no responsibility 
with respect to the applicability or the effect of the laws of any other jurisdiction and express no opinion 
as to the enforceability of the choice of law provisions contained in the Trust Agreement. 

The opinions expressed herein are based upon our analysis and interpretation of existing statutes, 
regulations, rulings and judicial decisions and cover certain matters not directly addressed by such 
authorities. The opinions expressed herein may be affected by actions taken (or not taken) or events 
occurring ( or not occurring) after the date hereof. We have not undertaken to determine, or to inform any 
person, whether any such actions or events are taken or do occur. Our engagement as to the Certificates 
terminates as of their date of execution and delivery. In rendering this opinion, we have relied upon 
certain representations of fact and certifications made by the County, the Authority, the initial purchasers 
of the Certificates and others. We have not undertaken to verify through independent investigation the 
accuracy of the representations and certifications relied upon by us. 

We express no opinion herein as to the accuracy, completeness or sufficiency of the Official 
Statement or other offering material relating to the Certificates, and expressly disclaim any duty to advise 
the Owners of the Certificates with respect to matters contained in the Official Statement. 

Respectfully submitted, 
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APPENDIXE 

FORM OF INSURANCE POLICY 



(THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 



Alnbac 
Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy 

Ambac Assurance Corporation 
One State Street Plaza, 15th Floor 
New York, New York 10004 
Telephone: (212) 668-0340 

Obligor: Policy Number: 

Obligations: Premium: 

Ambac Assurance Corporation (Ambac), a Wisconsin stock insurance corporation, in consideration of the pa ent of the 
premium and subject to the terms of this Policy, hereby agrees to pay to The Bank of New York, as trustee, or its u essor (the 
"Insurance Trustee"), for the benefit of the Holders, that portion of the principal of and interest on the above-describe o igations 
(the "Obligations") which shall become Due for Payment but shall be unpaid by reason of Nonpayment b e Obligo 

Ambac will make such payments to the Insurance Trustee within one (1) business day following wri en ti · tio ~ 
Nonpayment. Upon a Holder's presentation and surrender to the Insurance Trustee of such unpai gatio s 
uncanceled and in bearer form and free of any adverse claim, the Insurance Trustee will ct· to the d 
principal and interest which is then Due for Payment but is unpaid. Upon such disburse 1 be 
the surrendered Obligations and/or coupons and shall be fully subrogated to all of th Ho er 

In cases where the Obligations are issued in registered form, the Insurance Trustee ol er only upon 
presentation and surrender to the Insurance Trustee of the unpaid Obligation, unca v claim, together 
with an instrument of assignment, in form satisfactory to Ambac and the Holder or such 
Holder's duly authorized representative, so as to permit ownership of i e name of Ambac or its 
nominee. The Insurance Trustee shall disburse interest to a er o a n o y upon presentation to the 
Insurance Trustee of proof that the claimant is the person entitle to st o e Obligation and delivery to the 
Insurance Trustee of an instrument of assignment, in form satisfac nsurance Trustee, duly executed by the 
Holder or such Holder's duly authorized representat' , ran 1 ri under such Obligation to receive the 
interest in respect of which the insurance disburs t was ade. subrogated to all of the Holders' rights to 
payment on registered Obligations to the extent o a y insurance disbur made. 

In the event that a trustee or paying a for t e Obligations a noti that any payment of principal of or interest on an 
Obligation which has become Due fo ich is mad t a Holder by or on behalf of the Obligor has been deemed a 
preferential transfer and theretofo Ider t to the United States Bankruptcy Code in accordance with 
a final, nonappealable order of a c Holder will be entitled to payment from Ambac to the extent 
of such recovery if sufficie nds 

As used herein, the ror·m .,r,.rnn any pers o er than (i) the Obligor or (ii) any person whose obligations constitute the 
thii~Ubffigations who, at the time of Nonpayment, is the owner of an Obligation or of 

ein, "Due for Payment", when referring to the principal of Obligations, is when 
underlying secur· 
a coupon relating 
the sche tu · e mandato emption date for the application of a required sinking fund installment has been 

any earlier date on which payment is due by reason of call for redemption (other than by application 
stallments), acceleration or other advancement of maturity; and, when referring to interest on the 

uled date for payment of interest has been reached. As used herein, "Nonpayment" means the failure 
we ro · d sufficient funds to the trustee or paying agent for payment in full of all principal of and interest 

ch are Due for Payment. 

This Pol' y · c celable. The premium on this Policy is not refundable for any reason, including payment of the Obligations 
prior to m · . This Policy does not insure against loss of any prepayment or other acceleration payment which at any time 
may become due in respect of any Obligation, other than at the sole option of Ambac, nor against any risk other than Nonpayment. 

In witness whereof, Ambac has caused this Policy to be affixed with a facsimile of its corporate seal and to be signed by its duly 
authorized officers in facsimile to become effective as its original seal and signatures and binding upon Ambac by virtue of the 
countersignature of its duly authorized representative. 

fJj/2L 
President 

Effective Date: 

THE BANK OF NEW YORK acknowledges that it has agreed 
to perform the duties of Insurance Trustee under this Policy. 

Form No.: 2B-0012 (1101) 
A-

Secretary 

Authorized Representative 



Ambac 

Endorsement 

Policy for: 

Ambac Assurance Corporation 
One State Street Plaza, 
New York, New York 10004 
Telephone: (212) 668-0340 

Attached to and forming part of Policy No.: 

In the event that Ambac Assurance Corporation were 
under the Policy would be excluded from covera by 
Association, established pursuant to the laws oft 

President 

Form No.: 2B-0004 a /97) 

ter, waive or extend any of the terms, conditions, provisions, agreements 
other than as above stated. 

Ambac has caused this Endorsement to be affixed with a facsimile of its corporate seal and to 
·zed officers in facsimile to become effective as its original seal and signatures and binding 

e countersignature of its duly authorized representative. 

Ambac Assurance Corporation 

Secretary 

Authorized Representative 



APPENDIXF 

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

This Continuing Disclosure Agreement (the "Agreement") dated as of April 1, 2004 by 
and between the County of Stanislaus, California (the "County") and BNY Western Trust 
Company, as trustee (the "Trustee") under a Trust Agreement, dated as of April 1, 2004 (the 
"Series 2004A Trust Agreement") by and among the County, the Stanislaus County Capital 
Improvements Financing Authority (the "Authority") and the Trustee and a Trust Agreement, 
dated as of April 1, 2004 (the "Series 2004B Trust Agreement" and, together with the Series 
2004A Trust Agreement, the "Trust Agreements"), by and among the County, the Authority and 
the Trustee, is executed and delivered in connection with the execution and delivery of the 
County's Certificates of Participation (2004 Capital Improvement Projects) Series 2004A (the 
"Series 2004A Certificates") in an aggregate principal amount of $15,340,000 and the County 
Certificates of Participation (2004 Capital Improvement Projects) Series 2004 B (the "Series 
2004B Certificates and, together with the Series 2004A Certificates, the "Certificates") in an 
aggregate principal amount of$27,455,000. Capitalized terms used in this Agreement which are 
not otherwise defined in the Trust Agreements shall have the respective meanings specified 
above or in Article IV hereof. 

ARTICLE I 
THE UNDERTAKING 

Section 1.1 Purpose. This Agreement shall constitute a written undertaking for the 
benefit of the holders of the Certificates, and is being executed and delivered solely to assist the 
Underwriters in complying with subsection (b )( 5) of the Rule. 

Section 1.2 Annual Financial Information. (a) The County shall provide Annual 
Financial Information with respect to each fiscal year of the County, commencing with fiscal 
year 2003-04, by no later than January 31 after the end of the prior fiscal year, to each NRMSIR 
and the SID. 

(b) The County shall provide, in a timely manner, notice of any failure of the County 
to provide the Annual Financial Information by the date specified in subsection (a) above to 
(i) either the MSRB or each NRMSIR, and (ii) the SID. See Exhibit A attached hereto. 

Section 1.3 Audited Financial Statements. If not provided as part of Annual 
Financial Information by the date required by Section 1.2(a) hereof, the County shall provide 
Audited Financial Statements, when and if available, to each NRMSIR and the SID. 

Section 1.4 Notices of Material Events. (a) If a Material Event occurs, the County 
shall provide, in a timely manner, a Material Event Notice to (i) either the MSRB or each 
NRMSIR, (ii) the SID, and (iii) the Trustee. 

(b) The Trustee shall promptly advise the County whenever, in the course of 
performing its duties as Trustee under the Trust Agreements, the Trustee has actual notice of an 
occurrence listed as a Material Event hereunder; provided, however, that the failure of the 
Trustee so to advise the County shall not constitute a breach by the Trustee of any of its duties 
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and responsibilities under this Agreement or the Trust Agreements and the Trustee shall have no 
duty to determine the materiality of such event. 

Section 1.5 Additional Disclosure Obligations. The County acknowledges and 
understands that other state and federal laws, including but not limited to the Securities Act of 
1933 and Rule lOb-5 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, may apply to the 
County, and that under some circumstances compliance with this Agreement, without additional 
disclosures or other action, may not fully discharge all duties and obligations of the County 
under such laws. 

Section 1.6 Additional Information. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to 
prevent the County from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination 
set forth in this Agreement or any other means of communication, or including any other 
information in any Annual Financial Information or notice of Material Event hereunder, in 
addition to that which is required by this Agreement. If the County chooses to include any 
information in any Annual Financial Information or Material Event Notice in addition to that 
which is specifically required by this Agreement, the County shall have no obligation under this 
Agreement to update such additional information or include it in any future Annual Financial 
Information or notice of a Material Event hereunder. 

Section 1.7 No Previous Non-Compliance. The County represents that, other than as 
disclosed in the Official Statement, it has not failed to comply in any material respect with any 
previous undertaking in a written contract or agreement specified in paragraph (b)(5)(i) of the 
Rule. 

ARTICLE II 
OPERATING RULES 

Section 2.1 Reference to Other Documents. It shall be sufficient for purposes of 
Section 1.2 hereof if the County provides Annual Financial Information by specific reference to 
documents previously: (i) either (1) provided to each NRMSIR existing at the time of such 
reference and the SID, or (2) filed with the SEC; and (ii) if such document is an Official 
Statement, available from the MSRB. 

Section 2.2 Submission of Information. Annual Financial Information may be 
provided in one document or multiple documents, and at one time or in part from time to time. 

Section 2.3 Material Event Notices. Each Material Event Notice shall be so 
captioned and shall prominently state the title, date and CU SIP numbers of the Certificates. 

Section 2.4 Filing with Certain Dissemination Agents. The County may satisfy its 
obligations hereunder to file any notice, document or information with a NRMSIR or SID by 
filing the same with any dissemination agent, including any "central post office" or similar 
entity, assuming or charged with responsibility for accepting notices, documents or information 
for transmission to such NRMSIR or SID, to the extent permitted or required by the SEC. For 
this purpose, permission shall be deemed to have been granted by the SEC if and to the extent 
the agent has received a "no-action" letter, which has not been revoked, from the SEC to the 
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effect that enforcement action would not be recommended on account of using the agent, and not 
such NRMSIR or SID, as the source of information in determining compliance with the Rule. 

Section 2.5 Transmission of Information and Notices. Unless otherwise required by 
law and, in the County's sole determination, subject to technical and economic feasibility, the 
County shall employ such methods of information and notice transmission as shall be requested 
or recommended by the herein-designated recipients of the County's information and notices. 

Section 2.6 Fiscal Year. Annual Financial Information shall be provided at least 
annually notwithstanding any fiscal year longer than 12 calendar months. The County's fiscal 
year currently begins July 1 and ends June 30, and the County shall promptly notify (i) each 
NRMSIR, (ii) the SID and (iii) the Trustee of each change in its fiscal year. 

ARTICLE III 
EFFECTIVE DATE, TERMINATION, AMENDMENT AND ENFORCEMENT 

Section 3.1 Effective Date; Termination. (a) This Agreement shall be effective 
upon the delivery of the Certificates. 

(b) The County's and the Trustee's obligations under this Agreement shall terminate 
upon a legal defeasance pursuant to Sections 14.01 of the Trust Agreements, prior prepayment or 
payment in full of all of the Certificates. In addition, the Trustee's obligations hereunder shall 
terminate upon its resignation or removal as Trustee in accordance with the provisions of the 
Trust Agreements. 

( c) This Agreement, or any provision hereof, shall be null and void in the event that 
the County (1) delivers to the Trustee an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel or 
counsel expert in federal securities laws, addressed to the County and Trustee, to the effect that 
those portions of the Rule which require this Agreement, or any of the provisions hereof, do not 
or no longer apply to the Certificates, whether because such portions of the Rule are invalid, 
have been repealed, or otherwise, as shall be specified in such opinion, and (2) delivers copies of 
such opinion to each NRMSIR and the SID. 

Section 3.2 Amendment. ( a) This Agreement may be amended, by written agreement 
of the parties, without the consent of the holders of the Certificates ( except to the extent required 
under clause (4)(ii) below), if all of the following conditions are satisfied: (1) such amendment 
is made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal 
(including regulatory) requirements, a change in law (including rules or regulations) or in 
interpretations thereof, or a change in the identity, nature or status of the County or the type of 
business conducted thereby; (2) this Agreement as so amended would have complied with the 
requirements of the Rule as of the date of this Agreement, after taking into account any 
amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; (3) the 
County shall have delivered to the Trustee an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel or 
counsel expert in federal securities laws, addressed to the County and the Trustee, to the same 
effect as set forth in clause (2) above; ( 4) either (i) the County shall have delivered to the Trustee 
an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel or counsel expert in federal securities laws, 
addressed to the County and the Trustee, to the effect that the amendment does not materially 
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impair the interests of the holders of the Certificates or (ii) the holders of the Certificates consent 
to the amendment to this Agreement pursuant to the same procedures as are required for 
amendments to the Trust Agreements with consent of holders of the Certificates pursuant to the 
terms of the Trust Agreements as in effect on the date of this Agreement; and (5) the County 
shall have delivered copies of such opinion and amendment to each NRMSIR and the SID. 

(b) In addition to subsection (a) above, this Agreement may be amended and any 
provision of this Agreement may be waived, by written agreement of the parties, without the 
consent of the holders of the Certificates, if all of the following conditions are satisfied: (1) an 
amendment to the Rule is adopted, or a new or modified official interpretation of the Rule is 
issued, after the effective date of this Agreement which is applicable to this Agreement, (2) the 
County shall have delivered to the Trustee an opinion of counsel, addressed to the County and 
the Trustee, to the effect that performance by the County and Trustee under this Agreement as so 
amended or giving effect to such waiver, as the case may be, will not result in a violation of the 
Rule and (3) the County shall have delivered copies of such opinion and amendment to each 
NRMSIR and the SID. 

(c) To the extent any amendment to this Agreement results in a change in the type of 
financial information or operating data provided pursuant to this Agreement, the first Annual 
Financial Information provided thereafter shall include a narrative explanation of the reasons for 
the amendment and the impact of the change. 

( d) If an amendment is made to the accounting principles to be followed in preparing 
financial statements, the Annual Financial Information for the year in which the change is made 
shall present a comparison between the financial statements or information prepared on the basis 
of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting 
principles. Such comparison shall include a qualitative and, to the extent reasonably feasible, 
quantitative discussion of the differences in the accounting principles and the impact of the 
change in the accounting principles on the presentation of the financial information. Notice of 
such amendment shall be provided by the County to (i) either the MSRB or each NRMSIR and 
(ii) the SID. 

Section 3.3 Benefit; Third-Party Beneficiaries; Enforcement. (a) The provisions of 
this Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit of the County, the Trustee and the holders from 
time to time of the Certificates, except that beneficial owners of Certificates shall be third-party 
beneficiaries of this Agreement. 

(b) Except as provided in subsection (a) above and this subsection (b), the provisions 
of this Agreement shall create no rights in any person or entity. The obligations of the County to 
comply with the provisions of this Agreement shall be enforceable (i) in the case of enforcement 
of obligations to provide financial statements, financial information, operating data and notices, 
by any holder of Outstanding Certificates, or by the Trustee on behalf of the holders of 
Outstanding Certificates, or, (ii) in the case of challenges to the adequacy of the financial 
statements, financial information and operating data so provided, by the Trustee on behalf of the 
holders of Outstanding Certificates; provided, however, that the Trustee shall not be required to 
take any enforcement action except at the written direction of the holders of not less than a 
majority in aggregate principal amount of the Certificates at the time Outstanding who shall have 
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provided the Trustee with indemnity satisfactory to the Trustee from any loss, cost, liability or 
expense, including without limitation, fees and expenses of its attorneys and additional fees and 
expenses of the Trustee. The holders' and Trustee's rights to enforce the provisions of this 
Agreement shall be limited solely to a right, by action in mandamus or for specific performance, 
to compel performance of the County's obligations under this Agreement. In consideration of 
the third-party beneficiary status of beneficial owners of Certificates pursuant to subsection (a) 
of this Section, beneficial owners shall be deemed to be holders of Certificates for purposes of 
this subsection (b ). 

( c) Any failure by the County or the Trustee to perform in accordance with this 
Agreement shall not constitute a default or an Event of Default under the Trust Agreements, and 
the rights and remedies provided by the Trust Agreements upon the occurrence of a default or an 
Event of Default shall not apply to any such failure. 

( d) This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of 
the State, and any suits and actions arising out of this Agreement shall be instituted in a court of 
competent jurisdiction in the State; provided, however, that to the extent this Agreement 
addresses matters of federal securities laws, including the Rule, this Agreement shall be 
construed in accordance with such federal securities laws and official interpretations thereof. 

ARTICLE IV 
DEFINITIONS 

Section 4.1 Definitions. The following terms used in this Agreement shall have the 
following respective meanings: 

(1) "Annual Financial Information" means the fmancial information and operating 
data with respect to the County, for each fiscal year of the County, as described under the section 
of the Official Statement entitled "County Financial Information". Annual Financial Information 
shall also include Audited Financial Statements, if available, or Unaudited Financial Statements. 

(2) "Audited Financial Statements" means the annual financial statements, if any, of 
the County, audited by such auditor as shall then be required or permitted by State law or the 
Trust Agreements. Audited Financial Statements shall be prepared in accordance with GAAP; 
provided, however, that the County may from time to time, if required by federal or State legal 
requirements, modify the accounting principles to be followed in preparing its financial 
statements. The notice of any such modification required by Section 3 .2( d) hereof shall include 
a reference to the specific federal or State law or regulation describing such accounting 
principles. 

(3) "GAAP" means generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed for 
governmental units by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 

( 4) "Material Event" means any of the following events with respect to the 
Certificates, whether relating to the County or otherwise, if material: 

(i) principal and interest payment delinquencies; 
(ii) non-payment related defaults; 
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(iii) unscheduled draws on the debt service reserves reflecting financial 
difficulties; 

(iv) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial 
difficulties; 

(v) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 
(vi) adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the 

security; 
(vii) modifications to rights of security holders; 
(viii) bond calls (except in the case of a mandatory, scheduled redemption, not 

otherwise contingent upon the occurrence of an event, if the terms under 
which the redemption is to occur are set forth in detail in the Official 
Statement and the only open issue is which Certificates will be redeemed 
in the case of a partial redemption, provided notice of the redemption is 
given to the Certificateholders and the public; see, Exchange Act Release 
No. 23856, Dec. 3, 1986); 

(ix) defeasances; 
(x) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the 

securities; and 
(xi) rating changes. 

(5) "Material Event Notice" means written or electronic notice of a Material Event. 

(6) "MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board established pursuant 
to Section 15B(b)(1) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 

(7) "NRMSIR" means, at any time, a then-existing nationally recognized municipal 
securities information repository, as recognized from time to time by the SEC for the purposes 
referred to in the Rule. The NRMSIRs are identified on the SEC website at http://www.sec.gov 
/consumer/nrmsir.htm. See Exhibit B for a current list of the NRMSIRs. 

(8) "Official Statement" means the "final official statement", as defined in 
paragraph (f)(3) of the Rule, relating to the Certificates. 

(9) "Rule" means Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the SEC under the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 (17 CFR Part 240, '240.15c2-12), as in effect on the date of this 
Agreement, including any official interpretations thereof. 

(10) 0 SEC" means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 

(11) "SID" means, at any time, a then-existing a state information depository, if any, as 
operated or designated as such by or on behalf of the State for the purposes referred to in the 
Rule. As of the date of this Agreement, there is no SID. 

(12) "Unaudited Financial Statements" means the same as Audited Financial 
Statements, except that they shall not have been audited. 
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ARTICLEV 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 5.1 Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of Trustee. Articles IX of the Trust 
Agreements are hereby made applicable to this Agreement as if this Agreement were ( solely for 
this purpose) contained in the Trust Agreements. 

Section 5.2 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, 
each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same 
instrument. 

Section 5.3 Choice of Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of California, provided that to the extent this Agreement 
addresses matters of federal securities laws, including the Rule, this Agreement shall be 
construed in accordance with such federal securities laws and official interpretations thereof. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have each caused this Agreement to be executed 
by their duly authorized representatives, and the County has caused its corporate seal to be 
hereunto affixed and attested by an authorized representative, all as of the date first above 
written. 

COUNTY OF STANISLAUS 

By: ___________ _ 
Authorized Officer 

BNY WESTERN TRUST COMP ANY 

By: ------------Authorized Signatory 
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EXIDBITA 

NOTICE TO REPOSITORIES OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT 

Name oflssuer : 

Name of Issues: 

Date oflssuance: 

County of Stanislaus 

Certificates of Participation (2004 Capital Improvement Projects) 
Series 2004A and Certificates of Participation (2004 Capital 
Improvement Projects) Series 2004 B 

April 6, 2004 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GNEN that the County of Stanislaus (the "County") has not provided 
an Annual Report with respect to the above-named Certificates as required by a Continuing 
Disclosure Agreement relating to such Bonds. The County anticipates that the Annual Report will be 
filed by ____ _ 

Dated: ------

COUNTY OF STANISLAUS 

By: ___________ _ 
Authorized Officer 
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EXHIBITB 

Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities Information Repositories approved by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission as of the date of the Agreement are listed in the SEC 
website at: http://www.sec.gov/info/municipal/nrmsir.htm 
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APPENDIXG 

DTC AND THE BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM 

The information in this Appendix G concerning The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New 
York, New York, and DTC's book entry system has been obtained from DTC and the County takes no 
responsibility for the completeness or accuracy thereof. The County cannot and does not give any 
assurances that DTC, DTC Participants or Indirect Participants will distribute to the Beneficial Owners 
(a) payments of interest, principal or premium, if any, with respect to the Certificates, (b) certificates 
representing ownership interest in or other confirmation or ownership interest in the Certificates, or ( c) 
redemption or other notices sent to DTC or Cede & Co., its nominee, as the registered owner of the 
Certificates, or that they will so do on a timely basis, or that DTC, DTC Participants or DTC Indirect 
Participants will act in the manner described in this Appendix. The current "Rules .. applicable to DTC are 
on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission and the current "Procedures" of DTC to be 
followed in dealing with DTC Participants are on file with DTC. 

The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the 
Certificates. The Certificates will be issued as :fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & 
Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative 
of DTC. One :fully-registered security certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Certificates, each 
in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC. 

DTC is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a "banking 
organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve 
System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a 
"clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 A of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 2 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity 
issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments from over 85 countries that 
DTC's participants ("Direct Participants .. ) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade 
settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, 
through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. 
This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both 
U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and 
certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing 
Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC, in tum, is owned by a number of Direct Participants of DTC and 
Members of the National Securities Clearing Corporation, Government Securities Clearing Corporation, 
MBS Clearing Corporation, and Emerging Markets Clearing Corporation, (respectively, "NSCC", 
"GSCC", "MBSCC", and "EMCC", also subsidiaries of DTCC), as well as by the New York Stock 
Exchange, Inc., the American Stock Exchange LLC, and the National Association of Securities Dealers, 
Inc. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities 
brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a 
custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly ("Indirect Participants"). DTC 
has Standard & Poor's highest rating: AAA. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with 
the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com. 

Purchases of the Certificates under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct 
Participants, which will receive a credit for the Certificates on DTC's records. The ownership interest of 
each actual purchaser of each Security ("Beneficial Owner") is in tum to be recorded on the Direct and 
Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their 
purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of 
the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant 
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through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the 
Certificates are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting 
on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their 
ownership interests in the Certificates, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the 
Certificates is discontinued. 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Certificates deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are 
registered in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be 
requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of the Certificates with DTC and their 
registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial 
ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Certificates; DTC's records 
reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Certificates are credited, which 
may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible 
for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct 
Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial 
Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory 
requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Beneficial Owners of the Certificates may wish to 
take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the 
Certificates, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Security documents. 
For example, Beneficial Owners of the Certificates may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the 
Certificates for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the 
alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request 
that copies of notices be provided directly to them. 

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. The conveyance of notices and other communications 
by DTC to DTC Participants, by DTC Participants to Indirect Participants and by DTC Participants and 
Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any 
statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Any failure of DTC to advise 
any DTC Participant, or of any DTC Participant or Indirect Participant to notify a Beneficial Owner, of 
any such notice and its content or effect will not affect the validity of the redemption of the Certificates 
called for redemption or of any other action premised on such notice. Redemption of portions of the 
Certificates by the County will reduce the outstanding principal amount of Certificates held by DTC. In 
such event, DTC will implement, through its book-entry system, a redemption by lot of interests in the 
Certificates held for the account ofDTC Participants in accordance with its own rules or other agreements 
with DTC Participants and then DTC Participants and Indirect Participants will implement a redemption 
of the Certificates for the Beneficial Owners. Any such selection of Certificates to be redeemed will not 
be governed by the Trust Agreements and will not be conducted by the County or the Trustee. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to 
the Certificates unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's Procedures. Under its 
usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the issuer as soon as possible after the record date. 
The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to 
whose accounts the Certificates are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the 
Omnibus Proxy). 

Payments of principal of, premium, if any, and interest evidenced by the Certificates will be made 
to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. 
DTC's practice is to credit Direct Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding 
detail information from the County or the Trustee, on payable date in accordance with their respective 
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holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by 
standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of 
customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of such Participant 
and not of DTC (nor its nominee), the Trustee, or the County, subject to any statutory or regulatory 
requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest 
evidenced by the Certificates to Cede & Co. ( or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized 
representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the County or the Trustee, disbursement of such payments 
to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the 
Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 

NONE OF THE COUNTY OR THE TRUSTEE WILL HA VE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR 
OBLIGATION TO DTC PARTICIPANTS, INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR BENEFICIAL OWNERS 
WITH RESPECT TO THE PAYMENTS OR THE PROVIDING OF NOTICE TO DTC 
PARTICIPANTS, INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR BENEFICIAL OWNERS OR THE SELECTION 
OF BONDS FOR PREPAYMENT. 

None of the County or the Trustee can give any assurances that DTC, DTC Participants, Indirect 
Participants or others will distribute payments of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the 
Certificates paid to DTC or its nominee, as the registered Owner, or any redemption or other notice, to the 
Beneficial Owners or that they will do so on a timely basis or that DTC will serve and act in a manner 
described in this Official Statement. 

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Certificates at any 
time by giving reasonable notice to the County or the Trustee. Under such circumstances, in the event that 
a successor depository is not obtained, Security certificates are required to be printed and delivered. 

The County may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or 
a successor securities depository). In that event, Certificate certificates will be printed and delivered. 

In the event that the book-entry system is discontinued as described above, the requirements of 
the Indenture will apply. The foregoing information concerning DTC concerning and DTC's book-entry 
system has been provided by DTC, and none of the County or the Trustee take any responsibility for the 
accuracy thereof. 

None of the County or the Underwriter can and do not give any assurances that DTC, the 
Participants or others will distribute payments of principal, interest or premium, if any, evidenced by the 
Certificates paid to DTC or its nominee as the registered owner, or will distribute any redemption notices 
or other notices, to the Beneficial Owners, or that they will do so on a timely basis or will serve and act in 
the manner described in this Official Statement. None of the County or the Underwriter are responsible or 
liable for the failure of DTC or any Participant to make any payment or give any notice to a Beneficial 
Owner with respect to the Certificates or an error or delay relating thereto. 
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